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PART I
 

SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD—LOOKING STATEMENTS
 

On one or more occasions, we may make forward-looking statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K regarding our
assumptions, projections, expectations, targets, intentions or beliefs about future events. Words or phrases such as “anticipates,”
“may,” “will,” “should,” “believes,” “estimates,” “expects,” “intends,” “plans,” “predicts,” “projects,” “targets,” “will likely result,” “will
continue” or similar expressions identify forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements are only our predictions and
involve numerous assumptions, risks and uncertainties, including, but not limited to those listed below and those business risks and
factors described elsewhere in this report and our other Securities and Exchange Commission filings.
 
We undertake no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future
events or otherwise. However, your attention is directed to any further disclosures made on related subjects in our subsequent annual
and periodic reports filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on Forms 10-K, 10-Q and 8-K and Proxy Statements on
Schedule 14A.
 
We obtained the market data used in this report from internal company reports and industry publications. Industry publications
generally state that the information contained in those publications has been obtained from sources believed to be reliable, but their
accuracy and completeness are not guaranteed and their reliability cannot be assured. Although we believe market data used in this
10-K is reliable, it has not been independently verified. Similarly, while we believe internal company reports are reliable, we have not
had the content of these reports independently verified.
 
Unless the context requires otherwise, references to “we,” “us,” “our,” and “the Company” refer specifically to Aemetis, Inc. and its
subsidiaries.
 

EXPLANATORY NOTE
 
This annual report on Form 10-K is a comprehensive filing for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2010 and 2011 and the interim
periods within 2011.  It is being filed by us in order to become current in our filing obligations under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended.  This is our first periodic filing since the third quarter of 2010, although we have made certain filings on Form 8-
K.  Included in this report are the audited financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2011 as well as unaudited
quarterly financial information for the 2011 interim periods.
 
This annual report should be read together and in connection with the other reports filed by us with the SEC for a comprehensive
description of our current financial condition and operating results.  In the interest of complete and accurate disclosure, we have
included current information in this annual report for all material events and developments that have taken place through the date of
filing of this annual report with the SEC.
 
ITEM 1.  BUSINESS
 
General
 
We are an international renewable fuels and specialty chemical company focused on the production of advanced fuels and chemicals
and the acquisition, development and commercialization of innovative technologies that replace traditional petroleum-based products
and convert first-generation ethanol and biodiesel plants into advanced biorefineries.
 
Aemetis operates in three reportable geographic segments: “North America”, “India”, and “Other.”  For revenue and other information
regarding Aemetis’ operating segments, see Note 11. Segment Information, of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in
Part II, Item 8 of this Form 10-K, which is incorporated herein by reference.
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2010 Highlights
 
In 2010, we were primarily engaged in three activities: (i) fundraising for the retrofit of a 55 million gallon per year (MGY) ethanol plant
in Keyes, California, pursuant to a Project Agreement with Cilion, Inc.; (ii) owning and operating a biodiesel production facility in
Kakinada, India with a nameplate capacity of 150,000 metric tons per year; and (iii) continuing to develop our proprietary, patented
and patent pending microbial and enzyme technology.
 
North America
 
Retrofit of Keyes, CA Ethanol Plant
 
In December 2009, we entered into a Project Agreement with Cilion, Inc. to retrofit, re-start and operate a 55 MGY ethanol plant in
Keyes, California.  In December 2009 we also entered into a three year (subsequently extended to a five year) Lease Agreement
with Cilion, the term of which would begin upon substantial completion of the retrofit.  During 2010, substantially all of our activities in
North America were focused on fundraising and retrofitting the Keyes ethanol plant.  We took possession of the plant in the second
quarter of 2010 and began the retrofit shortly thereafter.  On October 29, 2010 and March 9, 2011 the parties amended the Project
Agreement and the Lease Agreement to, among other things, extend the date by which substantial completion of the retrofit was
required, extend the term of the Lease, and waive certain defaults under the Project Agreement.  On April 1, 2011 the retrofit was
substantially completed and the Lease term began.  The plant became operational in the second quarter of 2011.  We raised a total of
$8.0 million in debt financing to retrofit the plant with an initial raise of $4.5 million in 2010 and an additional raise of $3.5 million in
early 2011.  For more information regarding this debt financing, see Note 5. Notes Payable of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements in Part II, Item 8 of this Form 10-K, which is incorporated herein by reference.
 
India
 
We own and operate a biodiesel manufacturing plant in Kakinada, India with a nameplate capacity of 150,000 metric tons of biodiesel
(approximately 50 million gallons) and 18,000 metric tons of glycerin (approximately 3.8 million gallons) per annum.  Our plant is
capable of producing biodiesel from multiple feedstocks. In 2010, our primary feedstock was non-edible refined palm oil (NRPO), a
byproduct of palm oil fractionation and a non-edible feedstock, which we sourced from suppliers in India.  In 2010, we sold 7,598
metric tons of biodiesel at an average price of $849 per ton, which represented 80% of our consolidated 2010 revenue.
 
Crude glycerin is a natural byproduct of the biodiesel production process.  In 2010, we produced and sold 1,046 metric tons of crude
glycerin at an average price of $350 per metric ton.
 
The following table sets forth information about our production and sales of biodiesel, crude glycerin and NRPO in 2010 and 2009.
 

  2010   2009   % Change  
Biodiesel          
Tons Sold(1)   7,598   13,349   (43%)
Average Sales Price/Ton  $ 849  $ 658   29%
Crude Glycerin             
Tons Sold   1,046   1,964   (47%)
Average Sales Price/Ton  $ 350  $ 237   48%
NRPO             
Tons Sold   1,434   -   (100%)
Average Sales Price/Ton  $ 923   -   100%
 

(1) 1 metric ton is equal to 1,000 kilograms (approximately 2,205 pounds).
 
Biodiesel production declined in 2010 due to high feedstock prices.  Although production declined markedly, revenues decreased
slightly to $8.1 million in 2010 from $9.2 million in 2009 as a result of higher average sales prices.
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2011 Highlights
 
North America
 
In the second quarter of 2011, we successfully completed the retrofit of the Keyes, CA ethanol plant and in late April 2011 began
operating the plant pursuant to a 5-year lease agreement with Cilion, Inc.  The Keyes plant is a dry mill ethanol production facility
currently utilizing corn as feedstock.  In addition, the plant produces high quality wet distillers grains (WDG) and a small amount of
condensed distillers soluble (CDS) as byproducts of the ethanol production process, which are sold as a high protein, livestock feed
supplement.
 
The plant is located adjacent to the Union Pacific Railroad and Highway 99, two major transportation arteries in California’s Central
Valley region, providing convenient transportation to and from the plant for inbound feedstock and outbound feed and fuel.
 
During 2011, we produced three products at the Keyes plant:  denatured ethanol, WDG and CDS.  In 2011 we sold 100% of the
ethanol and WDG we produced to J.D. Heiskell pursuant to a Purchase Agreement established with J.D. Heiskell.  Small amounts of
CDS were sold to various local third parties.  Ethanol pricing is determined pursuant to a marketing agreement between the Company
and Kinergy Marketing LLC, and is generally based on daily and monthly pricing for ethanol delivered to Los Angeles, California, as
published by the Oil Price Information Service (OPIS), as well as quarterly contracts negotiated by Kinergy with local fuel
blenders.  The price for WDG is determined monthly pursuant to a marketing agreement between the Company and A.L. Gilbert Co.,
and is generally determined in reference to the price of dry distillers grains (DDG) and corn.
 
The following table sets forth information about our production and sales of ethanol and WDG in 2011.
 

  2011  
Ethanol    
Gallons Sold (in 000s)   37,389 
Average Sales Price/Gallon  $ 2.89 
WDG     
Tons Sold (in 000s)   274 
Average Sales Price/Ton  $ 85.37 

 
During 2011 we continued to spend research and development dollars exploring the viability of commercializing our integrated
cellulose and starch ethanol technology and in July 2011, we acquired Zymetis, Inc., a biochemical research and development firm,
with several patents pending and in-process R&D utilizing the Z-microbe™ (a marine organism originally discovered consuming plant
cellulose at a high rate in the Chesapeake Bay) to produce renewable chemicals and advanced fuels from renewable feedstocks.
 
India
 
The market for biodiesel in 2011 was very challenging and as a result the Company’s production of biodiesel and crude glycerin
remained static although revenues increased as a result of an increase in average sale prices.  In 2011, our primary feedstock for the
production of biodiesel continued to be NRPO, a byproduct of palm oil fractionation and a non-edible feedstock, which we sourced
from suppliers in India.
 
In response to difficult market conditions, during 2011, the Company took the opportunity to perform routine maintenance and to
complete the plant’s glycerin refining and oil pretreatment units. The glycerin refining and oil pre-treatment units were completed in
the firstquarter of 2012.  The glycerin refining unit enables us to produce and sell refined glycerin and the oil pre-treatment unit
enables us to refine crude palm oil into refined palm oil.  In addition, in the first quarter of 2012, our India subsidiary received an
Indian Pharmacopeia license, which enables it to sell refined glycerin to the pharmaceutical industry in India.  In the third quarter of
2011, in order to develop a market for our refined glycerin, we imported 1,000 metric tons of refined glycerin, which we sold in 2011
and 2012.  In 2011, we did not produce any refined glycerin.
 
In 2011, the Company began to explore other markets for its products and developed a customer base in the textile industry for its
biodiesel and in the paints and adhesives market for its refined glycerin.
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The following table sets forth information about our production and sales of biodiesel and crude and refined glycerin in 2011 and
2010.
 

  2011   2010   % Change  
Biodiesel          
Tons sold (1)   8,636   7,598   14%
Average Sales Price/Ton  $ 1,001  $ 849   18%
Crude Glycerin             
Tons sold   23   1,046   (98%)
Average Sales Price/Ton  $ 643  $ 350   84%
Refined Glycerin             
Tons sold   772   -   - 
Average Sales Price/Ton  $ 787   -   - 
NRPO Stearin             
Tons Sold   588   1,434   (59%)
Average Sales Price/Ton  $ 1,024  $ 923   11%

 
(1) 1 metric ton is equal to 1,000 kilograms (approximately 2,204 pounds).

 
The plant was originally designed to include four production units: biodiesel, refined glycerin, oil refining and fractionation.  To date,
the biodiesel, refined glycerin and oil refining units have been completed.  In order to complete the fractionation unit, the Company
will need to purchase and install additional equipment for an additional cost of approximately $2 million.
 
Strategy
 
Our goal is to be a leader in the production of advanced fuels and specialty chemicals from renewable sources to meet increasing
market demand for such products, and to reduce overall dependence on petroleum-based fuels and chemicals in an environmentally
responsible manner.
 
India
 
The Company owns and operates a biodiesel production facility in Kakinada, India with a nameplate capacity of 150,000 metric tons
per year. This facility is one of the largest biodiesel production facilities in India on a nameplate capacity basis. Our objective is to
continue to capitalize on the substantial growth potential of the industry. Key elements of our strategy include the following:
 

•  Expand market demand for biodiesel and its byproducts. We plan to create additional demand for biodiesel and its
byproducts by looking for alternative markets.  In 2011, we began selling biodiesel to textile manufacturers.  In addition,
in the fourth quarter of 2011 we completed glycerin refining and oil pre-treatment units and began selling refined glycerin
to manufacturers of paints and adhesives.  In 2012, our India subsidiary received an Indian Pharmacopeia license, which
enables it to sell refined glycerin to the pharmaceutical industry in India.  We also expect to increase sales by selling our
biodiesel into the international market during the summer months when biodiesel use in Europe and the United States
increases with the onset of warmer weather.  In 2011, we had two sales in the aggregate amount of $6.86 million and in
2010 we had no sales, respectively, into the European market.

 
•  Diversify our feedstocks. We designed our Kakinada plant with the capability of producing biodiesel from multiple-

feedstocks. In 2009 we began to produce biodiesel from NRPO.  In 2011 we completed an oil pre-treatment unit, which
enables us to convert crude palm oil into refined palm oil, which can either be sold or used to produce biodiesel.

 
North America
 
In 2007, we acquired patent-pending enzyme technology to enable the production of ethanol from a combination of starch and
cellulose, or from cellulose alone, and in July 2011, we acquired Zymetis, Inc., a biochemical research and development firm, with
several patents pending and in-process R&D utilizing the Z-microbe™ to produce renewable chemicals and advanced fuels from
renewable feedstocks.  Our objective is to continue to look for ways to commercialize this technology to expand the production of
cellulosic ethanol and other bio-chemicals in the United States.
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Competition
 
North America
 
In 2011, there were over 200 commercial corn ethanol production facilities in operation in the U.S. with a combined production of
nearly 13.5 billion gallons, according to the Renewable Fuels Association (RFA).  The production of ethanol is a commodity and
producers compete on the basis of price.
 
India
 
With respect to biodiesel sold as fuel, we compete primarily with the producers of petroleum diesel, which are the three state-
controlled oil companies: Indian Oil Corporation, Bharat Petroleum and Hindustan Petroleum, and two private oil
companies:  Reliance Petroleum and Essar Oil, all of whom have significantly larger market shares than us, and control a significant
share of the distribution network. We compete primarily on the basis of price.  The price of biodiesel is indexed to the price of
petroleum diesel, which is set by the Indian government.  In addition, the state-controlled oil companies are subsidized by the India
government creating a disparity between the cost of oil on the open market and the price we can obtain from sales of biodiesel.  In
September 2012, the Indian government provided partial relief by raising the price of diesel by 5 rupee per liter.  If the Indian
government were to significantly reduce diesel prices, or if our oil company competitors were to significantly increase production of
petroleum diesel, our business, operating results and financial condition could be adversely affected.
 
With respect to biodiesel sold for manufacturing purposes we compete with specialty chemical manufacturers primarily on the basis
of price, and with respect to crude and refined glycerin, we compete with other glycerin producers and refiners primarily on the basis
of price and product quality.
 
Customers
 
North America
 
One hundred percent (100%) of our ethanol and WDG are sold to J.D. Heiskell pursuant to a Purchase Agreement.  J.D. Heiskell in
turn sells 100% of our ethanol to Kinergy and 100% of the WDG to A.L. Gilbert. Kinergy markets and sells our ethanol to petroleum
refiners and blenders in Northern California.  A.L. Gilbert markets and sells our WDG to approximately 200 dairy and feeding
operators in Northern California.
 
India
 
For the fiscal years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, no single customer accounted for more than 10% of our total revenues.
The level of sales to any customer may vary from quarter to quarter.
 
Pricing
 
India
 
In India the price of biodiesel is based on the price of petroleum diesel, which is established by the India government.  Biodiesel sold
into Europe is based on the spot market price. We sell our biodiesel primarily to resellers, distributors and refiners on an as-needed
basis. We have no long-term sales contracts.
 
North America
 
We sell 100% of the ethanol and WDG we produce to J.D. Heiskell.  Ethanol pricing is determined pursuant to a marketing
agreement between the Company and Kinergy Marketing LLC, and is generally based on daily and monthly pricing for ethanol
delivered to Los Angeles, California, as published by the Oil Price Information Service (OPIS), as well as quarterly contracts
negotiated by Kinergy with local fuel blenders.  The price for WDG is determined monthly pursuant to a marketing agreement
between the Company and A.L. Gilbert Co., and is generally determined in reference to the price of dry distillers grains (DDG) and
corn.
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Raw Materials and Suppliers
 
North America
 
In March 2011, we entered into a Corn Procurement and Working Capital Agreement with J.D. Heiskell.  Pursuant to the agreement
we agreed to procure whole yellow corn from J.D. Heiskell. We have the ability to obtain corn from other sources subject to certain
conditions, however, in 2011 all of our corn requirements were purchased from Heiskell. Title to the corn and risk of loss passes to us
when the corn is deposited in the weigh bin.  The initial term of the Agreement expired on December 31, 2011 and is automatically
renewed for additional one-year terms, currently December 31, 2012.
 
India
 
Surrounding our plant in Kakinada, India are a number of edible oil processing facilities that produce NRPO as a byproduct.  In 2010,
100% of our biodiesel was produced from NRPO, which we obtained from sources surrounding the plant. In addition to feedstock, our
plant requires quantities of methanol and chemical catalysts for use in the biodiesel production process. These chemicals are also
readily available and sourced from a number of suppliers surrounding the plant. We are not dependent on sole source or limited
source suppliers for any of our raw materials or chemicals.
 
Sales and Marketing
 
North America
 
As part of our obligations under the Corn Procurement and Working Capital Agreement, in March 2011, we entered into a Purchase
Agreement with Heiskell pursuant to which we granted Heiskell exclusive rights to purchase 100% of the ethanol and WDG we
produce at prices established by the Company pursuant to marketing agreements with Kinergy and A.L. Gilbert.  In turn Heiskell
agreed to resell all the ethanol to Kinergy (or any other purchaser we designate) and all of the WDG to A.L. Gilbert.
 
In March 2011, we entered into a WDG Purchase and Sale Agreement with A.L. Gilbert Company pursuant to which A.L. Gilbert
agreed to market on an exclusive basis all of the WDG we produce.  The initial term of the Agreement expired on December 31, 2011
and is automatically renewed for additional one-year terms, currently December 31, 2012.
 
In October 2010, we entered into an exclusive marketing agreement with Kinergy Marketing LLC to market and sell our ethanol. The
initial term of the Agreement expires on August 31, 2013 and is automatically renewed for additional one-year terms.
 
India
 
We sell our biodiesel and crude glycerin (i) to end-users utilizing our own sales force and independent sales agents; and (ii) to brokers
who resell the product to end-users.  We pay a sales commission on sales arranged by independent sales agents.
 
Commodity Risk Management Practices
 
North America
 
The cost of corn and the price of ethanol are volatile and are reasonably well correlated. We are, therefore, exposed to moderate
commodity price risk. Our risk management strategy is to purchase corn and sell ethanol on a daily basis at the then prevailing
market price.  We monitor these prices weekly to test for an overall positive variable contribution margin.  We periodically explore
methods of mitigating the volatility of our commodity prices, however, we have yet to engage in any hedging or forward purchase
activity. In addition, we are actively pursuing the identification and adoption of technologies and processes that would lessen our
dependence on the traditional corn and ethanol commodity markets at the Keyes plant.
 
India
 
The cost of NRPO and the price of biodiesel are volatile and are generally uncorrelated. We are, therefore, exposed to ongoing and
substantial commodity price risk. Our risk management strategy is to produce biodiesel in India only when we believe we can
generate positive gross margins and to idle the plant during periods of low or negative gross margins.  In addition, in 2011 we began
to look for customers outside of the fuels market.
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In addition, to minimize our commodity risk, we have modified the processes within our facility to utilize lower cost NRPO, which
enables us to reduce our feedstock costs; however, our ability to mitigate the risk of falling biodiesel prices is more limited. The price
of our biodiesel is generally indexed to the price of petroleum diesel, which is set by the Indian government. There is no established
market for biodiesel futures.
 
We have in the past, and may in the future, use forward purchase contracts and other hedging strategies, however, the extent to
which we engage in these risk management strategies may vary substantially from time to time, depending on our working capital
provider’s interest to fund these transactions, market conditions and other factors.
 
Research and Development
 
In July 2011, we acquired Zymetis, Inc., a biochemical research and development firm, with several patents pending and in-process
R&D utilizing the Z-microbe™ (a marine organism originally discovered consuming plant cellulose at a high rate in the Chesapeake
Bay) to produce renewable chemicals and advanced fuels from renewable feedstocks. Our R&D efforts consist of working with third
parties to commercialize our cellulosic ethanol technology and to expand the production of cellulosic ethanol and other bio-chemicals
in the United States and the pursuit of patents around this technology. The primary objective of this development activity is to optimize
the production of ethanol using our proprietary, patent-pending enzyme technology for large-scale commercial production. Our
innovations are protected by fourissued and ten pending patents. We are in the process of filing additional patents that will further
strengthen the Company’s portfolio. Some core intellectual property has been exclusively and indefinitely licensed from the University
of Maryland. R&D expense was $576,625 in 2011 and $322,561 in 2010.
 
Patents and Trademarks
 
We have filed a number of trademark applications within the U.S. We do not consider the success of our business, as a whole, to be
dependent on these trademarks. In addition, we have three patent applications pending in the United States in connection with our
cellulosic ethanol technology and 4 issued and 10 pending patents in connection with the Z-microbe technology acquired from
Zymetis, Inc.
 
It is possible that the Company will not receive patents for every application it files. Furthermore, when patents are issued, the issued
patents may not adequately protect our technology from infringement or prevent others from claiming that our products infringe the
patents of third parties. The Company’s failure to protect our intellectual property could materially harm our business. In addition, the
Company’s competitors may independently develop similar or superior technology or design around our patents. It is possible that
litigation may be necessary in the future to enforce the Company’s intellectual property rights, to protect its trade secrets or to
determine the validity and scope of the proprietary rights of others. Litigation could result in substantial costs and diversion of
resources and could materially harm the Company’s business.
 
The Company may receive in the future, notice of claims of infringement of other parties’ proprietary rights. Infringement or other
claims could be asserted or prosecuted against the Company in the future and it is possible that future assertions or prosecutions
could harm our business. Any such claims, with or without merit, could be time-consuming, result in costly litigation and diversion of
technical and management personnel, cause delays in the development of our products, or require the Company to develop non-
infringing technology or enter into royalty or licensing arrangements. Such royalty or licensing arrangements, if required, may require
the Company to license back its technology or may not be available on terms acceptable to the Company, or at all. For these
reasons, infringement claims could materially harm the Company’s business.
 
Environmental and Regulatory Matters
 
India
 
We are subject to national, state and local environmental laws, regulations and permits, including with respect to the generation,
storage, handling, use, transportation and disposal of hazardous materials, and the health and safety of our employees. These laws
may require us to make operational changes to limit actual or potential impacts to the environment. A violation of these laws,
regulations or permits can result in substantial fines, natural resource damages, criminal sanctions, permit revocations and/or facility
shutdowns. In addition, environmental laws and regulations (and interpretations thereof) change over time, and any such changes,
more vigorous enforcement policies or the discovery of currently unknown conditions may require substantial additional
environmental expenditures.
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North America
 
We are subject to extensive federal, state and local environmental laws, regulations and permit conditions (and interpretations
thereof), including those relating to the discharge of materials into the air, water and ground, the generation, storage, handling, use,
transportation and disposal of hazardous materials, and the health and safety of our employees. These laws, regulations, and permits
require us to incur significant capital and other costs, including costs to obtain and maintain expensive pollution control equipment.
They may also require us to make operational changes to limit actual or potential impacts to the environment. A violation of these
laws, regulations or permit conditions could result in substantial fines, natural resource damages, criminal sanctions, permit
revocations and/or facility shutdowns. In addition, environmental laws and regulations (and interpretations thereof) change over time,
and any such changes, more vigorous enforcement policies or the discovery of currently unknown conditions may require substantial
additional environmental expenditures.
 
We are also subject to potential liability for the investigation and cleanup of environmental contamination at each of the properties that
we may own or operate and at off-site locations where we arranged for the disposal of hazardous wastes. If significant contamination
is identified at our properties in the future, costs to investigate and remediate this contamination as well as any costs to investigate or
remediate associated natural resource damages could be significant. If any of these sites are subject to investigation and/or
remediation requirements, we may be responsible under the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability
Act of 1980 (“CERCLA”) or other environmental laws for all or part of the costs of such investigation and/or remediation, and for
damages to natural resources. We may also be subject to related claims by private parties alleging property damage or personal
injury due to exposure to hazardous or other materials at or from such properties. While costs to address contamination or related
third-party claims could be significant, based upon currently available information, we are not aware of any material contamination or
such third party claims. We have not accrued any amounts for environmental matters as of December 31, 2011. The ultimate costs of
any liabilities that may be identified or the discovery of additional contaminants could adversely impact our results of operation or
financial condition.
 
In addition, the hazards and risks associated with producing and transporting our products (such as fires, natural disasters,
explosions, and abnormal pressures) may result in spills or releases of hazardous substances, or claims from governmental
authorities or third parties relating to actual or alleged personal injury, property damage, or damages to natural resources. We
maintain insurance coverage against some, but not all, potential losses caused by our operations. Our coverage includes, but is not
limited to, physical damage to assets, employer’s liability, comprehensive general liability, automobile liability and workers’
compensation. We do not carry environmental insurance. We believe that our insurance is adequate for our industry, but losses could
occur for uninsurable or uninsured risks or in amounts in excess of existing insurance coverage. The occurrence of events which
result in significant personal injury or damage to our property, natural resources or third parties that is not covered by insurance could
have a material adverse impact on our results of operations and financial condition.
 
Our air emissions are subject to the federal Clean Air Act, and similar State laws, which generally require us to obtain and maintain
air emission permits for our ongoing operations as well as for any expansion of existing facilities or any new facilities. Obtaining and
maintaining those permits requires us to incur costs, and any future more stringent standards may result in increased costs and may
limit or interfere with our operating flexibility. These costs could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of
operations. Because other ethanol manufacturers in the U.S. are and will continue to be subject to similar laws and restrictions, we
do not currently believe that our costs to comply with current or future environmental laws and regulations will adversely affect our
competitive position with other U.S. ethanol producers. However, because ethanol is produced and traded internationally, these costs
could adversely affect us in our efforts to compete with foreign producers not subject to such stringent requirements.
 
New laws or regulations relating to the production, disposal or emissions of carbon dioxide and other greenhouse gasses may require
us to incur significant additional costs with respect to ethanol plants that we build or acquire. In particular, in 2007, Illinois and four
other Midwestern States entered into the Midwestern Greenhouse Gas Reduction Accord, which program directs participating states
to develop a multi-sector cap-and-trade mechanism to help achieve reductions in greenhouse gases, including carbon dioxide. In
addition, it is possible that other states in which we conduct or plan to conduct business could join this accord or require other costly
carbon dioxide emissions reductions.  Climate Change legislation is being considered in Washington, D.C. this year which may
significantly impact the biofuels industry's emissions regulations, as will the Renewable Fuel Standard, California Low Carbon Fuel
Standard, and other potentially significant changes in existing transportation fuels regulations.
 
Employees
 
At December 31, 2010, we had a total of 69 full-time equivalent employees, comprised of 12 full-time equivalent employees in our
corporate offices, 13 full-time equivalent employees at our plant in Keyes, California and 44 full-time equivalent employees in India.
 
At December 31, 2011, we had a total of 112 full-time equivalent employees, comprised of 16 full-time equivalent employees in our
corporate offices, 45 full-time equivalent employees at our plant in Keyes, California, three full-time equivalent employees in our
Maryland research and development facility and 48 full-time equivalent employees in India. None of our employees are represented
by a union. We believe our relations with our employees are good.
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ITEM 1A.  RISK FACTORS
 
We operate in an evolving industry that presents numerous risks that are beyond our control that are driven by factors that cannot be
predicted.  Should any of the risk described in this section or in the documents incorporated by reference in this report actually occur,
our business, results of operations, financial condition, or stock price could be materially and adversely affected.  Investors should
carefully consider the risk factors discussed below, in addition to the other information in this report, before making any investment in
our securities.
 
Risks Related to our Overall Business
 
We have incurred significant losses, and may never achieve profitability. If we continue to incur losses, we may have to
curtail our operations, which may prevent us from successfully operating and expanding our business.
 
We have a history of significant losses. Historically, we have relied upon cash from debt and equity financing activities to fund
substantially all of the cash requirements of our activities and have incurred significant losses and experienced negative cash flow. As
of December 31, 2011, we had an accumulated deficit of $65,526,029. For our fiscal years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, we
incurred a net loss of $18,296,359 and $8,425,253, respectively. We cannot predict when we will become profitable or if we ever will
become profitable. We may continue to incur losses for an indeterminate period of time and may never achieve or sustain profitability.
An extended period of losses and negative cash flow may prevent us from successfully operating and expanding our business. Even
if we are able to achieve profitability, we may be unable to sustain or increase our profitability on a quarterly or annual basis.
 
We are dependent upon our working capital arrangements with J.D. Heiskell and Secunderabad Oils Limited.
 
Our ability to operate our Keyes plant depends on maintaining our working capital arrangement with J.D. Heiskell and our ability to
operate our biodiesel plant in India depends on maintaining our working capital arrangement with Secunderabad Oils Limited.  The
agreement provides for an initial term of one year with automatic one-year renewals; provided, however, that Heiskell may terminate
the agreement by notice 90 days prior to the end of the initial term or any renewal term.  The current term extends through March 8,
2013.  In addition, the agreement may be terminated at any time upon default.  The Secunderabad agreement may be terminated at
any time by either party upon written notice.  If we are unable to maintain these strategic relationships, we will be required to locate
alternative sources of working capital and corn procurement logistics, which we may be unable to do in a timely manner or at all.  If
we are unable to maintain our current working capital arrangements or locate alternative sources of working capital, our ability to
operate our plants will be negatively affected.
 
We may be unable to execute on the Company’s business plan.
 
The value of our long-lived assets is based on our ability to execute our business plan, principally in India and Keyes, California and
generate sufficient cash flow to justify the carrying value of this asset.  Should we fall short of our cash flow projections, we may be
required to write down the value of these assets under the accounting rules and further degrade the value of our business.  We can
make no assurances that our future cash flows will develop and provide us with sufficient cash to maintain the value of these assets,
thus avoiding future impairment to our asset carry values.  As a result, we may need to write down the carrying value of the
Company’s long-lived assets.
 
In addition, we plan to implement our own or a third party’s technology at the Keyes ethanol plant and at the India biodiesel plant for
the production of advanced fuels and specialty chemicals.  After we design and engineer a specific integrated upgrade to either or
both plants to allow us to produce products other than their existing products, we may not receive permission from the regulatory
agencies to install the process at either plant.  Additionally, even if we are able to install and begin operations of an integrated
advanced fuels and/or specialty chemical plant, we cannot give assurance that the technology will work and produce cost effective
products because we have never designed, engineered nor built this technology into an existing bio-refinery.  Any inability to execute
on the Company’s business plan may have a material adverse effect on our operations, financial position, and ability to continue as a
going concern.
 
We are currently in default on our term loan with the State Bank of India.
 
On October 7, 2009, one of our subsidiaries, Universal Biofuels Pvt. Ltd. (UBPL), received a demand notice from the State Bank of
India under the Agreement of Loan for Overall Limit dated as of June 26, 2008.  The notice informs UBPL that an event of default has
occurred for failure to make an installment payment on the loan due in June 2009 and demands repayment of the entire outstanding
indebtedness of 19.60 crores (approximately $4 million) together with all accrued interest thereon and any applicable fees and
expenses by October 10, 2009.  Upon the occurrence and during the continuance of an Event of Default, interest accrues at the
default interest rate of 2% above the State Bank of India Advance Rate pursuant to the Agreement of Loan for Overall Limit.  State
Bank of India has filed a legal case before the Debt Recovery Tribunal (DRT), Hyderabad, for recovery of approximately $5 million
against the company and also impleaded Andhra Pradesh Industrial Infrastructure Corporation (APIIC) to expedite the process of
registration of Factory land for which counter reply is yet to be filed by APIIC.  In the case that the Company is unable to prevail with
EDGAR Stream is a copyright of Issuer Direct Corporation, all rights reserved.



its legal case, DRT may pass a Decree for recovery of due amount, which will impact operations of the company including action up
to seizing company property for recovery of their dues. Interest continues to accrue at the default rate in the amount of approximately
$48,000 per month during the continuance of default.
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We may be unable to repay or refinance our Third Eye Capital Notes upon maturity.
 
On July 6, 2012, we entered into an amended and restated note purchase agreement for a term note in the amount of $15 million, a
revolving facility in the amount of $18 million and a revenue participation note in the amount of $10 million.  These three facilities have
varying maturities over the next two years.  We may not be able to extend the maturity of these notes, have sufficient cash available
at the time of maturity to repay this indebtedness, have defaults that accelerate the maturities or have sufficient assets or cash flow
available to support refinancing these notes at market rates, on terms that are satisfactory to us, or at all.  If we are unable to extend
the maturity of the notes or refinance on terms satisfactory to us, we may be forced to refinance on terms that are materially less
favorable, seek funds through other means such as a sale of some of our assets, or otherwise significantly alter our operating plan,
any of which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and results of operation.
 
Our business is affected by greenhouse gas and climate change regulation.
 
The operations at our Keyes plant emits carbon dioxide into the atmosphere.  In 2010, the EPA released its final regulations on
RFS2.  We believe the EPA’s final RFS2 regulations grandfather the Keyes facility we operate at its current capacity. Compliance
with future legislation may require us to take action unknown to us at this time that could be costly, require the use of working capital,
which may or may not be available, preventing us from operating as planned, which may have a material adverse effect on our
operations and cash flow.
 
Our operations are subject to environmental, health, and safety laws, regulations, and liabilities.
 
Our operations are subject to various federal, state and local environmental laws and regulations, including those relating to the
discharge of materials into the air, water and ground, the generation, storage, handling, use, transportation and disposal of hazardous
materials, access to and impacts on water supply, and the health and safety of our employees.  In addition, our operations and sales
in India subject us to risks associated with foreign laws, policies, and regulations.  Some of these laws and regulations require our
facilities to operate under permits that are subject to renewal or modification.  These laws, regulations and permits can require
expensive emissions testing and pollution control equipment or operational changes to limit actual or potential impacts to the
environment.  A violation of these laws and regulations or permit conditions can result in substantial fines, natural resource damages,
criminal sanctions, permit revocations and facility shutdowns.  We may not be at all times in compliance with these laws, regulations
or permits or we may not have all permits required to operate our business.  We may be subject to legal actions brought by
environmental advocacy groups and other parties for actual or alleged violations of environmental laws or permits.  In addition, we
may be required to make significant capital expenditures on an ongoing basis to comply with increasingly stringent environmental
laws, regulations and permits.
 
We may be liable for the investigation and cleanup of environmental contamination at the Keyes plant and at off-site locations where
we arrange for the disposal of hazardous substances.  If these substances have been or are disposed of or released at sites that
undergo investigation or remediation by regulatory agencies, we may be responsible under CERCLA, or other environmental laws for
all or part of the costs of investigation and remediation, and for damage to natural resources.  We also may be subject to related
claims by private parties alleging property damage and personal injury due to exposure to hazardous or other materials at or from
those properties.  Some of these matters may require us to expend significant amounts for investigation, cleanup or other costs.
 
New laws, new interpretations of existing laws, increased governmental enforcement of environmental laws or other developments
could require us to make additional significant expenditures.  Continued government and public emphasis on environmental issues
can be expected to result in increased future investments for environmental controls at our production facilities.  Environmental laws
and regulations applicable to our operations now or in the future, more vigorous enforcement policies and discovery of currently
unknown conditions may require substantial expenditures that could have a negative impact on our results of operations and financial
condition.  For example, carbon dioxide is a co-product of the ethanol manufacturing process and may be released into the
atmosphere.
 
Emissions of carbon dioxide resulting from the manufacturing process are not currently subject to applicable permit requirements.  If
new laws or regulations are passed relating to the production, disposal or emissions of carbon dioxide, we may be required to incur
significant costs to comply with such new laws or regulations.
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Our business may suffer if we cannot maintain necessary permits or licenses.
 
Our operations require licenses, permits and in some cases renewals of these licenses and permits from various governmental
authorities.  Our ability to obtain, sustain, or renew such licenses and permits on acceptable, commercially viable terms are subject to
change, as, among other things, the regulations and policies of applicable governmental authorities may change.  Any inability to
obtain, renew, or the loss of any of these licenses or permits may have a material adverse effect on our operations and financial
condition.
 
A change in government policies may cause a decline in the demand for our products.
 
The domestic ethanol industry is highly dependent upon a myriad of federal and state regulations and pending legislation, and any
changes in legislation or regulation could adversely affect our results of operations and financial position.  Other federal and state
programs benefiting ethanol, generally are subject to U.S. government obligations under international trade agreements, including
those under the World Trade Organization Agreement on Subsidies and Countervailing Measures, and may be the subject of
challenges, in whole or in part.  Growth and demand for ethanol and biodiesel is largely driven by federal and state government
mandates or blending requirements, such as the Renewable Fuel Standard (RFS). Any change in government policies, which
negatively affects our business, may have a material adverse effect our business and the results of our operations.
 
Ethanol can be imported into the United States duty-free from some countries, which may undermine the domestic ethanol
industry.  Production costs for ethanol in these countries can be significantly less than in the United States and the import of lower
price or lower carbon value ethanol from these countries may reduce the demand for domestic ethanol and depress the price at which
we sell our ethanol.
 
Waivers of the RFS minimum levels of renewable fuels included in gasoline could have a material adverse effect on our results of
operations.  Under the Energy Policy Act, the U.S. Department of Energy, in consultation with the Secretary of Agriculture and the
Secretary of Energy, may waive the renewable fuels mandate with respect to one or more states if the Administrator of the
Environmental Protection Agency determines that implementing the requirements would severely harm the economy or the
environment of a state, a region or the nation, or that there is inadequate supply to meet the requirement.  Any waiver of the RFS with
respect to one or more states would reduce demand for ethanol and could cause our results of operations to decline and our financial
condition to suffer.
 
We are subject to anti-corruption laws in the jurisdictions in which we operate, including the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices
Act, or the FCPA. Our failure to comply with these laws could result in penalties, which could harm our reputation and have
a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.
 
We are subject to the FCPA, which generally prohibits companies and their intermediaries from making improper payments to foreign
officials for the purpose of obtaining or keeping business and/or other benefits, along with various other anticorruption laws. Although
we have implemented policies and procedures designed to ensure that we, our employees and other intermediaries comply with the
FCPA and other anticorruption laws to which we are subject, there is no assurance that such policies or procedures will work
effectively all of the time or protect us against liability under the FCPA or other laws for actions taken by our employees and other
intermediaries with respect to our business or any businesses that we may acquire. We have manufacturing operations in India,
which poses elevated risks of anti-corruption violations, and we export our products for sale internationally. This puts us in frequent
contact with persons who may be considered “foreign officials” under the FCPA, resulting in an elevated risk of potential FCPA
violations. If we are not in compliance with the FCPA and other laws governing the conduct of business with government entities
(including local laws), we may be subject to criminal and civil penalties and other remedial measures, which could have an adverse
impact on our business, financial condition, results of operations and liquidity. Any investigation of any potential violations of the
FCPA or other anticorruption laws by U.S. or foreign authorities could harm our reputation and have an adverse impact on our
business, financial condition and results of operations.
 
We may encounter unanticipated difficulties in converting the Keyes plant to accommodate alternative feedstocks, new
chemicals used in the fermentation and distillation process, or new mechanical production equipment.
 
In order to improve the operations of the Keyes plant and execute on our business plan, we intend to modify the plant to
accommodate alternative feedstocks and new chemical and/or mechanical production processes.  These modifications may cost
significantly more to complete than our estimates.  The plant may not operate at nameplate capacity once the changes are complete.
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We may be subject to liabilities and losses that may not be covered by insurance.
 
Our employees and facilities are subject to the hazards associated with producing ethanol and biodiesel.  Operating hazards can
cause personal injury and loss of life, damage to, or destruction of, property, plant and equipment and environmental damage.  We
maintain insurance coverage in amounts and against the risks that we believe are consistent with industry practice.  However, we
could sustain losses for uninsurable or uninsured risks, or in amounts in excess of existing insurance coverage.  Events that result in
significant personal injury or damage to our property or to property owned by third parties or other losses that are not fully covered by
insurance could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial position.
 
Insurance liabilities are difficult to assess and quantify due to unknown factors, including the severity of an injury, the determination of
our liability in proportion to other parties, the number of incidents not reported and the effectiveness of our safety program.  If we were
to experience insurance claims or costs above our coverage limits or that are not covered by our insurance, we might be required to
use working capital to satisfy these claims rather than to maintain or expand our operations.  To the extent that we experience a
material increase in the frequency or severity of accidents or workers’ compensation claims, or unfavorable developments on existing
claims, our operating results and financial condition could be materially and adversely affected.
 
Our business is dependent on external financing and cash from operations.
 
The construction, repairs, and upgrades of our ethanol and biodiesel plants, along with working capital, were financed in part through
debt facilities.  We may need to seek additional financing to continue or grow our operations.  However, our recent financial
performance and generally unfavorable credit market conditions may make it difficult to obtain necessary capital or additional debt
financing on commercially viable terms or at all.  If we are unable to pay our debt we may be forced to delay or cancel capital
expenditures, sell assets, restructure our indebtedness, seek additional financing, or file for bankruptcy.  Debt levels or debt service
requirements may limit our ability to borrow additional capital, make us vulnerable to increases in prevailing interest rates, subject our
assets to liens, limit our ability to adjust to changing market conditions, or place us at a competitive disadvantage to our competitors
because of our leverage.  Should we be unable to generate enough cash from our operations or secure additional financing to fund
our operations and debt service requirements, we may be required to postpone or cancel growth projects, reduce our operations, or
may be unable to meet our debt repayment schedules.  Any one of these events may have a material adverse effect on our
operations and financial position.
 
The result of our operations is primarily dependent on the spread between the feedstock and energy we purchase and the
fuel and co-products we sell.
 
The results of our ethanol production business are significantly affected by the spread between the cost of the corn and natural gas
that we purchase and the price of the ethanol and distiller grains that we sell.  Our biodiesel business is primarily dependent on the
price difference between the costs of the feedstock we purchase (principally, NRPO and crude glycerin) and the products we sell
(principally; biodiesel and glycerin).  In addition, the markets for ethanol, biodiesel, distiller grains, and glycerin are highly volatile and
subject to significant fluctuations.  Any decrease in the spread between prices of the commodities we buy and sell, whether as a
result of an increase in feedstock prices or a reduction in ethanol or biodiesel prices, would adversely affect our financial
performance and cash flow and may cause us to cease production at either of our plants.
 
Our operations subject us to risks associated with foreign laws, policies, regulations, and markets.
 
Our sales and manufacturing operations in foreign countries are subject to the laws, policies, regulations, and markets of the country
in which we operate.  As a result, our foreign manufacturing operations and sales are subject to inherent risks associated with the
countries in which we operate.  Risks involving our foreign operations include differences or unexpected changes in regulatory
requirements, political and economic instability, terrorism and civil unrest, work stoppages or strikes, natural disasters, interruptions in
transportation, restrictions on the export or import of technology, difficulties in staffing and managing international operations,
variations in tariffs, quotas, taxes, and other market barriers, longer payment cycles, changes in economic conditions in the
international markets in which our products are sold, and greater fluctuations in sales to customers in developing countries.  If we are
unable to effectively manage the risks associated with our foreign operations, our business may experience a material adverse effect
on the results of our operations or financial condition.
 
We are a holding company and there are significant limitations on our ability to receive distributions from our subsidiaries.
 
We conduct substantially all of our operations through subsidiaries and are dependent on dividends or other intercompany transfers
of funds from our subsidiaries to finance our operations.  Our subsidiaries have not made significant distributions to the Company and
may not have funds legally available for dividends or distributions in the future.  In addition, we may enter into credit, or other,
agreements that would contractually restrict our subsidiaries from paying dividends, making distributions, or making intercompany
loans to our parent company or to any other subsidiary.  In particular, our credit agreement may require us to obtain the prior consent
of the lender for dividends or other intercompany fund transfers.  If the amount of capital we are able to raise from financing activities,
together with our revenues from operations that are available for distribution, are not sufficient to satisfy our ongoing working capital
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and corporate overhead requirements needs, even to the extent that we reduce our operations accordingly, we may be required to
cease operations.
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Our business may be subject to natural forces beyond our control.
 
Earthquakes, floods, droughts, tsunamis, and other unfavorable weather conditions may affect our operations.  Natural catastrophes
may have a detrimental effect on our supply and distribution channels, causing a delay or prevention of our receipt of raw materials
from our suppliers or delivery of finished goods to our customers.  In addition, weather conditions may adversely impact the planting,
growth, harvest, storage, and general availability of any number of the products we may process at our facilities or sell to our
customers.  The severity of these occurrences, should they ever occur, will determine the extent to which and if our business is
materially and adversely affected.
 
Operational difficulties at our facilities may negatively impact our business.
 
Our operations may experience unscheduled downtimes due to technical or structural failure, political and economic instability,
terrorism and civil unrest, natural disasters, and other operational hazards inherent to our operations.  These hazards may cause
personal injury or loss of life, severe damage to or destruction of property, equipment, or the environment, and may result in the
suspension of operations and the imposition of civil or criminal penalties.  Our insurance may not be adequate to cover the potential
hazards described and we may not be able to renew our insurance on commercially reasonable terms or at all.  In addition, any
reduction in the yield or quality of the products we produce could negatively impact our ability to market our products.  Any decrease
in the quality, reduction in volume, or cessation of our operations due to these hazards would have a material adverse effect on the
results of our business and financial condition.
 
Our success depends on our ability to manage the growth of our operations.
 
Our strategy envisions a period of rapid growth that may impose a significant burden on our administrative and operational resources
and personnel, which if not effectively managed, could impair our growth.  The growth of our business will require significant
investments of capital and management’s close attention.  If we are unable to successfully manage our growth, our sales may not
increase commensurately with capital expenditures and investments.  Our ability to effectively manage our growth will require us to
substantially expand the capabilities of our administrative and operational resources and to attract, train, manage and retain qualified
management, technicians and other personnel; we may be unable to do so.  In addition to our plans to adopt technologies that
expand our operations and product offerings at our biodiesel and ethanol plants, we may seek to enter into strategic business
relationships with companies to expand our operations.  If we are unable to successfully manage our growth, we may be unable to
achieve our business goals, which may have a material adverse effect on the results of our operations and financial condition.
 
Our mergers, acquisitions, partnerships, and joint ventures may not be as beneficial as we anticipate.
 
We have increased our operations through mergers, acquisitions, partnerships, and joint ventures and intend to continue to explore
these opportunities in the future.  The anticipated benefits of these transactions may take longer to realize than expected, may never
be fully realized, or even realized at all.  Furthermore, partnerships and joint ventures generally involve restrictive covenants on the
parties involved, which may limit our ability to manage these agreements in a manner that is in our best interest.  Future mergers,
acquisitions, partnerships, and joint ventures may involve the issuance of debt or equity, or a combination of the two, as payment for
or financing of the business or assets involved, which may dilute ownership interest in our business.  Any failure to adequately
evaluate and address the risks of and execute on our mergers, acquisitions, partnerships, and joint ventures could have an adverse
material effect on our business, results of operations, and financial position.
 
We may be unable to protect our intellectual property.
 
We rely on a combination of patents, trademarks, trade name, confidentiality agreements, and other contractual restrictions on
disclosure to protect our intellectual property rights.  We also enter into confidentiality agreements with our employees, consultants,
and corporate partners, and control access to and distribution of our confidential information.  These measures may not preclude the
disclosure of our confidential or proprietary information.  Despite efforts to protect our proprietary rights, unauthorized parties may
attempt to copy or otherwise obtain and use our proprietary information.  Monitoring unauthorized use of our confidential information
is difficult, and we cannot be certain that the steps we have taken to prevent unauthorized use of our confidential information,
particularly in foreign countries where the laws may not protect proprietary rights as fully as in the U.S., will be effective.
 
We may not be able to successfully develop and commercialize our technologies, which may require us to curtail or cease
our research and development activities.
 
Since 2007, we have been developing patent-pending enzyme technology to enable the production of ethanol from a combination of
starch and cellulose, or from cellulose alone, and in July 2011, we acquired Zymetis, Inc., a biochemical research and development
firm, with several patents pending and in-process R&D utilizing the Z-microbe™ to produce renewable chemicals and advanced fuels
from renewable feedstocks.  Although, the viability of our technology has been demonstrated in the lab, there can be no assurance
that we will be able to commercialize our technology. To date, we have not completed a large-scale commercial prototype of our
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technology and are uncertain at this time when completion of a commercial scale prototype will occur.
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Risks related to our stock
 
There can be no assurance that a liquid public market for our common stock will continue to exist.
 
Although our shares of common stock are quoted on the OTC Markets electronic over-the-counter trading system, a very limited
number of shares trade on a regular basis and there may not be a significant market in such stock.  There can be no assurance that
a regular and established market will be developed and maintained for our common stock.  There can also be no assurance as to the
strength or liquidity of any market for our common stock or the prices at which holders may be able to sell their shares.
 
It is likely that there will be significant volatility in the trading price of our stock.
 
Market prices for our common stock will be influenced by many factors and will be subject to significant fluctuations in response to
variations in our operating results and other factors.  Because our business is the operation of our biodiesel plant and the future
development and operation of next-generation cellulosic ethanol plants, factors that could affect our future stock price, and create
volatility in our stock price, include the price and demand for ethanol and biodiesel, the price and availability of oil and gasoline, the
political situation in the Middle East, U.S. energy policies, federal and state regulatory changes that affect the price of ethanol or
biodiesel, and the existence or discontinuation of legislative incentives for renewable fuels.  Our stock price will also be affected by
the trading price of the stock of our competitors, investor perceptions of us, interest rates, general economic conditions and those
specific to the ethanol or biodiesel industry, developments with regard to our operations and activities, our future financial condition,
and changes in our management.
 
Our stock may have risks associated with low priced stocks.
 
Although our common stock currently is quoted and traded on the OTC Bulletin Board, the price at which the stock will trade in the
future cannot currently be estimated.  Since December 15, 2008, our common stock has traded below $5.00 per share.  As a result,
trading in our common stock may be subject to the requirements of certain rules promulgated under the Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (the “Exchange Act”), which require additional disclosure by broker-dealers in connection with any trades involving a stock
defined as a penny stock (generally, any non-Nasdaq equity security that has a market price share of less than $5.00 per share,
subject to certain exceptions) and a two business day “cooling off period” before broker and dealers can effect transactions in penny
stocks.  For these types of transactions, the broker-dealer must make a special suitability determination for the purchaser and have
received the purchaser’s written consent to the transaction before the sale.  The broker-dealer also must disclose the commissions
payable to the broker-dealer, current bid and offer quotations for the penny stock and, if the broker-dealer is the sole market-maker,
the broker-dealer must disclose this fact and the broker-dealer’s presumed control over the market.  These, and the other burdens
imposed upon broker-dealers by the penny stock requirements, could discourage broker-dealers from effecting transactions in our
common stock, which could severely limit the market liquidity of our common stock and the ability of holders of our common stock to
sell it.
 
We do not intend to pay dividends.
 
We have not paid any cash dividends on any of our securities since inception and we do not anticipate paying any cash dividends on
any of our securities in the foreseeable future.
 
Our principal shareholders hold a substantial amount of our common stock.
 
Eric A. McAfee, our Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board, Laird Q. Cagan, a former board member, in the
aggregate, beneficially own 29.26%of our commonstock outstanding.  In addition, the other members of our Board of Directors and
management, in the aggregate, excluding Eric McAfee, beneficially own approximately 4.33% of our common stock. Our lender, Third
Eye Capital, acting as principal and an agent, beneficially owns 14.61% of our common stock. As a result, these shareholders, acting
together, will be able to influence many matters requiring shareholder approval, including the election of directors and approval of
mergers and other significant corporate transactions.  See “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management.”  The
interests of these shareholders may differ from yours and this concentration of ownership enables these shareholders to exercise
influence over many matters requiring shareholder approval, may have the effect of delaying, preventing or deterring a change in
control, and could deprive you of an opportunity to receive a premium for your securities as part of a sale of the company and may
affect the market price of our securities.
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Rule 144 will not be available to holders of restricted shares during any period in which the Company has failed to comply
with its reporting obligations under the Exchange Act.
 
From time to time the Company has issued shares in transactions exempt from registration.  Shares issued pursuant to exemptions
from registration are “restricted securities” within the meaning of Rule 144 under the Securities Act of 1933.  As restricted shares,
these shares may be resold only pursuant to an effective registration statement or pursuant to Rule 144 or other applicable exemption
from registration under the Securities Act.  However, Rule 144 is not available with respect to restricted shares acquired from an
issuer that is or was at any time in its past a shell company if the former shell company has failed to file all reports that it is required to
file under the Exchange Act during the 12 months preceding the sale.  If at any time the Company fails to comply with its reporting
obligations under the Exchange Act, Rule 144 will not be available to holders of restricted shares, which may limit your ability to sell
your restricted shares.
 
ITEM 2.  PROPERTIES
 
North America
 
Corporate Office. Our corporate headquarters are located at 20400 Stevens Creek Blvd., Suite 700, Cupertino, California. The
Cupertino facility office space consists of 9,238 rentable square feet. We occupy this facility under a lease that commenced June 16,
2009 and ends on May 31, 2012 with an option to extend the lease for an additional three years.  On February 22, 2012, we
extended the lease for an additional three-year period until May 31, 2015.  From July 2009 through July 2012, we sublet office space
consisting of 3,104 rentable square feet to Nevo Energy, formerly Solargen Energy, at a monthly rent rate equal to the rent charged to
us by our landlord.
 
Ethanol Plant in Keyes, CA. In 2009 we entered into a Project Agreement and Lease Agreement with Cilion, Inc. pursuant to which
we agreed, through our wholly-owned subsidiary AE Advanced Fuels Keyes, Inc., to retrofit and restart a 55 million gallon per year
name plate capacity ethanol plant in Keyes, CA and upon substantial completion of the retrofit to lease the Keyes plant for a term of
60 months at a monthly rent of $250,000.  The lease commenced on April 1, 2011.  On July 6, 2012, we acquired Cilion, Inc.,
including the Keyes CA ethanol plant, for an aggregate purchase price of (a) $16.5 million of cashand (b) 20 million shares of Aemetis
common stock and (c) the right to receive an additional cash amount of $5 million plus interest at the rate of 3% per annum, payable
upon the satisfaction by the Company of certain conditions. See Note 15. Subsequent Events, of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements in Part II, Item 8 of this Form 10-K.  Our tangible and intangible assets, including the Keyes CA ethanol plant, are subject
to perfected first liens and mortgages as further described in Note 15. Subsequent Events, of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements in Part II, Item 8 of this Form 10-K.
 
Aemetis productively utilizes the majority of the space in these facilities.
 
Other Properties. In 2011 we also owned approximately 200 acres of land in Sutton, Nebraska.  The land in Sutton, Nebraska was
sold in March 2012.  See Note 15. Subsequent Events, of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Part II, item 8 of this
Form 10-K.
 
India
 
Biodiesel Plant in Kakinada, India. We own and operate a biodiesel plant with a nameplate capacity of 50 MGY situated on
approximately 32,000 square meters of land in Kakinada, India. The property is located 7.5 kilometers from the local seaport with
connectivity through a third-party pipeline to the port jetty. The pipeline facilitates the importing of raw materials and exporting
finished product. Our tangible and intangible assets, including the Kakinada plant, are subject to liens as further described in Note 5
of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Part II, Item 8 of this Form 10-K.
 
India Administrative Office. Our principal administrative, sales and marketing facilities are located in approximately 1,000 square feet
of office space in Hyderabad, India which we lease on a month to month rental arrangement.
 
Aemetis productively utilizes the majority of the space in these facilities.
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ITEM 3.  LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
 
On March 28, 2008, the Cordillera Fund, L.P. (“Cordillera”) filed a complaint in the Clark County District Court of the State of Nevada
against American Ethanol, Inc. and the Company. The complaint seeks a judicial declaration that Cordillera has a right to payment
from the Company for its American Ethanol shares at fair market value pursuant to Nevada’s Dissenters’ Rights Statute, a judicial
declaration that Cordillera is not a holder of Series B preferred stock in the Company under the provisions of the statute; and a
permanent injunction compelling the Company to apply the Dissenters’ Rights Statute to Cordillera’s shares and reimburse Cordillera
for attorney’s fees and costs.
 
On June 2, 2008 the case was transferred to the Second Judicial Court of the State of Nevada, located in Washoe County, Nevada.
On February 17, 2009, a jury trial commenced on the sole issue of whether Cordillera timely delivered its notice of Dissenters’ Rights
to the Company. On February 17, 2009, the jury delivered its verdict in favor of Cordillera. The remaining issue in the lawsuit
concerned the fair market value of the shares of stock held by Cordillera. On or about October 7, 2009, the Court entered a judgment
awarding damages to Cordillera for the fair market value of the shares of stock.  The amount of this liability has been reflected in the
financial statements.  On October 19, 2009, the Company filed a Notice of Appeal of the judgment.  The judgment was affirmed on
May 5, 2011.
 
On May 1, 2009 our transfer agent, Corporate Stock Transfer, Inc. (“CST”), filed a Complaint for Interpleader in the United States
District Court for the District of Colorado. The interpleader action was based on the Company’s and CST’s refusal to remove the
restrictive legend from a certificate representing 5.6 million shares of the Company's restricted common stock (the “Certificate”) held
by Surendra Ajjarapu and sought a judicial determination as to whether the legend could be lawfully removed from the Certificate. On
July 1, 2009, Ajjarapu answered the Complaint for Interpleader, and cross-claimed against the Company for breach of fiduciary duty,
conversion, violation of Section 10(b) and Rule 10b-5 of the Exchange Act and injunctive relief.   On October 24, 2011 the Company
entered into a settlement agreement with the Ajjarapus and this matter was dismissed with prejudice.
 
On October 7, 2009, UBPL received a demand notice from the State Bank of India. The notice informed UBPL that an event of default
has occurred for failure to make an installment payment on the loan due in September, 2009 and demands repayment of the entire
outstanding indebtedness of 19.60 crores (approximately $4 million) together with all accrued interest thereon and any applicable
fees and expenses by October 10, 2009. Upon the occurrence and during the continuance of an Event of Default, interest accrues at
the default interest rate of 2% above the State Bank Advance Rate. The default period began on July 1, 2009 when the principal
payment was deemed past due; and we have accrued interest at the default rate since the beginning of the default period. Additional
provisions of the loan agreement give the bank the right to disclose or publish our company name and the names of our directors as
defaulter in any medium or media. In addition, since the bank demanded payment of the balance in July 2009, we have classified the
entire loan amount as current. State Bank of India has filed a legal case before the Debt Recovery Tribunal (DRT), Hyderabad, for
recovery of approximately $5 million against the company and also impleaded Andhra Pradesh Industrial Infrastructure Corporation
(APIIC) to expedite the process of registration of Factory land for which counter reply is yet to be filed by APIIC.  In the case that the
Company is unable to prevail with its legal case, DRT may pass a Decree for recovery of due amount, which will impact operations of
the company including action up to seizing company property for recovery of their dues.
 
On August 21, 2012, UBS Securities, Inc. filed a complaint in the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York
against the Company.  The complaint seeks damages based on a breach of contract theory. The Company filed its answer on
September 25, 2012.  Because of the early stage of the action, we are unable to state whether an unfavorable outcome is either
probable or remote or the amount of or range of potential loss if the outcome should be unfavorable.  The Company intends to defend
itself vigorously.
 
ITEM 4.  MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES.
 
Not Applicable.
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PART II
 
ITEM 5.  MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES
OF EQUITY SECURITIES MARKET INFORMATION
 
Our stock became qualified for quotation on the Over-the-Counter Bulletin Board under the symbol AEBF in 2007 and continued to
trade on the Over-the-Counter Bulletin Board until September 24, 2010. Thereafter, the Company commenced trading on the OTC
Market as an OTC Pink company under the symbol AMTX, where it continues to trade today. There is, at present, a very low public
market for the Company’s common shares, and there is no assurance that any such market will develop, or if developed, that such
market will be sustained. The Company’s common shares therefore are not a suitable investment for persons who may have to
liquidate their investment on a timely basis and are therefore only appropriate for those investors who are able to make a long-term
investment in the Company.
 
Although quotations for the Company’s common stock appear on the OTC Markets, there is no established trading market for the
common stock.  Since January 2007, transactions in the common stock can only be described as sporadic. Consequently, the
Company is of the opinion that any published prices cannot be attributed to a liquid and active trading market and, therefore, is not
indicative of any meaningful market value.
 
The following table sets forth the high and low bid prices for our common stock for each full quarterly period during fiscal 2010 and
2011 on the OTC Bulletin Board through September 24, 2010 and on the OTC Market thereafter. The source of these quotations is
OTCMarkets.com. The bid prices are inter-dealer prices, without retail markup, markdown or commission, and may not reflect actual
transactions.
 

Quarter Ending  High Bid   Low Bid  
March 31, 2010  $ 0.33  $ 0.18 
June 30, 2010  $ 0.23  $ 0.05 
September 30, 2010  $ 0.10  $ 0.05 
December 31, 2010  $ 0.15  $ 0.06 
March 31, 2011  $ 0.16  $ 0.08 
June 30, 2011  $ 0.28  $ 0.10 
September 30, 2011  $ 1.01  $ 0.25 
December 31, 2011  $ 0.95  $ 0.34 

 
Shareholders of Record
 
According to the records of Aemetis’ transfer agent, Aemetis had 351 stockholders of record as of September 12, 2012 and it believes
there are a substantially greater number of non-objecting beneficial holders. Aemetis has never declared or paid any cash dividends
on its common stock. Aemetis currently expects to retain any future earnings for use in the operation and expansion of its business
and reduce its outstanding debt and does not anticipate paying any cash dividends in the foreseeable future. Information with respect
to restrictions on paying dividends is set forth in Note 5  “Notes Payable” of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Part II,
Item 8 of this Form 10-K.
 
Sales of Unregistered Equity Securities
 
Details surrounding major equity securities transactions can be found in our regular Form 8-K disclosures. In addition to transactions
already disclosed, on February 3, 2010, the Company issued 600,000 shares of common stock to Mr. Laird Cagan as a fee for a loan
provided by Mr. Cagan to Aemetis’ wholly-owned subsidiary, AE Advanced Fuels Keyes, Inc., in the amount of $1,600,000.  See
Note 5 “Notes Payable”, of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Part II, item 8 of this Form 10-K.
 
On March 30, 2010 and August 10, 2010 shareholders converted 55,500 and 100,000 shares, respectively, from Series B Preferred
stock to common stock.
 
From October 14, 2010 to November 4, 2010 Third Eye Capital acting as a principal and as an agent for purchasers received
2,250,000 common shares of stock as inducement to enter into note purchase agreements.
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On July 7, 2010 and November 4, 2010, the Company issued 155,000 common shares to six consultants for services rendered.
 
On December 15, 2010, the Company issued warrants exercisable for 950,856 shares of common stock to officers, directors and
employees of the Company.  The warrants are exercisable at $0.13 per share and expire on December 15, 2015.
 
From March 9, 2011 to December 30, 2011 Third Eye Capital acting as a principal and as an agent for note purchasers received
4,589,360 common shares of stock as inducement to enter into note purchase agreements.
 
On July 19, 2011, a shareholder converted 50,000 shares of Series B Preferred stock to common stock.
 
On November 16, 2011, the Company issued 30,000 shares pursuant to the exercise of outstanding options from the 2007 Stock Plan
and on December 14, 201. The Company issued 5,585 shares pursuant to the exercise of outstanding options from the 2006 Stock
Plan.
 
These securities were issued pursuant to an exemption from registration provided by either Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933,
as amended, or Regulation D or Regulation S, as promulgated thereunder.
 
ITEM 6.  SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
 
Not Applicable
 
ITEM 7.  MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
 
Our Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (MD&A) is provided in addition to the
accompanying consolidated financial statements and notes to assist readers in understanding our results of operations, financial
condition, and cash flows. MD&A is organized as follows:
 
 • Overview. Discussion of our business and overall analysis of financial and other highlights affecting us, to provide

context for the remainder of MD&A.
 
 • Results of Operations.An analysis of our financial results comparing the twelve months ended December 31, 2011 to

the twelve months ended December 31, 2010 and comparing the twelve months ended December 31, 2010 to the
twelve months ended December 31, 2009.

 
 • Quarterly Changes in Financial Position. An analysis of our financial position comparing the quarter end position to the

December 31, 2010 financial position.
 
 • Quarterly Results of Operations. An analysis of our financial results comparing the quarterly three month period of 2011

to the respective quarterly period of 2010.  Also the analysis of the six months ended June 30, 2011 compared to the
six months ended June 30, 2010 and the analysis of the nine months ended September 30, 2011 compared to the nine
months ended September 30, 2010.

 
 • Liquidity and Capital Resources. An analysis of changes in our balance sheets and cash flows and discussion of our

financial condition.
 
 • Critical Accounting Estimates. Accounting estimates that we believe are important to understanding the assumptions

and judgments incorporated in our reported financial results and forecasts.
 
The following discussion should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes included
elsewhere in this report. The following discussion contains forward-looking statements that reflect our plans, estimates and beliefs.
The actual results could differ materially from those discussed in the forward-looking statements. Factors that could cause or
contribute to these differences include those discussed below and elsewhere in this Report, particularly under “Part I, Item 1A. Risk
Factors," in other reports we file with the SEC. All references to years relate to the calendar year ended December 31 of the
particular year.
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Overview
 
Our goal is to be a leader in the production of advanced fuels and specialty chemicals and in the acquisition, development and
commercialization of innovative technologies that are substitutes for traditional petroleum-based products and non-food feedstock
conversion of traditional ethanol and biodiesel plants using our operating ethanol and biodiesel facilities. To fund our operations,
since our inception in 2005 we have raised approximately $48.9 million through the sale of preferred and common stock and
approximately $30 million in debt. We have used these funds to (i) construct and operate a biodiesel plant in Kakinada, India, (ii)
construct a glycerin refining and vegetable oil pretreatment facility at our Kakinada plant, (iii) develop and expand our technology
portfolio of proprietary, patented and patent-pending technology, (iv) retrofit and operate an ethanol plant in Keyes, California, and (v)
acquire Cilion, Inc., the former owner of the Keyes, CA plant.
 
North America
 
In the second quarter of 2011, we successfully completed the retrofit of the Keyes, CA ethanol plant and in April 2011 began
operating the plant pursuant to a 5-year lease agreement with Cilion, Inc.  The Keyes plant is a dry mill ethanol production facility
currently utilizing corn as feedstock.  In addition, the plant produces high quality wet distillers grains (WDG) and a small amount of
condensed distillers soluble (CDS) as byproducts of the ethanol production process, which are sold as a high protein, livestock feed
supplements.
 
During 2011, we produced three products at the Keyes plant:  denatured ethanol, WDG, and CDS.  In 2011 we sold 100% of the
ethanol and WDG we produced to J.D. Heiskell pursuant to a Purchase Agreement established with J.D. Heiskell.  Small amounts of
CDS were sold to various local third parties.  Ethanol pricing is determined pursuant to a marketing agreement between us and
Kinergy Marketing LLC, and is generally based on daily and monthly pricing for ethanol delivered to Los Angeles, California, as
published by the Oil Price Information Service (OPIS), as well as quarterly contracts negotiated by Kinergy with local fuel
blenders.  The price for WDG is determined monthly pursuant to a marketing agreement between us and A.L. Gilbert Co., and is
generally determined in reference to the price of dry distillers grains (DDG) and corn.
 
On July 6, 2012, we entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger with Cilion, Inc. pursuant to which we acquired Cilion for an
aggregate of (a) $16.5 million, (b) 20 million shares of Aemetis common stock and (c) the obligation to pay an additional cash amount
of $5 million plus interest at the rate of 3% per annum, which is payable upon the satisfaction by us of certain conditions set forth in
the Merger Agreement.
 
India
 
During the twelve months ended December 31, 2011, we also continued to operate our biodiesel plant in India and increase
revenues. However, during 2011 our India operations continued to be constrained by limited working capital and by diesel price
supports by the India government. Our ability to sell biodiesel in India is also hampered by a disparity between the Indian national
biofuels policy and State of Andhra Pradesh tax policy. Until the State of Andhra Pradesh adopts the national biofuels policy, the price
of biodiesel will continue to be less attractive than petroleum-based diesel. We cannot predict when or if the State of Andhra Pradesh
will adopt the national biofuels policy.
 
We believe, however, that we can increase sales and profitability of our India plant by diversifying our product lines and our customer
base.  As a result, in early 2012, we completed the construction of glycerin and oil refining units, which enable us to produce and sell
refined glycerin and refined palm oil.  In anticipation of the completion of our glycerin refining unit, in 2011 we purchased refined
glycerin and resold it into the India domestic market to begin developing a customer base.
 
In addition, we have begun to develop a base of industrial customers who use fatty acid methyl ester (biodiesel) as a specialty
chemical for commercial manufacturing.
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North America Segment
 
Revenue
 
Substantially all of our North America revenues during the period covered by this Report were from sales of ethanol and WDG. During
the twelve months ended December 31, 2011, we produced and sold 37,388,849 gallons of ethanol and 273,533 tons of WDG
compared to none during the twelve months ended December 31, 2010.
 
Cost of Goods Sold
 
Substantially all of our corn is procured by J.D. Heiskell.  Our cost of corn includes rail transportation, local basis costs and a handling
fee paid to J.D. Heiskell.  Cost of goods sold also includes chemicals, plant overhead and out bound transportation. Plant overhead
includes direct and indirect costs associated with the operation of the ethanol plant, including the cost of electricity and natural gas,
maintenance, insurance, rental, direct labor, depreciation and freight. Transportation includes the costs of in-bound delivery of corn
by rail and out-bound shipments of ethanol and wet distillers grain by truck.  In 2011, transportation cost for ethanol and WDG was
approximately $0.09 per gallon.
 
Pursuant to a Corn Procurement and Working Capital Agreement with J.D. Heiskell, we purchase all of our corn from Heiskell.  Title
to the corn passes to us when the corn is deposited into the weigh bin and entered into the production process.  The credit terms of
the corn purchased from J.D. Heiskell is five days.  J.D. Heiskell purchases our ethanol and WDG on one-day terms.
 
The price of corn is established by J.D Heiskell based on Chicago Board of Trade (CBOT) pricing including transportation and basis,
plus a handling fee. We establish pricing for WDG and ethanol pursuant to marketing agreements with Kinergy and A.L.
Gilbert.  Ethanol prices are based on daily OPIS published rates, while the price of WDG is based on a percentage of dry distiller
grains and corn prices. J.D. Heiskell is contractually obligated to sell all of the ethanol to Kinergy Marketing LLC who in turn sells the
ethanol to local blenders and all of the WDG to A.L Gilbert who in turn sells the WDG to local dairies and feedlots.
 
Sales, Marketing and General Administrative Expenses (SG&A)
 
SG&A expenses consist of employee compensation, professional services, travel, depreciation, taxes, insurance, rent and utilities,
including license and permit fees, penalties and interest, and sales and marketing fees.  Our single largest expense is employee
compensation, including related stock compensation, followed by sales and marketing fees paid in connection with the marketing and
sale of ethanol and WDG.
 
In October 2010 we entered into an exclusive marketing agreement with Kinergy Marketing LLC to market and sell our ethanol and
an agreement with A.L. Gilbert to market and sell our WDG. The agreements expire on August 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012,
respectively, and are automatically renewed for additional one-year terms.  Pursuant to these agreements, our marketing costs for
ethanol and WDG are approximately 2% of sales.
 
Research and Development Expenses (R&D)
 
In 2010, substantially all of our R&D expenses were related to the operation of our integrated cellulose and starch ethanol commercial
demonstration facility in Butte, MT.  In 2011, substantially all of our R&D expenses were attributable to our industrial biotechnology
research team in Maryland acquired in July 2011 as a result of the acquisition of Zymetis, Inc. and for the operation and subsequent
closing of our facility in Butte, MT. In 2011, certain costs related to establishing a demonstration plant in Keyes, CA were included as
well.
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India Segment
 
Revenue
 
Substantially all of our India segment revenues during the period covered by this Report were from sales of biodiesel and glycerin.
During the twelve months ended December 31, 2011, we sold 8,636 metric tons of biodiesel and 772 metric tons of refined glycerin
compared to 7,598 metric tons of biodiesel and 1,046 tons of crude glycerin during the twelve months ended December 31, 2010.  In
2011, we purchased 1,000 metric tons of refined glycerin of which 772 metric tons were resold in 2011 to develop a market for refined
glycerin in advance of the completion of our glycerin refining unit.
 
During the latter part of 2010 and into the early months of 2011, NRPO prices increased to the point where biodiesel production was
uneconomical.  As a result, we resold the feedstock we held in inventory rather than producing biodiesel.
 
Cost of Goods Sold
 
Cost of goods sold consists primarily of feedstock oil, chemicals, direct costs (principally labor and labor related costs), and factory
overhead.  Depending upon the costs of these inputs in comparison to the sales price of biodiesel and glycerin, our gross margins
may vary from positive to negative. Factory overhead includes direct and indirect costs associated with the plant, including the cost of
repairs and maintenance, consumables, maintenance, on-site security, insurance, depreciation and inbound freight.
 
We purchase NRPO, a non-edible feedstock, for our biodiesel unit from neighboring natural oil processing plants at a discount to
refined palm oil.  NRPO is received by truck and title passes when the NRPOis received at our facility.  Credit terms vary by vendor;
however, we generally receive 15 days of credit on the purchases.  We purchase crude glycerin in the international market on letters
of credit or advance payment terms.
 
Sales, Marketing and General Administrative Expenses (SG&A)
 
SG&A expenses consist of employee compensation, professional services, travel, depreciation, taxes, insurance, rent and utilities,
including licenses and permits, penalties, and sales and marketing fees.  Pursuant to an operating agreement with Secunderabad
Oils Limited, we receive operational support and working capital.  We compensate Secunderabad Oils Limited with a percentage of
the profits and losses generated from operations.  Payments of interest are identified as interest income while payments of profit and
losses are identified as compensation for the operational support component of this agreement. We therefore include the portion of
profit or losses paid to Secunderabad Oils Limited as a component of SG&A and our SG&A component will vary based on the profits
earned by operations.  In addition, we market our biodiesel and glycerin through our internal sales staff, commissioned agents and
brokers. Commissions paid to agents are included as a component of SG&A.
 
Research and Development Expenses (R&D)
 
Our India segment has no research and development activities.
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Results of Operations
 
Year Ended December 31, 2011 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2010
 
Revenues
 
Our revenues are derived primarily from sales of ethanol and WDG in North America and biodiesel and glycerin in India.
 

Fiscal Year Ended December 31 (in thousands)  
  2011   2010   Increase/(Decrease) 
North America  $ 131,946   -  $ 131,946 
India   9,912  $ 8,132   1,780 
Total  $ 141,858  $ 8,132  $ 133,726 

 
North America.  The increase in revenues in the North America segment for the year ended December 31, 2011 reflects the
operation of the Keyes, CA plant beginning April 2011.  We generated 82% of revenue from sales of ethanol and 18% of revenue from
sales of WDG.  For the eight months of operations in 2011 plant production averaged 101% of nameplate capacity.
 
India.  The increase in revenues in the India segment for the year ended December 31, 2011 reflects (i) an increase in the amount of
biodiesel produced and sold as a result of two large international sales ($6.8 million) in the second half of the year, (ii) the resale of
feedstock inventory ($602,590); and (iii) the resale of refined glycerin ($607,145).
 
Cost of Goods Sold
 

Fiscal Year Ended December 31 (in thousands)  
  2011   2010   Increase/(Decrease) 
North America  $ 127,722   -  $ 127,722 
India   9,494  $ 8,254   1,240 
Total  $ 137,216  $ 8,254  $ 128,962 

 
North America.  The increase in costs of goods sold in the North America segment for the year ended December 31, 2011 reflects the
operation of the Keyes, CA plant beginning in April 2011.  For the year ended December 31, 2011, we ground 380,774 tons of corn.
 
India.  The increase in costs of goods sold in the India segment is primarily attributable to an increase in production in the second half
of 2011.  For the year ended December 31, 2011, we processed 9,302 metric tons of NRPO.
 
Operating Expenses
 
R&D
 

Fiscal Year Ended December 31 (in thousands)  
  2011   2010   Increase/(Decrease) 
North America  $ 577  $ 323  $ 254 
India   -   -   - 
Total  $ 577  $ 323  $ 254 
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The increase in R&D in our North America segment in 2011 reflects the costs of acquiring and operating our research and
development facility in College Park, Maryland.
 
SG&A
 

Fiscal Year Ended December 31 (in thousands)  
  2011   2010   Increase/(Decrease) 
North America  $ 7,843  $ 4,006  $ 3,837 
India   739   396   343 
Other   (11)   308   (319)
Total  $ 8,571  $ 4,710  $ 3,861 

 
North America.  The increase in SG&A in the year ended December 31, 2011 was primarily attributable to (i) an increase in
compensation expense related to an increase in management and administrative personnel at the Keyes plant; and (ii) an increase in
ethanol and WDG sales and marketing expenses.  Compensation expense rose from approximately $1.1 million for the year ended
December 31, 2010 to approximately $2.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2011.  The number of management and
administrative employees at our Keyes plant rose during the two-year period as we were hiring plant personnel late in the year of
2010 and for the first two months of 2011, while having the full complement of employees during the balance of the fiscal year of
2011.  In addition, retrofit and restart costs in the amount of approximately $3.0 million were charged to SG&A.  Marketing fees of
approximately $2.0 million were incurred during the year ended December 31, 2011 in connection with sales of ethanol and WDG.
 
India.  Our single largest expense in SG&A is the operational support fees paid to Secunderabad Oils Limited.  These fees are
computed as a percentage of operating profits.  For the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, we incurred approximately
$115,000 and $135,000, respectively in operational support fees.
 
Other.  Resources associated with the Biofuels Marketing subsidiary were reassigned to other segments during 2010 resulting in a
decrease in Other SG&A.
 
Other Income/Expense
 
Other income (expense) consisted of the following items:
 
 • Interest expense is attributable to debt facilities acquired by our parent company, our subsidiaries Universal Biofuels

Pvt. Ltd., International Biofuels, Inc., AE Advanced Fuels Keyes, Inc. and interest accrued on the complaint filed by
Cordillera Fund, L.P. These debt facilities included revenue participation fees, warrants issued as fees and the payment
of other fees and discount fees, which are amortized as part of interest expense. Currently, the debt facility for
Universal Biofuels Pvt. Ltd. accrues interest at the default rate of interest. We incurred interest expense of
approximately $13.6 million for the twelve months ended December 31, 2011 ($4.0 million from India loans and $9.6
million from North America loans) compared to $4.0 million for the twelve months ended December 31, 2010 ($1.8
million from India loans and $2.2 million from North America loans).  We capitalized interest in the amount of
approximately $185,000 and $54,000, respectively, during the twelve months ended December 31, 2011 and 2010.

 
 • Other income decreased year-over-year by approximately $550,000 mainly related to the extinguishment of certain

liabilities.
 
 • During 2011, we realized a loss of approximately $401,000 on the sale of land holdings in Danville, IL and a loss of

approximately $34,000 from extinguishment of debt was included in other expense.
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Year Ended December 31, 2010 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2009
 
Revenues
 
During the year ended December 31, 2010 our revenues were derived primarily from sales of biodiesel and glycerin in India.
 

Fiscal Year Ended December 31 (in thousands)  
  2010   2009   Increase/(Decrease) 
North America   -   -   - 
India  $ 8,132  $ 9,175  $ (1,043)
Total  $ 8,132  $ 9,175  $ (1,043)

 
India.  The decrease in revenues in the India segment for the year ended December 31, 2010 reflects (i) a decrease in the amount of
biodiesel produced and sold.  During 2010, we had no international sales compared to one international sale (approximately $2.9
million) in 2009.  In addition, the market for biodiesel declined in 2010 as a result of the increase in feedstock costs.
 
Cost of Goods Sold
 

Fiscal Year Ended December 31 (in thousands)  
  2010   2009   Increase/(Decrease) 
North America   -   -   - 
India  $ 8,254  $ 9,047  $ (793)
Total  $ 8,254  $ 9,047  $ (793)

 
India.  The decrease in costs of goods sold in the India segment is primarily attributable to a 43% decrease in the amount of biodiesel
sold offset by an increase in feedstock prices.  For the year ended December 31, 2010, we processed 7,555 metric tons of NRPO.
 
Operating Expenses
 
R&D
 

Fiscal Year Ended December 31 (in thousands)  

  2010   2009   
Increase/
Decrease  

North America  $ 323  $ 539  $ (216)
India   -   -   - 
Total  $ 323  $ 539  $ (216)
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The decrease in R&D in our North America segment in 2010 reflects the shut down of the Butte, MT facility and storage of the
equipment in June 2010 prior to moving the equipment to the Keyes plant.
 
SG&A
 

Fiscal Year Ended December 31 (in thousands)  
  2010   2009   Increase/Decrease 
North America  $ 4,006  $ 4,260  $ (254)
India   396   1,843   (1,447)
Other   308   157   151 
Total  $ 4,710  $ 6,260  $ (1,550)

 
North America.  The decrease in SG&A in the year ended December 31, 2010 was primarily attributable to a decrease in
professional expense related to non-recurring litigation, advisory services and accounting fees in 2009 partially offset by an increase
in rent associated with Cilion plant.
 
India.  The decrease in SG&A in 2010 reflects the (i) conversion of our plant from an export-only facility to a facility that sells our
products into India (a decrease of approximately $539,000), which eliminated a differential duty imposed by the government of India;
(ii) lower operational support fees paid to Secunderabad Oils Limited (a decrease of approximately $62,000); and (iii) decrease in
ancillary support provided by us to our India subsidiary (a decrease of approximately $288,000).
 
Other.  The 2010 increase in Other SG&A resulted from the addition of one headcount and increased travel in operation of the
Biofuels Marketing subsidiary.
 
Other Income/Expense
 
Other income (expense) consisted of the following items:
 
 • Interest expense is attributable to debt facilities acquired by our parent company, our subsidiaries Universal Biofuels

Pvt. Ltd., International Biofuels, Inc., AE Advanced Fuels Keyes, Inc. and interest accrued on the complaint filed by
Cordillera Fund, L.P. These debt facilities included warrants issued as fees and the payment of other fees and discount
fees, which are amortized as part of interest expense. Currently, the debt facility for Universal Biofuels Pvt. Ltd. accrues
interest at the default rate of interest. We incurred interest expense of approximately $4 million for the twelve months
ended December 31, 2010 ($1.8 million from India loans and $2.2 million from North America loans) compared to
approximately $2.7 million for the twelve months ended December 31, 2009 ($672,000 from India loans and $2.0
million from North America loans).  The North America interest expense increase resulted principally from the higher
levels ofborrowings made to sustain the business and the additional funding to begin the retrofit of the Keyes, CA
plant.We capitalized interest in the amount of approximately $54,000 and zero, respectively, during the twelve months
ended December 31, 2010 and 2009.

 • Other income increased mainly from approximately $514,000 from the extinguishment of certain liabilities.
 • During 2009, we recorded an impairment write down of approximately $2,086,350. We wrote down $1,766,355 against

our Sutton, Nebraska construction-in-progress after evaluating the fair value of our development assets and wrote
down $319,995 against our land holdings in Danville, Illinois after securing an appraisal of the land.
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Quarterly Changes in Financial Position
 

  
December 31,

2010   March 31, 2011   June 30, 2011   
September 30,

2011  
Assets             

Current assets:             
Cash and cash equivalents  $ 683,016  $ 238,117  $ 558,620  $ 213,136 
Accounts receivable, net   113,583   1,767,206   1,698,284   809,377 
Inventories   666,854   191,377   2,815,791   4,959,904 
Prepaid expenses   228,040   110,980   106,536   338,251 
Other current assets   390,891   251,847   407,381   647,865 

Total current assets   2,082,384   2,559,527   5,586,612   6,968,533 
                 

Property, plant and equipment, net   16,404,550   17,968,594   17,917,729   16,809,133 
Assets held for sale   2,885,000   2,885,000   885,000   885,000 
Goodwill and intangible assets   -   -   -   2,767,994 
Other assets   222,101   392,225   551,869   683,874 

Total assets  $ 21,594,035  $ 23,805,346  $ 24,941,210  $ 28,114,534 
                 
Liabilities and stockholders' deficit                 

Current liabilities:                 
Accounts payable  $ 4,689,420  $ 5,999,380  $ 10,426,911  $ 14,508,738 
Current portion of long term secured notes   2,793,427   2,993,427   3,149,015   3,274,021 
Secured notes, net of discount for issuance costs   5,306,742   5,517,928   5,710,260   5,400,230 
Short term notes and unsecured working capital lines of credit   547,596   -   -   1,631,756 
Mandatorily redeemable Series B convertible preferred stock   2,221,872   2,247,041   2,273,091   2,299,182 
Other current liabilities   2,741,103   2,798,420   3,434,826   3,563,810 

Total current liabilities   18,300,160   19,556,196   24,994,103   30,677,737 
                 

Long term liabilities:                 
Long term portion of secured notes, net of discounts for
issuance costs   8,168,980   12,279,895   12,949,687   13,906,726 
Long term debt (related party), net of discounts for issuance
costs   4,574,603   5,244,589   6,146,437   3,867,863 

Total long term liabilities:   12,743,583   17,524,484   19,096,124   17,774,589 
                 

Stockholders' deficit:                 
Series B convertible preferred stock   3,165   3,165   3,165   3,115 
Common Stock   90,342   92,092   92,792   129,463 
Additional paid-in capital   38,557,376   38,973,006   39,483,563   44,436,634 
Accumulated deficit   (47,229,670)   (51,492,962)   (57,861,871)   (63,312,346)
Accumulated other comprehensive income   (870,921)   (850,635)   (866,666)   (1,594,658)

Total stockholders' deficit   (9,449,708)   (13,275,334)   (19,149,017)   (20,337,792)
                 

Total liabilities and stockholders' deficit  $ 21,594,035  $ 23,805,346  $ 24,941,210  $ 28,114,534 

 
We ended each of the quarters of 2011 with limited cash and were required to raise additional working capital through the extension
of vendor credit for operating the plants and additional loans from our senior lender.  Obtaining working capital through commercial
banks or through other means is a significant challenge.  Our senior lender has a lien on substantially all of our assets.  Unless we
are able to raise equity capital or attract subordinated debt, we are dependent on our North America senior lender and our India
working capital partner to fund operational cash shortfalls or other working capital requirements.
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March 31, 2011 Compared to December 31, 2010
 
Assets.  During the three months ended March 31, 2011, property, plant and equipment increased by approximately $1.5
million.  During the first quarter of 2011, we  completed the retrofit of the Keyes plant and capitalized those costs that added utility to
the facility as leasehold improvements.  This purchase of property, plant and equipment was financed through additional borrowings
from our senior lender and from extending terms with our trade vendors.
 
The $1.59 million sequential accounts receivable increase resulted from unfunded borrowing obligations in the first quarter of 2011.
Our biodiesel sales during the three months ended March 31, 2011 declined to zero from $176,000 in the first quarter of 2010.  As a
result we were able to collect our outstanding receivables for the India segment during the first quarter of 2011.  Additionally, because
of the decline in biodiesel prices, we elected to sell approximately $527,000 of NRPO rather than produce biodiesel, resulting in lower
levels of inventory at the end of the period. We applied the proceeds to repay all amounts due to Secunderabad Oils Limited under
our operating agreement.
 
Liabilities.  Current liabilities increased during the period, as we completed the retrofit of our leased ethanol production facility in
Keyes, CA.  We sold additional notes in the principal amount of $3.5 million and used approximately half of the funding to complete
work through March 31, 2011.  In India, we used the proceeds from the sale of inventory to reduce the amount outstanding under our
operating agreement with Secunderabad Oils Limited.
 
Equity.  We issued 1,750,000 shares of common stock pursuant to the sale of the additional notes.  The issuance of this equity
resulted in an increase to additional paid in capital.
 
June 30, 2011 Compared to December 31, 2010
 
Assets.  Total assets increased during the six-month period ending June 30, 2011. The restart of the Keyes plant in April 2011
resulted in an increase in working capital in the form of increased inventories and accounts receivable (including a receivable under
the California Ethanol Producers Incentive Program).  The increase in the asset component of working capital was offset by a related
increase in accounts payable obtained pursuant to the credit terms of the Corn Procurement and Working Capital Agreement with
J.D. Heiskell and trade credit provided by vendors. Property, plant and equipment increased as a result of the completion of the retrofit
activities and the related capitalization of certain leasehold improvements associated with the restart.  These capitalized retrofit costs
were offset by the sale of property in Danville, IL, which we carried on our books at a value of approximately $2.0 million.  We used
approximately $650,000 of these proceeds to continue the construction of the refined glycerin and oil processing units at our plant in
India.  Other assets increased as a result of deposits associated with the restart of the Keyes plant, principally the deposit for natural
gas.
 
Liabilities. Total current liabilities increased during the period as a result of an increase in accounts payable and the amount of
outstanding secured notes used to fund the restart of the Keyes plant in April 2011. Other accrued liabilities increased primarily due to
natural gas obligations at the Keyes ethanol plant. The commencement of production allowed us to obtain favorable terms with
vendors resulting in the extension of credit from trade creditors.  To complete the retrofit and restart, we sold $3.5 million in senior
notes and by June 30, 2011 had used the full amount of this borrowing.  We used approximately $900,000 from the sale of the land in
Danville, IL to repay obligations to our senior lender.  The India segment continued to sell feedstock inventories and use the proceeds
from these sales to repay amounts owed to Secunderabad Oils Limited under our operating agreement.
 
Equity.  We issued 1,750,000 shares of common stock pursuant to the sale of the $3.5 million in additional notes.  We issued an
additional 700,000 shares of common stock to cure certain defaults under the secured term notes held by Third Eye Capital.  The
issuance of this equity resulted in an increase to additional paid in capital.
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September 30, 2011 Compared to December 31, 2010
 
Assets.  Total assets increased during the nine-month period ending September 30, 2011. Inventories and accounts receivable rose
as a result of the operation of the Keyes plant as well as an increase in the cost of corn, the key component of ethanol production at
the Keyes plant.  Inventories rose in India as a result of the purchase of refined glycerin for resale as well as resumed production of
biodiesel to fulfill an international order. Goodwill and intangible assets increased as a result of our acquisition of Zymetis, Inc. in the
third quarter of 2011.  We recognized a decrease in assets held for sale as a result of the sale of property in Danville, IL.
 
Liabilities.  Liabilities increased during the period primarily as a result of increased accounts payable, secured notes, and other
current liabilities primarily from retrofit of the Keyes plant and the commencement of commercial ethanol production in April 2011. The
India segment funded the purchase of refined glycerin inventories and biofuel feedstock inventories in support of a large biodiesel
order by increasing borrowings under our working capital facility with Secunderabad Oils Limited and by negotiation of increased
vendor payment terms.  The secured related party note decreased as a result of the conversion of interest and fees into common
stock.
 
Equity.  We issued 1,750,000 shares of common stock pursuant to the sale of the $3.5 million in additional notes.  We issued an
additional 700,000 to cure certain defaults under the secured term notes held by Third Eye Capital.  In July our senior term note
matured with the provision that the note could be automatically extended through the payment of a $75,000 per month fee payable in
cash or stock.  We elected to pay this fee in stock, and issued 498,035 shares during the three months ended September 30,
2011.  In addition, we issued 393,518 shares to our senior lender in consideration for waivers of certain loan defaults.  In July we
acquired Zymetis, Inc. through the issuance of 6,673,557 shares of common stock.  Additionally, we issued 29,056,356 shares as
part of a conversion right with our secured related party note.  The issuance of this equity resulted in an increase to additional paid in
capital.
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Quarterly Results of Operations
 

  For the three months ended   For the three months ended  
                   

  
March 31,

2011   June 30, 2011   
September 30,

2011   
March 31,

2010   June 30, 2010   
September 30,

2010  
Revenues  $ 738,469  $ 27,253,190  $ 56,571,595  $ 2,236,838  $ 1,805,710  $ 1,592,932 
                         
Cost of goods sold   787,472   27,567,654   55,789,374   2,209,593   1,941,674   1,671,989 
                         
Gross profit/(loss)   (49,003)   (314,464)   782,221   27,245   (135,964)   (79,057)
                         
Research and development
expenses   32,569   71,400   337,229   144,530   109,847   29,206 
Selling, general and administrative
expenses   2,103,409   1,989,282   2,212,510   1,009,982   1,101,128   903,680 
                         
Operating loss   (2,184,981)   (2,375,146)   (1,767,518)   (1,127,267)   (1,346,939)   (1,011,943)
                         
Other income/(expense)                         

Interest income   4,021   2,796   351   180   1,914   147 
Interest expense   (2,103,163)   (3,649,359)   (3,785,857)   (909,018)   (917,037)   (726,564)
Other income, net of expenses   24,031   54,207   4,070   27,974   18,810   15,789 
Loss on asset sales   -   (401,407)   -   -   -   - 

Loss before income taxes   (4,260,092)   (6,368,909)   (5,548,954)   (2,008,131)   (2,243,252)   (1,722,571)
                         

Income taxes benefit/(expense)   (3,200)   -   98,479   (3,200)   -   - 
                         
Net loss   (4,263,292)   (6,368,909)   (5,450,475)   (2,011,331)   (2,243,252)   (1,722,571)

Less: Net loss attributable to the
noncontrolling interest   -   -   -   (70,820)   (53,825)   (14,311)

Net loss attributable to Aemetis, Inc.  $ (4,263,292)  $ (6,368,909)  $ (5,450,475)  $ (1,940,511)  $ (2,189,427)  $ (1,708,260)

                         
Other comprehensive loss                         

Foreign currency translation
adjustment   20,286   (16,031)   (727,992)   427,800   (309,086)   33,782 

Comprehensive loss   (4,243,006)   (6,384,940)   (6,178,467)   (1,583,531)   (2,552,338)   (1,688,789)
Comprehensive loss
attributable to the
noncontrolling interest   -   -   -   -   -   - 

Comprehensive loss attributable to
Aemetis, Inc.  $ (4,243,006)  $ (6,384,940)  $ (6,178,467)  $ (1,512,711)  $ (2,498,513)  $ (1,674,478)

                         
Loss per common share attributable
to Aemetis, Inc.                         

Basic and diluted  $ (0.05)  $ (0.07)  $ (0.05)  $ (0.02)  $ (0.03)  $ (0.02)
Weighted average shares
outstanding                         

Basic and diluted   90,789,254   92,384,340   100,446,788   86,182,765   86,566,702   86,987,032 
 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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Three Months Ended March 31, 2011 Compared to Three Months Ended March 31, 2010

Revenues
 
Substantially all of our revenues for the three months ended March 31, 2011 and 2010 were derived from the sale of biodiesel and
glycerin, and the resale of feedstock inventory by our India segment.
 

Three Months Ended March 31 (in thousands)  
  
  2011   2010   Increase/(Decrease) 
North America   -   -   - 
India  $ 738  $ 2,237  $ (1,499)
Total  $ 738  $ 2,237  $ (1,499)

 
During the three months ended March 31, 2011, we could not economically produce biodiesel due to high feedstock
prices.  Therefore, we elected to suspend production and resell our feedstock inventory.  For the three months ended March 31,
2011, we sold 138 tons of biodiesel, and 23 tons of crude glycerin compared to 2,696 tons of biodiesel and 369 tons of crude glycerin
for the three months ended March 31, 2010.
 
Cost of Goods Sold
 

Three Months Ended March 31 (in thousands)  
  
  2011   2010   Increase/(Decrease) 
North America   -   -   - 
India  $ 787  $ 2,210  $ (1,423)
Total  $ 787  $ 2,210  $ (1,423)

 
The decrease in costs of goods sold was attributable to lower biodiesel production.  During the three months ended March 31, 2011,
we could not economically produce biodiesel due to high feedstock prices and elected to resell our feedstock inventory.  For the three
months ended March 31, 2011 and 2010, we processed 1,284 and 3,408 metric tons of NRPO, respectively.
 
Operating Expenses
 

Three Months Ended March 31 (in thousands)  
  
  2011   2010   Increase/(Decrease) 
R&D          
North America  $ 33  $ 145  $ (112)
India   -   -   - 
Total R&D   33   145   (112)
             
SG&A             
North America   2,001   767   1,234 
India   114   162   (48)
Other   (12)   81   (93)
Total SG&A   2,103   1,010   1,093 
             
Other Expense             
North America   1,030   469   561 
India   1,045   412   633 
Total Other Expense  $ 2,075  $ 881  $ 1,194 
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R&D. Lower R&D costs reflect the fact that during the three months ended March 31, 2011, we were winding down operations at our
Butte, MT pilot plant.
 
SG&A
 
North America. The increase in SG&A in the three months ended March 31, 2011 was primarily attributable to the costs incurred to
restart the Keyes plant.
 
India. Our single largest expense in SG&A is the operational support fees paid to Secunderabad Oils Limited.  These fees are
computed as a percentage of operating profits.  For the three months ended March 30, 2011 and 2010, we incurred approximately
$42,000 and $32,000, respectively in operational support fees.
 
Other SG&A. Resources associated with the Biofuels Marketing subsidiary were reassigned to other segments during 2010 resulting
in a decrease in Other SG&A..
 
Other Income/Expense
 

Other income (expense) consisted of the following items:
 
 • Interest expense attributable to debt facilities acquired by our parent company, our subsidiaries Universal Biofuels Pvt.

Ltd., International Biofuels, Inc., AE Advanced Fuels Keyes, Inc. and interest accrued on the complaint filed by
Cordillera Fund, L.P. These debt facilities included warrants issued as fees and the payment of other fees and discount
fees, which are amortized as part of interest expense. During the three months ended March 31, 2011 and 2010, the
debt facility for Universal Biofuels Pvt. Ltd. accrued interest at the default rate of interest. We incurred interest expense
of approximately $2.1 million for the three months ended March 31, 2011 ($1.1 million from India loans and $1.0 from
North America loans), compared to approximately $909,000 for the three months ended March 31, 2010 ($280,000
from India loans and $629,000 from North America loans). We capitalized interest in the amount of approximately
$185,000 and zero, respectively, during the three months ended March 31, 2011 and 2010.

 
 • Interest income is earned on excess cash, principally in India. Due to low levels of cash during the three months ended

March 31, 2011, and 2010, our interest income remained at low levels of $4,021 and $180, respectively.
 
 • Other income of $24,031 in 2011 and $27,974 in 2010 is attributable to rent income from portions our land holdings in

Sutton, NE and Danville, IL leased to local farmers.
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Three Months Ended June 30, 2011 Compared to Three Months Ended June 30, 2010
 
Revenues
 
Our revenues in the three months ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 were derived primarily from sales of ethanol and WDG in North
America and biodiesel and glycerin in India.
 

Three Months Ended June 30 (in thousands)  
  
  2011   2010   Increase/(Decrease) 
North America  $ 27,253   -  $ 27,253 
India   -  $ 1,806   (1,806)
Total  $ 27,253  $ 1,806  $ 25,447 

 
North America.  The increase in revenues in our North America segment for the three months ended June 30, 2011 reflects the
operation of the Keyes, CA plant beginning in April 2011.  We generated 82% of revenue from sales of ethanol, 17% from sales of
WDG, and less than 1% from the sale of syrup.  For the three months ended March 31, 2011 plant production, during its period of
operation, averaged 85% of nameplate capacity.
 
India.  During the quarter ended June 30, 2011 we did not produce and sell any biodiesel due to high feedstock prices, compared to
2,114 tons of biodiesel and 32 tons of glycerin for the three months ended June 30, 2010.
 
Cost of Goods Sold
 

Three Months Ended June 30 (in thousands)  
  
  2011   2010   Increase/(Decrease) 
North America  $ 27,550   -  $ 27,550 
India   17  $ 1,942   (1,925)
Total  $ 27,567  $ 1,942  $ 25,625 

 
North America.  The increase in costs of goods sold in our North America segment for the three months ended June 30, 2011 reflects
the operation of the Keyes, CA plant beginning April 2011.  For the three months ended June 30, 2011, we ground 86,788 tons of
corn.
 
India.  For the three months ended June 30, 2010, feedstock costs rose above the price of biodiesel.  For the three months ended
June 30, 2011 and 2010, we processed 0 and 1,353 metric tons of NRPO, respectively.The high cost of NRPO caused us to cease
production and sales of biodiesel during the three months ended June 30, 2011.
 
Operating Expenses
 

Three Months Ended June 30 (in thousands)  
  2011   2010   Increase/(Decrease) 
R&D          
North America  $ 71  $ 110  $ (39)
India   -   -   - 
Total R&D   71   110   (39)
             
SG&A             
North America   1,651   948   703 
India   338   75   263 
Other   -   78   (78)
Total SG&A   1,989   1,101   888 
             
Other Expense             
North America   2,591   583   2,008 
India   1,403   313   1,090 
Total  $ 3,994  $ 896  $ 3,098 
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R&D. We made minimal expenditures on R&D during the three months ended June 30, 2011 as our landlord sold the building that
housed our demonstration facility in Butte, MT and terminated the lease.  As a result, we moved our equipment from our commercial
demonstration facility in Butte, MT into storage.  During the second quarter of 2012, we moved the equipment to our Keyes plant.  In
comparison, our principal area of spending for R&D during the three months ended June 30, 2010 was our integrated cellulose and
starch ethanol commercial demonstration facility in Butte, MT. We incurred expenses of $109,847 during the three months ended
June 30, 2010 to operate the commercial demonstration facility. During the three months ended June 30, 2011, we incurred charges
of $56,438 related to disposal of equipment from the disassembly of our facility in Butte, MT and storage of the equipment.
 
SG&A
 
North America. The increase in SG&A in the three months ended June 30, 2011 compared to 2010 was primarily attributable to (i) an
increase in compensation expense related to the addition of management and administrative personnel at the Keyes plant; and (ii) an
increase in ethanol and WDG sales and marketing expenses.  Compensation expense rose from $510,000 for the three months
ended June 30, 2010 to approximately $699,000 for the three months ended June 30, 2011.  Marketing fees of $447,000 were
incurred during the three months ended June 30, 2011 in connection with sales of ethanol and WDG.
 
India. Our single largest expense in SG&A is the operational support fees paid to Secunderabad Oils Limited.  These fees are
computed as a percentage of operating profits.  Since there were minimal sales in the three months ended June 30, 2011, we
reclassed overhead spending usually associated with cost of goods sold to SG&A. The activities of personnel focused on
administrative, maintenance and marketing activities during this period.
 
Other Income/Expense
 

Other income (expense) consisted of the following items:
 
 • Interest expense is attributable to debt facilities acquired by our parent company, our subsidiaries Universal Biofuels

Pvt. Ltd., International Biofuels, Inc., AE Advanced Fuels Keyes, Inc. and interest accrued on the complaint filed by
Cordillera Fund, L.P. These debt facilities included warrants issued as fees and the payment of other fees and discount
fees, which are amortized as part of interest expense. We incurred interest expense of approximately $3.6 million for
the three months ended June 30, 2011 ($1.4 million from India loans and $2.2 million from North America loans)
compared to approximately $917,000for the three months ended June 30, 2010 ($300,000 from India loans and
$617,000from North America loans).  Interest expense increased in North American from the borrowings made during
November 2010 and March 2011 to retrofit and restart the Keyes plant.  Interest expense decreased in India as our
minimal level of sales did not require working capital funding during the three months ended June 30, 2011.

 
 • Interest income is earned on excess cash, principally in India. Due to low levels of cash during the three months ended

June 30, 2011, and 2010, our interest income remained at low levels of $2,796 and $1,914, respectively.
 
 • Other income, for both years, is attributable to renting portions our land holdings in Sutton, NE and Danville, IL to local

farmers.  During the three months ended June 30, 2011 we recorded $33,000 from renting portions of our tank storage
at our plant in India.

 
 • During the three months ended June 30, 2011, we realized a loss of $401,407 on the sale of land holdings in Danville,

IL.
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Three Months Ended September 30, 2011 Compared to Three Months Ended September 30, 2010
 
Revenues
 
Substantially all of our revenues for the three months ended September 30, 2011 were derived from the sale of ethanol and WDG by
our North America segment.
 

Three Months Ended September 30 (in thousands)  
  
  2011   2010   Increase/(Decrease) 
North America  $ 52,178  $ -  $ 52,178 
India   4,394   1,593   2,801 
Total  $ 56,572  $ 1,593  $ 54,979 

 
North America.  The increase in revenues in our North America segment for the three months ended September 30, 2011 reflects the
operation of the Keyes, CA plant beginning April 2011.  We generated 83% of North America revenue from sales of ethanol,16% of
North America revenue from sales of WDG, and less than 1% from the sale of syrup.  For the three months ended September 30,
2011 plant production averaged 103% of nameplate capacity.
 
India.  The increase in revenues in our India segment for the three months September 30, 2011 reflects the resumption of biodiesel
production and sales.  For the three months ended September 30, 2011, we sold 3,996 tons of biodiesel, no crude glycerin and 116
tons of refined glycerin.  For the three months ended September 30, 2010, we sold 1,486 tons of biodiesel, 111 tons of glycerin and
no refined glycerin,
 
Cost of Goods Sold
 

Three Months Ended September 30 (in thousands)  
  
  2011   2010   Increase/(Decrease) 
North America  $ 51,617  $ -  $ 51,617 
India   4,172   1,672   2,500 
Total  $ 55,789  $ 1,672  $ 54,117 

 
North America.  The increase in cost of goods sold for the three months ended September 30, 2011 reflects the operation of the
Keyes, CA plant beginning April 2011.  For the three months ended September 30, 2011, we ground 141,451 tons of corn.
 
India.  The increase in cost of goods sold for the three months ended September 30, 2011 reflects the resumption of biodiesel
production and sales due to the decline in feedstock prices.  For the three months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, we
processed 1,284 and 1,862 metric tons of NRPO, respectively.
 
Operating Expenses
 

Three Months Ended September 30 (in thousands)  
  2011   2010   Increase/(Decrease) 
R&D          
North America  $ 337  $ 29  $ 308 
India   -   -   - 
Total R&D   337   29   308 
             
SG&A             
North America   2,066   746   1,320 
India   147   86   61 
Other   -   72   (72)
Total SG&A   2,213   904   1,309 
             
Other Expense             
North America   3,136   361   2,775 
India   646   350   296 
Total Other Expense  $ 3,782  $ 711  $ 3,071 
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R&D. In July 2011 we acquired Zymetis, Inc., an R&D company. Our R&D expense during the three months ended September 30,
2011 was attributable to the ongoing R&D activities at the facility in College Park.
 
SG&A
 
North America. The increase in SG&A in the three months ended September 30, 2011 compared to the same period of 2010 was
primarily attributable to (i) an increase in compensation expense related to an increase in management and administrative personnel
at the Keyes plant; and (ii) an increase in ethanol and WDG sales and marketing expenses.  Compensation expense rose from
$417,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2010 to approximately $656,000 for the three months ended September 30,
2011.  Marketing fees of $804,000 were also incurred during the three months ended September 30, 2011 in connection with sales of
ethanol and WDG.
 
India. Our single largest expense in SG&A is the operational support fees paid to Secunderabad Oils Limited.  These fees are
computed as a percentage of operating profits.  For the three months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, we incurred
approximately $47,000 and $2,400, respectively in operational support fees.
 
Other Income/Expense (in thousands)
 

Other income (expense) consisted of the following items:
 
 • Interest expense is attributable to debt facilities acquired by our parent company, our subsidiaries Universal Biofuels

Pvt. Ltd., International Biofuels, Inc., AE Advanced Fuels Keyes, Inc. and interest accrued on the complaint filed by
Cordillera Fund, L.P. These debt facilities included warrants issued as fees and the payment of other fees and discount
fees, which are amortized as part of interest expense. We incurred interest expense of approximately $3.8 million for
the three months ended September 30, 2011 ($646,000 from India loans and $3.1 million from North America loans)
compared to approximately $727,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2010 ($330,000 from India and
$397,000 from North America).  Interest expense increased in North American from the borrowings made during
November 2010 and March 2011 to retrofit and restart the Keyes plant.  Interest expense decreased in India due to
lower levels of sales, which required lower levels of borrowing under the working capital loan during the three months
ended September 30, 2011 compared to 2010.

 
 • Other income, $4,070 and $15,789 for the three months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively, is

attributable to renting portions our land holdings in Sutton, NE and Danville, IL to local farmers.  The decrease in other
income is a result of our sale of the Danville, IL landholding during the three months ended June 30, 2011.
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Results of Operations
 

  2011   2010  
  For the six   For the nine   For the six   For the nine  
  months ended   months ended   months ended   months ended  

  June 30, 2011   
September 30,

2011   June 30, 2010   
September 30,

2010  
Revenues  $ 27,991,659  $ 84,563,254  $ 4,042,548  $ 5,635,480 
                 
Cost of goods sold   28,355,126   84,144,500   4,151,267   5,823,256 
                 
Gross profit (loss)   (363,467)   418,754   (108,719)   (187,776)
                 
Research and development expenses   103,969   441,198   254,377   283,583 
Selling, general and administrative expenses   4,092,691   6,305,201   2,111,110   3,014,790 
                 
Operating loss   (4,560,127)   (6,327,645)   (2,474,206)   (3,486,149)
                 
Other income / (expense)                 

Interest income   6,817   7,168   2,094   2,241 
Interest expense   (5,752,522)   (9,538,379)   (1,826,055)   (2,552,619)
Other income, net of expenses   78,238   82,308   46,784   62,573 
Loss on land sale   (401,407)   (401,407)   -   - 

                 
Loss before income taxes   (10,629,001)   (16,177,955)   (4,251,383)   (5,973,954)
                 

Income tax benefit/(expense)   (3,200)   95,279   (3,200)   (3,200)
                 
Net loss   (10,632,201)   (16,082,676)   (4,254,583)   (5,977,154)

Less: Net loss attributable to the noncontrolling interest   -   -   (124,645)   (138,956)
Net loss attributable to Aemetis, Inc.   (10,632,201)   (16,082,676)   (4,129,938)   (5,838,198)

                 
                 
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax                 

Foreign currency translation adjustment   4,255   (723,737)   118,714   152,496 
Comprehensive loss, net of tax   (10,627,946)   (16,806,413)   (4,135,869)   (5,824,658)

Comprehensive loss attributable to the noncontrolling interest   -   -   -   - 
Comprehensive loss attributable to Aemetis, Inc.  $(10,627,946)  $(16,806,413)  $ (4,011,224)  $ (5,685,702)

                 
Loss per common share attributable to Aemetis, Inc.                 

Basic and diluted   (0.12)   (0.17)   (0.05)   (0.07)
Weighted average shares outstanding                 

Basic and diluted   91,591,203   94,575,503   86,375,794   86,581,779 
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Six Months Ended June 30, 2011 Compared to Six Months Ended June 30, 2010
 
Revenues
 
Substantially all of our revenues for the six months ended June 30, 2011 were derived from the sale of ethanol and WDG by our
North America segment while substantially all of our revenues for the same period of 2010 were derived from the sale of biodiesel by
our India segment.
 

Six Months Ended June 30 (in thousands)  
  2011   2010   Increase/(Decrease) 

North America  $ 27,253   -  $ 27,253 
India   738   4,043   (3,305)
Total  $ 27,991  $ 4,043  $ 23,948 

 
North America.  The increase in revenues for the six months ended June 30, 2011 reflects the operation of the Keyes, CA plant
beginning April 2011.  We generated 82% of revenue from sales of ethanol, 17% of revenue from sales of WDG, and less than 1%
from the sale of syrup.  For the six months ended June 30, 2011 plant production, during its period of operation, averaged 85% of
nameplate capacity.
 
India.  During the six months ended June 30, 2011, we could not economically produce biodiesel due to high feedstock
prices.  Therefore, we elected to suspend production and resell our feedstock inventory. During the six months ended June 30, 2011,
we sold 138 tons of biodiesel and 23 tons of crude glycerin compared to 4,810 tons of biodiesel and 401 tons of crude glycerin during
the six months ended June 30, 2010.
 
Cost of Goods Sold
 

Six Months Ended June 30 (in thousands)  
  2011   2010   Increase/(Decrease) 
North America  $ 27,550   -  $ 27,550 
India   805   4,151   (3,346)
Total  $ 28,355  $ 4,151  $ 24,204 

 
North America.  The increase in cost of goods sold for the six months ended June 30, 2011 reflects the operation of the Keyes, CA
plant beginning April 2011. During the six months ended June 30, 2011, we ground 86,788 tons of corn.
 
India.  The decrease in costs of goods sold was attributable to lower biodiesel production.  During this period, we could not
economically produce biodiesel due to high feedstock prices and elected to resell our feedstock inventory. During the six months
ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, we processed 1,284 and 4,761 metric tons of NRPO, respectively. The high cost of NRPO caused us
to cease production from February to July 2011.
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Operating Expenses
 

Six Months Ended June 30 (in thousands)  
  2011   2010   Increase/(Decrease) 
R&D          
North America  $ 104  $ 255  $ (151)
India   -   -   - 
Total R&D   104   255   (151)
             
SG&A             
North America   3,653   1,714   1,939 
India   452   238   214 
Other   (12)   159   (171)
Total SG&A   4,093   2,111   1,982 
             
Other Expense             
North America   3,621   1,052   2,569 
India   2,448   725   1,723 
Total  $ 6,069  $ 1,777  $ 4,292 

 
R&D.We made minimal expenditures on R&D during the six months ended June 30, 2011 as we were moving our equipment from
our commercial demonstration facility in Butte, MT into storage.  In comparison, our principal area of spending for R&D during the six
months ended June 30, 2010 was our integrated cellulose and starch ethanol commercial demonstration facility in Butte, MT. We
incurred expenses of $110,000 during the six months ended June 30, 2010, from operating the commercial demonstration facility.
During the six months ended June 30, 2011 we incurred charges of $56,000 related to disposal of equipment from the disassembly
and storage of our facility in Butte, MT.
 
SG&A
 
North America. The increase in SG&A in the six months ended June 30, 2011 compared to 2010 was primarily attributable to (i) an
increase in compensation expense related to in the addition of management and administrative personnel at the Keyes plant; and (ii)
an increase in ethanol and WDG sales and marketing expenses.  Compensation expense rose from approximately $151,000 for the
six months ended June 30, 2010 to approximately $1.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2011.  Marketing fees of
approximately $447,000 were incurred during the six months ended June 30, 2011 in connection with sales of ethanol and WDG.
 
India. The increase in SG&A for the six months ending June 30, 2011 resulted from a reclassification of excess overhead cost to
SG&A for a period when there were minimal sales and personnel focused on maintenance and administrative tasks. Our single
largest expense in SG&A is the operational support fees paid to Secunderabad Oils Limited.  These fees are computed as a
percentage of operating profits.  For the six months ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, we incurred approximately $42,000 and $30,000,
respectively in operational support fees.
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Other Income/Expense
 

Other income (expense) consisted of the following items:
 
 • Interest expense is attributable to debt facilities acquired by our parent company, our subsidiaries Universal Biofuels

Pvt. Ltd., International Biofuels, Inc., AE Advanced Fuels Keyes, Inc. and interest accrued on the complaint filed by
Cordillera Fund, L.P. These debt facilities included warrants issued as fees and the payment of other fees and discount
fees, which are amortized as part of interest expense. We incurred interest expense of approximately $5.7 million for
the six months ended June 30, 2011 ($2.5 million from India loans and $3.2 million from North America loans)
compared to approximately $1.8 million for the six months ended June 30, 2010 ($580,000 from India loans and $1.2
million from North America loans). Interest expense increase in North American from the borrowings made during
November 2010 and March 2011 to retrofit and restart the Keyes plant.  Interest expense decreased in India due to
lower levels of sales, which required lower levels of borrowing under the working capital loan during the six months
ended June30, 2011 compared to 2010.

 
 • Other income, for both years, is attributable to renting portions our land holdings in Sutton, NE and Danville, IL to local

farmers.  During the six months ended June 30, 2011 we recorded $33,000 from renting portions of our tank storage at
our plant in India.

 
 • During the six months ended June 30, 2011, we realized a loss of approximately $401,000 on the sale of land holdings

in Danville, IL.
 
 

39

EDGAR Stream is a copyright of Issuer Direct Corporation, all rights reserved.



 
 
Nine Months Ended September 30, 2011 Compared to Nine Months Ended September 30, 2010
 
Revenues

 
Nine Months Ended September 30 (in thousands)  

  
  2011   2010   Increase/(Decrease) 
North America  $ 79,431   -  $ 79,431 
India   5,132  $ 5,636   (504)
Total  $ 84,563  $ 5,636  $ 78,927 

 
North America.  The increase in revenues segment for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 reflects the operation of the
Keyes, CA plant beginning April 2011. We generated 82% ofrevenue from sales of ethanol,17% from sales of WDG, and less than 1%
from the sale of syrup. For the nine months ended September 30, 2011 plant production, during its period of operation, averaged 96%
of nameplate capacity.
 
India.  During August, 2011 we delivered one large shipment, generating approximately $3.8 million in revenues, to an international
customer. Additionally, we purchased an order for 1,000 metric tons of refined glycerin to resell in support of developing the market
for this product in advance of the commissioning of our glycerin refining unit. For the nine months ended September 30, 2011, we
sold 4,135 tons of biodiesel and 23 tons of crude glycerin and 116 tons of refined glycerin compared to 6,296 tons of biodiesel, and
512 tons of crude glycerin for the nine months ended September 30, 2010.
 
Cost of Goods Sold
 

Nine Months Ended September 30 (in thousands)  
  2011   2010   Increase/(Decrease) 
North America  $ 79,168   -  $ 79,168 
India   4,977   5,823   (846)
Total  $ 84,145  $ 5,823  $ 78,322 

 
North America.  The increase in cost of goods sold for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 reflects the operation of the
Keyes, CA plant beginning April 2011. During the nine months ended September 30, 2011, we ground 228,240 tons of corn.
 
India.  The most significant component of cost of goods sold is feedstock.  For the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010
our cost of goods decreased proportionately with revenue due to the significance of the feedstock component in this category and our
strategy in this thin market to price biodiesel at a price that would offset a portion of our allocated overhead costs. For the nine
months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, we processed 5,925 and 6,623 metric tons of NRPO, respectively.
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Operating Expenses
 

Nine Months Ended September 30 (in thousands)  
  2011   2010   Increase/(Decrease) 
R&D          
North America  $ 441  $ 284  $ 157 
India   -   -   - 
Total R&D   441   284   157 
             
SG&A             
North America   5,717   2,460   3,257 
India   600   324   276 
Other   (12)   231   (243)
Total SG&A   6,305   3,015   3,290 
             
Other Expense             
North America   6,757   1,414   5,343 
India   3,093   1,074   2,019 
Total  $ 9,850  $ 2,488  $ 7,362 

 
R&D. R&D expense was approximately $441,000 for the nine months ended September 30, 2011, compared to $284,000 for the
same period in 2010. We spent $204,000 during the first nine months of 2011 in support of the technologies acquired through the
purchase of Zymetis, Inc.  In comparison, R&D expense was $284,000 for the nine months ended September 30, 2010, all of which
was attributable to operating our integrated cellulose and starch ethanol commercial demonstration facility in Butte, MT.
 
SG&A
 
North America. The increase in SG&A in the nine months ended September 30, 2011 was primarily attributable to (i) an increase in
compensation expense and (ii) an increase in ethanol and WDG sales and marketing expenses.  Compensation expense increased
by approximately $1.5 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2011when compared to the same period in 2010. Marketing
expenses increased $1.2 million over the same period in 2010 due to the 2011 activity supporting the sales of ethanol and distiller’s
grains for the Keyes plant. Rent,included in SG&A prior to the Keyes plant going into production, and corporate rent combined
increased approximately $1 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2011over the same period in 2010. SG&A was partially
reduced by a $(0.2) million decrease in office services for the same periods.
 
India.  The increase in SG&A for the nine months ending September 30, 2011 resulted from a reclassification of excess overhead
cost in to SG&A for a period when there were minimal sales and personnel focused on maintenance and administrative tasks. SG&A
operational support fees paid to Secunderabad Oils Limited are computed as a percentage of operating profits.  For the nine months
ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, we incurred approximately $89,000 and $33,000, respectively in operational support fees.
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Other SG&A.  Resources associated with the Biofuels Marketing subsidiary were reassigned to other segments during 2010 resulting
in a decrease in Other SG&A.
 
Other Income/Expense
 

Other income (expense) consisted of the following items:
 
 • Interest expense is attributable to debt facilities acquired by our parent company, our subsidiaries Universal Biofuels

Pvt. Ltd., International Biofuels, Inc., AE Advanced Fuels Keyes, Inc. and interest accrued on the complaint filed by
Cordillera Fund, L.P. These debt facilities included warrants issued as fees and the payment of other fees and discount
fees, which are amortized as part of interest expense. We incurred interest expense of approximately $9.4 million for
the nine months ended September 30, 2011 ($3.1 million from India loans and $6.3 million from North America loans)
compared to approximately $2.5 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2010 ($0.9 million from India loans
and $1.6 from North America loans). The increase in interest expense in North America was from an increase in
borrowings made during November 2010 and March 2011 to retrofit and restart the Keyes plant.  Decreases in interest
expense in India were due to lower sales and a corresponding decrease in borrowings under our working capital facility
during the nine months ended September 30, 2011 compared to 2010.

 
 • Other income, for both years, is attributable to renting portions our land holdings in Sutton, NE and Danville, IL to local

farmers.  During the nine months ended September 30, 2011 we recorded $33,000 from renting portions of our tank
storage at our plant in India.

 
 • During the nine months ended September 30, 2011, we realized a loss of approximately $401,000 on the sale of land

holdings in Danville, IL.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources
 
2010
 
In 2010, we were primarily engaged in three activities: (i) fundraising for the retrofit of the Keyes plant; (ii) operating our biodiesel
production facility in Kakinada, India; and (iii) continuing to develop our proprietary, patent pending microbial and enzyme technology.
During 2010, we funded our operations primarily from cash provided by borrowings under our credit facilities. To fund the retrofit of
the Keyes plant and to fund general working capital requirements in North America, we borrowed (i) $1.6 million from a related party
in January 2010; (ii) an aggregate of $8 million from Third Eye Capital in November 2010 and March 2011; and (iii) an aggregate of
$1.0 million under our line of credit provided by a related party. We repaid the $1.6 million credit facility on May 11, 2010 and issued
600,000 shares of Aemetis, Inc.’s common stock as consideration for the borrowing.
 
2011
 
We completed the retrofit of the Keyes plant and commenced operations in late April 2011. During 2011, we funded our operations
primarily from cash provided by operations and borrowings under our credit facilities.
 
We expect that cash provided by operating activities may fluctuate in future periods primarily as a result of changes in the prices for
corn, ethanol, WDG, biodiesel, NPRO and natural gas. During periods in which the spread between ethanol prices and corn and
energy costs narrow or the spread between biodiesel and NPRO and energy costs narrow, we may require additional working capital
to fund operations. For additional discussion, see “Part I—Item 1A. Risk Factors.”
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents
 
Cash and cash equivalents were $249,466 at December 31, 2011, of which $117,748 was held in our North American entities and
$131,718 was held in our Indian subsidiary. Our current ratio at December 31, 2011 was 0.24 compared to a current ratio of 0.11 at
December 31, 2010. We expect that our future available capital resources will consist primarily of our remaining cash balances,
amounts available for borrowing, if any, under our senior debt facilities and our subordinated debt facilities, cash generated from
operations, and any additional funds raised through sales of equity.
 
In July 2012 we acquired the Keyes plant and refinanced the project to include a revolving credit line with our senior lender.  Our
lender required repayment of certain obligations and fees under other agreements, and we closed the purchase with $3 million
available under the $18 million credit facility. Our senior lender has collateralized all significant assets of ours, which limits our ability
to obtain working capital through commercial banks or through other means.  We are therefore dependent on our senior lender for
future debt financing.
 
Liquidity

Cash and cash equivalents, current assets, current liabilities and debt at the end of each period were as follows:
 

  
December 31,

2011   
December 31,

2010  
Cash and cash equivalents  $ 249,466  $ 683,016 
Current assets (including cash, cash equivalents, and deposits)   7,128,916    2,082,388 
Current liabilities (including short term debt)   29,428,067    18,300,160 
Short and long term debt   29,646,435    21,391,348 
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Change in Working Capital and Cash Flows
 
Debt increased primarily due to accrued fees and interest in the amount of $6.8 million associated with borrowings to retrofit the
Keyes plant and due to increased borrowings to purchase inventory in the amount of $1.6 million associated with borrowings from our
working capital loan with Secunderabad Oils Limited.
 
Current liabilities increased primarily due to vendor trade credit received in connection with the restart of the Keyes plant and
operating losses,which generated an incremental $9.6 million increase in accounts payable. A $1.0 million increase in short term
borrowings also caused liabilities to rise. Current assets increased in accounts receivable, inventory,prepaid expenses and other
assets primarily as a result of the ramping of production and operations at the Keyes ethanol plant.
 
Cash used in operating activities of $1.2 million resulted primarily from (i) consolidated net loss of $17.3 million, (ii) non-cash
adjustments to net loss of $6.5 million, (iii)account receivable increase of $1.3 million, (iv) inventory increase of $3.7 million, (v) trade
payable credit increase of $9.6 million, and (vi) accrued interest expense increase of $9.0 million.
 
Cash used in our investing activities of $1.0 million resulted primarily from $2.6 million in additions to property and equipment to
retrofit the Keyes plant offset by $1.6 million received from the sale of land holdings.
 
Cash provided by our financing activities of $1.9 million resulted primarily from $1.3 million in net proceeds from our working capital
line of credit, and $0.5 million in net proceeds from our secured debt facility borrowings.
 
Available Credit Facilities
 
On July 6, 2012, we entered into a new revolving credit facility in the aggregate amount of up to $18.0 million. The credit facility
expires on July 5, 2013, provided, however, that the facility may be extended for up to two additional periods of one year upon certain
conditions, including the payment of a renewal fee.  Interest accrues at a fluctuating rate of interest determined by reference to the
Prime Rate and the amount outstanding. We are also required to pay customary fees and expenses associated with the credit facility.
 
We are required to (i) maintain a minimum amount of Free Cash Flow of not less than $1.5 million at the end of each fiscal quarter, (ii)
debt to value ratio of 75% tested semi-annually, (iii) minimum quarterly ethanol production of not less than 14 million gallons per
quarter, and (iv) limit purchases of capital expendituresto not more than $50,000 per quarter.  In addition, we are prohibited from
incurring any additional indebtedness (other than specific intercompany indebtedness or specific subordinated indebtedness) absent
the lender’s prior consent. Our obligations under the credit facility are secured by a first-priority security interest in all of its assets in
favor of the lender.
 
On October 18, 2012, Third Eye Capital agreed to (i) extend the maturity date of the Existing Notes to July 6, 2014; (ii) to increase the
amount of the Revolving Loan Facility by $6,000,000, to a total of $24,000,000; (iii) to modify the redemption waterfall so that any
payments would be applied first to the increase in the Revolving notes; (iv) granted waivers to the Borrowers’ obligation to pay or
comply, and any event of default which has occurred or may occur as a result of such failures of the Borrowers to pay or comply with
certain financial covenants and principal payments, including financial covenants for the quarter ended September 30 and December
31, 2012; and (v) agreed to accrue interest until the earlier of certain events described in the Limited Waiver or February 1, 2013.  In
consideration for the Limited Waiver and Amendment, the Borrowers, among other things, agreed to pay the Lenders a waiver fee in
the amount of $4,000,000; and (ii) cash in the amount of $28,377for certain unreimbursed costs. After paying the $4 million waiver
fee, $2 million remained available for future draw on the Revolving Loan Facility.
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Notes Payable to Related Parties
 
In 2008, we entered into a Revolving Line of Credit Agreement with Laird Cagan, in the amount of $5,000,000 secured by certain,
investments, intellectual property, securities and other collateral of ours, excluding the collateral securing our obligations with Third
Eye Capital and the collateral securing our obligations with the State Bank of India. The Revolving Line of Credit bears interest at the
rate of 10% per annum and matures on July 1, 2012. As of December 31, 2011, the remaining amount due and payable was
$5,165,205.
 
On October 16, 2012, Aemetis International, Inc. (AII), a subsidiary of Aemetis, Inc. Entered into an amendment to the Revolving Line
of Credit Agreement with Laird Q. Cagan and co-owners in the financing arrangement, pursuant to which AII extended the maturity
date of the loan until July 1, 2014 and placed an average trailing daily closing price minimum of $0.05 per share for conversion of fees
and accrued interest.  In exchange for the extension, the Company agreed to pay a $262,919 fee reflecting 5% of the outstanding
balance of the Revolving Line of Credit, payable in cash or stock, at the same conversion price and terms as the accrued interest
conversion terms.
 
Issuance of Convertible Promissory Notes
 
On March 4, 2011, and amended January 19, 2012, and July 24, 2012, the Company entered into a Note Purchase Agreement with
Advanced BioEnergy, LP, a California limited Partnership for the issuance of up to 72 subordinated convertible promissory notes
bearing interest at 3%, each note in the principal amount of $500,000 due and payable four years from the date of the note for a total
aggregate principal amount of up to $36,000,000.
 
Advanced BioEnergy, LP arranges investments with foreign investors, who each make investments in the Keyes plant project in
investment increments of $500,000.  The Company sold notes in the amount of $1,000,000 to the first two investors.  The availability
of the remaining $35,000,000 will be determined by the ability of Advanced BioEnergy, LP to attract additional qualified investors.
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Historical Sources and Uses of Cash
 
  For the three   For the six   For the nine   For the three   For the six   For the nine  
  months ended   months ended   months ended   months ended   months ended   months ended  

  March 31, 2011   June 30, 2011   
September 30,

2011   March 31, 2010  June 30, 2010   
September 30,

2010  
Operating activities:                   

Net loss   (4,263,292)   (10,632,201)   (16,082,676)   (2,011,331)   (4,254,583)   (5,977,154)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to                        

  net cash provided/(used) in
operating activities:                         

Stock-based compensation   53,421   104,468   221,124   100,512   169,687   245,776 
Depreciation and

amortization   189,789   544,676   885,811   140,761   377,033   569,337 
Inventory provision   -   239,446   -   44,310   230,204   282,700 
Amortization of debt

issuance discount   1,483,786   3,066,693   3,737,320   278,772   583,985   583,985 
Loss on extinguishment of

debt   33,926   33,926   33,926   -   -   - 
Loss on sale or disposal of

assets   -   401,407   401,407   -   -   - 
Deferred tax liability   -   -   (98,479)   -   -   - 

Changes in assets and liabilities:                         
Accounts receivable   96,013   (1,584,636)   (702,608)   (141,638)   26,830   (78,777)
Inventory   477,841   (2,387,855)   (4,436,268)   (363,571)   (50,494)   (916,303)
Prepaid expenses   117,113   121,521   (101,669)   (26,701)   (12,987)   964 
Other current assets and

other assets   (29,817)   (345,794)   (764,533)   (50,034)   (42,368)   26,039 
Accounts payable   1,307,362   5,736,068   9,649,206   767,555   1,226,994   1,793,911 

Accrued interest expense and
fees, net of payments   536,478   2,803,608   4,603,570   398,429   1,013,704   1,658,442 

Other liabilities   56,794   693,521   596,752   560,865   127,753   293,639 
Net cash provided by/(used in)

operating activities   59,414  $ (1,205,152)  $ (2,057,117)  $ (302,071)  $ (604,242)  $ (1,517,442)
                         
Investing activities:                         

Purchase of property, plant and
equipment, net   (1,708,729)   (2,040,661)   (2,517,883)   (12,043)   (32,071)   (52,435)

Proceeds from sale of assets   -   1,598,593   1,598,593   -   -   - 
Cash obtained through merger   -   -   1,451   -   -   - 
Net cash used in investing

activities   (1,708,729)   (442,068)   (917,839)   (12,043)   (32,071)   (52,435)
                         
Financing activities:                         

Proceeds from borrowings
under secured debt facilities   1,750,776   3,500,000   3,500,000   -   -   - 
Repayments of borrowings
under secured debt facilities   -   (920,000)   (1,944,994)   -   -   - 
Proceeds from borrowings
under related party credit
arrangements   -   -   -   2,100,000   2,373,000   2,612,000 
Payments of borrowings under
related party credit
arrangements   -   -   -   (1,600,000)   (1,600,000)   (1,600,000)
Proceeds from borrowings
under short term debt facilities   -   -   5,658,030   1,196,528   1,770,248   3,189,946 
Repayments of borrowings
under short term facilities   (538,614)   (1,051,541)   (4,762,790)   (1,089,343)   (2,049,874)   (2,752,368)

Net cash provided by financing
activities   1,212,162   1,528,459   2,450,246   607,185   493,374   1,449,578 
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Effect of exchange rate
changes on cash and cash
equivalents

  (7,746)   (5,635)   54,830   (13,200)   113,905   110,073 
Net increase (decrease) in cash
and cash equivalents   (444,899)   (124,396)   (469,880)   279,871   (29,034)   (10,226)

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of period   683,016   683,016   683,016   52,178   52,178   52,178 

Cash and cash equivalents at end
of period   238,117  $ 558,620  $ 213,136  $ 332,049  $ 23,144  $ 41,952 
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Operating Activities
 
Net cash used in operating activities for the twelve months ended December 31, 2011 of ($1,246,899) was less than the net use of
cash in the twelve months ended December 31, 2010 of ($3,682,089). The 2010 use of cash went to start-up expenses related to
getting the ethanol plant ready. In 2011 the startup of the ethanol plant required working capital to fund accounts receivable and
inventories.  Through the corn procurement and working capital agreement with J.D. Heiskell, we funded the accounts receivable and
inventory with accounts payable for corn purchases.  The balance of the increase in accounts payable arose from payment terms
extended by trade vendors and accrued lease payment owing to our landlord.
 
Investing Activities
 
Net cash used in investing activities during the twelve months ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 was $967,957, and $672,965,
respectively, which consisted primarily of purchases of property, plant and equipment for the retrofit and restart of the Keyes plant.  In
addition, in May 2011we generated $1,598,593 from the sale of our land holding in Danville, Illinois.
 
Financing Activities
 
Net cash provided by financing activities during the twelve months ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 was $1,865,307 and
$4,859,286, respectively, which consisted in 2011 of proceeds, net of repayments, from our working capital line with Secunderabad
Oils Limited, and borrowings under secured debt facilities with Third Eye Capital. In 2010 we borrowed $3,650,044, net of payments,
and in 2011 we borrowed $568,074, net of payments, from Third Eye Capital. During 2010, we borrowed a net amount of $1,012,000
under the Revolving Line of Credit with related party Laird Cagan.  We made no additional borrowings under the Cagan Revolving
Line of Credit during 2011. In 2011 and 2010 our India and Zymetis subsidiaries borrowed $1,297,233 and $197,242, respectively, net
of payments from our working capital line of credit with Secunderabad Oils Limited. Zymetis borrowings only occurred after July 2011,
when we acquired $414,558 in short-term debt from our acquisition of the subsidiary.
 
Three Months Ended March 31, 2011 Compared to Three Months Ended March 31, 2010
 
Operating Activities
 
Net cash provided by operating activities for the three months ended March 31, 2011 of $59,414 represents an increase over the net
cash used in operating activity of ($302,071) for the same period in 2010.  The difference between periods is due primarily to the
trade payable terms offered by vendors of our Keyes plant as part of the restart and commencement of operations of this facility.
 
Investing Activities
 
Net cash used in investing activities during the three months ended March 31, 2011 and 2010 was ($1,708,729) and ($12,043),
respectively.  The difference consisted primarily of purchases of property, plant and equipment and tenant improvement expenditures
relating to the retrofit of our ethanol facility in Keyes, California.
 
Financing Activities
 
Net cash provided by financing activities during the three months ended March 31, 2011 and 2010 was $1,212,162 and $607,185,
respectively.  Net cash provided by financing activities during the three months ended March 31, 2011 consisted primarily of
$1,750,776 in borrowings under short-term notes with Third Eye Capital to complete the retrofit of the Keyes plant. During the three
months ended March 31, 2011 and 2010 we paid ($538,614) and borrowed $107,185 net of payments, respectively, on outstanding
credit arrangements with Secunderabad Oils Limited in India.
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Six Months Ended June 30, 2011 Compared to Six Months Ended June 30, 2010
 
Operating Activities
 
Net cash used in operating activities for the six months ended June 30, 2011 was ($1,205,152) primarily from losses incurred by the
retrofit and initial operations of the Keyes plant. Working capital requirements for accounts receivable and inventory associated with
the restart of the Keyes plant were partially offset by the working capital relationship with J.D. Heiskell and the vendor terms reflected
in the accounts payable.  A secondary component of the decrease in working capital was an increase in accrued interest and
accruing fees on our debt facilities. Net cash used in operating activities for the same six months of fiscal 2010 was ($604,242),
caused primarily by negative gross margins in the ethanol business.
 
Investing Activities
 
Net cash used in investing activities during the six months ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 was ($442,068), and ($32,071)
respectively, which consisted of the capitalization of leasehold improvement costs incurred to retrofit the Keyes plant.  The capitalized
costs were partially funded through the sale of our Danville land holding in 2011.
 
Financing Activities
 
Net cash provided by financing activities during the six months ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 was $1,528,459, and $493,374,
respectively, which consisted in 2011 primarily of the proceeds from our borrowings from Third Eye Capital under a secured term
note facility.  We remitted $920,000 of the proceeds from the Danville land sale to Third Eye Capital as a principal payment on
outstanding notes. During the six months ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 we made payments net of borrowings of($1,051,541) and
($279,626), respectively, on outstanding loans under our working capital facility with Secunderabad Oils Limited in India.
 
Nine Months Ended September 30, 2011 Compared to Nine Months Ended September 30, 2010
 
Operating Activities
 
Net cash used in operating activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2011 was ($2,057,117).  Our year-to-date losses were
funded through the extension of credit from trade vendors, working capital credit arrangement with J.D. Heiskell, lease payment
credit by our landlord, and the accrual of certain interest expense and fees associated principally with our loan at the Keyes plant.
This extension of credit was partially offset by an increase in inventories required to restart the Keyes plant and the preparation of an
international order in India.  Net cash used in operating activities for the same nine months of fiscal 2010 was ($1,517,442). Net cash
used in operating activities was higher in the current year as compared to the prior year period primarily due to an increased need for
working capital from the operation of our ethanol business in Keyes, CA at higher production levels.
 
Investing Activities
 
Net cash used in investing activities during the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010 was ($917,839), and ($52,435),
respectively, which consisted primarily of purchases of property, plant and equipment for continued construction of our glycerin
refining capacity in our India plant and for tenant improvements relating to the retrofit of the Keyes plant. Proceeds from the sale of
the Danville, Illinois land partially offset the September 2011 period net investing amount.
 
Financing Activities
 
Net cash provided by financing activities during the nine months ended September 30, 2011 and 2010 was $2,450,246, and
$1,449,578, respectively, which consisted in 2011 primarily of the proceeds from our secured term loan with Third Eye Capital, offset
by mandatory principal reductions and working capital funding from Secunderabad Oils Limited in support of an international
biodiesel sale.
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Critical Accounting Policies
 
Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon our consolidated financial statements,
which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the U.S. The preparation of these financial
statements requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses for each
period. The following represents a summary of our critical accounting policies, defined as those policies that we believe are the most
important to the portrayal of our financial condition and results of operations and that require management’s most difficult, subjective
or complex judgments, often as a result of the need to make estimates about the effects of matters that are inherently uncertain.
 
Revenue Recognition
 
We recognize revenue when it is realized or realizable and earned. We consider revenue realized or realizable and earned when
there is persuasive evidence of an arrangement, delivery has occurred, the sales price is fixed or determinable, and collection is
reasonably assured. We derive revenue primarily from sales of ethanol and related co-products, biodiesel, refined glycerin, and
refined palm oil. We recognize revenue when title transfers to our customers, which is generally upon the delivery of these products
to a customer’s designated location. These deliveries are made in accordance with sales commitments and related sales orders
entered into with customers and our working capital partner J.D. Heiskell for our Keyes plant and Secunderabad Oils Limited for our
Kakinada plant. Commitments can be offered either verbally or in written form. The sales commitments and related sales orders
provide quantities, pricing and conditions of sales. In this regard, sales consist of inventory produced at our Keyes or Kakinada plant.
 
Revenues from sales of ethanol and its co-products are billed net of the related transportation and marketing charges. The
transportation component is accounted for in cost of goods sold and the marketing component is accounted for in sales, general and
administrative expense. Revenues are recorded at the gross invoiced amount.  Deductions taken by our customer for transportation
and marketing are recorded as cost of goods sold and marketing, respectively. Additionally, our working capital partner leases our
finished goods tank and requires us to transfer legal title to the product upon transfer of our finished ethanol to this location.  We
consider the purchase of corn as a cost of goods sold and the sale of ethanol upon transfer to the finished goods tank as revenue on
the basis that (i) we bear the risk of gain or loss on the processing of corn into ethanol and (ii) we have legal title to the goods during
the processing time.
 
Recoverability of Our Long-Lived Assets
 
Property and Equipment
 
Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation on our biodiesel production facility and our
leasehold improvements to the Keyes plant, computer equipment and software, office furniture and equipment, vehicles, and other
fixed assets has been provided on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which currently range from
three to 25 years.  Expenditures for property betterments and renewals are capitalized. Costs of repairs and maintenance are
charged to expense as incurred.  We periodically evaluate whether events and circumstances have occurred that may warrant
revision of the estimated useful life of fixed assets, which is accounted for prospectively.
 
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and Goodwill
 
Our long-lived assets consist of property and equipment. We review long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of a long-lived asset may not be recoverable. We measure recoverability of assets to
be held and used by comparing the carrying amount of an asset to the estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to be
generated by the asset. If the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated future cash flows, we record an impairment charge
in the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the fair value of the asset. No impairment charges have been
recorded during the periods presented.
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Our goodwill consists of amounts relating to our acquisitions of Zymetis, Inc. in 2011. We review goodwill at an individual plant or
subsidiary level for impairment at least annually, or more frequently whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
impairment may have occurred. We perform a two-step impairment test to evaluate goodwill. Under the first step, we compare the
estimated fair value of the reporting unit with its carrying value (including goodwill). If the estimated fair value of the reporting unit is
less than its carrying value, we would complete a second step to determine the amount of the goodwill impairment that we should
record. In the second step, we would determine an implied fair value of the reporting unit’s goodwill by allocating the reporting unit’s
fair value to all of its assets and liabilities other than goodwill. We would then compare the resulting implied fair value of the goodwill
to the carrying amount and record an impairment charge for the difference.
 
The reviews of long-lived assets and goodwill require making estimates regarding amount and timing of projected cash flows to be
generated by an asset or asset group over an extended period of time. Management judgment regarding the existence of
circumstances that indicate impairment is based on numerous potential factors including, but not limited to, a decline in our future
projected cash flows, a decision to suspend operations at a plant for an extended period of time, adoption of our product by the
market, a sustained decline in our market capitalization, a sustained decline in market prices for similar assets or businesses, or a
significant adverse change in legal or regulatory factors or the business climate. Significant management judgment is required in
determining the fair value of our long-lived assets and goodwill to measure impairment, including projections of future cash flows. Fair
value is determined through various valuation techniques including discounted cash flow models, market values and third-party
independent appraisals, as considered necessary. Changes in estimates of fair value could result in a write-down of the asset in a
future period. Given the current economic and regulatory environment and uncertainties regarding the impact on our business, there
are no assurances that our estimates and assumptions will prove to be an accurate prediction of the future. 
 
Business Combinations through Acquisitions – Purchase Price Allocation

We apply the acquisition method of accounting to account for business combinations. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the
aggregate of the fair values at the date of exchange of the assets given, liabilities incurred, and equity instruments issued. Identifiable
assets, liabilities, and contingent liabilities acquired or assumed are measured separately at their fair value as of the acquisition date.
The excess of the cost of the acquisition over our interest in the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If our interest in the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired in a business combination exceeds the cost of the
acquisition, a gain is recognized in earnings on the acquisition date only after we have reassessed whether we have correctly
identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed. For most acquisitions, we engage outside appraisal firms to
assist in the fair value determination of identifiable intangible assets such as customer relationships, tradenames, property and
equipment and any other significant assets or liabilities. We adjust the preliminary purchase price allocation, as necessary, after the
acquisition closing date through the end of the measurement period (up to one year) as we finalize valuations for the assets acquired
and liabilities assumed.
 
Convertible Instruments
 
During 2010, we modified our revolving line of credit with Laird Cagan to add a beneficial conversion feature (BCF) in exchange for
Mr. Cagan agreeing to subordinate the line of credit to another lender.  The fee paid and BCF were recorded at fair value and
amortized over the remaining term of the line of credit.  Since the BCF also included a conversion feature allowing for any future
interest accrued to be convertible, interest was recorded on a daily valuation methodology at the commitment date and each day
thereafter over the life of the loan.  The intrinsic value was calculated as the difference between the conversion price of $0.05 per
share and the market price on each day multiplied by the number of shares convertible.  This difference is deferred as a debt discount
and amortized over the remaining life of the debt.  The Company’s Board of Directors approved the conversion option on September
2, 2010, which became the commitment and measurement date for the outstanding interest and fees. Line of credit accrued daily
interest through October 27, 2011 with a right to convert outstanding interest and fee at $0.05 per share. Beginning October 1, 2011,
the BCF of daily interest was measured and recorded as a debt discount each day using the average of 22 days of trailing closing
stock prices as quoted on the OTC markets. This fee was also treated as a fee and amortized over the remaining term of the line of
credit, which at the time matured on June 30, 2011.  On July 1, 2011 the line of credit maturity was extended to July 1, 2012 by
adding a five percent of loan balance waiver fee to the outstanding balance.
 
Testing for Modification or Extinguishment Accounting
 
During 2010 and 2011 we evaluated amendments to our debt under the FASB guidance for modification and extinguishment
accounting.  This evaluation included comparing the net present value of cash flows of the new debt to the old debt to determine if
changes greater than 10 percent occurred.  In instances where our future cash flows changed more than 10 percent, we fair valued
our debt based on factors available to us for similar borrowings and used extinguishment accounting method to account for debt.
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Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements
 
Effective January 1, 2011, we adopted the amended guidance in ASC Topic 805, Business Combinations, which, if we complete a
material business combination during the reporting period, requires us to disclose our pro forma revenue and earnings as though the
business combinations that occurred during the current period had occurred as of the beginning of the comparable prior annual
reporting period. The amended guidance also requires us to include a description of the nature and amount of material, nonrecurring
pro forma adjustments directly attributable to the business combination included in the reported pro forma revenue and earnings.
 
Effective January 1, 2011, we adopted the second phase of the amended guidance in ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurements and
Disclosures, which requires us to disclose information in the reconciliation of recurring Level 3 measurements regarding purchases,
sales, issuances and settlements on a gross basis, with a separate reconciliation for assets and liabilities. We did not experience an
impact from the additional disclosure requirements as we do not have any recurring Level 3 measurements.
 
Effective January 1, 2012, we will be required to adopt the third phase of amended guidance in ASC Topic 820, Fair Value
Measurements and Disclosures. The purpose of the amendment is to achieve common fair value measurement and disclosure
requirements by improving comparability of fair value measurements presented and disclosed in financial statements prepared in
accordance with GAAP and those prepared in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards, or IFRS. The amended
guidance clarifies the application of existing fair value measurement requirements and requires additional disclosure for Level 3
measurements regarding the sensitivity of fair value to changes in unobservable inputs and any interrelationships between those
inputs. We currently would not be impacted by the additional disclosure requirements as we do not have any recurring Level 3
measurements.
 
Effective January 1, 2012, we will be required to adopt the amended guidance in ASC Topic 220, Comprehensive Income. This
accounting standards update, which helps to facilitate the convergence of GAAP and IFRS, is aimed at increasing the prominence of
other comprehensive income in the financial statement by eliminating the option to present other comprehensive income in the
statement of stockholders’ equity, and requiring comprehensive income to be reported in either a single continuous statement or in
two separate but consecutive statements reporting net income and other comprehensive income. This amended guidance will be
implemented retroactively. We have determined that the changes to the accounting standards will affect the presentation of
consolidated financial information but will not have a material effect on our financial position or results of operations.
 
Effective January 1, 2012, we will be permitted to adopt the amended guidance in ASC Topic 350, Intangibles – Goodwill and
Other. The amended guidance permits an entity to first assess qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely than not that
the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount as a basis for determining whether it is necessary to perform the two-
step goodwill impairment test. The more-likely-than-not threshold is defined as having a likelihood of more than 50 percent. We have
determined that the changes to the accounting standards will not impact our disclosure or reporting requirements.
 
ITEM 7A.  QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
 
Not Applicable
 
ITEM 8.  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
 
Financial Statements are listed in the Index to Consolidated Financial Statements on page 67 of this Report.
 
ITEM 9.  CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
 
None
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ITEM 9A.  CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
 
Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting.
 
The information contained in this section covers management’s evaluation of our disclosure controls and procedures and our
assessment of our internal control over financial reporting for the periods since the date covered by our last periodic report
(September 30, 2010) through December 31, 2011.
 
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures.
 
Management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO), carried out an evaluation
of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures, as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-
15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the Exchange Act). Based on this evaluation, our principal executive
officer and principal financial officer concluded that, as of the end of the period covered in this report, our disclosure controls and
procedures along with the related internal controls over financial reporting were not effective to provide reasonable assurance that
the information required to be disclosed by us in reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed,
summarized, and reported within the time periods specified in Securities and Exchange Commission rules and forms, and is
accumulated and communicated to our management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, as
appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.
 
Inherent Limitations on Effectiveness of Controls
 
Our management, including the Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) and Chief Financial Officer (“CFO”), does not expect that our
disclosure controls or our internal control over financial reporting will prevent or detect all errors and all fraud. A control system, no
matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the control system’s objectives
will be met. Our controls and procedures are designed to provide reasonable assurance that our control system’s objective will be
met and our CEO and CFO have concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures are effective at the reasonable assurance
level. The design of a control system must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints, and the benefits of controls must be
considered relative to their costs. Further, because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can
provide absolute assurance that misstatements due to error or fraud will not occur or that all control issues and instances of fraud, if
any, within the company have been detected. These inherent limitations include the realities that judgments in decision-making can
be faulty and that breakdowns can occur because of simple error or mistake. Controls can also be circumvented by the individual acts
of some persons, by collusion of two or more people, or by management override of the controls. The design of any system of
controls is based in part on certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events and there can be no assurance that any design
will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions. Projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of
controls in future periods are subject to risks. Over time, controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or
deterioration in the degree of compliance with policies or procedures.
 
Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rule
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act). Our internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of our financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Our internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that: (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of our assets; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary
to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures by us are being made only in accordance with authorizations of our management and directors; and (iii) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of our assets that could
have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements.
 
Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our chief executive officer and chief financial officer,
we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of the period covered by this report
based on the criteria for effective internal control described in Internal Control – Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSO”). Based on the results of management’s assessment and
evaluation, our chief executive officer and chief financial officer concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was not
effective due to the material weaknesses described below.
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Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting
 
Discussed below are changes made to our internal control over financial reporting since our last filing through December 31, 2011, in
response to the identified material weaknesses.
 
Our efforts to improve our internal controls are ongoing and focused on expanding our organizational capabilities to improve our
control environment and on implementing process changes to strengthen our internal control and monitoring activities. In addition,
although we are implementing remedial measures to address all of the identified material weaknesses as discussed below, our
assessment of the impact of these measures have not been completed as of the filing date of this report.
 
Material Weaknesses
 
A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the company’s annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or
detected on a timely basis.  The material weaknesses identified are:
 

(1)  Inadequate number of personnel that could accurately and timely record and report the Company’s financial statements in
accordance with GAAP;

 
•  We did not produce timely financial statements for the years ending December 31, 2010 and 2011 and did not

employ an adequate number of people to ensure a control environment that would allow for the accurate and timely
reporting of the financial statements. When we began to prepare these financial statements our auditors raised
numerous items that required adjustments over a number of periods.
 

(2)  Ineffective controls to ensure that the accounting for complex accounting transactions are recorded in accordance with
GAAP financial statements,

 
•  A number of significant audit adjustments were made to the general ledger, which collectively could have a material

effect on the financial statements.
 

•  The number of revisions to our financial statements made by our auditor’s review of the financial statements indicated
that our controls over disclosures were not effective.

 
Remediation
 
As part of our ongoing remedial efforts, we have and will continue to, among other things:
 

(1)  Expand our accounting policy and controls organization by creating and filling new positions with qualified accounting and
finance personnel;

 
(2)  Increase our efforts to educate both our existing and expanded accounting policy and control organization on the

application of the internal control structure;
 

(3)  Emphasize with management the importance of our internal control structure;
 

(4)  Seek outside consulting services where our existing accounting policy and control organization believes the complexity of
the existing exceeds our internal capabilities.

 
We believe that the foregoing actions have improved and will continue to improve our internal control over financial reporting, as well
as our disclosure controls and procedures. We intend to perform such procedures and commit such resources as necessary to
continue to allow us to overcome or mitigate these material weaknesses such that we can make timely and accurate quarterly and
annual financial filings until such time as those material weaknesses are fully addressed and remediated.
 
ITEM 9B.  OTHER INFORMATION
 
None.
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PART III
 

ITEM 10.  DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
 
Information about the Directors
 
Set forth below is information regarding our directors:
 
Name  Age  Position  Director Since

Eric A. McAfee  50  Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board  2006
Fran Barton (1)  65  Director  2012
John R. Block  77  Director  2008
Dr. Steven W. Hutcheson (2)  58  Director  2011
Michael Peterson (1)  50  Director  2006
Harold Sorgenti  78  Director  2007
 
(1) Mr. Peterson stepped down from the Company’s Board and Mr. Barton was appointed to the Company’s Board on August 2, 2012.
 
(2) Dr. Hutcheson was appointed to the Company’ Board in July 2011 in connection with the Company’s acquisition of Zymetis, Inc.
 
Eric A. McAfee co-founded Aemetis, Inc. in 2005 and has served as its Chairman of the Board since February 2006. Mr. McAfee was
appointed Chief Executive Officer of the Company in February 2007. Mr. McAfee has been an entrepreneur, merchant banker,
venture capitalist and farmer/dairyman for more than 20 years. Since 1995, Mr. McAfee has been the Chairman of McAfee Capital
and since 1998 has been a principal of Berg McAfee Companies, an investment company. Since 2000, Mr. McAfee has been a
principal of Cagan McAfee Capital Partners (“CMCP”) through which Mr. McAfee has founded or acquired twelve energy and
technology companies. In 2003, Mr. McAfee co-founded Pacific Ethanol, Inc. (Nasdaq PEIX), a West Coast ethanol producer and
marketer. Mr. McAfee received a B.S. in Management from Fresno State University in 1986 and served as Entrepreneur in
Residence of The Wharton Business School MBA Program in 2007. Mr. McAfee is a graduate of the Harvard Business School
Private Equity and Venture Capital Program, and is a 1993 graduate of the Stanford Graduate School of Business Executive
Program.
 
Francis Barton was appointed to the Company’s Board on August 2, 2012.  From 2008 to present, Mr. Barton served as Chief
Executive Officer in the consulting firm Barton Business Consulting LLC. Prior to this, Mr. Barton served as the Executive Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer of UTStarcom, Inc. from 2005 through 2008 and as a director from 2006 through 2008. From
2003 to 2005, Mr. Barton was Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Atmel Corporation. From 2001 to 2003, Mr.
Barton was Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Broadvision Inc. From 1998 to 2001, Mr. Barton was Senior Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer of Advanced Micro Devices, Inc. From 1996 to 1998, Mr. Barton was Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer of Amdahl Corporation. From 1974 to 1996, Mr. Barton worked at Digital Equipment Corporation, beginning his
career as a financial analyst and moving his way up through various financial roles to Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of
Digital Equipment Corporation's Personal Computer Division. Mr. Barton holds a B.S. in Interdisciplinary Studies with a concentration
in Chemical Engineering from Worcester Polytechnic Institute and an M.B.A. with a focus in finance from Northeastern University. Mr.
Barton served on the board of directors of ON Semiconductor from 2008 to 2011. Mr. Barton will also serve as the Chair of the Audit
Committee and as a member of the Governance, Compensation and Nominating Committee.  His experience as Executive Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer as well as his extensive financial background qualify him for the appointment.
 
John R. Block has served as a member of the Company’s Board of Directors since October 16, 2008.  From 1981 to 1986, Mr. Block
served as Secretary of Agriculture for the U.S. Department of Agriculture under President Ronald Reagan. He is currently an IL
farmer and a Senior Policy Advisor to Olsson Frank Weeda Terman Bode Matz PC, an organization that represents the food industry,
a position Mr. Block has held since January 2005. From January 2002 until January 2005, he served as Executive Vice President at
the Food Marketing Institute, an organization representing food retailers and wholesalers. From February 1986 until January 2002,
Mr. Block served as President of Food Distributors International. Mr. Block is currently a member of the board of directors of Digital
Angel Corporation and Metamorphix, Inc.  During the past five years, Mr. Block has served on the board of directors of Deere and
Co., Hormel Foods Corporation and Blast Energy Services, Inc. Mr. Block received his B.A. from the U.S. Military Academy.
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Dr. Steven W. Hutcheson was appointed to the Company’s Board of Directors in July 2011.  From 1984 to present, Dr. Hutcheson
served as a Professor for the University of Maryland in the Department of Molecular and Cell Biology. He also served as Founder,
Chief Executive Officer from 2006-2008 and Chief Technical Officer of Zymetis, Inc. until its acquisition by AE Biofuels on July 1,
2011.  Dr. Hutcheson received his A.B. in Biology from the University of CA Santa Cruz and his Ph.D. in Plant Physiology from the
University of CA Berkeley.  Dr. Hutcheson will also serve as a member of the Governance, Compensation and Nominating
Committee.
 
Michael Peterson served as a member of the Company’s Board of Directors from February 2006 until August 2, 2012. Mr. Peterson
has worked in the securities industry in various capacities for approximately 19 years. From 1989 to 2000, he was employed by
Goldman Sachs & Co. including as a vice president with responsibility for a team of professionals that advised and managed over $7
billion in assets for high net worth individuals and institutions. Mr. Peterson joined Merrill Lynch in 2001 to form and help launch its
Private Investment Group and was with Merrill Lynch until July 2004. From July 2004 until January 2005, Mr. Peterson was a self-
employed financial consultant. In January 2005, Mr. Peterson joined American Institutional Partners, L.L.C. as a managing partner.
On December 31, 2005, Mr. Peterson founded his own investment firm, Pascal Management LLC. Mr. Peterson received a B.S. in
Computer Science and Statistics from Brigham Young University in 1985 and an M.B.A. from the Marriott School of Management at
Brigham Young University in 1989.  Mr. Peterson is currently the Executive Vice President and CFO of Pedevco Corp.
 
Harold Sorgenti was appointed to the Company’s Board of Directors in November 2007. Since 1998, Mr. Sorgenti has been the
principal of Sorgenti Investment Partners, a company engaged in pursuing chemical investment opportunities. Sorgenti Investment
Partners acquired the French ethanol producer Societè d'Ethanol de Synthëse (SODES) in partnership with Donaldson, Lufkin &
Jenrette in 1998. Prior to forming Sorgenti Investment Partners, Mr. Sorgenti served a distinguished career that included the
presidency of ARCO Chemical Company, including leadership of the 1987 initial public offering of the company. Mr. Sorgenti is also
the founder of Freedom Chemical Company. Mr. Sorgenti is a former member of the board of directors of Provident Mutual Life
Insurance Co. and Crown Cork & Seal. Mr. Sorgenti received his B.S. in Chemical Engineering from City College of New York in
1956 and his M.S. from Ohio State University in 1959. Mr. Sorgenti is the recipient of honorary degrees from Villanova, St. Joseph's,
Ohio State, and Drexel Universities.
 
The Board of Directors held eleven (11) meetings during fiscal year 2010 and twelve (12) meetings during fiscal year 2011. Each of
the foregoing directors attended at least 75% of the aggregate number of meetings of our Board of Directors and the committees on
which each director served during fiscal year 2010 and was eligible to attend.  No family relationship exists between any of the
directors or executive officers of the Company.
 
Information about the Executive Officers
 
Set forth below is information regarding our executive officers (other than Eric A. McAfee):
 
Name  Age  Position

Andrew B. Foster  47  Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer
Sanjeev Gupta  53  Executive Vice President and Managing Director, Chairman and President

(Universal Biofuels Private, Ltd.)
Todd Waltz  51  Chief Financial Officer
 
Eric A. McAfee (50) Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board (See Information About the Directors above).
 
Andrew B. Foster (47) joined American Ethanol in March 2006 and currently serves as Executive Vice President of Aemetis, Inc.
and President and Chief Operating Officer of Aemetis Advanced Fuels, Inc. a wholly owned subsidiary.  Prior to joining the Company,
Mr. Foster served as Vice President of Corporate Marketing for Marimba, Inc., an enterprise software company, which was acquired
by BMC Software in July 2004. From July 2004 until April 2005, Mr. Foster served as Vice President of Corporate Marketing for the
Marimba product line at BMC. In April 2005, Mr. Foster was appointed Director of Worldwide Public Relations for BMC and served in
that capacity until December 2005. From May 2000 until March 2003, Mr. Foster served as Director of Corporate Marketing for
eSilicon Corporation, a fabless semiconductor company. Mr. Foster also served as Associate Director of Political Affairs at the White
House from 1989 to 1992, and Deputy Chief of Staff to Illinois Governor Jim Edgar from 1995 to 1998. Mr. Foster holds a B.A. in
Political Science from Marquette University in Milwaukee, Wisconsin.
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Sanjeev Gupta (53) joined Aemetis, Inc. in September 2007 as an executive with the Company’s marketing subsidiary, Biofuels
Marketing, Inc. and managed the completion of construction of the Company’s biodiesel production facility in Kakinada, India. Mr.
Gupta has served as the Managing Director, Chairman and President of the Company’s wholly-owned Indian biodiesel subsidiary,
Universal Biofuels Private, Ltd. (“UBPL”) since 2009.
 
Todd A. Waltz (51) was appointed Chief Financial Officer on March 12, 2010.  From 2007 until March 12, 2010, Mr. Waltz served as
the Company’s Corporate Controller.  From 1994 to 2007, Mr. Waltz served with increasing responsibility in a variety of senior
financial management and business partner roles with Apple, Inc. in Cupertino, CA.  Prior to Apple, Mr. Waltz worked with Ernst &
Young.  Mr. Waltz also serves as the Chief Executive Officer and sole Board member of Vision Global Solutions, Inc. (OTC:VIGS). Mr.
Waltz is a Certified Public Accountant (inactive) in the state of California.  Mr. Waltz received his Bachelors Degree from Mount Union
College in 1983, his MBA from Santa Clara University in 1997 and his Masters of Science in Taxation from San Jose State University
in 2008.
 

SECTION 16(a) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE
 
Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, requires our executive officers and directors and persons who
own more than 10% of a registered class of our equity securities to file with the Securities and Exchange Commission initial
statements of beneficial ownership, reports of changes in ownership and annual reports concerning their ownership of our common
stock and other equity securities, on Forms 3, 4 and 5 respectively. Executive officers, directors and greater than 10% shareholders
are required by the Securities and Exchange Commission regulations to furnish our Company with copies of all Section 16(a) reports
they file. Based upon a review of those forms and representations regarding the need for filing Forms 5, we believe during the year
ended December 31, 2010 each of the following officers and directors filed a Form 5 related to one late Form 4 transaction reflecting
the grant to each of these officers and directors of options and warrants on December 15, 2010: Andrew Foster, Sanjeev Gupta, Todd
Waltz, John Block, Michael Peterson and Harold Sorgenti.  In addition, one 10% stockholder filed a Form 4 and Schedule 13G on
September 19, 2012, which included transactions from 2008, 2010 and 2011.
 
Except as set forth above, we believe that, during fiscal 2010 and 2011, our directors, executive officers and 10% stockholders
complied with all Section 16(a) filing requirements. In making this statement, we have relied upon examination of the copies of Forms
3, 4 and 5, and amendments thereto, provided to Aemetis, Inc. and the written representations of its directors and executive officers.
 
Committees of the Board of Directors
 
The Board of Directors has the following standing committees: (1) Audit and (2) Governance, Compensation and Nominating. The
Board of Directors has adopted a written charter for each of these committees, copies of which can be found in the Investor Relations
section of our website at www.aemetis.com. The Board of Directors has determined that all members of each committee of the Board
of Directors are independent under the applicable rules and regulations of NASDAQ and the SEC, as currently in effect.
 
The following chart details the current membership of each committee:
 

Name of Director  Audit   

Governance,
Compensation

and
Nominating  

Michael Peterson*   C    M  
Harold Sorgenti   M    C  
Francis Barton*   C    M  
John R. Block*   M      
Dr. Hutcheson*       M  
M = Member         
C = Chair         

 
*Mr. Peterson stepped down from the Company’s Board and Board Committees and Mr. Barton was appointed to the Company’s
Board and Audit Committees on August 2, 2012.
*Mr. Block was appointed to the Audit Committee on July 14, 2011.
*Dr. Hutcheson was appointed to the Governance, Compensation and Nominating Committee on July 14, 2011.
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Audit Committee.
 
The Audit Committee (i) oversees our accounting, financial reporting and audit processes; (ii) appoints, determines the compensation
of, and oversees, the independent auditors; (iii) pre-approves audit and non-audit services provided by the independent auditors; (iv)
reviews the results and scope of audit and other services provided by the independent auditors; (v) reviews the accounting principles
and practices and procedures used in preparing our financial statements; and (vi) reviews our internal controls.
 
The Audit Committee works closely with management and our independent auditors. The Audit Committee also meets with our
independent auditors without members of management present, on a quarterly basis, following completion of our auditors’ quarterly
reviews and annual audit and prior to our earnings announcements, to review the results of their work. The Audit Committee also
meets with our independent auditors to approve the annual scope and fees for the audit services to be performed.
 
Each of the Audit Committee members is an independent director within the meaning set forth in the rules of the SEC, as currently in
effect. In addition, the Board of Directors has determined that Mr. Barton is an “audit committee financial expert” as defined by SEC
rules, as currently in effect.
 
A copy of the Audit Committee’s written charter is available in the Investor Relations section of our website at
www.aemetis.com.  The Audit Committee held five (5) meetings during fiscal year 2010, and zero (0) meetings during fiscal year
2011.  Each director who is a member of the Audit Committee attended at least 75% of the aggregate number of meetings of the Audit
Committee during fiscal year 2010 and 2011.
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT
 
The following is the report of the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors. The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed our
audited financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010 and 2011 with our management. In addition, the Audit
Committee has discussed with, our independent auditors, the matters required to be discussed by Statement on Auditing Standards
No. 61, as amended (Communications with Audit Committee). The Audit Committee also has received the written disclosures and the
letter from as required by the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board Rule 3526 “Communications with Audit Committees
Concerning Independence” and the Audit Committee has discussed the independence of that firm.
 
Based on the Audit Committee’s review of the matters noted above and its discussions with our independent auditors and our
management, the Audit Committee recommended to the Board of Directors that the financial statements be included in our Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010 and 2011.
 
Respectfully submitted by:
 
Francis Barton (Chair)
Harold Sorgenti
John R. Block
 
Governance, Compensation and Nominating Committee
 
The Governance, Compensation and Nominating Committee (i) reviews and approves corporate goals and objectives relevant to the
CEO’s compensation, evaluates the CEO’s performance relative to goals and objectives and sets the CEO’s compensation annually;
(ii) makes recommendations annually to the Board of Directors with respect to non-CEO compensation; (iii) considers and periodically
reports on matters relating to the identification, selection and qualification of the Board of Directors and candidates nominated to the
Board of Directors and its committees; (iv) develops and recommends governance principles applicable to the Company; (v) oversees
the evaluation of the Board of Directors and management from a corporate governance perspective; and (vi) oversees, considers and
approves related party transactions.
 
During 2010 and 2011 Michael Peterson and Harold Sorgenti served as members of the Governance, Compensation and Nominating
Committee with Mr. Sorgenti serving as Chairman.  In August 2012, Mr. Peterson stepped down from the Committee and Mr. Francis
Barton was appointed in his place.  Each current member of the Governance, Compensation and Nominating Committee is an
independent director within the meaning set forth in the rules of the Nasdaq Stock Market, as currently in effect.
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The Governance, Compensation and Nominating Committee considers properly submitted stockholder recommendations for
candidates for membership on the Board of Directors as described below under “Identification and Evaluation of Nominees for
Directors.” In evaluating such recommendations, the Governance, Compensation and Nominating Committee seeks to achieve a
balance of knowledge, experience and capability on the Board of Directors and to address the membership criteria set forth under
“Director Qualifications.” Any stockholder recommendations proposed for consideration by the Governance, Compensation and
Nominating Committee should include the candidate’s name and qualifications for membership on the Board of Directors and should
be addressed to the attention of our Corporate Secretary — Re: stockholder director recommendation.
 
Director Qualifications.  The Governance, Compensation and Nominating Committee does not have any specific, minimum
qualifications that must be met by a Governance, Compensation and Nominating Committee-recommended nominee, but uses a
variety of criteria to evaluate the qualifications and skills necessary for members of our Board of Directors. Under these criteria,
members of the Board of Directors should have the highest professional and personal ethics and values. A director should have broad
experience at the policy-making level in business, government, education, technology or public interest. A director should be
committed to enhancing stockholder value and should have sufficient time to carry out their duties, and to provide insight and
practical wisdom based on their past experience. A director’s service on other boards of public companies should be limited to a
number that permits them, given their individual circumstances, to perform their director duties responsibly. Each director must
represent the interests of Aemetis stockholders.
 
In addition to the foregoing, prior to any meeting of stockholders at which directors will be elected, as a condition to re-nomination,
incumbent directors will be required to submit a resignation of their directorships in writing to the Chairman of the Governance,
Compensation and Nominating Committee of the Board. The resignation will become effective only if the director fails to receive a
sufficient number of votes for re-election at the meeting of stockholders, as described in the Company’s bylaws as recently amended
and the Board accepts the resignation.
 
Identification and Evaluation of Nominees for Directors.  The Governance, Compensation and Nominating Committee utilize a variety
of methods for identifying and evaluating nominees for director. The Governance, Compensation and Nominating Committee regularly
assess the appropriate size of the Board of Directors, and whether any vacancies on the Board of Directors are expected due to
retirement or otherwise. In the event that vacancies are anticipated, or otherwise arise, the Governance, Compensation and
Nominating Committee considers various potential candidates for director. Candidates may come to the attention of the Governance,
Compensation and Nominating Committee through current members of the Board of Directors, professional search firms,
stockholders or other persons. These candidates are evaluated at regular or special meetings of the Governance, Compensation and
Nominating Committee, and may be considered at any point during the year. The Governance, Compensation and Nominating
Committee consider properly submitted stockholder recommendations for candidates for the Board of Directors. In evaluating such
recommendations, the Governance, Compensation and Nominating Committee uses the qualifications standards discussed above
and seeks to achieve a balance of knowledge, experience and capability on the Board of Directors.
 
A copy of the Committee’s written charter is available in the Investor Relations section of our website at www.aemetis.com.
 
In 2010, the Governance, Compensation and Nominating Committee held five (5) meetings, one (1) of which was a regularly
scheduled meeting and four (4) of which were special meetings. Each director who is a member of the Governance, Compensation
and Nominating Committee attended at least 75% of the aggregate number of meetings of the Committee during fiscal year 2010. In
2011, the Governance, Compensation and Nominating Committee held one regular meeting, which was attended by all Committee
members.
 
Code of Business Conduct and Ethics
 
The Board of Directors has adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, which applies to our Board of Directors and all of our
employees, including our Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and any other principal financial officer, Controller and any
other principal accounting officer, and any other person performing similar functions. The Code of Business Conduct and Ethics is
posted on our website at www.aemetis.com in the Governance section of our investor relations webpage. Aemetis will disclose any
amendment to the Code of Ethics or waiver of a provision of the Code of Ethics that applies to the Company’s Chief Executive Officer,
Chief Financial Officer and any other principal financial officer, Controller and any other principal accounting officer, and any other
person performing similar functions and relates to certain elements of the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, including the name
of the officer to whom the waiver was granted, on our website at www.aemetis.com, on our investor relations webpage.
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Legal Proceedings
 
Mr. McAfee is a founding shareholder or principal investor in 12 publicly traded companies and approximately 20 private companies.
Mr. McAfee served as the vice chairman of the Board of Directors of Verdisys, Inc., a publicly traded company, in 2003. To resolve
potential litigation and to provide resolution of any issues, on July 28, 2006 Mr. McAfee and the SEC entered into a settlement
agreement under which Mr. McAfee neither admitted nor denied causing any action by Verdisys, Inc. to fail to comply with Section
10(b) of the Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5 and agreed to a payment of $25,000.
 
Annual Meeting Attendance
 
We do not have a formal policy regarding attendance by members of the Board of Directors at our annual meetings of stockholders
although directors are encouraged to attend annual meetings of Aemetis’ stockholders.
 
Communications with the Board of Directors
 
Although we do not have a formal policy regarding communications with the Board of Directors, stockholders may communicate with
the Board of Directors by submitting an email to investors@aemetis.com or by writing to us at Aemetis, Inc., Attention: Investor
Relations, 20400 Stevens Creek Blvd., Suite 700, Cupertino, CA 95014. Stockholders who would like their submission directed to a
member of the Board of Directors may so specify. The General Counsel and Director of Investor Relations will review all
communications. All appropriate business-related communications as reasonably determined by the General Counsel or Director of
Investor Relations will be forwarded to the Board of Directors or, if applicable, to the individual director.
 
Code of Business Conduct and Ethics Policy
 
Our board of directors adopted a code of ethics that applies to all of our directors, officers and employees, including our principal
executive officer, principal financial officer, and principal accounting officer. The code of ethics addresses, among other things,
honesty and ethical conduct, conflicts of interest, compliance with laws, regulations and policies, including disclosure requirements
under the federal securities laws, confidentiality, trading on inside information, and reporting of violations of the code.
 
Insider Trading Policy
 
Our board of directors adopted an insider trading policy that applies to all of its directors, officers and employees including our
principal executive officer, principal financial officer, and principal accounting officer that applies to all trading except the exercise of
stock options for cash under our stock option plan and the purchase of shares under an employee stock purchase plan, should we
adopt such a plan. The insider trading policy addresses trading on material nonpublic information, tipping, confidentiality, 10b5-1
programs, disciplinary actions, trading windows, pre-clearance of trades, prohibition against short swing profits and individual
responsibilities under the policy.
 
Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation
 
During fiscal year 2010, Messrs. Sorgenti and Peterson served as members of the Governance, Compensation and Nominating
Committee.  During fiscal year 2011, Messrs. Sorgenti, Peterson and Hutcheson served as members.  No member of the Committee
was an officer or employee of the Company. In addition, no member of the Committee or executive officer of the Company served as
a member of the Board of Directors or Compensation Committee of any entity that has an executive officer serving as a member of
our Board of Directors or Governance, Compensation and Nominating Committee.
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ITEM 11.  EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
 

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
 
The following table sets forth summary information concerning compensation paid or accrued for services rendered to the Company
in all capacities for the fiscal years 2010 and 2011 to (i) the Company’s Chief Executive Officer, and (ii) the Company’s other two most
highly compensated executive officers who were serving as executive officers at the end of fiscal year 2011.
 

Summary Compensation Table
 

Name and Principal Position   Year   
Salary

$   

Option/
Warrant

Awards(1)

$   

Total
Compensation

$  
              
Eric A. McAfee, Chief Executive Officer   2011    140,000   -   140,000 
   2010    120,000   -   120,000 
                 
Andrew B. Foster, Executive Vice President   2011    180,000   -   180,000 
   2010    180,000   9,050   189,050 
                 
Sanjeev Gupta, Executive Vice President   2011    180,000   -   180,000 
   2010    180,000   28,567   208,567 
                 
Todd A. Waltz, Chief Financial Officer   2011    180,000   -   180,000 
   2010    173,750   77,182   250,932 
 

(1)  These amounts reflect the value determined by the Company for accounting purposes for these awards with respect to the
current fiscal year and do not reflect whether the recipient has actually realized a financial benefit from the awards (such as by
exercising stock options). This column represents the aggregate grant date fair value of stock options and warrants granted
during fiscal year 2010 and 2011 to each of the named executive officers, in accordance with ASC Topic 718 Compensation.
Pursuant to SEC rules, the amounts shown exclude the impact of estimated forfeitures related to service-based vesting
conditions.
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Outstanding Equity Awards at 2011 Fiscal Year End
 
The following table shows all outstanding equity awards held by the named executive officers at the end of fiscal year 2011:
 
     Option/Warrant Awards  

Name  
Award
Date   

No. of
Securities
underlying

unexercised
options (#)
exercisable   

No. of
securities
underlying

unexercised
options (#)

unexercisable   

Equity incentive
plan awards:
# of securities

underlying
unexercised

unearned options
(#)   

Option
exercise

price
$ (  )   

Option
expiration

date  
Andrew B. Foster  12/09/10    2,946(2)          0.12  12/08/15 
  12/15/10    41,163(4)          0.13  12/15/15 
  3/17/10    29,167(2)          0.21  3/17/15 
  5/21/09    440,000(3)           0.16  5/20/14 
  7/17/07    300,000(1)           3.00  7/16/17 
  11/26/07    90,000(2)           3.00  11/26/12 
                         
Sanjeev Gupta  12/09/10    2,964(2)          0.12  12/08/15 
  12/15/10    164,650(4)          0.13  12/15/15 
  3/17/10    58,333(2)          0.21  3/17/15 
  5/21/09    291,667(3)           0.16  5/20/14 
  11/26/07    45,000(1)           3.00  11/26/12 
  6/17/08    20,000(1)           3.70  6/16/13 
                         
Todd A. Waltz  12/09/10    17,675(2)          0.12  12/08/15 
  12/15/10    246,976(4)          0.13  12/15/15 
  3/17/10    475,000(3)          0.21  3/17/15 
  5/21/09    201,667(3)           0.16  5/20/14 
  11/26/07    90,000(1)           3.00  11/26/12 
  6/17/08    20,000(1)           3.70  6/16/13 

 
(1)   Fifty percent (50%) of the shares subject to the option were exercisable on the date of grant and twenty-five percent

(25%) of the shares subject to the option vest on the anniversary of the date of grant.
(2)   One-twelfth (1/12) of the shares subject to the option vest every three months from the date of grant.
(3)   Fifty percent (50%) of the shares subject to the option were exercisable on the date of grant and one-twenty-fourth

(1/24) of the shares subject to the option vest every three months from the date of grant.
(4)   Fully vested on the date of grant.
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EMPLOYMENT CONTRACTS AND TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT AND CHANGE-IN-CONTROL ARRANGEMENTS
 

We are party to the following agreements with our named executive officers:
 
Eric A. McAfee
 
Effective September 1, 2011, the Company entered into a three year Employment Agreement with Mr. Eric A. McAfee in connection
with his continuing responsibilities as Chief Executive Officer providing compensation of $180,000 per year. In addition, Mr. McAfee is
entitled to an annual cash bonus in an amount determined by the Board of Directors based upon attainment of certain performance
milestones. The Company will pay up to six months of severance and health benefits in the event Mr. McAfee is terminated without
“cause” or “constructively terminated” (as defined in the Employment Agreement”).
 
Andrew B. Foster
 
In May 2007, the Company entered into an Executive Employment Contract with Mr. Foster to serve as the Company’s Executive
Vice President and Chief Operating Officer. Under Mr. Foster’s employment contract, Mr. Foster receives an annual salary of
$180,000 and a discretionary annual bonus of up to $50,000. The initial term of the Executive Employment Contract was for three
years with automatic one-year renewals, currently October 18, 2013, unless terminated by either party on sixty days notice prior to the
end of the term.
 
If, prior to a Change in Control (as defined in the agreement), Mr. Foster is terminated other than for Cause or as a result of his death
or total disability or is Constructively Terminated (as defined in the agreement), then provided he signs a release of claims, Mr. Foster
is entitled to severance benefits of (i) cash payments equal to his monthly base salary for a period of three months, and (ii) company-
paid health, dental, and vision insurance coverage for him and his dependents until the earlier of three (3) months or until such time
as Mr. Foster is covered under another employer’s group policy for such benefits. If, following a Change of Control, Mr. Foster is
terminated other than for Cause or as a result of his death or total disability or is Constructively Terminated, then provided he signs a
release of claims, in addition to the severance benefits provided above, all of his then unvested restricted stock or stock options shall
be immediately vested.
 
Sanjeev Gupta
 
In September 2007, the Company entered into an Executive Employment Contract with Mr. Gupta to serve as the Company’s
Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer. Under Mr. Gupta’s employment contract, Mr. Gupta receives an annual salary
of $180,000 and a discretionary annual bonus of up to $50,000.  The initial term of the Executive Employment Contract was for three
years with automatic one-year renewals, currently September 5, 2013, unless terminated by either party on sixty days notice prior to
the end of the term.
 
If, prior to a Change in Control (as defined in the agreement), Mr. Gupta is terminated other than for Cause or as a result of his death
or total disability or is Constructively Terminated (as defined in the agreement), then provided he signs a release of claims, Mr. Gupta
is entitled to severance benefits of (i) cash payments equal to his monthly base salary for a period of three months, and (ii) company-
paid health, dental, and vision insurance coverage for him and his dependents until the earlier of three (3) months or until such time
as Mr. Gupta is covered under another employer’s group policy for such benefits. If, following a Change of Control, Mr. Gupta is
terminated other than for Cause or as a result of his death or total disability or is Constructively Terminated, then provided he signs a
release of claims, in addition to the severance benefits provided above, all of his then unvested restricted stock or stock options shall
be immediately vested.
 
Todd A. Waltz
 
In March 2010, the Company entered into an Executive Employment Contract with Mr. Waltz to serve as the Company’s Chief
Financial Officer. Under Mr. Waltz’ employment contract, Mr. Waltz receives an annual salary of $180,000 and a discretionary annual
bonus of up to $50,000. The initial term of the Executive Employment Contract was for three years with automatic one-year renewals,
currently March 15, 2013, unless terminated by either party on sixty days’ notice prior to the end of the term.
 
If, prior to a Change in Control (as defined in the agreement), Mr. Waltz is terminated other than for Cause or as a result of his death
or total disability or is Constructively Terminated (as defined in the agreement), then provided he signs a release of claims, Mr. Waltz
is entitled to severance benefits of (i) cash payments equal to his monthly base salary for a period of three months, and (ii) company-
paid health, dental, and vision insurance coverage for him and his dependents until the earlier of three (3) months or until such time
as Mr. Waltz is covered under another employer’s group policy for such benefits. If, following a Change of Control, Mr. Waltz is
terminated other than for Cause or as a result of his death or total disability or is Constructively Terminated, then provided he signs a
release of claims, in addition to the severance benefits provided above, all of his then unvested restricted stock or stock options shall
be immediately vested.
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Director Compensation
 
The following table provides information regarding all compensation awarded to, earned by or paid to each person who served as a
director of Aemetis, Inc. for some portion or all of 2010 and 2011. Other than as set forth in the table and described more fully below,
Aemetis, Inc. did not pay any fees, made any equity or non-equity awards, or paid any other compensation, to its non-employee
directors. All compensation paid to its employee directors is set forth in the tables summarizing executive officer compensation below.
 

Name  

Fees Earned
or Paid in
Cash ($)   

Option
Awards (1)

($)   
Total

($)  
          

2010          
Michael Peterson   110,000   18,097   128,097 
Harold Sorgenti   85,000   18,097   103,097 
John R. Block   77,750   18,097   95,847 
             

2011             
Michael Peterson   107,750   –   107,750 
Harold Sorgenti   82,750   –   82,750 
John R. Block   58,500   –   58,500 
Dr. Steven Hutcheson   37,500   –   37,500 

 
(1)  The amounts in this column represent the aggregate grant date fair value under ASC Topic 718. The

assumptions made when calculating the amounts in this table are found in Note 11 (Stock Based
Compensation) of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Part II, Item 8 of this Form 10-K .

 
In 2007, the Board of Directors of the Company adopted a director compensation policy pursuant to which each non-employee
director is paid an annual cash retainer of $75,000 and a cash payment of $250 per Board or committee meeting attended
telephonically and a cash payment of $500 per Board or committee meeting attended in person. In addition, each non-employee
director is initially granted an option exercisable for 100,000 shares of the Company’s common stock, which vests quarterly over two
years subject to continuing services to the Company.  In addition, an annual cash retainer of $10,000 is paid to the chairman of the
Governance, Compensation and Nominating Committee and an annual cash retainer of $20,000 is paid to the chairman of the Audit
Committee.
 
ITEM 12.  SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS
 
The following table sets forth information as of October 25, 2012, regarding the beneficial ownership of each class of our voting stock,
including (a) each stockholder who is known by the Company to own beneficially in excess of 5% of each class of our voting stock;
(b) each director; (c) the Company’s named executive officers; and (d) the Company’s named executive officers and directors as a
group. Except as otherwise indicated, all persons listed below have (i) sole voting power and investment power with respect to their
shares of stock, except to the extent that authority is shared by spouses under applicable law, and (ii) record and beneficial ownership
with respect to their shares of stock. The percentage of beneficial ownership of common stock is based upon 170,548,507 shares of
common stock outstanding as of October 25, 2012. The percentage of beneficial ownership of Series B preferred stock is based upon
3,097,725 shares of Series B preferred stock outstanding as of October 25, 2012. Unless otherwise identified, the address of the
directors and officers of the Company is 20400 Stevens Creek Blvd., Suite 700, Cupertino, CA 95014.
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  Common Stock   Series B Preferred Stock  

  

Amount and
Nature of
Beneficial
Ownership   

Percentage
of Class   

Beneficial
Ownership   

Percentage
of Class  

Officers & Directors             
Eric A. McAfee (1)   27,885,000   16.35%      
John R. Block (2)   485,775   *%      
Dr. Steven Hutcheson (3)   2,057,570   1.21%      
Harold Sorgenti (4)   485,775   *%      
Andrew Foster (5)   1,012,887   *%      
Sanjeev Gupta (6)   1,079,884   *%      
Todd A. Waltz (7)   2,187,325   1.28%      
Francis Barton   100,000   -       
All officers and directors as a group (8 persons)   35,294,216   20.69%      
               
5% or more Holders               
               
Third Eye Capital (9)   24,921,865   14.61%      
161 Bay Street, Suite 3930               
Toronto, Ontario, M5J 2S1               
               
Laird Cagan (8)   22,014,496   12.91%      
20400 Stevens Creek Blvd., Suite 700               
Cupertino, CA 95014               
               
Michael Orsak   2,178,333   1.28%   166,667   5.38%
1125 San Mateo Drive,                 
Menlo Park, California 94025                 
                 
David J. Lies   1,606,587   0.94%   200,000   6.46%
1210 Sheridan Road                 
Wilmette, Illinois 60091                 
                 
Michael C Brown Trust dated June 30, 2000   481,676   0.28%   599,999   19.37%
34 Meadowview Drive                 
Northfield, Illinois 60093                 
                 
Mahesh Pawani   535,358   0.31%   400,000   12.91%
Villa No. 6, Street 29, Community 317, Al Mankhool,                 
Dubai, United Arab Emirates                 
                 
Frederick WB Vogel   440,678   0.26%   408,332   13.18%
1660 N. La Salle Drive, Apt 2411                 
Chicago, Illinois 60614                 
                 
Fred Mancheski   -   -   300,000   9.68%
1060 Vegas Valley Dr                 
Las Vegas, NV  89109                 
                 
Crestview Capital, LLC   -   -   166,667   5.38%
95 Revere Dr., Ste A                 
Northbrook, Illinois 60062                 
*Less than 1%                 
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(1) Includes (i) 27,885,000 shares held by McAfee Capital, LLC, a company owned by Mr. McAfee.
(2) Includes 403,451shares issuable pursuant to options exercisable within 60 days of October 25, 2012, and 82,324 common stock

warrants fully exercisable.
(3)  Includes 1,957,570 shares held by Mr. Hutcheson and 100,000 shares issuable to Mr. Hutcheson pursuant to fully vested

options.
(4)  Includes 403,451 shares issuable pursuant to options exercisable within 60 days of October 25, 2012, and 82,324 common stock

warrants fully exercisable.
(5) Includes (i) 50,000 shares held by the Andrew B. Foster and Catherine H. Foster Trust;  (ii) 921,724 shares issuable pursuant to

options exercisable within 60 days of October 25, 2012, and (iii) 41,163 fully exercisable common stock warrants.
(6) Includes 715,234 shares issuable pursuant to options exercisable within 60 days of October 25, 2012, and 164,650 fully

exercisable common stock warrants.
(7) Includes 940,349 shares issuable pursuant to options exercisable within 60 days of October 25, 2012 and 246,976 fully

exercisable common stock warrants.
(8) Includes (i) 18,366,760 shares held by Cagan Capital, LLC, a company owned by Mr. Cagan; (ii) 400,000 shares owned by the

KRC Trust and 400,000 owned by the KQC Trust, trusts for Mr. Cagan's daughters for which Mr. Cagan is trustee and (iii)
2,847,736 shares held by Mr. Cagan individually.

(9) Includes 17,227,750 shares held by RBC Dexia Investor Services Trust, held in Trust for Account 110-455-262 and Sprott Private
Credit Fund, LP, a corporation residing in Canada. Third Eye Capital beneficially owns 7,310,782 common shares and 383,333
common stock warrants fully exercisable.

 
Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans
 
The Company’s shareholders approved the Company’s Amended and Restated 2007 Stock Plan at the Company’s 2010 Annual
Shareholders Meeting.  On December 15, 2010, the Company issued compensatory warrants to officers, directors and
employees.  The warrants are exercisable at $0.13 per share and expire on December 15, 2015.  On July 1, 2011, the Company
acquired the Zymetis 2006 Stock Plan pursuant to the acquisition of Zymetis, Inc. and gave Zymetis option holders the right to convert
shares into Aemetis common stock at the same terms as the Zymetis plan.The following table provides information about our
Amended and Restated 2007 Stock Plan and the compensatory warrants as of December 31, 2011:
 

Plan category  

Number of
securities

to be issued
upon exercise
of outstanding

options
 (a)   

Weighted
average

exercise price
of outstanding

options
 (b)   

Number of
securities
remaining

available for
future

issuance
under equity

compensation
plans

 (excluding
securities

reflected in
column
(a)) (c)  

Equity compensation plans approved by security holders (1)   6,803,701  $ 0.94   1,656,148(2)

Equity in the form of warrants issued to officers, directors and employees not
approved by security holders   950,856   0.13   - 
 
(1)  Shares from the 2006 Stock Option Plan and the Amended and Restated 2007 Stock Option Plan.
(2)  Amount consists of shares available for future issuance under the 2006 and 2007 Plan.
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ITEM 13.  CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE
 
The following are transactions entered into in fiscal 2010 and 2011 and any currently proposed transaction, (i) in which the registrant
was or is to be a participant, (ii) the amount involved exceeds the lesser of $120,000 or one percent of the average of the registrant’s
company's total assets at year end for the last two completed fiscal years, and (iii) in which any director, executive officer, five percent
stockholder or any member of the immediate family of any of the foregoing persons had or will have a direct or indirect material
interest.
 
On August 17, 2009, we entered into a $5 million secured revolving line of credit with Laird Cagan, a former member of the
Company’s board of directors and a significant stockholder. The credit facility accrues interest at 10% per annum and was due and
payable on July 1, 2011.  At December 31, 2010, $4,854,992 in principal, plus accrued interest of $810,728 and extension fee of
$278,963 was outstanding under this credit facility. On September 30, 2011, Laird Cagan with co-investors exercised theirright to
convert $1,452,818 in outstanding interest and fees to stock at a rate of 5 cents per share resulting in the Company issuing
29,056,356 shares of common stock in exchange for the payment. In October 2011, in connection with the extension of the line, the
Company implemented a new conversion feature based on the average closing price on the previous twenty-two days of trading. At
October 16, 2012, the remaining principal, interest and fees due under the Credit Agreement have a balance of $5,538,696.  See
Note 15. Subsequent Events, of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Part II, Item 8 of this Form 10-K.
 
On January 30, 2010, AE Advanced Fuels Keyes, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of Aemetis, Inc., borrowed $1.6 million from Mr.
Cagan pursuant to an unsecured promissory note.  The note bears no interest.  In consideration for this loan, we agreed to issue
600,000 shares of common stock to Mr. Cagan.  The note was redeemed in March 2010.
 
ITEM 14.  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES
 
Auditor Fees and Services in Our 2011 and 2010 Fiscal Years
 
During fiscal 2010 our registered independent public accounting firm was BDO Seidman, LLP through the third quarter of 2010. Our
relationship with BDO Seidman, LLP was terminated on June 23, 2011.  The fees billed by BDO Seidman, LLP in 2010 and 2011
were as follows:
 

  2011   2010  
Audit Fees  $ 52,500  $ 163,925 
Audit-Related Fees   ––   –– 
Total Audit and Audit-Related Fees   52,500   163,925 
Tax Fees   2,747   17,747 
All Other Fees   ––   –– 
         
Total  $ 55,247  $ 181,672 

 
Audit Fees consist of fees billed for professional services rendered for the audit of the Company's consolidated annual financial
statements, and review of the interim consolidated financial statements included in quarterly reports and services that are normally
provided by BDO Seidman, LLP in connection with statutory and regulatory filings or engagements.
 
Tax Fees include tax compliance, tax advice and tax planning services. These services related to the preparation of various state and
federal tax returns and review of Section 409A compliance.
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McGladrey LLP was appointed as our registered independent public accountant on May 21, 2012.  The fees billed by McGladrey,
LLP for audits of the 2010 and 2011 financial statements are as follows:
 

  2011   2010  
Audit Fees  $ 245,000  $ 140,000 
Audit-Related Fees   35,000   20,000 
Total Audit and Audit-Related Fees   280,000   160,000 
Tax Fees   ––   –– 
All Other Fees   ––   –– 
         
Total  $ 280,000  $ 160,000 

Audit Fees consist of fees billed for professional services rendered for the audit of the Company's consolidated annual financial
statements, and review of the interim consolidated financial statements included in quarterly reports and services that are normally
provided by McGladrey LLP in connection with statutory and regulatory filings or engagements.
 
Audit-Related Fees consist of assistance provided on various accounting matters.
 
Audit Committee's Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures
 
Consistent with policies of the SEC regarding auditor independence and the Audit Committee Charter, the Audit Committee has the
responsibility for appointing, setting compensation and overseeing the work of the registered independent public accounting firm (the
“Firm”). The Audit Committee's policy is to pre-approve all audit and permissible non-audit services provided by the Firm. Pre-
approval is detailed as to the particular service or category of services and is generally subject to a specific budget. The Audit
Committee may also pre-approve particular services on a case-by-case basis. In assessing requests for services by the Firm, the
Audit Committee considers whether such services are consistent with the Firm’s independence, whether the Firm is likely to provide
the most effective and efficient service based upon their familiarity with the Company, and whether the service could enhance the
Company's ability to manage or control risk or improve audit quality.
 
In fiscal year 2011 and 2010, all fees identified above under the captions “Audit Fees,” “Audit-Related Fees,” “Tax Fees” and “All
Other Fees” that were billed by BDO Seidman, LLP and McGladrey, LLP were approved by the Audit Committee in accordance with
SEC requirements.
 
ITEM 15.  EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
 
(a) The following documents are filed as a part of this Form 10-K:
 
1. Financial Statements:
 
The following financial statements of Aemetis, Inc. are filed as a part of this Annual Report:
 

•  Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
•  Consolidated Balance Sheets
•  Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Loss
•  Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
•  Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Deficit
•  Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

 
2.  Financial Statement Schedules:
 
All schedules have been omitted as the required information is inapplicable or the information is presented in the Consolidated
Financial Statements and notes thereto under Item 8 in Part II of this Form 10-K.
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3.  Exhibits:

INDEX TO EXHIBITS
 

  Incorporated by Reference  Filed
Exhibit
No.

 Description  Form  Film No.  Exhibit  Filing Date  Herewith

3.1.1  Articles of Incorporation  10-Q  000-51354 3.1  Nov. 14,
2008

  

3.1.2  Certificate of Amendment  to Articles of Incorporation  10-Q  000-51354 3.1.1  Nov. 14,
2008

  

3.1.3  Certificate of Designation of Series B Preferred Stock  8-K  000-51354 3.2  Dec. 13,
2007

  

3.1.4  Certificate of Amendment to Articles of Incorporation  8-K  000-51354 3.3  Dec. 13,
2007

  

3.1.5  Certificate of Amendment to Articles of Incorporation  Pre14C 111136140   October 26,
2011

  

3.2.1  Bylaws  8-K  000-51354 3.4  Dec. 13,
2007

  

4.1  Specimen Common Stock Certificate  8-K  000-51354 4.1  Dec. 13,
2007

  

4.2  Specimen Series B Preferred Stock Certificate  8-K  000-51354 4.2  Dec. 13,
2007

  

4.3  Form of Common Stock Warrant  8-K  000-51354 4.3  Dec. 13,
2007

  

4.4  Form of Series B Preferred Stock Warrant  8-K  000-51354 4.4  Dec. 13,
2007

  

10.1  Amended and Restated 2007 Stock Plan  14A  000-51354   Apr. 15,
2008

  

10.2  Amended and Restated 2007 Stock Plan form of Stock Option Award
Agreement

 14A  000-51354   Apr. 15,
2008

  

10.4  Eric McAfee Executive Chairman Agreement dated January 30, 2006  8-K  000-51354 10.4  Dec. 13,
2007

  

10.7  Andrew Foster Executive Employment Agreement, dated May 22,
2007

 8-K  000-51354 10.7  Dec. 13,
2007

  

10.10  Todd Waltz Executive Employment Agreement, dated March 15, 2010  8-K  000-51354   May 20,
2009

 X

10.11  Sanjeev Gupta Executive Employment Agreement, dated September
1, 2007

 10-K  000-51354 10.11  May 20,
2009

  

10.12  Agreement of Loan for Overall Limit dated June 26, 2008 between
Universal Biofuels Pvt Limited and State Bank of India

 10-Q  000-51354 10.12  Aug. 14,
2008

  

10.14  $5 million Note and Warrant Purchase Agreement dated May 16, 2008
among Third Eye Capital Corporation, as Agent; the Purchasers; and
Aemetis, Inc., including the form of Note

 8-K  000-51354 10.1  May 21,
2008

  

10.16  Revolving Line of Credit Agreement dated August 17, 2009 between
International Biodiesel, Inc. and Laird Cagan

 10-K  000-51354 10.16  Mar. 15,
2010

  

10.17  Project Agreement dated December 1, 2009 among Cilion, Inc.,
Aemetis, Inc., AE Advanced Fuels, Inc., and AE Advanced Fuels
Keyes, Inc.

 8-K  000-51354
 

 10.1  Dec. 2, 2009  

10.18  Lease Agreement dated December 1, 2009, among Cilion Inc., AE
Advanced Fuels Keyes, Inc., and AE Advanced Fuels, Inc., a
Delaware corporation

 8-K  000-51354 10.2  Dec. 2, 2009  

10.19  Amendment No. 4 and Limited Waiver to Note and Warrant Purchase
Agreement dated December 10, 2009, between Aemetis, Inc. and
Third Eye Capital Corporation

 8-K  000-51354 10.1  Dec. 22,
2009

  

10.20  Assignment of Proceeds Agreement dated December 10, 2009,
between Aemetis, Inc. and Third Eye Capital Corporation

 8-K  000-51354 10.2  Dec. 22,
2009

  

10.21  Guaranty Agreement dated December 10, 2009, between AE
Advanced Fuels Keyes, Inc. and Third Eye Capital Corporation

 8-K  000-51354 10.3  Dec. 22,
2009

  

10.24  Note Purchase Agreement dated October 18, 2010, among Third Eye
Capital Corporation, the Purchasers and AE Advanced Fuels Keyes,
Inc., including the Form of Note

 8-K  000-51354 10.1  Nov. 3, 2010  
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10.25  Amendment No. 5 and Limited Waiver to Note and Warrant Purchase
Agreement dated October 18, 2010, between Aemetis, Inc. and Third
Eye Capital Corporation

 8-K  000-51354 10.1  Nov. 3, 2010  

10.27  Amendment #1 to Project Agreement dated October 29, 2010 among
Cilion, Inc., Aemetis, Inc., AE Advanced Fuels, Inc., and AE Advanced
Fuels Keyes, Inc.

 10-Q  000-51354 10.3  Dec. 1, 2010  

10.28  Amendment #1 to Lease Agreement dated October 29, 2010, among
Cilion, Inc., AE Advanced Fuels Keyes, Inc., and AE Advanced Fuels,
Inc.

 10-Q  000-51354 10.4  Dec. 1, 2010  

10.29  Subordination Agreement, dated October 29, 2010 among Laird
Cagan, Aemetis, Inc., AE Advanced Fuels Keyes, Inc., and Third Eye
Capital Corporation

 10-Q  000-51354 10.5  Dec. 1, 2010  

10.30  Ethanol Marketing Agreement, dated October 29, 2010 between AE
Advanced Fuels Keyes, Inc. and Kinergy Marketing, LLC

 10-Q  000-51354 10.6  Dec. 1, 2010  
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10.31  Zymetis, Inc. 2006 Stock Incentive Plan          X
10.32  Zymetis Inc.  Incentive  Stock Option Agreement          X
10.33  Zymetis Inc. Non-Incentive Stock Option Agreement          X
10.34  Amendment No. 1 to Note Purchase Agreement dated March 10, 2011

among Third Eye Capital Corporation, as Agent; the Purchasers; and
AE Advanced Fuels Keyes, Inc.

 8-K  000-
51354

 10.1  March 16,
2011

  

10.35  Amendment No. 2 to Project Agreement dated March 9, 2011 among
Cilion, Inc., AE Biofuels, Inc., AE Advanced Fuels, Inc., and AE
Advanced Fuels Keyes, Inc.

 8-K  000-
51354

 10.2  March 16,
2011

  

10.36  Amendment No. 2 to Lease Agreement dated March 9, 2011 among
Cilion, Inc., AE Advanced Fuels Keyes, Inc., and AE Advanced Fuels,
Inc.

 8-K  000-
51354

 10.3  March 16,
2011

  

10.37  Limited Waiver to Note and Warrant Purchase Agreement dated May
24, 2011, between Third Eye Capital Corporation, as Agent and AE
Biofuels, Inc.

 8-K  000-
51354

 10.1  June 1, 2011  

10.38  Limited Waiver and Amendment No. 2 to Note Purchase Agreement
dated June 20, 2011, among Third Eye Capital Corporation, as Agent;
the Purchasers; and AE Advanced Fuels Keyes, Inc.

 8-K  000-
51354

 10.1  June 24,
2011

  

10.39  First Amendment to Ethanol Marketing Agreement dated September 6,
2011, between AE Advanced Fuels Keyes, Inc. and Kinergy Energy
Marketing

 8-K  000-
51354

 10.1  September
8, 2011

  

10.40  Limited Waiver and Amendment No. 4 to Note Purchase Agreement
dated as of November 8, 2011 and effective as of October 18, 2011
among AE Advanced Fuels Keyes, Inc., Third Eye Capital Corporation,
and the Purchasers

 8-K  000-
51354

 10.1  November
15, 2011

  

10.41  Form of Note and Warrant Purchase Agreement  8-K  000-
51354

 10.1  January 1,
2012

  

10.42  Form of 5% Subordinated Note  8-K  000-
51354

 10.2  January 1,
2012

  

10.43  Form of Common Stock Warrant  8-K  000-
51354

 10.3  January 1,
2012

  

10.44  Limited Waiver, Consent and Amendment No. 5 to Note Purchase
Agreement dated January 31, 2012 among Aemetis Advanced Fuels
Keyes, Inc., Third Eye Capital Corporation, as agent and the
Purchasers

 8-K  000-
51354

 10.1  February 6,
2012

  

10.45  Amendment No. 6 to Note Purchase Agreement dated April 13, 2012
among Aemetis Advanced Fuels Keyes, Inc., Third Eye Capital
Corporation, as agent, and the Purchasers

 8-K  000-
51354

 10.1  April 19,
2012

  

10.46  Limited Waiver to Note Purchase Agreement dated March 31, 2012
among Aemetis Advanced Fuels Keyes, Inc., and Third Eye Capital
Corporation, an Ontario corporation, as agent

 8-K  000-
51354

 10.1  April 19,
2012

  

10.47  Limited Waiver to Note and Warrant Purchase Agreement dated March
31, 2012 among Aemetis, Inc., Third Eye Capital Corporation, an
Ontario corporation, as agent, and the Purchasers

 8-K  000-
51354

 10.1  April 19,
2012

  

10.48  Amendment No. 7 to Note Purchase Agreement dated May 15, 2012
among Aemetis Advanced Fuels Keyes, Inc., Third Eye Capital
Corporation, as agent, and the Purchasers

 8-K  000-
51354

 10.1  May 22,
2012

  

10.49  Form of Note and Warrant Purchase Agreement  8-K  000-
51354

 10.1  June 6, 2012  

10.50  Form of 5% Subordinated Note  8-K  000-
51354

 10.1  June 6, 2012  

10.51  Form of Common Stock Warrant  8-K  000-
51354

 10.1  June 6, 2012  

10.52  Note and Warrant Purchase Agreement dated June 21, 2012 among
Third Eye Capital Corporation, Aemetis Advanced Fuels Keyes, Inc.,
and Aemetis, Inc.

 8-K  000-
51354

 10.1  June 28,
2012

  

10.53  5% Subordinated Promissory Note dated June 21, 2012 among Third
Eye Capital Corporation, Aemetis Advanced Fuels Keyes, Inc., and
Aemetis, Inc.

 8-K  000-
51354

 10.2  June 28,
2012

  

10.54  Form of Warrant to Purchase Common Stock  8-K  000-
51354

 10.3  June 28,
2012
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10.55  Note Purchase Agreement dated June 27, 2012 among Third Eye
Capital Corporation, Aemetis Advanced Fuels Keyes, Inc., and Aemetis,
Inc.

 8-K  000-
51354

 10.1  July 3, 2012   

10.56  15% Subordinated Promissory Note dated June 27, 2012 among Third
Eye Capital Corporation, Aemetis Advanced Fuels Keyes, Inc., and
Aemetis, Inc.

 8-K  000-
51354

 10.2  July 3, 2012   

10.57  Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated July 6, 2012, among Aemetis,
Inc., AE Advanced Fuels, Inc., Keyes Facility Acquisition Corp., and
Cilion, Inc.

 8-K  000-
51354

 2.1  July 10,
2012

  

10.58  Stockholders’ Agreement, dated July 6, 2012, among Aemetis, Inc., and
Western Milling Investors, LLC, as Securityholders’ Representative.

 8-K  000-
51354

 10.1  July 10,
2012

  

10.59  Amended and Restated Note Purchase Agreement, dated July 6, 2012
among Aemetis Advanced Fuels Keyes, Inc., Keyes Facility Acquisition
Corp., Aemetis, Inc., Third Eye Capital Corporation, as Administrative
Agent, and the Noteholders

 8-K  000-
51354

 10.2  July 10,
2012
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10.60  Amended and Restated Guaranty, dated July 6, 2012 among Aemetis,

Inc., certain subsidiaries of Aemetis and Third Eye Capital Corporation,
as Agent.

 8-K  000-
51354

 10.3  July 10,
2012

  

10.61  Amended and Restated Security Agreement, dated July 6, 2012 among
Aemetis, Inc., certain subsidiaries of Aemetis and Third Eye Capital
Corporation, as Agent.

 8-K  000-
51354

 10.4  July 10,
2012

  

10.62  Investors’ Rights Agreement, dated July 6, 2012, by and among
Aemetis, Inc., and the investors listed on Schedule A thereto.

 8-K  000-
51354

 10.5  July 10,
2012

  

10.63  Technology License Agreement dated August 9, 2012 between
Chevron Lummus Global LLC and Aemetis Advanced Fuels, Inc.

 8-K  000-
51354

 10.1  August 22,
2012

  

10.64  Corn Procurement and Working Capital Agreement dated March 9,
2011 between J.D. Heiskell Holdings LLC and Aemetis Advanced Fuels
Keyes, Inc.**

         X

10.65  Purchasing Agreement dated March  9, 2011 between J.D. Heiskell
Holdings LLC and Aemetis Advanced Fuels Keyes, Inc.**

         X

10.66  WDG Purchase and Sale Agreement dated March 23, 2011 between
A.L. Gilbert Company and Aemetis Advanced Fuels Keyes, Inc.

         X

10.67  Keyes Corn Handling Agreement dated March 23, 2011 among  A. L.
Gilbert Company, AE Advanced Fuels Keyes, Inc., and J.D. Heiskell
Holdings, LLC**

         X

10.68  Limited Waiver and Amendment No. 1 to Amended and Restated Note
Purchase Agreement dated as of October 18, 2012 by and among
Aemetis Advanced Fuels Keyes, Inc., a Delaware corporation, Aemetis
Facility Keyes, Inc., a Delaware corporation, Third Eye Capital
Corporation, an Ontario corporation as agent, Third Eye Capital Credit
Opportunities Fund – Insight Fund, and Sprott PC Trust.

 8-K  000-
51354

 10.1  October 23,
2012

  

10.69  Amendment No. 1 to Revolving Line of Credit Agreement dated October
16, 2012 by and among Aemetis International, Inc., a Nevada
corporation, and Laird Q. Cagan

 8-K  000-
51354

 10.2  October 23,
2012

  

10.70  Note Purchase Agreement effective as of March 4, 2011, amended
January 19, 2012 and July 24, 2012 by and among AE Advanced Fuels,
Inc., a Delaware corporation, and Advanced BioEnergy, LP a California
limited partnership and Advanced BioEnergy GP, LLC, a California
limited liability company.

 8-K  000-
51354

 10.3  October 23,
2012

  

10.71  Form of Convertible Subordinated Promissory Note by and among AE
Advanced Fuels, Inc., a Delaware corporation and Advanced FioEnergy,
LP, a California limited partnership.

 8-K  000-
51354

 10.4  October 23,
2012

  

14  Code of Ethics  10-K  000-
51354

 14  May 20,
2009

  

21.1  Subsidiaries of the Registrant          X
24  Power of Attorney (see signature page)          X
31.1  Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) and

Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
         X

31.2  Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) and
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

         X

32.1  Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section
1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002

         X

32.2  Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section
1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002

         X

 
**Confidential treatment has been requested for portions of this exhibit. Omitted portions have been filed separately with the
Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Rule 24b-2 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
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SIGNATURES

 
 

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
 
 
 Aemetis, Inc.
  
Date: October 31, 2012 /s/ Eric A. McAfee  
 Eric A. McAfee
 Chief Executive Officer
 (Principal Executive Officer)
 

POWER OF ATTORNEY
 
KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes and appoints Eric A.
McAfee and Todd A. Waltz, and each of them, his true and lawful attorneys-in-fact, each with full power of substitution, for him in any
and all capacities, to sign any amendments to this report on Form 10-K and to file the same, with exhibits thereto and other
documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, hereby ratifying and confirming all that each of
said attorneys-in-fact or their substitute or substitutes may do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.
 
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on
behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated:
 
     
     
Name  Title  Date
/s/ Eric A. McAfee  Chairman/Chief Executive Officer  October 30, 2012
Eric A. McAfee  (Principal Executive Officer and Director)   
     
/s/Todd Waltz  Chief Financial Officer  October 30, 2012
Todd Waltz  (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)    
     
/s/ Francis Barton  Director  October 30, 2012
Francis Barton     
     
/s/ John R. Block  Director  October 29, 2012
John R. Block     
     
/s/ Dr. Steven Hutcheson  Director  October 31, 2012
Dr. Steven Hutcheson     
     
/s/ Harold Sorgenti______  Director  October 29, 2012
Harold Sorgenti     
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
 
October 31, 2012
 
Board of Directors and Stockholders
Aemetis, Inc.
Cupertino, CA

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Aemetis, Inc. as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the
related consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss, stockholders’ deficit, and cash flows for the years then
ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform an audit of its internal
control over financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Company's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe
that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Aemetis, Inc. as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended, in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.
 
/s/ McGladrey LLP  
Des Moines, Iowa
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AEMETIS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2010

  2011   2010  
Assets       

Current assets:       
Cash and cash equivalents  $ 249,466  $ 683,016 
Accounts receivable, less allowance of $143,089 and $0   1,379,668   113,583 
Inventories   3,981,997   666,854 
Prepaid expenses   491,308   228,040 
Other current assets   1,026,477   390,891 

Total current assets   7,128,916   2,082,384 
         

Property, plant and equipment, net   15,530,905   16,404,550 
Assets held for sale   885,000   2,885,000 
Intangible assets and goodwill   2,767,994   - 
Other assets   905,106   222,101 

Total assets  $ 27,217,921  $ 21,594,035 

         
Liabilities and stockholders' deficit         

Current liabilities:         
Accounts payable  $ 14,337,536  $ 4,689,420 
Current portion of long term secured notes   2,425,588   2,793,427 
Secured notes, net of discount for issuance costs   5,161,191   5,306,742 
Short term notes and unsecured working capital lines of credit   2,066,720   547,596 
Mandatorily redeemable Series B convertible preferred stock   2,320,164   2,221,872 
Other current liabilities   3,116,868   2,741,103 

Total current liabilities   29,428,067   18,300,160 
         

Long term liabilities:         
  Long term portion of secured notes, net of discount for issuance costs   15,701,023   8,168,980 
  Long term debt (related party), net of discount for issuance costs   4,291,913   4,574,603 

Total long term liabilities   19,992,936   12,743,583 
         

Commitments and contingencies         
         

Stockholders' deficit:         
Series B convertible preferred stock, $0.001 par value, 7,235,565 authorized, 3,115,225 and

3,165,225 shares issued and outstanding in 2011 and 2010, respectively (aggregate
liquidation preference of $9,345,675 and $9,495,675 in 2011 and 2010, respectively)   3,115   3,165 

Common stock, $0.001 par value, 400,000,000 authorized, 130,746,890 and 90,342,032
shares issued and outstanding in 2011 and 2010, respectively   130,747   90,342 

Additional paid-in capital   45,432,447   38,557,376 
Accumulated deficit   (65,526,029)   (47,229,670)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss   (2,243,362)   (870,921)

Total stockholders' deficit   (22,203,082)   (9,449,708)
         
Total liabilities and stockholders' deficit  $ 27,217,921  $ 21,594,035 

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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AEMETIS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2010
 
   2011    2010  
         
Revenues  $141,857,914  $ 8,132,108 
         
Cost of goods sold   137,216,040   8,254,123 
         
Gross profit/(loss)   4,641,874   (122,015)
         
Research and development expenses   576,625   322,561 
Selling, general and administrative expenses   8,570,591   4,709,744 
         
Operating loss   (4,505,342)   (5,154,320)
         
Other income/(expense)         

Interest income   23,436   24,464 
Interest expense   (13,561,285)   (4,034,447)
Other income, net of expenses   52,960   603,294 
Loss on land sale   (401,407)   - 

         
Loss before income taxes   (18,391,638)   (8,561,009)
         

Income taxes benefit/(expense)   95,279   (3,200)
         
Net loss   (18,296,359)   (8,564,209)

Less: Net loss attributable to noncontrolling interest   -   (138,956)
Net loss attributable to Aemetis, Inc.  $ (18,296,359)  $ (8,425,253)
         
         
Other comprehensive loss         

Foreign currency translation adjustment   (1,372,441)   505,461 
Comprehensive loss  $ (19,668,800)  $ (7,919,792)
         
Loss per common share attributable to Aemetis, Inc.  

Basic and diluted  $ (0.18)  $ (0.10)
Weighted average shares outstanding         

Basic and diluted   103,536,643   87,403,213 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statement
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AEMETIS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2010
 

  2011   2010  
Operating activities:       

Net loss  $(18,296,359)  $ (8,564,209)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:         

Stock-based compensation   177,278   377,669 
Depreciation and amortization   1,141,007   760,051 
Inventory provision   201,887   283,176 
Amortization of debt issuance discount   4,624,705   1,343,004 
Loss/(gain) on extinguishment of debt   33,926   (14,757)
Loss on sale of assets and disposal   401,407   56,378 
Deferred tax liability   (98,479)   - 

Changes in assets and liabilities:         
Accounts receivable   (1,316,028)   (78,711)
Inventory   (3,724,088)   (331,519)
Prepaid expenses   (172,840)   (205,869)
Other current assets and other assets   (1,476,557)   (158,649)
Accounts payable   9,597,694   1,056,939 
Accrued interest expense   7,470,040   2,384,300 
Other liabilities   189,508   (589,892)

Net cash used in operating activities   (1,246,899)   (3,682,089)
         
Investing activities:         

Purchase of property, plant and equipment, net   (2,568,001)   (672,965)
Proceeds from land sale   1,598,593   - 
Cash obtained through merger   1,451   - 
Net cash used in investing activities   (967,957)   (672,965)

         
Financing activities:         

Proceeds from borrowings under secured debt facilities   3,621,500   4,500,044 
Repayments of borrowings under secured debt facilities   (3,053,426)   (850,000)
Proceeds from borrowings under related party credit arrangements   -   2,612,000 
Payments of borrowings under related party credit arrangements   -   (1,600,000)
Proceeds from borrowings under short term debt facilities   8,773,415   4,457,667 
Repayments of borrowings under short term facilities   (7,476,182)   (4,260,425)
Net cash provided by financing activities   1,865,307   4,859,286 

         
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents   (84,001)   126,606 
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents   (433,550)   630,838 

         
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period   683,016   52,178 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period  $ 249,466  $ 683,016 

         
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information, cash paid:         
         

Interest payments, net of capitalized interest of $184,933 in 2011 and $53,724 in 2010   1,021,188   151,572 
Income taxes   3,200   3,200 

         
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information, non-cash transactions:      
         

Issuance of shares for acquisition   1,890,135   - 
Stock issued to pay interest and fees on borrowings   1,662,323   202,500 
Payment of loans and fees by issuance of stock to related party   1,452,818   162,000 
Beneficial conversion discount on related party debt   1,732,872   1,556,559 
Property, plant & equipment purchases included in accounts payable   -   466,493 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statement
 

 

EDGAR Stream is a copyright of Issuer Direct Corporation, all rights reserved.



76

EDGAR Stream is a copyright of Issuer Direct Corporation, all rights reserved.



 

 
AEMETIS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2010

 

                    
Accumulated

Other        

  
Series B Preferred

Stock   
Common

Stock      Additional   Accumulated   Comprehensive  Noncontrolling  Total  

  Shares   Dollars   Shares   Dollars   
Paid-in
Capital   Deficit   Income/(Loss)   Interest   Dollars  

                                     
Balance at
December 31,
2009   3,320,725  $3,321   86,181,532  $ 86,181  $36,763,984  $(38,804,417) $ (1,376,382) $ (362,375) $ (3,689,688)
                                     
Stock-based
compensation   -   -   -   -   259,691   -   -   -   259,691 
Shares issued
to consultants   -   -   155,000   155   14,895   -   -   -   15,050 
Debt issuance
discount   -   -   2,250,000   2,250   200,250   -   -   -   202,500 
Energy
Enzymes, Inc.
merger   -   -   1,000,000   1,000   (502,331)  -   -   501,331   - 
Issuance of
shares to
related party   -   -   600,000   600   161,400   -   -   -   162,000 
Issuance of
warrants   -   -   -   -   102,928   -   -   -   102,928 
Series B to
Common
conversion   (155,500)  (156)  155,500   156       -   -   -   - 
Beneficial conversion
feature on related party
notes     -   -   1,556,559   -   -   -   1,556,559 
Other
comprehensive
income   -   -   -   -   -   -   505,461   -   505,461 
Net loss   -   -   -   -   -   (8,425,253)  -   (138,956)  (8,564,209)
                                     
Balance at
December 31,
2010   3,165,225  $3,165   90,342,032  $ 90,342  $38,557,376  $(47,229,670) $ (870,921) $ -  $ (9,449,708)
                                     
Stock-based
compensation   -   -   5,585   6   152,736   -   -   -   152,742 
Shares issued
to consultants   -   -   30,000   30   24,506   -   -   -   24,536 
Debt issuance
discount and
waiver shares   -   -   4,589,360   4,589   1,657,734   -   -   -   1,662,323 
Issuance of
shares to
related party   -   -   29,056,356   29,056   1,423,762   -   -   -   1,452,818 
Beneficial
conversion
feature on
related party
notes           -    -    1,732,872    -    -    -    1,732,872  
Conversion of
Series B
preferred to
common stock   (50,000 )  (50 )  50,000    50   -   -   -   -   - 
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Zymetis Inc.
merger   -   -   6,673,557   6,674   1,883,461   -   -   -   1,890,135 
Other
comprehensive
loss   -   -   -   -   -   -   (1,372,441)  -   (1,372,441)
Net loss   -   -   -   -   -   (18,296,359)  -   -   (18,296,359)
                                     
Balance at
December 31,
2011   3,115,225  $3,115   130,746,890  $130,747  $45,432,447  $(65,526,029) $ (2,243,362) $ -  $(22,203,082)
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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AEMETIS, INC.
December 31, 2011

 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 
1. Nature of Activities and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
 
Nature of Activities. These consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Aemetis, Inc. (formerly AE Biofuels, Inc.), a
Nevada corporation, and its wholly owned subsidiaries (collectively, “Aemetis” or the “Company”):
 

• Aemetis Americas, Inc. (formerly “American Ethanol, Inc.”), a Nevada corporation and its subsidiaries Sutton Ethanol, LLC, a
Nebraska limited liability company, Illinois Valley Ethanol, LLC, an Illinois limited liability company, Danville Ethanol, Inc., an
Illinois corporation, and AE Biofuels, Inc., a Delaware corporation;

• Biofuels Marketing, a Delaware corporation;
• Aemetis International, Inc. (formerly International Biodiesel, Inc.), a Nevada corporation and its subsidiary International

Biofuels, Ltd., a Mauritius corporation and its subsidiary Universal Biofuels Private, Ltd., an India company;
• Aemetis Technologies, Inc. (formerly AE Zymetis, Inc.), a Delaware corporation;
• Aemetis Biochemicals, Inc., a Nevada corporation;
• Aemetis Biofuels, Inc. (formerly AE Biofuels Technologies, Inc.), a Delaware corporation and its subsidiary Energy Enzymes,

Inc., a Delaware corporation;
• AE Advanced Fuels, Inc., a Delaware corporation;
• Aemetis Advanced Fuels, Inc., a Nevada corporation; and,
• Aemetis Advanced Fuels Keyes, Inc. (formerly AE Advanced Fuels Keyes, Inc.), a Delaware corporation.

 
Aemetis, Inc. is an international advanced fuels and specialty chemical company focused on the production of renewable fuels and
chemicals and the acquisition, development and commercialization of innovative technologies that are substitutes for traditional
petroleum-based products.  In 2010, the Company began retrofitting an ethanol production facility in Keyes, California and in April
2011 began high volume production of ethanol and wet distiller’s grain (WDG).
 
Principles of Consolidation. The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries. All
material inter-company accounts and transactions are eliminated in consolidation.
 
Use of Estimates. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. To the extent there are material differences between these estimates and actual results, the Company’s
consolidated financial statements will be affected.
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AEMETIS, INC.

December 31, 2011
 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 
Revenue recognition. The Company recognizes revenue when there is persuasive evidence of an arrangement, delivery has
occurred, the price is fixed or determinable and collection is reasonably assured. The Company records revenues based upon the
gross amounts billed to its customers.
 
Cost of Goods Sold. Cost of goods sold include those costs directly associated with the production of revenues, such as raw material
purchases, factory overhead, and other direct production costs.
 
Shipping and Handling Costs. Shipping and handling costs are classified as a component of cost of goods sold in the accompanying
consolidated statements of operations.
 
Research and Development. Research and development costs are expensed as incurred, unless they have alternative future uses to
the Company.
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents. The Company considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less to
be cash equivalents. The Company maintains cash balances at various financial institutions domestically and abroad. Domestic
accounts are insured by the FDIC. The Company’s accounts at these institutions may at times exceed federally insured limits. The
Company has not experienced any losses in such accounts.
 
Accounts Receivable, net.  The Company sells ethanol and wet distillers grains through third-party marketing arrangements generally
without requiring collateral.  The Company sells biodiesel and glycerin to a variety of customers and may require advanced payment
based on the size and credit worthiness of the customer.  Accounts receivables consist of product sales made to large credit worthy
customers. Trade accounts receivable are presented at original invoice amount, net of the allowance for doubtful accounts.
 
The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts for balances that appear to have specific collection issues. The collection
process is based on the age of the invoice and requires attempted contacts with the customer at specified intervals. If, after a
specified number of days, the Company has been unsuccessful in its collection efforts, a bad debt allowance is recorded for the
balance in question. Delinquent accounts receivable are charged against the allowance for doubtful accounts once uncollectibility has
been determined. The factors considered in reaching this determination are the apparent financial condition of the customer and the
Company’s success in contacting and negotiating with the customer. If the financial condition of the Company’s customers were to
deteriorate additional allowances may be required.
 
Inventories. Inventories are stated at the lower of cost, using the first-in and first-out (FIFO) method, or market.
 
Property, Plant and Equipment. Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation after assets are
placed in service and are comprised primarily of buildings, furniture, machinery, equipment, land acquired for development of
production facilities, and the biodiesel plant in India. It is the Company policy to depreciate capital assets over their estimated useful
lives using the straight-line method.
 
Intangible Assets. Intangible assets consist of intellectual property in the form of patents pending, in-process research and
development and goodwill. Once the patents pending or in-process R&D have secured a definite life in the form of a patent or
product, they will be carried at initial fair value less accumulated amortization over the estimated useful life. Amortization commences
upon granting of the patent and is amortized over the patent protection period or shorter period upon abandonment of the patent.
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AEMETIS, INC.
December 31, 2011

 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 
Company intangible assets such as goodwill have indefinite lives and as a result need to be evaluated at least annually, or more
frequently, if impairment indicators arise. In the Company’s review, we determined the fair value of segment reporting assets using
market indicators and discounted cash flow modeling and compare it to the net book value of the acquired assets. If the fair value is
less than the carrying value of the asset, the Company then determined the fair value of the asset. An impairment loss would be
recognized when the fair value is less than the related net book value, and an impairment expense would be recorded in the amount
of the difference. Forecasts of future cash flows are judgments based on the Company’s experience and knowledge of the
Company’s operations and the industries in which the Company operates. These forecasts could be significantly affected by future
changes in market conditions, the economic environment, including inflation, and the purchasing decisions of the Company’s
customers.
 
California Ethanol Producer Incentive Program – The Company is eligible to participate in the California Ethanol Producer Incentive
Program (“CEPIP”). Under the CEPIP an eligible California ethanol facility may receive up to $3 million in cash per plant per year of
operations through 2013 when current production corn crush spreads, measured as the difference between specified ethanol and
corn index prices, drop below $0.55 per gallon. For any month in which a payment is made by the CEPIP, the Company may be
required to reimburse the funds within the subsequent five years from each payment date, if the corn crush spreads exceed $1.00 per
gallon. Since these funds are provided to subsidize current production costs and encourage eligible facilities to either continue
production or start up production in low margin environments, the Company records the proceeds, if any, as a credit to cost of goods
sold. The Company will assess the likelihood of reimbursement in future periods as corn crush spreads approach $1.00 per gallon. If
it becomes likely that amounts may be reimbursable by the Company, the Company will accrue a liability for such payment and
recognize the costs as an increase in cost of goods sold. The Company recorded $1,803,380 and $0 as a reduction to cost of goods
sold for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively, in respect of CEPIP payments received. To date, the Company
has not been required to reimburse any amounts.
 
Income Taxes. The Company recognizes income taxes in accordance with ASC 740 Income Taxes using an asset and liability
approach. This approach requires the recognition of taxes payable or refundable for the current year and deferred tax assets and
liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of events that have been recognized in the Company’s consolidated financial
statements or tax returns. The measurement of current and deferred taxes is based on provisions of enacted tax law.
 
ASC 740 provides for recognition of deferred tax assets if the realization of such assets is more likely than not to occur. Otherwise, a
valuation allowance is established for the deferred tax assets, which may not be realized. As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the
Company recorded a full valuation allowance against its net deferred tax assets due to operating losses incurred since inception.
Realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon future earnings, if any, the timing and amount of which are uncertain.
Accordingly, the net deferred tax assets were fully offset by a valuation allowance.
 
We are subject to income tax audits by the respective tax authorities in all of the jurisdictions in which it operates. The determination
of tax liabilities in each of these jurisdictions requires the interpretation and application of complex and sometimes uncertain tax laws
and regulations. The recognition and measurement of current taxes payable or refundable and deferred tax assets and liabilities
requires that the Company make certain estimates and judgments. Changes to these estimates or a change in judgment may have a
material impact on the Company’s tax provision in a future period.
 
Long - Lived Assets. The Company evaluates the recoverability of long-lived assets with finite lives in accordance with ASC Subtopic
360-10-35 Property Plant and Equipment –Subsequent Measurements, which requires recognition of impairment of long-lived assets
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. When events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable, based on estimated undiscounted
cash flows, the impairment loss would be measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the assets and its fair value
based on the present value of estimated future cash flows.
 
Assets held for sale. The Company analyzes land holdings, buildings and equipment for their strategic importance to the future of the
company, and if determined asset is disposable, the asset will be sold opportunistically in the open market for the highest bidder.
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AEMETIS, INC.

December 31, 2011
 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 
Basic and Diluted Net Loss per Share. Basic loss per share is computed by dividing loss attributable to common shareholders by the
weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the period, net of shares subject to repurchase. Diluted loss per share
reflects the dilution of common stock equivalents such as options, convertible preferred stock and warrants to the extent the impact is
dilutive. As the Company incurred net losses for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, potentially dilutive securities have
been excluded from the diluted net loss per share computation, as their effect would be anti-dilutive.
 
The following table shows the weighted-average number of potential dilutive shares excluded from the diluted net loss per share
calculated for the year ended December 31, 2011, and 2010:
 

  
For the year ended December

31,  

  2011   2010  
         
Aemetis Series B preferred stock   3,142,485   3,239,154 
Aemetis Series B warrants   427,396   443,853 
Aemetis Common stock options and warrants   8,519,855   5,985,691 
Convertible interest & fees on note  – related party   20,636,157   17,615,521 
Total weighted average number of potentially dilutive shares excluded from the
diluted net loss per share calculation   32,725,893   27,284,219 

 
Comprehensive Income. ASC 220 Comprehensive Income requires that an enterprise report, by major components and as a single
total, the change in its net assets from non-owner sources. The Company’s other comprehensive income and accumulated other
comprehensive income consists solely of cumulative currency translation adjustments resulting from the translation of the financial
statements of its foreign subsidiaries. The investment in this subsidiary is considered indefinitely invested overseas, and as a result,
deferred income taxes are not recorded related to the currency translation adjustments.
 
Foreign Currency Translation/Transactions. Assets and liabilities of the Company’s non-U.S. subsidiaries that operate in a local
currency environment, where that local currency is the functional currency, are translated into U.S. dollars at exchange rates in effect
at the balance sheet date; with the resulting translation adjustments directly recorded to a separate component of accumulated other
comprehensive income. Income and expense accounts are translated at average exchange rates during the year. Gains and losses
from foreign currency transactions are recorded in other income (loss), net.
 
Operating Segments. Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise about which separate financial information is
available that is evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision maker (“CODM”), or decision-making group, in deciding how to
allocate resources and in assessing performance. The operations in India as well as the retrofit of the Keyes, California ethanol plant
resulted in the Company’s reevaluation of its management structure and reporting around business segments.
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AEMETIS, INC.
December 31, 2011

 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 
Aemetis recognized three reportable geographic segments: “India”, “North America” and “Other.”
 

•  The “India” operating segment encompasses the Company’s 50 MGY nameplate capacity biodiesel plant in Kakinada, India,
the administrative offices in Hyderabad, India, and the holding companies in Nevada and Mauritius.

•  The “North America” operating segment includes the Company’s leased 55 MGY nameplate capacity ethanol plant in Keyes,
CA and the assets (principally land) held for sale in Sutton, NE and in Danville, IL.

•  The “Other” segment encompasses the Company’s costs associated with new market development, company-wide fund
raising, formation, executive compensation and other corporate expenses.

 
Fair Value of Financial Instruments. The Company’s financial instruments include cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable,
accounts payable, other current liabilities, mandatorily redeemable Series B preferred stock and debt.  The fair value of the
Company’s debt was unable to be determined based on the operating structure of the cross-collateralized debt and the short-term
maturity of these instruments. The Company’s long-term debt carrying value approximates fair value based upon the borrowing rates
currently available to the Company for bank loans in India with similar terms and maturities. The Company is also unable to estimate
the fair value of the long-term debt (related party) due to the lack of comparable available credit facilities.  The fair value of all other
financial instruments was estimated to approximate carrying value due to the short-term nature these instruments.
 
Share-Based Compensation. The Company recognizes share based compensation in accordance with ASC 718 Stock
Compensation requiring the Company to recognize expense related to the estimate fair value of the Company’s share-based
compensation awards at the time the awards are granted adjusted to reflect only those shares that are expected to vest.
 
Commitments and Contingencies. The Company records and/or discloses commitments and contingencies in accordance with ASC
450 Contingencies.  ASC 450 applies to an existing condition, situation, or set of circumstances involving uncertainty as to possible
loss that will ultimately be resolved when one or more future events occur or fail to occur.
 
Business Combinations.  The Company applies the acquisition method of accounting to account for business combinations. The cost
of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the fair values at the date of exchange of the assets given, liabilities incurred, and
equity instruments issued. Identifiable assets, liabilities, and contingent liabilities acquired or assumed are measured separately at
their fair value as of the acquisition date. The excess of the cost of the acquisition over our interest in the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If our interest in the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired in a business
combination exceeds the cost of the acquisition, a gain is recognized in earnings on the acquisition date.  The Company will adjust
the preliminary purchase price allocation, as necessary, after the acquisition closing date through the end of the measurement period
(up to one year) as the valuations for the assets acquired and liabilities assumed are finalized.

Convertible Instruments.  The Company evaluates the impacts of convertible instruments based on the underlying conversion
features.  Convertible Instruments are evaluated for treatment as derivatives that could be bifurcated and recorded separately.  Any
beneficial conversion feature is recorded based on the intrinsic value difference at the commitment date.

Modification Accounting. The Company evaluates amendments to its debt under the FASB guidance for modification and
extinguishment accounting.  This evaluation included comparing the net present value of cash flows of the new debt to the old debt to
determine if changes greater than 10 percent occurred.  In instances, where the net present value of future cash flows changed more
than 10 percent, the Company determines the fair value of its debt based on factors available to the Company for similar borrowings
and applied extinguishment accounting method.
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Sequencing Policy. In the event partial reclassification of contracts subject to ASC 815-40-25 is necessary due to the Company’s
inability to demonstrate it has sufficient authorized shares, Shares will be allocated on the basis of maturity dates of potentially dilutive
instruments, with the latest maturity date receiving first allocation of shares.  If a reclassification of an instrument were required it
would result in the earliest maturity instrument being reclassified first.
 
Recent Accounting Pronouncements.
 
Effective January 1, 2011, the Company adopted the amended guidance in ASC Topic 805, Business Combinations, which, if the
Company completed a material business combination during the reporting period, requires the Company to disclose the Company’s
pro forma revenue and earnings as though the business combinations that occurred during the current period had occurred as of the
beginning of the comparable prior annual reporting period. The amended guidance also requires the Company to include a
description of the nature and amount of material, nonrecurring pro forma adjustments directly attributable to the business combination
included in the reported pro forma revenue and earnings.
 
Effective January 1, 2011, the Company adopted the second phase of the amended guidance in ASC Topic 820, Fair Value
Measurements and Disclosures, which requires the Company to disclose information in the reconciliation of recurring Level 3
measurements regarding purchases, sales, issuances and settlements on a gross basis, with a separate reconciliation for assets and
liabilities. The Company did not experience an impact from the additional disclosure requirements, as the Company does not have
any recurring Level 3 measurements.
 
Effective January 1, 2012, the Company will be required to adopt the third phase of amended guidance in ASC Topic 820, Fair Value
Measurements and Disclosures. The purpose of the amendment is to achieve common fair value measurement and disclosure
requirements by improving comparability of fair value measurements presented and disclosed in financial statements prepared in
accordance with GAAP and those prepared in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards, or IFRS. The amended
guidance clarifies the application of existing fair value measurement requirements and requires additional disclosure for Level 3
measurements regarding the sensitivity of fair value to changes in unobservable inputs and any interrelationships between those
inputs. The Company currently would not be impacted by the additional disclosure requirements, as the Company does not have any
recurring Level 3 measurements.
 
Effective January 1, 2012, the Company will be required to adopt the amended guidance in ASC Topic 220, Comprehensive Income.
This accounting standards update, which helps to facilitate the convergence of GAAP and IFRS, is aimed at increasing the
prominence of other comprehensive income in the financial statement by eliminating the option to present other comprehensive
income in the statement of stockholders’ equity, and requiring comprehensive income to be reported in either a single continuous
statement or in two separate but consecutive statements reporting net income and other comprehensive income. This amended
guidance will be implemented retroactively. The Company has determined that the changes to the accounting standards will not
materially affect the presentation of consolidated financial.
 
Effective January 1, 2012, the Company will be permitted to adopt the amended guidance in ASC Topic 350, Intangibles – Goodwill
and Other. The amended guidance permits an entity to first assess qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely than not
that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount as a basis for determining whether it is necessary to perform the
two-step goodwill impairment test. The more-likely-than-not threshold is defined as having a likelihood of more than 50 percent. The
Company has determined that the changes to the accounting standards will not impact the Company’s disclosure or reporting
requirements.
 
2. Inventory
 
Inventory consists of the following:
 

  As of December 31,  

  2011   2010  
         
Raw materials  $ 628,366  $ 465,451 
Work-in-progress   2,056,771   60,873 
Finished goods   1,296,860   140,530 
Total inventory  $3,981,997  $ 666,854 
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As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company has recognized a lower of cost or market reserve of $223,069 and $179,225
respectively, related to inventory.
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3. Property, Plant and Equipment
 
Property, plant and equipment consist of the following:
 

   As of December 31,  

  2011   2010  
         
Land  $ 667,008  $ 792,036 
Buildings   10,429,402   12,237,853 
Furniture and fixtures   152,373   104,199 
Machinery and equipment   1,025,105   907,651 
Leasehold and tenant improvements   2,800,339   1,024,831 
Construction in progress   3,186,551   3,066,928 
Total gross property, plant & equipment   18,260,778   18,133,498 
Less accumulated depreciation   (2,729,873)   (1,728,948)
Total net property, plant & equipment  $15,530,905  $16,404,550 

 
The Company recorded depreciation for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 of $1,141,007 and $760,051, respectively.
 
As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the components of construction in progress include $3,186,551 and $3,066,928, respectively,
related to the Company’s Kakinada, India biodiesel pre-treatment and glycerin units.
 
As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, leasehold improvements and tenant improvements relate to the Keyes, California ethanol plant.
 
Management is required to evaluate these long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Based on the evaluation, management determined no assets required
impairment as of December 31, 2011 and 2010.
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4. Intangible Assets and Goodwill
 
Intangible assets consist of goodwill, patents, and in-process research and development. In July 2011 the Company acquired
Zymetis, Inc., a biochemical research and development firm, with several patents pending and in-process R&D valued at $1,800,000
at the time of the acquisition. $967,994 in goodwill resulted from the excess in consideration paid over the fair value of the net assets
acquired from the Zymetis acquisition. According to ASC 350-20-35 goodwill will be tested for impairment at the Zymetis reporting unit
level, which has been named Aemetis Technologies, Inc.  Intangible assets will be measured for impairment and abandonment until
fully amortized.
 
As of December 31, 2011 in process R&D is still in development and thus no amortization has been taken.
 
5. Notes Payable and Subsequent Events
 

  
December 31,

2011   
December 31,

2010  
         
Third Eye Capital senior secured term notes, including accrued interest of $1,593,378 and revenue
participation of $5,277,753 less unamortized issuance discount of $513,943 for 12/31/2011 and
accrued interest of $653,376 less unamortized issuance discount of $733,924 for 12/31/2010. For the
years ending 12/31/2011 and 12/31/2010, the Company issued debt discount shares of 4,589,360
and 2,250,000, respectively.  $ 18,126,611  $ 10,962,407 
State Bank of India secured term loan, including accrued interest of $1,485,614 and $949,336 less
unamortized issuance discount of $14,902 and $24,838, respectively.   5,161,191   5,306,742 
Revolving line of credit (related party), including accrued interest and fees of $1,428,403 and
$1,089,691 less unamortized issuance discount of $873,292 and $1,370,079, respectively.   4,291,913   4,574,603 
Unsecured working capital loans and short-term notes, including accrued interest of $103,382 and
$10,931, respectively.   2,066,720   547,596 
Total debt   29,646,435   21,391,348 
Less current portion of debt   9,653,499   8,647,765 
Total long term debt  $ 19,992,936  $ 12,743,583 

 
Third Eye Capital Senior secured note.  The Company had $7,092,514, and $6,815,056 in principal and accrued interest outstanding
net of $0 and $381,276 in debt discounts on a senior secured note as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.  The Note bears
interest at 10% and matured in June 2011, but allowed for the continuation with the payment of monthly $75,000 extension fees
settled in cash or stock.  During the year ending December 31, 2011, the Company issued 1,083,903 shares of stock for the
extension or payment of waiver fees associated with this note.
 
The Note is secured by first-lien deeds of trust on real property located in Nebraska and Illinois (Danville, IL property was sold in May
2011), by a first priority security interest in equipment located in Montana, pledge and assignment of 50% of all cash dividends, cash
royalties and all other proceeds received from Aemetis Advanced Fuels Keyes, Inc. and initially a guarantee of $1 million, and later
as part of the Cilion merger subsequent event occurring on July 6, 2012, a $10 million guarantee by McAfee Capital LLC (solely
owned by Eric McAfee), plus all interest accrued and expenses to enforce Guaranty.  The note restricts the payment of dividends by
the Company and any of its subsidiaries.
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Third Eye Capital Term notes.  The Company had $5,756,344 and $4,147,351 in principal and accrued interest outstanding, net of
$513,943 and $352,649 in debt discounts, on the term notes as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.  The term notes
accrues at 12% per annum, and at 14% per annum subsequent to June 2011, on the unpaid principal balance and is payable monthly
in arrears.  The first two term notes provide for payment of an additional 2% of total revenues at the Keyes plant until repayment of
the term notes after which time the amount was reduced to 1% over the lesser of 5 years or the term of the lease.  Upon the issuance
of the additional term notes, in February 2011, the terms were revised to increase the additional payment to 4% of total revenues until
repayment and 2% over the lesser of 7 years or the term of the lease.  In March 2011, the Company issued 1,750,000 shares of
common stock to secure the sale of additional notes at a fair value of $175,000. As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the 4% revenue
participation fee totaled $5,277,753 and $0, respectively. The Term Notes and the Senior Secured Notes contain cross-collateral and
cross-default provisions.

The Term notes contain various covenants, including but not limited to, minimum free cash flow and production requirements and
restrictions on capital expenditures.  Throughout the year ending December 31, 2011, the Company was in violation of covenants, but
was waived by the note holders through the payment of fees.  As a result during, the Company issued a total of 1,755,457 shares of
common stock as waiver or extension fees at a fair market value on the dates of issuance of $964,436.  The payment requirements
on the notes as of December 31, 2011 were $50,000 per week plus the greater of $0.05 per gallon of ethanol produced or 50% of free
cash flows, as defined in the agreement.  In addition, a $300,000 principal payment shall be paid on the final business day of each
fiscal quarter beginning the fourth quarter of 2011 until maturity.

The Term notes are secured by first-lien deeds of trust on all real and personal property, and assignment of proceeds of all
government grants, and guarantee of Aemetis, Inc., a $5,000,000 guarantee from McAfee Capital and a personal guarantee from Eric
McAfee equal to $2,400,000 in principal plus any interest and fees accrued.  Later as part of the Cilion merger subsequent event
occurring on July 6, 2012, McAfee Capital LLC (solely owned by Eric McAfee) agreed to a $10 million guarantee against all Third Eye
Capital debt, plus all interest accrued and expenses to enforce Guaranty.
 
As disclosed in the subsequent events footnote, the maturity of the Third Eye Capital Senior secured note and the Term notes were
refinanced subsequent to year-end to extend the maturities of these agreements.  The Company has revised the maturities of the
related debt agreements based on these subsequent events.
 
State Bank of India Secured Term Loan.  On July 17, 2008, Universal Biofuels Private Limited (“UBPL”), the Company’s India
operating subsidiary, entered into a six year $6 million loan commitment with the State Bank of India.  The term loan matures in
March 2014 and is secured by UBPL’s biodiesel plant and land in Kakinada with an asset value of approximately $15.6 million.
 
In July 2008, the Company drew approximately $4.6 million against the secured term loan.  The loan principal amount is repayable in
20 quarterly installments of approximately $270,000, using exchange rates as of December 31, 2009, with the first installment due in
June 2009 and the last installment payment due in March 2014.  The interest rate under this facility is subject to adjustment every two
years, based on 0.25% above the Reserve Bank of India advance rate of 7.5 percent during 2011.
 
The principal payments scheduled for June, September and December in 2009, and quarters of 2010 and 2011 were not made. The
term loan provides for liquidating damages at a rate of 2% per annum for the period of default. As of December 31, 2011 and 2010,
UBPL had accrued interest of $1,485,614 and $949,336, respectively.
 
On October 7, 2009, UBPL received a demand notice from the State Bank of India.  The notice informed UBPL an event of default
had occurred for failure to make an installment payment on the loan due in June 2009 and demanded repayment of the entire
outstanding indebtedness of 19.60 crores (approximately $4 million) together with all accrued interest and applicable fees and
expenses.  As of December 31, 2011, UBPL is in default on over twenty-eight months of interest, eleven principal repayments, and all
covenants, including asset coverage and debt service coverage ratios.  Additional provisions of default include the bank having the
unqualified right to disclose or publish the Company’s name and the Company’s Directors’ names as defaulters on any
communication media.  At the bank’s option, it may also demand payment of the entire balance of the loan, since the principal
payments have been in default since June 2009.  As a result the Company has classified the entire loan amount as a current
liability.  State Bank of India has filed a legal case before the Debt Recovery Tribunal (DRT), Hyderabad, for recovery of
approximately $5 million against the company and also impleaded Andhra Pradesh Industrial Infrastructure Corporation (APIIC) to
expedite the process of registration of Factory land for which counter reply is yet to be filed by APIIC.  In the case that the Company is
unable to prevail with its legal case, DRT may pass a Decree for recovery of due amount, which will impact operations of the
company including action up to seizing company property for recovery of their dues.
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Revolving line of credit – related party.  The Company has a Revolving Line of Credit Agreement with Mr. Cagan, a significant
shareholder and ex-board member, for $5,000,000 secured by certain accounts, investments, intellectual property, securities and
other collateral of Aemetis, Inc., excluding the collateral securing the Company’s obligations with Third Eye Capital and the collateral
securing the Company’s obligations with the State Bank of India.  The Revolving Line of Credit bears interest at the rate of 10% per
annum and matured on July 1, 2012.  As of December 31, 2011, no additional borrowings were available on the line.
 
In September and October, 2010, Aemetis, Inc.’s Board of Directors and Mr. Cagan approved the terms of an agreement
subordinating collateral on the Revolving Line of Credit behind Third Eye Capital.  As an inducement to accept this subordination risk,
Mr. Cagan was given the right to convert accrued interest and fees on the Revolving Line of Credit into shares of Aemetis common
stock at a conversion price of $0.05 per share.  Additionally, the Board of Directors approved a 5% subordination fee on the
outstanding balance payable in cash or in stock.  On the maturity date of July 1, 2011, the Board of Directors approved the accrual of
an additional 5% fee on the outstanding balance to extend the line of credit through July 2012.  For the years ending December 31,
2011 and 2010, the Company recorded a debt discount related to the conversion feature on this related party debt of $1,732,872 and
$1,556,559, respectively.
 
On September 30, 2011, Mr. Cagan converted $1,452,818 of eligible accrued interest and fees into 29,056,356 shares of common
stock. Future conversions of interest and fees are limited to a conversion price equal to the average closing stock price for the 22
trailing days prior to the date of conversion.
 
As disclosed in the subsequent events footnote, the maturity of the Revolving line of credit was extended and, as a result, the
Company has revised the maturities schedule related to the line.
 
Note payable – related party.  On January 30, 2010, Aemetis Advanced Fuels Keyes, Inc., entered into an Unsecured Promissory
Note with Mr. Cagan for $1,600,000 as bridge financing to repair and retrofit the Keyes plant.  The note bears no interest.  The
Company repaid the $1,600,000 credit facility on May 11, 2010.  Fees in connection with this bridge financing were paid with the
issuance of 600,000 shares of Aemetis, Inc.’s common stock to Mr. Cagan.
 
Working Capital Operating Agreement.  In November 2008, the Company entered into an operating agreement with Secunderabad
Oils Limited (“Secunderabad”).  Under this agreement Secunderabad agreed to provide the Company with working capital, on an as
needed basis, to fund the purchase of feedstock and other raw materials for the Company’s Kakinada biodiesel facility.  The working
capital loans are unsecured. Secunderabad as the right to decide whether or not to extend additional loans. Working capital
advances bear interest at the actual bank borrowing rate of Secunderabad of fifteen percent (15%).  In return, the Company agreed to
pay Secunderabad an amount equal to 30% of the plant’s monthly net operating loss. In the event that the Company’s biodiesel
facility operates at a loss, Secunderabad owes the Company 30% of the losses. The agreement can be terminated by either party at
any time without penalty.
 
During the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company paid Secunderabad $101,408 and $135,019, respectively, in
connection with the profit sharing portion of this agreement. In addition, during the same periods  paid approximately $143,788 and
$64,284 respectively, in interest for working capital funding. At December 30, 2011 and December 31, 2010 the Company had
$1,652,162 and $547,596, respectively, outstanding under this agreement.
 
As noted above, the maturities schedule presented below have been adjusted for the subsequent amendments to the Third Eye
Capital and Revolving loan agreements.  Scheduled debt repayments based on these amendments for the debt outstanding at
December 31, 2011 are:
 

  
Debt

Repayments 
    
2012  $ 9,653,499 
2013   9,964,111 
2014   10,028,825 
Total  $29,646,435 
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6. Operating Leases
 
The Company, through its subsidiaries, has non-cancelable operating leases for office space in Cupertino.
 
Subsequent future minimum operating lease payments as of December 31, 2011 as adjusted for subsequent acquisition are
approximately $1,592,000 for the year ended December 31, 2012.In July 2009, the Company entered into a sublease agreement with
Nevo Energy, Inc. (formerly known as Solargen Energy, Inc.) for approximately 3,000 square feet of leased space. For the year
ended December 31, 2010, the Company invoiced, collected and offset as rent expense $85,670 under this agreement. For the year
ending December 31, 2011, the Company invoiced Nevo Energy for $86,291 in rents due, but reserved all the payments due to Nevo
Energy’s inability to pay. See Note 13. Related Party Transactions. On April 12, 2011, the Company agreed to convert $62,151 of its
then outstanding rent bills to a promissory note bearing a 10 percent annual interest rate and a maturity date of April 12, 2018. As of
December 31, 2011 a balance of $66,812 remains outstanding on the note. The Company has fully reserved for the Nevo Energy
promissory note, due to the high probability of not being able to collect on the Note.
 
On December 1, 2009, the Company entered into a lease for a 55 million gallon nameplate ethanol facility located in Keyes, CA for a
term of 36 months at a monthly lease payment of $250,000.  The Lease term and rental began upon substantial completion of the
repair and retrofit of the plant on April 1, 2011, which was amended in April 2012 to a 60-month term ending March 2016.
 
On July 6, 2012, Aemetis, Inc. acquired the Keyes, CA ethanol plant. As a result, no additional lease obligations remain for the
ethanol plant lease after the acquisition date. See Note 15. Subsequent Events.
 
For the year ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company recognized rent expense of $3,314,712 and $714,718, respectively.
 
7. Stockholders’ Deficit
 
The Company is authorized to issue up to 400,000,000 shares of common stock, $0.001 par value and 65,000,000 shares of
preferred stock, $0.001 par value.
 
Convertible Preferred Stock
 
The following is a summary of the authorized, issued and outstanding convertible preferred stock:
 

     Shares Issued and  
  Authorized   Outstanding December 31,  

  Shares   2011   2010  
          
Series B preferred stock   7,235,565   3,115,225   3,165,225 
Undesignated   57,764,435   -   - 
    65,000,000   3,115,225   3,165,225 

 
Our Articles of Incorporation authorize the Company’s board to issue up to 65,000,000 shares of preferred stock, $0.001 par value, in
one or more classes or series within a class upon authority of the board without further stockholder approval.
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Significant terms of the designated preferred stock are as follows:
 
Voting. Holders of the Company’s Series B preferred stock are entitled to the number of votes equal to the number of shares of
Common Stock into which the shares of Series B preferred stock held by such holder could be converted as of the record date.
Cumulative voting with respect to the election of directors is not allowed. Currently each share of Series B preferred stock is entitled to
one vote per share of Series B preferred stock. In addition, without obtaining the approval of the holders of a majority of the
outstanding preferred stock, the Company cannot:
 

•  Increase or decrease (other than by redemption or conversion) the total number of authorized shares of Series B preferred
stock;

•  Effect an exchange, reclassification, or cancellation of all or a part of the Series B preferred stock, including a reverse stock
split, but excluding a stock split;

•  Effect an exchange, or create a right of exchange, of all or part of the shares of another class of shares into shares of
Series B preferred stock; or

•  Alter or change the rights, preferences or privileges of the shares of Series B preferred stock so as to affect adversely the
shares of such series.

 
Dividends. Holders of all of the Company’s shares of Series B preferred stock are entitled to receive non-cumulative dividends
payable in preference and before any declaration or payment of any dividend on common stock as may from time to time be declared
by the board of directors out of funds legally available for that purpose at the rate of 5% of the original purchase price of such shares
of preferred stock. No dividends may be made with respect to the Company’s common stock until all declared dividends on the
preferred stock have been paid or set aside for payment to the preferred stock holders. To date, no dividends have been declared.
 
Liquidation Preference. In the event of any voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company, the holders
of the Series B preferred stock are entitled to receive, prior and in preference to any payment to the holders of the common stock,
$3.00 per share plus all declared but unpaid dividends (if any) on the Series B preferred stock. If the Company’s assets legally
available for distribution to the holders of the Series B preferred stock are insufficient to permit the payment to such holders of their
full liquidation preference, then the Company’s entire assets legally available for distribution are distributed to the holders of the
Series B preferred stock in proportion to their liquidation preferences. After the payment to the holders of the Series B preferred stock
of their liquidation preference, the Company’s remaining assets legally available for distribution are distributed to the holders of the
common stock in proportion to the number of shares of common stock held by them. A liquidation, dissolution or winding up includes
(a) the acquisition of the Company by another entity by means of any transaction or series of related transactions to which the
Company is party (including, without limitation, any stock acquisition, reorganization, merger or consolidation but excluding any sale
of stock for capital raising purposes) that results in the voting securities of the Company outstanding immediately prior thereto failing
to represent immediately after such transaction or series of transactions (either by remaining outstanding or by being converted into
voting securities of the surviving entity or the entity that controls such surviving entity) a majority of the total voting power represented
by the outstanding voting securities of the Company, such surviving entity or the entity that controls such surviving entity, or (b) a
sale, lease or other conveyance of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company.
 
Conversion. Holders of Series B preferred stock have the right, at their option at any time, to convert any shares into common stock.
Each share of preferred stock will convert into one share of common stock, at the current conversion rate. The conversion ratio is
subject to adjustment from time to time in the event of certain dilutive issuances and events, such as stock splits, stock dividends,
stock combinations, reclassifications, exchanges and the like. In addition, at such time as the Registration Statement covering the
resale of the shares of common stock is issuable, then all outstanding Series B preferred stock shall be automatically converted into
common stock at the then effective conversion rate.
 
Mandatorily Redeemable Series B preferred stock. In connection with the election of dissenters’ rights by the Cordillera Fund, L.P., at
December 31, 2008 the Company reclassified 583,334 shares with an original purchase price of $1,750,002 out of shareholders’
equity to a liability called “mandatorily redeemable Series B preferred stock” and accordingly reduced stockholders equity by the
same amount to reflect the Company’s obligations with respect to this matter.  At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company
obligation was $2,320,164 and $2,221,872, respectively, which accrues interest at the rate of 5.25% per annum.  The payment is
currently past due.  The Company expects to pay these obligations upon settlement of senior secured obligations and the availability
of funds.
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8. Outstanding Warrants
 
A summary of warrant activity for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 is as follows:
 

 
Preferred Stock  

Warrants Issued
& Outstanding  

Weighted -
Average

Exercise Price  
Warrants Issued

& Exercisable  

Average
Remaining

Term in Years  
                 
Outstanding December 31, 2009   443,853  $ 3.00   443,853   2.18 
Granted   -   -   -   - 
Outstanding December 31, 2010   443,853   3.00   443,853   1.18 
Expired   (51,374)   3.00   (51,374)     
Outstanding December 31, 2011   392,479   3.00   392,479   0.25 

                 
                 

 
Common Stock  

Warrants Issued
& Outstanding  

Weighted -
Average

Exercise Price  
Warrants Issued

& Exercisable  

Average
Remaining

Term in Years  
          
Outstanding December 31, 2009   477,734  $ 0.79   477,734   3.34 
Granted   950,856   0.13   950,856   - 
Outstanding December 31, 2010   1,428,590   0.35   1,428,590   4.08 
Expired   -   -   -   - 
Outstanding December 31, 2011   1,428,590   0.35   1,428,590   3.08 

                 
          

 
Total  

Warrants Issued
& Outstanding  

Weighted -
Average

Exercise Price  
Warrants Issued

& Exercisable  

Average
Remaining

Term in Years  
          
Outstanding December 31, 2009   921,587  $ 1.85   921,587   2.78 
Granted   950,856   0.13   950,856   - 
Outstanding December 31, 2010   1,872,443   0.98   1,872,443   3.39 
Expired   (51,374)   3.00   (51,374)     
Outstanding December 31, 2011   1,821,069   0.92   1,821,069   2.47 

 
 

90

EDGAR Stream is a copyright of Issuer Direct Corporation, all rights reserved.



 
 

 AEMETIS, INC.
December 31, 2011

 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 
9. Stock-Based Compensation
 
Common Stock Reserved for Issuance
 
Aemetis authorized the issuance of 8,600,434 shares under its 2007 Stock Plan and the former Zymetis, Inc. Stock Plan for stock
option awards, which includes both incentive and non-statutory stock options. These options generally expire five years from the date
of grant and are exercisable at any time after the date of the grant, subject to vesting.
 
The following is a summary of options granted under the employee stock plans:
 

  
Shares

Available   
Number of

Shares   
Weighted-
Average  

  For Grant   Outstanding   
Exercise

Price  
             
Balance as of December 31, 2009   185,410   4,697,000  $ 1.37 
Authorized   908,734   -   - 
Granted   (1,694,144)   1,694,144   0.19 
Forfeited   610,167   (610,167)   1.32 
Balance as of December 31, 2010   10,167   5,780,977   1.02 
Authorized   959,290   -   - 
Merger with Zymetis, Inc. Plan   323,817   1,421,183   0.41 
Exercised   -   (35,585)   0.06 
Forfeited/Expired/Shares from Cashless exercise   362,874   (362,874)   0.20 
Balance as of December 31, 2011   1,656,148   6,803,701   0.94 

 
The weighted average remaining contractual term for the Stock Plans at December 31, 2011 and 2010 were 2.59 and 3.41 years,
respectively. The weighted average grant date fair value per share of the awards issued during the year ended 2010 was $0.07.
 
The 35,585 shares of common stock exercised from the Company’s stock plans during 2011 had an intrinsic value of $24,041 at time
of exercise. The weighted average strike price for the shares exercised was $0.06 per share and the weighted average closing
market price at time of exercise was $0.74. The exercised shares hold a restrictive legend.
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At December 31, 2011 and 2010 the weighted average remaining contractual term of shares issued to Aemetis consultants were 1.66
and 2.21 years, respectively. The Company recorded an expense for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 in the amount of
$24,533 and $4,553, respectively, which reflects periodic fair value re-measurement of outstanding consultant options under ASC
505-50-30 Equity Based Payments to Non Employees. The valuation using the Black-Scholes-Merton model is based upon the
current market value of the Company’s common stock and other current assumptions, including the expected term (contractual term
for consultant options). The Company records the expense related to consultant options using the accelerated expense pattern
prescribed in ASC 505-50-30. Vested and unvested options outstanding under the Aemetis Stock Option Plans as of December 31,
2011 and 2010 follow:
 

     Weighted   Remaining     
     Average   Contractual   Aggregate  
  Number of   Exercise   Term   Intrinsic  
  Shares   Price   (In Years)   Value1  

             
2010             
Vested   4,027,916  $ 1.37   3.36  $ - 
Unvested   1,753,061   0.23   4.01   - 
Total   5,780,977  $ 1.02   3.56  $ - 
                 
2011                 
Vested   5,960,116  $ 1.05   2.57  $ 316,388 
Unvested   843,585   0.17   3.15   - 
Total   6,803,701  $ 0.94   2.64  $ 316,388 

———————
(1) Based on the $0.70 closing price of Aemetis stock on December 31, 2011, as reported on the Over-the-Counter Bulletin Board,
certain option holders of 946,050 shares from the 2006 Employee Option Plan had $316,388 in aggregate intrinsic value. The option
holders under the 2007 Amended and Restated Stock Option Plan carried no aggregate intrinsic value on December 31, 2011. Based
on the $0.14 closing price of Aemetis stock on December 31, 2010, as reported on the Over-the-Counter Bulletin Board, options had
no aggregate intrinsic value.
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Valuation and Expense Information
 
The weighted-average fair value calculations for options granted within the period are based on the following weighted average
assumptions:
 

  
Fiscal Year Ended

December 31  

  2011   2010  
        
Dividend-yield   0% 0%
Risk-free interest rate   0.20-1.80% 1.22-2.37% 

Expected volatility   
90.38-
103.22%  

58.88-
120.90%

Expected life (years)   0.2-4.0   3.12 
Weighted average fair value per share of common stock  $ 0.10  $ 0.07 

 
The Company incurred non-cash stock compensation expense of $177,278 and $377,669 in fiscal 2011 and 2010, respectively, for
options granted to employees and consultants. As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company had $38,690 and $16,325
respectively, of total unrecognized compensation expenses that the Company will amortize over the next five fiscal years.
 
10. Acquisitions, Divestitures and Material Agreements
 
Technology Company Formation. On February 28, 2007, the Company acquired a 51% interest in Energy Enzymes, Inc. On October
14, 2010, the Company issued 1,000,000 shares of common stock in Aemetis in exchange for the remaining 49% interest in Energy
Enzymes. The acquisition of the remaining 49% interest was accounted for as an equity transaction as the Company already
controlled Energy Enzymes, and therefore the non-controlling interest accumulated loss of ($501,331) was transferred to paid-in
capital.  Losses of $138,956 from Energy Enzymes operations through October 14, 2010 were allocated to the non-controlling interest
owner.
 
Alcamar Oil and Fats, Ltd. termination:  On January 23, 2008, International Biofuels, Ltd agreed to end the joint venture with Acalmar
Oils and Fats, Ltd. including termination of Acalmar’s right to own or receive any ownership interest in the joint venture. The total
cancellation price payable by International Biofuels was $900,000 and was expensed in 2008.  In 2010 the Company negotiated the
remaining balance of $600,000 to $150,000 and other income of $450,000 was recognized.
 
Technology Company Acquisition. On July 1, 2011, the Company completed the acquisition of Zymetis, Inc., a Delaware corporation
in exchange for 6,673,557 shares of Aemetis common stock.  The acquisition was made as a strategic purchase related to the
research and development work that Zymetis was performing.  The purchase price was determined based on an arms-length
negotiated value, which resulted in the recognition of goodwill.  See following for Zymetis merger Purchase Price Allocation and
Goodwill Reconciliation:
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  2011  
     
Issuance of Stock as merger consideration  $1,801,860 
Fair Value of stock options attributable to the pre-combination service   88,275 
Consideration paid  $1,890,135 
     
Working capital assets  $ 11,201 
Property, Plant & Equipment   65,493 
Working capital liabilities   (509,078)
Debt assumed   (346,995)
  Deferred Taxes   (98,479)
     
Intangibles   1,800,000 
Net Assets Acquired  $ 922,141 
     
Goodwill  $ 967,994 

Post-merger, the Zymetis subsidiary was renamed Aemetis Technologies, Inc and continued its R&D development work. Aemetis
Technologies generated $1,750 in consulting income and $174,488 in losses for the year ending December 31, 2011.  The proforma
adjustments for this acquisition are not material.

Working Capital Arrangement. On March 9, 2011, the Company entered into a Purchasing Agreement and Corn Procurement and
Working Capital Agreement with J.D. Heiskell pursuant to which J.D. Heiskell agrees to supply 100% of the Company’s requirements
for whole yellow corn until December 31, 2011 with automatic one year renewal terms. Heiskell further agrees to sell all ethanol to
Kinergy Marketing or other marketing purchaser designated by the Company and all WDG and syrup to A.L. Gilbert. These
agreements are ordinary purchase and sale agency agreements for an ethanol plant. See following for J.D. Heiskell & Company
sales, purchases and accounts receivable as of and for the year ended 2011.
 

J.D. Heiskell & Company:
  2011  
Sales     

Ethanol  $105,447,012 
Distillers Grains   20,558,034 

Total Sales   126,005,046 
     
Corn Purchases   106,194,420 
     
Accounts Receivable  $ 841,729 
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Ethanol Marketing Arrangement. The Company entered into an Ethanol Marketing Agreement with Kinergy Marketing. Under the
terms of the agreement, subject to certain conditions, the agreement term is August 31, 2013 with automatic one-year renewals
thereafter.  For the year ended December 31. 2011, Kinergy Marketing earned $928,548 under the terms of this agreement.
 
11. Segment Information
 
Summarized financial information by reportable segment for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, based on the internal
management system, is as follows:

Statement of Operations Data  Year ended December 31,  

  2011   2010  
Revenues       

India  $ 9,911,616  $8,132,108 
North America   131,946,298   - 
Other   -   - 

Total revenues  $141,857,914  $8,132,108 

         
Cost of goods sold         

India  $ 9,494,395   8,254,123 
North America   127,721,645   - 
Other   -   - 

Total cost of goods sold  $137,216,040  $8,254,123 

         
Gross profit (loss)         

India  $ 417,221  $ (122,015)
North America   4,224,653   - 
Other   -   - 

Total gross profit (loss)  $ 4,641,874  $ (122,015)

 
India: In 2010 all of the Company’s revenues were from sales to external customers in the Company’s India Segment. During 2010,
customer Essar Steel Limited accounted for approximately 10% of the Company’s biodiesel sales, but no customer accounted for
10% or more of consolidated 2010 sales. In 2011, customer Gunvor International B.V.Amsterdam represented approximately 70% of
total revenues by purchasing biodiesel for export to Europe.
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North America: In 2011, all of the Company’s revenues from sales of ethanol and WDG were sold to J.D. Heiskell pursuant to the
Corn Procurement and Working Capital Agreement.  Sales to J.D. Heiskell accounted for 93% of the Company’s consolidated
revenues.
 

  Year Ended December 31  
Total Assets Data  2011   2010  

India  $15,654,763  $16,349,504 
North America   11,563,132   5,244,421 
Other   26   110 
Total Assets  $27,217,921  $21,594,035 

 
12. Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)
 
The following is a summary of the unaudited quarterly results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010:
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2011
 

  For the three months ended   
For the year

ended  

  
March 31,

2011   June 30, 2011   
September 30,

2011   
December 31,

2011   
December 31,

2011  
                
Revenues  $ 738,469  $ 27,253,190  $ 56,571,595  $ 57,294,660  $141,857,914 
                     
Cost of goods sold   787,472   27,567,654   55,789,374   53,071,540   137,216,040 
                     
Gross profit/(loss)   (49,003)   (314,464)   782,221   4,223,120   4,641,874 
                     
Research and development expenses   32,569   71,400   337,229   135,427   576,625 
Selling, general and administrative expenses   2,103,409   1,989,282   2,212,510   2,265,390   8,570,591 
                   - 
Operating loss   (2,184,981)   (2,375,146)   (1,767,518)   1,822,303   (4,505,342)
                     
Other income/(expense)                     

Interest income   4,021   2,796   351   16,268   23,436 
Interest expense   (2,103,163)   (3,649,359)   (3,785,857)   (4,022,906)   (13,561,285)
Other income, net of expenses   24,031   54,207   4,070   (29,348)   52,960 
Loss on asset sales   -   (401,407)   -   -   (401,407)

Loss before income taxes   (4,260,092)   (6,368,909)   (5,548,954)   (2,213,683)   (18,391,638)
                     

Income taxes benefit/(expense)   (3,200)   -   98,479   -   95,279 
                     
Net loss   (4,263,292)   (6,368,909)   (5,450,475)   (2,213,683)   (18,296,359)
Less: Net loss attributable to the noncontrolling interest   -   -   -   - 
Net loss attributable to Aemetis, Inc.  $ (4,263,292)  $ (6,368,909)  $ (5,450,475)  $ (2,213,683)  $ (18,296,359)
                     
Other comprehensive loss                     

Foreign currency translation adjustment   20,286   (16,031)   (727,992)   (648,704)   (1,372,441)
Comprehensive loss attributable to Aemetis, Inc.  $ (4,243,006)  $ (6,384,940)  $ (6,178,467)  $ (2,862,387)  $ (19,668,800)
                     
Loss per common share attributable to Aemetis, Inc.  

Basic and diluted  $ (0.05)  $ (0.07)  $ (0.05)  $ (0.02)  $ (0.18)
Weighted average shares outstanding                     

Basic and diluted   90,789,254   92,384,340   100,446,788   130,127,853   103,536,643 
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2010
 

  For the three months ended   
For the year

ended  

  March 31, 2010  June 30, 2010   
September 30,

2010   
December 31,

2010   
December 31,

2010  
                     
Revenues  $ 2,236,838  $ 1,805,710  $ 1,592,932  $ 2,496,628  $ 8,132,108 
                     
Cost of goods sold   2,209,593   1,941,674   1,671,989   2,430,867   8,254,123 
                     
Gross profit/(loss)   27,245   (135,964)   (79,057)   65,761   (122,015)
                     
Research and development expenses   144,530   109,847   29,206   38,978   322,561 
Selling, general and administrative expenses   1,009,982   1,101,128   903,680   1,694,954   4,709,744 
                   - 
Operating loss   (1,127,267)   (1,346,939)   (1,011,943)   (1,668,171)   (5,154,320)
                     
Other income/(expense)                     

Interest income   180   1,914   147   22,223   24,464 
Interest expense   (909,018)   (917,037)   (726,564)   (1,481,828)   (4,034,447)
Other income, net of expenses   27,974   18,810   15,789   540,721   603,294 

Loss before income taxes   (2,008,131)   (2,243,252)   (1,722,571)   (2,587,055)   (8,561,009)
                     

Income taxes benefit/(expense)   (3,200)   -   -   -   (3,200)
                     
Net loss   (2,011,331)   (2,243,252)   (1,722,571)   (2,587,055)   (8,564,209)
Less: Net loss attributable to the noncontrolling
interest    (70,820)   (53,825)   (14,311)   -   (138,956)
Net loss attributable to Aemetis, Inc.  $ (1,940,511)  $ (2,189,427)  $ (1,708,260)  $ (2,587,055)  $ (8,425,253)
                     
Other comprehensive loss                     

Foreign currency translation adjustment   427,800   (309,086)   33,782   352,965   505,461 
Comprehensive loss   (1,583,531)   (2,552,338)   (1,688,789)   (2,234,090)   (8,058,748)
Comprehensive loss attributable to the noncontrolling
interest   -    -   -   -   - 
Comprehensive loss attributable to Aemetis, Inc.  $ (1,512,711)  $ (2,498,513)  $ (1,674,478)  $ (2,234,090)  $ (7,919,792)
                     
Loss per common share attributable to Aemetis, Inc.  

Basic and diluted  $ (0.02)  $ (0.03)  $ (0.02)  $ (0.03)   (0.10)
Weighted average shares outstanding                     

Basic and diluted   86,182,765   86,566,702   86,987,032   89,840,728   87,403,213 
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13. Related Party Transactions
 
The Company owes Eric McAfee and McAfee Capital, solely owned by Eric McAfee, amounts of $1,254,188 and $803,370 in
connection with employment agreements and expense reimbursements, which are included in accrued expenses and accounts
payable on the balance sheet as of December 31, 2011 and 2010.  For the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company
expensed $519,828 and $608,874 in connection with compensation and expense reimbursements.
 
The Company owes various Board Members amounts of $638,563 and $490,658 as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively, in
connection with board compensation fees, which are included in accounts payable on the balance sheet.  For the years ended
December 31, 2011 and 2010 the Company expensed $228,654 and $188,198, respectively, in connection with board compensation
fees.
 
In July 2009, the Company entered into a sublease agreement with Nevo Energy, Inc. (formerly known as Solargen Energy, Inc.) for
approximately 3,000 square feet of leased space. For the year ended December 31, 2010, the Company invoiced, collected and
offset as rent and utilities expense $125,858 under this agreement and collected a prepayment of $11,876, which the Company
received for April 2010 rent.  For the year ending December 31, 2011, the Company invoiced Nevo Energy $86,291 in rents, but
reserved all the payments during 2011 due to Nevo Energy’s inability to pay.  The future minimum lease payments above exclude
collections of rents under this sublease agreement.  Eric McAfee is a member of the Board of Directors and a significant shareholder
of Nevo Energy, Inc.  Michael Peterson, a former member of the Company’s Board of Directors, was also the Chief Executive Officer
of Nevo Energy, Inc. during 2011.   See Note 6 Operating Leases.
 
14. Income Tax
 
The Company files a consolidated federal income tax return. This return includes all corporate companies 80% or more owned by the
Company as well as the Company’s pro-rata share of taxable income from pass-through entities in which Company holds an
ownership interest. On October 14, 2010 AE Biofuels acquired the remaining 49% interest in Energy Enzymes, Inc. During 2011
Energy Enzymes was included as a 100% consolidated entity for financial reporting purposes. State tax returns are filed on a
consolidated, combined or separate basis depending on the applicable laws relating to the Company and its subsidiaries.
 
Components of tax expense consist of the following:
 

  Year Ended December 31,  

  2011   2010  
Current:       

Federal   -   - 
State and local  $ 3,200  $ 3,200 
Foreign   -   - 

   3,200   3,200 
         
Deferred:         

Federal   (83,707)   - 
State and local   (14,772)   - 
Foreign   -   - 

Income tax expense/(benefit)   (95,279)  $ 3,200 
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U.S. loss and foreign loss before income taxes are as follows:
 

  Year Ended December 31,

  2011   2010  
         
United States  $(17,188,080 )  $ (7,635,366) 
Foreign   (1,203,558)   (925,643)3)
Loss before income taxes  $ (18,391,638)  $ (8,561,009)

 
Income tax expense differs from the amounts computed by applying the statutory U.S. federal income tax rate (34%) to income before
income taxes as a result of the following:
 

  Year Ended December 31,  

  2011   2010  
         
Income tax expense at the federal statutory rate  $(6,253,156)  $(2,910,743)
Increase (decrease) resulting from:         

State tax   (1,441,008)   (232,303)
Stock-based compensation   41,703   134,497 
Foreign loss   290,821   244,847 
Interest expense   404,972   10,089 
Credits   (990,000)   — 
Other   9,457   21,711 
Valuation allowance   7,841,932   2,735,102 
Income tax expense  $ (95,279)  $ 3,200 

          
Effective tax rate   0.52%   (0.04)%
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The components of the net deferred tax asset or (liability) are as follows:
 

  December 31,  

  2011   2010  
Deferred tax assets (liabilities):       

Organization, start-up costs & intangible assets  $ 8,916,114  $ 9,113,611 
Stock-based compensation   588,192   749,458 
Property, plant and equipment   2,511,067   2,964,914 
Net operating loss carryforward   11,578,808   5,062,449 
Convertible debt   (103,127)   (462,471)
Credit carryforward   1,500,000   — 
Other, net   589,890   492,153 

Total deferred tax assets (liabilities)   25,580,944   17,920,114 
Less valuation allowance  $(25,580,944)  $(17,920,114)

Deferred tax assets (liabilities)   —   — 

 
Based on the Company’s evaluation of current and anticipated future taxable income, the Company believes it is more likely than not
that insufficient taxable income will be generated to realize the net deferred tax assets, and accordingly, a valuation allowance has
been set against these net deferred tax assets.
 
We do not provide for U.S. income taxes for any undistributed earnings of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries, as the Company
considers these to be permanently reinvested in the operations of such subsidiaries and have a cumulative foreign loss.  At
December 31, 2011 and 2010, these undistributed earnings (losses) totaled $(7,195,566), and $(5,980,052), respectively. If any
earnings were distributed, some countries may impose withholding taxes. However, due to the Company’s overall deficit in foreign
cumulative earnings and its U.S. loss position, the Company does not believe a material net unrecognized U.S. deferred tax liability
exists.
 
ASC 740 Income Taxes provides that the tax effects from an uncertain tax position can be recognized in the Company’s financial
statements only if the position is more-likely-than-not of being sustained on audit, based on the technical merits of the position. Tax
positions that meet the recognition threshold are reported at the largest amount that is more-likely-than-not to be realized. This
determination requires a high degree of judgment and estimation. The Company periodically analyzes and adjusts amounts recorded
for the Company’s uncertain tax positions, as events occur to warrant adjustment, such as when the statutory period for assessing tax
on a given tax return or period expires or if tax authorities provide administrative guidance or a decision is rendered in the courts. The
Company does not reasonably expect the total amount of uncertain tax positions to significantly increase or decrease within the next
12 months. As of December 31, 2011, the Company’s uncertain tax positions were not significant for income tax purposes.
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We conduct business globally and, as a result, one or more of the Company’s subsidiaries file income tax returns in the U.S. federal
jurisdiction and various state and foreign jurisdictions. In the normal course of business, the Company is subject to examination by
taxing authorities throughout the world, including such major jurisdictions as India, Mauritius, and the United States. The Company
files a U.S. federal income tax return and tax returns in nine U.S. states, as well as in two foreign jurisdictions. Penalties and interest
are classified as general and administrative expenses.
 
The following describes the open tax years, by major tax jurisdiction, as of December 31, 2011:
 

United States — Federal 2006 – present
United States — State 2005 – present
India 2006 – present
Mauritius 2006 – present

 
As of December 31, 2011, the Company had federal net operating loss carryforwards of $20,809,989 and state net operating loss
carryforwards of $23,075,789.  The Company also has approximately $1,500,000 of alcohol and cellulosic biofuel credit
carryforwards. The federal net operating loss and other tax credit carryforwards expire on various dates between 2027 and 2031. The
state net operating loss carryforwards expire on various dates between 2027 through 2030. Under the current tax law, net operating
loss and credit carryforwards available to offset future income in any given year may be limited by US or India statute regarding net
operating loss carryovers and timing of expirations or upon the occurrence of certain events, including significant changes in
ownership interests. The Company’s India subsidiary also has net operating loss carryforwards as of March 31, 2012, its tax fiscal
year end, of ($7,272,501) in US dollars, which expire from March 30, 2017 to March 30, 2020.
 
15. Subsequent Events
 
Third Eye Capital Debt Agreements

Subsequent to year-end and prior to the acquisition of Cilion, the debt agreements with Third Eye Capital (“Existing Notes”) were
amended to waive covenant violations, extend the terms of the debt and issue additional debt.  In connection with these agreements,
the Company; (i) incurred fees of $588,000 of which $100,000 was paid in cash and the remainder was added to the principal
balance of the notes, (ii) issued 1,340,000 shares of common stock as fees with a fair value on date of issuance of $801,200, and (iii)
received additional loans of $2,640,000. 
 
In connection with the acquisition of Cilion, the financing agreement with Third Eye Capital was amended and restated to include
three new credit facilities.  The new credit agreement provides for (i) a new senior secured term loan in the principal amount of $15
million, used to pay the cash portion of the Cilion acquisition (the “Term Loan”), (ii) a senior secured loan in the aggregate principal
amount of $10 million to finance outstanding balance and terminate future liabilities under the Revenue Participation obligations (the
“RevPar Loan”); (iii) a senior secured $18 million revolving credit facility (the “Revolving Loan”) used to redeem approximately $7.3
million in remaining outstanding debt with Third Eye Capital at time of acquisition, pay fees related to the transaction and provide
working capital.  Upon the close of the Cilion acquisition, the amount of $3 million remained available on the Revolving Loan.  The
Company issued 15,000,000 shares of its common stock in connection with this financing.  The notes bear interest at rates ranging
from 5% to 17%.  The Revolving Notes mature on July 2013 and provide one-year extensions. The Term Loan and RevPar Loan
mature on July 6, 2014. 
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On October 18, 2012, Third Eye Capital agreed to (i) extend the maturity date of the Existing Notes to July 6, 2014; (ii) to increase the
amount of the Revolving Loan Facility by $6,000,000, to a total of $24,000,000; (iii) to modify the redemption waterfall so that any
payments would be applied first to the increase in the Revolving notes; (iv) granted waivers to the Borrowers’ obligation to pay or
comply, and any event of default which has occurred or may occur as a result of such failures of the Borrowers to pay or comply with
certain financial covenants and principal payments, including financial covenants for the quarter ended September 30 and December
31, 2012; and (v) agreed to accrue interest until the earlier of certain events described in the Limited Waiver or February 1, 2013.  In
consideration for the Limited Waiver and Amendment, the Borrowers, among other things, agreed to pay the Lenders a waiver fee in
the amount of $4,000,000; and (ii) cash in the amount of $28,377 for certain unreimbursed costs. After paying the $4 million waiver
fee, $2 million remained available for draw on the Revolving Loan Facility.
 
$3 Million Note and Warrant Purchase Agreement
 
On January 6 and January 9, 2012, Aemetis Advanced Fuels Keyes, Inc. sold to two accredited investors 5% Subordinated
Promissory Notes in the aggregate principal amount of $3,000,000 and 5-year warrants exercisable for 1,000,000 shares of Aemetis
common stock at an exercise price of $0.001 per share.  Interest is due at maturity.  The promissory notes are guaranteed by
Aemetis and are due and payable upon the earlier of (i) December 31, 2013; (ii) completion of an equity financing by AAFK or
Aemetis in an amount of not less than $25,000,000; (iii) the completion of an Initial Public Offering by AAFK or Aemetis; or (iv) after
the occurrence of an Event of Default, including failure to pay interest or principal when due and breaches of note covenants.  Neither
AAFK nor Aemetis may make any principal payments under the Promissory Notes until all loans made by Third Eye Capital to AAFK
are paid in full.
 
Related Party Revolving Line of Credit Agreement

On October 16, 2012, Aemetis International, Inc. (AII), a subsidiary of Aemetis, Inc. entered into an amendment to the Revolving Line
of Credit Agreement with Laird Q. Cagan and co-owners of financing arrangement, pursuant to which AII extended the maturity date
of the loan until July 1, 2014 and placed an average trailing daily closing price minimum of $0.05 per share for conversion of fees and
accrued interest.  In exchange for the extension, the Company agreed to pay a fee of 5% of the outstanding balance of the Revolving
Line, payable in cash or stock, at the same conversion price and terms as the accrued interest conversion terms.

On October 16, 2012, the Company entered into Amendment No 1. to Revolving Line of Credit Agreement with Laird Q. Cagan to
extend the maturity date of the revolving line of credit until July 1, 2014 and placed an average trailing daily closing price minimum of
$0.05 per share for conversion of fees and accrued interest.
 
Issuance of Convertible Promissory Notes
 
On March 4, 2011, and amended January 19, 2012, and July 24, 2012, the Company entered into a Note Purchase Agreement with
Advanced BioEnergy, LP, a California limited Partnership for the issuance of up to 72 subordinated convertible promissory notes
bearing interest at 3%, each note in the principal amount of $500,000 due and payable four years from the date of the note for a total
aggregate principal amount of up to $36,000,000.
 
Advanced BioEnergy, LP arranges investments with foreign investors, who each make investments in the Keyes plant project in
investment increments of $500,000.  The Company sold notes in the amount of $1,000,000 to the first two investors.  The availability
of the remaining $35,000,000 will be determined by the ability of Advanced BioEnergy, LP to attract additional qualified investors.
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AEMETIS, INC.

December 31, 2011
 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 
Note and Warrant Purchase Agreement
 
On June 21, 2012, Aemetis Advanced Fuels Keyes, Inc. (AAFK), a subsidiary of Aemetis, Inc., entered into Note and Warrant
Purchase Agreements with TEC pursuant to which AAFK sold 5% Subordinated Promissory Notes in the aggregate principal amount
of $400,000 and 5-year warrants exercisable for 133,333 shares of Aemetis common stock, at an exercise price of $0.001 per share,
and paid a fee of $50,000.  These Notes were subsequently refinanced as part of the restructuring in connection with the Cilion
acquisition discussed above.

Land Held for Sale
 
On May 10, 2012, the Company sold its land held for sale with a carrying value of $885,000 for $1,126,867. Proceeds from the sale
were used to repay a portion of the outstanding indebtedness owed to TEC.
 
Acquisition of Cilion (unaudited)
 
On July 6, 2012, the Company acquired Cilion, Inc. through a merger. The Company has been leasing the property owed by Cilion.
The Company’s primary lender supported the financing of the acquisition in anticipation the merger will be accretive to earnings in the
long term. Acquiring the real property and assets associated with the ethanol plant provides assets beneficial to the Company in
securing additional financing and much needed flexibility not available under the lease in the development, testing, and
commercialization of next generation biofuels technologies owed by the Company.
 
At the effective time of the Merger, each issued and outstanding share of Cilion Preferred Stock was automatically converted into the
right to receive an aggregate of (a) $16,500,000 and (b) 20,000,000 shares of Aemetis common stock and (c) the right to receive an
additional cash amount of $5,000,000 plus interest at the rate of 3% per annum, which is payable upon the satisfaction by the
Company of certain conditions set forth in the merger agreement.
 
The fair value of the contingent consideration was determined by discounting the anticipated cash flow stream at an estimated market
rate of interest based on potential payment timing. The merger agreement is the basis for determining the amount of the payment.
The $5,000,000 contingent consideration is payable when the Third Eye Capital loans have been satisfied. The Company anticipates
the contingent consideration will be redeemed after satisfaction of amounts owed under senior secured debt arrangements with Third
Eye Capital. Management projects full satisfaction of the Third Eye Capital obligations will occur within the next two to three years.
 
The preliminary purchase price for Cilion, Inc. is recapped below based on the trading value of the stock at the time of the acquisition
and the expected fair value of the contingent consideration (in thousands):

Cash  $ 16,500 
Fair value of shares issued   15,600 
Contingent Consideration   3,824 
  $ 35,924 
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AEMETIS, INC.

December 31, 2011
 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 
The preliminary acquisition date fair value of consideration was allocated to Cilion’s net tangible and identifiable intangible assets
based on their estimated fair values as of July 6, 2012 as set forth below (in thousands).

Tangible Assets:    
Accounts receivable  $ 3,114 
Prepaid assets   5 
Equipment held for resale   1,367 
Property, plant and equipment   70,464 
Other assets   147 

Total Tangible Assets Acquired   75,097 
     
Liabilities Assumed     

Accounts payable   (6)
     
Identified Intangible Assets     

Permits   926 
Net Assets Acquired  $ 76,017 

 
The Company believes the Cilion shareholders valued the equity component of the consideration higher than the current quoted
market price.  The Company believes the lower market share price is due to the recent lack of information available to the market.
Cilion shareholders valued Aemetis common stock at a value higher than the current trading price on the OTC market, which gave
rise to the gain on bargain purchase accounting of approximately $40 million dollars.

The pro forma financial information below presents the combined revenue and net income for Cilion and the Company for the years
ending December 31, 2010 and 2011, as if the acquisition occurred as of January 1, 2010 (in thousands):

  Historical   Pro Forma  

  Aemetis, Inc.   Cilion, Inc.   Adjustments   Combined  
2010             

Revenue  $ 8,132  $ 500  $ (500)  $ 8,132 
Net loss   (8,425)   (44,218)   35,405   (17,238)

                 
2011                 

Revenue   141,858   2,700   (2,700)   141,858 
Net loss  $ (18,296)  $ (3,487)  $ (4,365)  $ (26,148)

The adjustment columns above include the elimination of the intercompany rental activity received by Cilion from the Company, the
recognition of the bargain purchase gain, adjustments necessary for the revaluation of the assets, and increase in financing costs
associated with the acquisition.
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AEMETIS, INC.
December 31, 2011

 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 
16. Parent Company Financial Statements (Unaudited)
 
The following is a summary of the Parent Company financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010:
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AEMETIS, INC.

December 31, 2011
 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 

Aemetis, Inc. (Parent Company)
Consolidated Condensed Balance Sheets

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010

Assets  2011   2010  
Current assets       

Cash and cash equivalents  $ 747  $ 17,631 
Intercompany receivables   3,168,587   - 
Prepaid expenses   88,000   5,827 

Total current assets   3,257,334   23,458 
         
Investments in Subsidiaries, net of advances     

Investment in Aemetis International, Inc.   5,979,020   9,831,430 
Investment in Aemetis Americas, Inc   -   259,473 

Total investments in Subsidiaries, net of advances   5,979,020   10,090,903 
         

Property, plant and equipment, net   -   2,193 
Other assets   23,095   23,096 

Total Assets  $ 9,259,449  $ 10,139,650 
         
Liabilities & stockholders' deficit      

Current liabilities         
Accounts payable  $ 3,800,250  $ 3,056,268 
Mandatorily redeemable Series B convertibe preferred   2,320,164   2,221,872 
Secured notes, net of discount for issuance cost   1,075,588   900,000 
Interecompany payables   -   233,717 
Other current liabilities   1,786,962   1,714,229 

Total current liabilities   8,982,964   8,126,086 
         
         

Parent Company long term debt portion of secured notes, net of discount for issuance cost   6,016,926   5,915,056 
         
Subsidiary obligation in excess of investment     

Investment in AE Advanced Fuels, Inc.   440   200 
Investment in Aemetis Advanced  Fuels Keyes, Inc.   13,252,571   2,699,096 
Investment in Aemetis Americas, Inc   118,252   - 
Investment in Aemetis Biofuels, Inc.   2,567,894   2,488,735 
Investment in Aemetis Technologies, Inc.   174,488   - 
Investment in Biofuels Marketing, Inc.   348,996   360,185 

Total subsidiary obligation in excess of investment   16,462,641   5,548,216 
         

Total long term liabilities   22,479,567   11,463,272 
         

Stockholders' deficit         
Series B Preferred convertible stock   3,115   3,165 
Common stock   130,747   90,342 
Additional paid-in capital   45,432,447   38,557,376 
Accumulated deficit   (65,526,029)   (47,229,670)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss   (2,243,362)   (870,921)

Total stockholders' deficit   (22,203,082)   (9,449,708)
Total liabilities & stockholders' deficit  $ 9,259,449  $ 10,139,650 
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AEMETIS, INC.

December 31, 2011
 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 

Aemetis, Inc. (Parent Company)
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Loss

For the Years Ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

   2011   2010  
        
Equity in subsidiary earnings (losses)  $(15,386,811)  $ (4,970,719)
          
Selling, general and administrative expenses   1,003,879   1,673,873 
          
Operating loss   (16,390,690)   (6,644,592)
          
Other income/(expense)         
 Interest expense   (1,918,750)   (1,890,304)
 Other income, net of expenses   16,281   112,843 
          
Loss before income taxes   (18,293,159)   (8,422,053)
          
 Income taxes benefit/(expense)   (3,200)   (3,200)
          
Net loss  $(18,296,359)  $ (8,425,253)
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AEMETIS, INC.
December 31, 2011

 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 
Aemetis, Inc. (Parent Company)

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

  2011   2010  
Operating activities:       

Net loss  $(18,296,359)   (8,564,209)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:         

Stock-based compensation   177,278   377,669 
Depreciation and amortization   2,193   11,386 
Amortization of debt issuance discount   1,177,413   717,466 
Loss/(gain) on extinguishment of debt   -   (14,757)

Changes in assets and liabilities:         
Subsidiary portion of net losses   15,386,811   5,109,675 
Prepaid expenses   1,160   (1,380)
Other current assets and other assets   1   15,504 
Accounts payable   743,982   1,044,483 
Accrued interest expense   894,475   1,350,501 
Other liabilities   72,733   209,657 

Net cash provided in operating activities   159,687   255,995 
         
Investing activities:         

Subsidiary advances, net   723,429   598,801 
Net cash used in investing activities   723,429   598,801 

         
Financing activities:         

Repayments of borrowings under secured debt facilities   (900,000)   (850,000)
Net cash provided by financing activities   (900,000)   (850,000)

         
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents   (16,884)   4,796 

         
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period   17,631   12,835 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period  $ 747  $ 17,631 
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AEMETIS, INC.

December 31, 2011
 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 

17. Management’s Plan

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which contemplates the realization of assets
and satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course of business. The Company has experienced losses and negative cash flow and
currently has a working capital deficit and total stockholders’ deficit. The Company has been reliant on their senior secured lender to
provide additional funding requirements when cash flows do not support the payment requirements on the Company’s debt.  Although
the current agreements in place with this lender do not require any payments or covenant requirements through February 2013, the
continuation of the Company depends on management being able to maintain this relationship with the lender or find other financing
options to provide cash as the company expands its technologies.  Management’s plans to continue to operate the Company include:

•  As discussed in the subsequent event footnote, the acquisition of Cilion provided the Company with a substantial asset to
use as collateral both with their current lender and with future financings.

•  Continue to work with the Company’s senior lender to provide financing as well as explore other financing arrangements
including working with Advanced BioEnergy LP to attract investors for the remaining $35 million of notes available under the
program, or through the issuance of additional equity.

•  Development of Joint Venture agreements for the expansion of the Company’s technologies.

•  Continued support from major shareholders and board of directors in providing cash financing.

Management believes that through the above mentioned actions it will be able to sustain the company as a going concern. There can
be no assurance that the existing credit facilities and cash from operations will be sufficient nor that we will be successful at
maintaining adequate relationships with our senior lender or significant shareholders that will result in additional financings.  Should
the Company require additional financing, there can be no assurances that the additional financing will be available on terms
satisfactory to the Company.
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EXHIBIT 21
 

List of Subsidiaries
 
Biofuels Marketing, Inc.
 
Aemetis Biochemicals, Inc.
 
Aemetis International, Inc.

International Biofuels Ltd (Mauritius)
Universal Biofuels Private Limited (India)
 

Aemetis Technologies, Inc.
Aemetis Biofuels, Inc.

Energy Enzymes, Inc.
 

AE Advanced Fuels, Inc.
Aemetis Advanced Fuels Keyes, Inc.
Aemetis Facility Keyes, Inc.

EE Leasing, Inc.
 

Aemetis Advanced Fuels, Inc.
Aemetis Americas, Inc.

AE Biofuels, Inc.

EDGAR Stream is a copyright of Issuer Direct Corporation, all rights reserved.



EXHIBIT 10.10
AE BIOFUELS, INC.

 
TODD WALTZ EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

This Agreement is made by and between AE Biofuels, Inc. (the "Company") and Todd Waltz
 

("Employee") to be effective as of March 15, 2010 (the "Effective Date").
 

1.           Duties and Scope of Employment.

a .   Position; Employment Commencement Date; Duties.  Employee's employment with the Company pursuant to this
Agreement is effective as of March 15, 2010 (the "Employment Commencement Date").  On and after the Employment
Commencement Date, the Company shall employ the Employee as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer reporting to
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.  During the Employment Term (as defined in section 2 herein), Employee shall render
such business and professional services in the performance of his duties as are consistent with Employee's position within the
Company, and as shall reasonably be assigned to him by the Chief Executive Officer.

b .   Obligations.  Except as otherwise agreed between the Chief Executive Officer and the employee, during the
Employment Term, Employee shall devote his full business efforts and time to the Company.  Employee agrees during the
Employment Term, not to actively engage in any other employment, occupation or consulting activity for any direct or indirect
remuneration without the prior approval of the Chief Executive Officer; provided, however, that Employee may serve in any capacity
with any civic, educational or charitable organization.

2 .           Employment Term. It is intended that the employment arrangement contemplated by this Agreement shall
continue until the third anniversary of the Effective Date, with automatic one year extensions thereafter unless terminated by either
party on sixty days notice prior to the end of each respective extension year (such three-year period and any extensions being
referred to herein as the "Employment Term").  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the parties agree that neither this Agreement nor
any provision herein is intended to guarantee the continuation of Employee's employment for the duration of the Employment
Term.  In the event that Employee's  employment with the Company terminates prior to the expiration of the Employment Term for
any reason, the parties agree that Employee shall be entitled to receive only those benefits that are expressly provided by this
Agreement in such circumstances.

 
3 .           Employee Benefits.  During the Employment Term, Employee shall be eligible to participate in the employee and

fringe benefit plans maintained by the Company that are applicable to other employees of the Company to the full extent provided
for under those plans for the position held by the Employee.

 
4 .           Vacation.  During the Employment Term, Employee shall have three weeks of paid vacation per year.  In the

event of termination, any unused vacation weeks shall be paid as salary continuation.
 
5 .           Expenses.  While Employee is employed during the Employment Term, the Company will reimburse Employee

for reasonable travel, entertainment or other expenses incurred by Employee in the furtherance of or in connection with the
performance of Employee's duties hereunder, in accordance with the Company's expense reimbursement policy as in effect from
time to time.
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6.           Compensation.

a .   Base Salary.  While employed by the Company, the Company shall pay the Employee as compensation for his
services a base salary at the annualized rate of One Hundred Eighty Thousand ($180,000) per year (the "Base Salary").  Such salary
shall be paid periodically in accordance with normal Company payroll practices and subject to required withholding. Employee's Base
Salary shall be reviewed annually by the Company for possible adjustments in light of Employee's performance and competitive data.

b .   Bonus.  Employee shall be entitled to receive, within 90 days after the end of each year, an annual bonus (the
"Bonus") of up to $50,000 based upon Employee's  performance and other criteria to be established by the Company.  Except as
permitted under Section 7, Employee must be employed by the Company during the entire applicable bonus period for the payment of
the Bonus.  With respect to any subjective milestones, the determination of whether Employee has attained the mutually agreed upon
milestones for the Bonus shall be reasonably determined by the Employee's supervisor.

 
c.   Severance.

i.   Involuntary Termination Other Than for Cause; Constructive Termination.  If Employee's employment with the
Company is Constructively Terminated or involuntarily terminated by the Company other than for Cause (as defined below),
Employee's death, or Employee's Total Disability, then, subject to Employee executing and not revoking a standard form of mutual
release of claims with the Company, Employee shall be entitled to receive continuing payments of severance pay (less applicable
withholding taxes) at the rate equal to Employee's Base Salary, as then in effect, for a period of three (3) months from the date of
such termination in accordance with the Company's  normal payroll practices.  In addition to the foregoing severance benefits,
Employee shall receive at the Company's  expense 100% of Company-paid health, dental and vision insurance benefits at the same
level of coverage as was provided to Employee immediately prior to the termination of Employee's employment with the Company
("Company Paid Coverage").  If such coverage included Employee's dependents immediately prior to Employee's termination, such
dependents shall also be covered at the Company's  expense. Company-Paid Coverage shall continue until the earlier of (i) three (3)
months following the date of the termination of Employee's  employment (the "Benefits Termination Date"), or (ii) the date upon which
Employee or Employee's dependents become covered under another employer's  group health, dental and vision insurance benefit
plans.

i i .   Involuntary Termination Other Than for Cause; Constructive Termination On
or Following Change of Control.  If, on or following a Change of Control, Employee's employment with the Company is Constructively
Terminated or involuntarily terminated by the Company other than for Cause, Employee's death, or Employee's Total Disability, then,
subject to Employee executing and not revoking a standard form of mutual release of claims with the Company, in addition to the
severance benefits set forth in Section 6d(i) above, all of Employee's stock options and restricted stock shall immediately accelerate
vesting as to 100% ofthe then unvested shares.
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iii.   Cause Definition.  For the purposes of this Agreement, "Cause" means (1) Employee's  material, willful and
continuing breach of his obligations to the Company after thirty (30) days written notice from the Company specifying the nature of
Employee's breach and demanding that such breach be remedied (unless such breach by its nature cannot be cured, in which case
notice and an opportunity to cure shall not be required); (2) Employee's  conviction of a felony that is injurious to the Company or its
business; or (3) act or acts of dishonesty by Employee that are injurious to the Company or its business.

iv.   Constructive Termination Definition.  For the purposes of this Agreement, "Constructive Termination" means,
without Employee's  written consent, (i) a material reduction in Employee's salary or benefits; provided, however, that a reduction in
Employee's salary or benefits will not constitute a Constructive Termination if it is part of and proportional to a reduction in salary or
benefits of the Company's  executive staff as a whole, (ii) a material diminution of Employee's officer title, duties, authority or
responsibilities as in effect immediately prior to such diminution.

v .   Change of Control Definition.  For the purposes of this Agreement, "Change of Control" means, in one or a
series of transactions: (1) a reorganization or merger of the Company with or into any other Company which will result in the
Company's shareholders immediately prior to such transaction not holding, as a result of such transaction, at least 50% of the voting
power of the surviving or continuing entity or the entity controlling the surviving or continuing entity; (2) a sale of all or substantially all
of the assets of the Company which will result in the Company's shareholders immediately prior to such sale not holding, as a result
of such sale, at least 50% of the voting power of the purchasing entity; (3) a change in the majority of the Board not approved by at
least two-thirds of the Company's  directors in office prior to such change; or (4) the adoption of any plan of liquidation providing for
the distribution of all or substantially all of the Company's  assets.  It is the intent of the Company to move into the public arena and
such transaction, which may include the merger or acquisition of the Company, shall not constitute a Change of Control for purposes
of this agreement.

 
v i .   Total Disability Definition.  For the purposes of this Agreement, "Total Disability" shall mean Employee's

mental or physical impairment which has or is likely to prevent Employee from performing the responsibilities and duties of his
position for three (3) months or more in the aggregate during any six (6) month period.  Any question as to the existence or extent of
Employee's disability upon which the Employee and the Company cannot agree shall be resolved by a qualified independent
physician who is an acknowledged expert in the area of the mental or physical impairment, selected in good faith by the Board and
Employee (or his personal administrator).

vi i .   No Mitigation.  Except as specifically provided herein, the Employee shall not be required to mitigate the
value of any severance benefits contemplated by this Agreement, nor shall any such benefits be reduced by any earnings or benefits
that the Employee may receive from any other source.

 
v i i i .   Voluntary Termination other than pursuant to a Constructive Termination;

Involuntary Termination for Cause.  If, during the Employment Term, the Employee's employment is terminated by the Company for
Cause, or by Employee for any reason, other than death, Total Disability or pursuant to a Constructive Termination, then all further
vesting of any option, restricted stock award or other Company equity compensation held by Employee will cease immediately
(however, Employee shall be permitted to exercise vested options for the time period specified in his option agreements and he shall
retain all vested restricted shares) and all payments of compensation by the Company to Employee hereunder will terminate
immediately (except as to amounts already earned).
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i x .   Involuntary Termination on Death.  If, during the Employment Term, the Employee's employment is
terminated by the Company as a result of Employee's death, then 50% of unvested equity awards from the Company then held by
Employee shall immediately vest, or if Employee is then holding unvested shares, the Company's right to repurchase the then-
unvested shares under each such equity award shall lapse, with respect to 50% of the shares under each such award.

7 .           Assignment.  This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of (a) the heirs, beneficiaries,
executors and legal representatives of Employee upon Employee's death and (b) any successor of the Company.  Any such
successor of the Company shall be deemed substituted for the Company under the terms of this Agreement for all purposes.  As
used herein, "successor" shall include any person, firm, corporation or other business entity which at any time, whether by purchase,
merger or otherwise, directly or indirectly acquires all or substantially all of the assets or business of the Company.

8 .           Notices.  All notices, requests, demands and other communications called for hereunder shall be in writing and
shall be deemed given if (i) delivered personally or by facsimile, (ii) one (1) day after being sent by Federal Express or a similar
commercial overnight service, or (iii) three (3) days after being mailed by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, prepaid
and addressed to the parties or their successors in interest at the following addresses, or at such other addresses as the parties may
designate by written notice in the manner aforesaid:
 

a.   If to the Company:
 
AE Biofuels, Inc.
20400 Stevens Creek Blvd., Suite 700
Cupertino, CA  95014
Fax:  (408) 213-0925
 
b.  If to Employee:
 
Todd Waltz
P.O. Box 1445
Cupertino, CA  95015
 
or at the last residential address known by the Company.
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9 .           Proprietary Information Agreement.  Employee agrees to enter into the Company's standard Employment,
Confidential Information and Invention Assignment Agreement (the "Proprietary Information Agreement") upon commencing
employment hereunder.

 
1 0 .         Entire Agreement.  This Agreement, and the employee benefit plans referred to in Section 3 and the Proprietary

Information Agreement represent the entire agreement and understanding between the Company and Employee concerning
Employee's employment relationship with the Company, and supersede and replace any and all prior agreements and
understandings concerning Employee's employment relationship with the Company.

 
11 .         No Oral Modification, Cancellation or Discharge.  This Agreement may only be amended, canceled or discharged

in writing signed by Employee and the Company's  Executive Chairman.
 
1 2 .         Withholding.  The Company shall be entitled to withhold, or cause to be withheld, from payment any amount of

withholding taxes required by law with respect to payments made to Employee in connection with his employment hereunder.
 
1 3 .         Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of

California without reference to rules relating to conflict of law. 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed this Agreement as of March 15, 2010:
 
Date:  March 17, 2010 By: /s/ Eric McAfee  

  Eric McAfee  
 
 EMPLOYEE  
    
Date:  March 17, 2010 By: /s/ Todd Waltz  
  Todd Waltz  
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ZYMETIS, INC.
2006 STOCK INCENTIVE  PLAN NOVEMBER 17, 2006
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ZYMETIS, INC.
2006 STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

Section 1.    Purpose
 

The purpose of the Plan is to promote the interests of the Company and its shareholders by aiding the Company in attracting
and retaining employees, officers, consultants,  independent contractors and directors capable of assuring the future success of the
Company,  to offer such persons incentives to put forth maximum efforts for the success of the Company's business and to afford
such persons an opportunity to acquire a proprietary interest in the Company.
 
Section 2.    Definitions
 

As used in the Plan, the following terms shall have the meanings set forth below:
 
(a)         "Affiliate" shall mean (i) any entity that, directly or indirectly  through one or more intermediaries, is controlled by the

Company and (ii) any entity in which the Company has a significant equity interest, in each case as determined by the Committee.
 
( b )         "Award'' shall mean any Option, Stock Appreciation Right, Restricted  Stock, Restricted Stock Unit,

Performance  Award, Dividend Equivalent, Other Stock Grant or Other Stock-Based Award granted under the Plan.
 
( c )         "Award Agreement" shall mean any written agreement,  contract or other instrument or document evidencing any

Award granted under the Plan.  Each Award Agreement shall be subject to the applicable terms and conditions of the Plan and any
other terms and conditions (n0t inconsistent with the Plan) determined by the Committee.

 
(d)         "Board'' shall mean the Board of Directors of the Company.
 
( e )         "Code" shall mean the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended from time to time, and any regulations

promulgated thereunder.
 
(f)         "Committee" shall mean a committee of Directors designated  by the Board to administer the Plan, which shall initially

be the Company's compensation  committee.   In the absence of the designation of a committee, the Board shall serve as the
Committee

 
(g)         "Company" shall mean Zymetis, Inc., a Delaware corporation,  and any successor corporation.
 
(h)         "Director" shall mean a member of the Board, including any Non-Employee Director.
 
(i)          "Dividend Equivalent" shall mean any right granted under Section 6(e) of the Plan.
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(j)          "Eligible Person" shall mean any employee, officer, consultant,  independent contractor or director providing services

to the Company or any Affiliate who the Committee determines to be an Eligible Person.
 
( k )         "Fair Market Value" shall mean, with respect to any property (including, without limitation, any Shares or other

securities), the fair market value of such property determined by such methods or procedures as shall be established from time to
time by the Committee..

 
(1)         "Incentive Stock Option" shall mean an option granted under Section 6(a) of the Plan that is intended to qualify as an

"incentive stock option" in accordance  with the tem1s of Section 422 of the Code or any successor provision.
 
( m )        "Non-Qualified Stock Option" shall mean an option granted under Section 6(a) of the Plan that is not an Incentive

Stock Option.
 
(n)         "Option" shall mean an Incentive Stock Option or a Non-Qualified  Stock Option.
 
(o)         "Other Stock Grant" shall mean any right granted under Section 6(f) of the Plan.
 
(p)         "Other Stock-Based Award" shall mean any right granted under Section 6(g) of the Plan.
 
(q)         "Participant" shall mean an Eligible Person designated  to be granted an Award under the Plan.
 
(r)          "Performance Award" shall mean any right granted under Section 6(d) of the Plan.
 
( s )         "Person" shall mean any individual or entity, including a corporation, partnership, limited liability company,

association, joint venture or trust.
 
(t)          "Plan" shall mean the Zymetis, Inc. 2006 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended from time to time, the provisions of which

are set forth herein.
 
(u)         "Reload Option" shall mean any Option granted under Section 6(a) (v) of the Plan.
 
 (v)    "Restricted Stock" shall mean any Share granted under Section 6(c) of the Plan.
 
(w)    "Restricted Stock Unit" shall mean any unit granted under Section 6(c) of the Plan evidencing the right to receive a

Share (or a cash payment equal to the Fair Market Value of a Share) at some future date..
 
( x )         "Share" or "Shares" shall mean a share or shares of common stock, $.01 par value per share, of the Company or

such other securities or property as may become subject to Awards pursuant to an adjustment made under Section 4(c) of the Plan.
 
(y)         "Stock Appreciation Right" shall mean any right granted under Section 6(b) of the Plan.
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Section 3.    Administration
 

( a )          Power and Authority of the Committee.  The Plan shall be administered  by the Committee.  Subject to the express
provisions of the Plan and to applicable law, the Committee shall have full power and authority to:  (i) designate Participants; (ii)
determine the type or types of Awards to be granted to each Participant under the Plan; (iii) determine the number of Shares to be
covered by (or the method by which payments or other rights are to be determined in connection with) each Award; (iv) determine the
terms and conditions of any Award or Award Agreement; (v) amend the terms and conditions of any Award or Award Agreement and
accelerate the exercisability  of any Option or waive any restrictions relating to any Award; (vi) determine whether, to what extent and
under what circumstances  Awards may be exercised in cash, Shares, other securities, other Awards or other property, or canceled,
forfeited or suspended; (vii) determine whether, to what extent and under what circumstances  cash, Shares, other securities, other
Awards, other property and other amounts payable with respect to an Award under the Plan shall be deferred either automatically or
at the election of the holder thereof or the Committee; (viii) interpret and administer the Plan and any instrument  or agreement,
including an Award Agreement, relating to the Plan; (ix) establish, amend, suspend or waive such rules and regulations and appoint
such agents as it shall deem appropriate for the proper administration  of the Plan; and (x) make any other determination and take
any other action that the Committee deems necessary or desirable for the administration  of the Plan. Unless otherwise expressly
provided in the Plan, all designations, determinations, interpretations and other decisions under or with respect to the Plan or any
Award shall be within the sole discretion of the Committee, may be made at any time and shall be final, conclusive and binding upon
any Eligible Person and any holder or beneficiary of any Award.

 
(b)         Power and Authority of the Board.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, the Board may, at any

time and from time to time, without any further action of the Committee, exercise the powers and duties of the Committee under the
Plan.
 
Section 4.            Shares Available for Awards
 

( a )          Shares Available.  Subject to adjustment as provided in Section 4(c) of the Plan, the aggregate number of Shares
that may be issued under the Plan shall be 350,000.  Shares to be issued under the Plan may be either authorized but unissued
Shares or Shares re-acquired and held in treasury.

 
(b)          Accounting for Awards.  For purposes of this Section 4, if an Award entitles the holder thereof to receive or purchase

Shares, the number of Shares covered by such Award or to which such Award relates shall be counted on the date of grant of such
Award against the aggregate number of Shares available for granting Awards under the Plan.  Any Shares that are used by a
Participant as full or partial payment to the Company of the purchase price relating to an Award, including Shares tendered in
connection with the grant of a Reload Option, or in connection with the satisfaction  of tax obligations relating to an Award, shall again
be available for granting Awards under the Plan.  In addition, if any Shares covered by an Award or to which an Award relates are not
purchased or are forfeited, or if an Award otherwise terminates without delivery of any Shares, then the number of Shares counted
against the aggregate number of Shares available under the Plan with respect to such Award, to the extent of any such forfeiture or
termination, shall again be available for granting Awards under the Plan.
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( c )          Adjustments. In the event that the Committee shall determine that any dividend or other distribution (whether in the

form of cash, Shares, other securities or other property), recapitalization, stock split, reverse stock split, reorganization, merger,
consolidation, split-up, spin-off, combination, repurchase or exchange of Shares or other securities of the Company, issuance of
warrants or other rights to purchase Shares or other securities of the Company or other similar corporate transaction or event affects
the Shares such that an adjustment is determined by the Committee to be appropriate in order to prevent dilution or enlargement of
the benefits or potential benefits intended to be made available under the Plan, then the Committee shall, in such manner as it may
deem equitable, adjust any or all of (i) the number and type of Shares (or other securities or other property) that thereafter may be
made the subject of Awards, (ii) the number and type of Shares (or other securities or other property) subject to outstanding Awards
and (iii) the purchase price or exercise price with respect to any Award; provided, however, that the number of Shares covered by any
Award or to which such Award relates shall always be a whole number.
 
Section 5.            Eligibility
 
Any Eligible Person shall be eligible to be designated a Participant.  In determining which Eligible Persons shall receive an Award and
the terms of any Award, the Committee may take into account the nature of the services rendered by the respective Eligible Persons,
their present and potential contributions to the success of the Company or such other factors as the Committee, in its discretion, shall
deem relevant. Notwithstanding the foregoing, an Incentive Stock Option may only be granted to full-time or part-time employees
(which term as used herein includes, without limitation, officers and directors who are also employees), and an Incentive Stock Option
shall not be granted to an employee of an Affiliate unless such Affiliate is also a "subsidiary corporation" of the Company within the
meaning of Section 424(f) of the Code or any successor provision.
 
Section 6.            Awards
 

(a)          Options. The Committee is hereby authorized to grant Options to Eligible Persons with the following terms and
conditions and with such additional terms and conditions not inconsistent with the provisions of the Plan as the Committee shall
determine:

 
( i )           Exercise Price. The purchase price per Share purchasable under an Option shall be determined by the

Committee.
 
(ii)          Option Term.  The term of each Option shall be fixed by the Committee at the time of grant.
 
( i i i )         Time and Method of Exercise. The Committee shall determine the time or times at which an Option may be

exercised in whole or in part and the method or methods by which, and the form or forms (including, without limitation, cash, Shares,
other securities, other Awards or other property, or any combination thereof, having a Fair Market Value on the exercise date equal to
the applicable exercise price) in which, payment of the exercise price with respect thereto may be made or deemed to have been
made.
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( i v )         Incentive Stock Options. Notwithstanding anything in the Plan to the contrary, the following additional

provisions shall apply to the grant of stock options which are intended to qualify as Incentive Stock Options:
 

(A)           The Committee will not grant Incentive Stock Options in which the aggregate Fair Market Value
(determined as of the time the option is granted) of the Shares with respect to which Incentive Stock Options are
exercisable for the first time by any Participant during any calendar year (under this Plan and all other plans of the
Company and its Affiliates) shall exceed $100,000.

 
(B)           All Incentive Stock Options must be granted within ten years from the earlier of the date on which

this Plan was adopted by the Board or the date this Plan was approved by the shareholders of the Company.
 
(C)           Unless sooner exercised, all Incentive Stock Options shall expire and no longer be exercisable no

later than 10 years after the date of grant; provided, however, that in the case of a grant of an Incentive Stock Option
to a Participant who, at the time such Option is granted, owns (within the meaning of Section 422 of the Code) stock
possessing more than 10% of the total combined voting power of all classes of stock of the Company or of its Affiliate,
such Incentive Stock Option shall expire and no longer be exercisable no later than 5 years from the date of grant.

 
(D)           The purchase price per Share for an Incentive Stock Option shall be not less than 100% of the Fair

Market Value of a Share on the date of grant of the Incentive Stock Option; provided, however, that, in the case of
the  grant of an Incentive Stock Option to a Participant who, at the time such Option is granted, owns (within the
meaning of Section 422 of the Code) stock possessing more than 10% of the total combined voting power of all
classes of stock of the Company or of its Affiliate, the purchase price per Share purchasable under an Incentive Stock
Option shall be not less than 110% of the Fair Market Value of a Share on the date of grant of the Inventive Stock
Option.

 
(E)           Any Incentive Stock Option authorized under the Plan shall contain such other provisions as the

Committee shall deem advisable, but shall in all events be consistent with and contain all provisions required in order
to qualify the Option as an Incentive Stock Option.

 
( v )           Reload Options. The Committee may grant Reload Options, separately or together with another Option and

subject to the terms and conditions established by the Committee, pursuant to which the Participant would be granted a new Non-
Qualified Stock Option when the payment of the exercise price of a previously granted option for common stock is made by the
delivery of Shares owned by the Participant pursuant to Section 6(a)(iii) hereof or the relevant provisions of another plan of the
Company, when Shares are tendered or withheld as payment of the amount to be withheld under applicable income tax laws in
connection with the exercise of an Option, which new Non-Qualified Stock Option would be a Non-Qualified Stock Option to purchase
the number of Shares not exceeding the sum of (A) the number of Shares so provided as consideration upon the exercise of the
previously granted option to which such Reload Option relates and (B) the number of Shares, if any, tendered or withheld as payment
of the amount to be withheld under applicable tax laws in connection with the exercise of the option to which such Reload Option
relates pursuant to the relevant provisions of the plan or agreement relating to such option.  Reload Options may be granted with
respect to options previously granted under the Plan or any other stock option plan of the Company or any Affiliate or may be granted
in connection with any option granted under the Plan or any other stock option plan of the Company or any Affiliate at the time of
such grant. Such Reload Options shall have a per share exercise price equal to the Fair Market Value of one Share as of the date of
grant of the new Non-Qualified Stock Option.  Any Reload Option shall be subject to availability of sufficient Shares for grant under the
Plan. Shares surrendered as part or all of the exercise price of the Non-Qualified Stock Option to which it relates that have been
owned by the optionee less than six months will not be counted for purposes of determining the number of Shares that may be
purchased pursuant to a Reload Option.
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( b )         Stock Appreciation Rights.  The Committee is hereby authorized to grant Stock Appreciation Rights to Eligible

Persons subject to the terms of the Plan.  Each Stock Appreciation Right granted under the Plan shall confer on the holder upon
exercise the right to receive, as determined by the Committee, cash or a number of Shares equal to the excess of (a) the Fair Market
Value of one Share on the date of exercise (or, if the Committee shall so determine, at any time during a specified period before or
after the date of exercise) over (b) the grant price of the Stock Appreciation Right as determined by the Committee, which grant price
shall not be less than 100% of the Fair Market Value of one Share on the date of grant of the Stock Appreciation Right.  Subject to the
terms of the Plan, the grant price, term, methods of exercise, dates of exercise, methods of settlement and any other terms and
conditions (including conditions or restrictions on the exercise thereof) of any Stock Appreciation Right shall be as determined by the
Committee.

 
(c)         Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Units.  The Committee is hereby authorized to grant Restricted Stock and

Restricted Stock Units to Eligible Persons with the following terms and conditions and with such additional terms and conditions not
inconsistent with the provisions of the Plan as the Committee shall determine:

 
(i)           Restrictions.  Shares of Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Units shall be subject to such restrictions as the

Committee may impose (including, without limitation, a restriction on or prohibition against the right to receive any dividend or other
right or property with respect thereto), which restrictions may lapse separately or in combination at such time or times, in such
installments or otherwise as the Committee may deem appropriate.

 
(ii)           Stock Certificates.  Any Restricted Stock granted under the Plan shall be evidenced by the issuance of a stock

certificate or certificates, which shall be held by the Company.  Such certificate or certificates shall be registered in the name of the
Participant and shall bear an appropriate legend referring to the applicable Award Agreement and possible forfeiture of such shares of
Restricted Stock.

 
(iii)          Forfeiture.  Except as otherwise determined by the Committee, upon a Participant's termination of

employment (as determined under criteria established by the Committee) during the applicable restriction period, all applicable Shares
of Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Units at such time subject to restriction shall be forfeited and reacquired by the Company;
provided, however, that the Committee may, when it finds that a waiver would be in the best interest of the Company, waive in whole
or in part any or all remaining restrictions with respect to Shares of Restricted Stock or Restricted Stock Units.
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(d)         Performance Awards.  The Committee is hereby authorized to grant Performance Awards to Eligible Persons subject

to the terms of the Plan.  A Performance  Award granted under the Plan (i) may be denominated or payable in cash, Shares
(including, without limitation, Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Units), other securities, other Awards or other property and (ii)
shall confer on the holder thereof the right to receive payments, in whole or in part, upon the achievement of such performance goals
during such performance periods as the Committee shall establish.  Subject to the terms of the Plan, the performance goals to be
achieved during any performance period, the length of any perfom1ance period, the amount of any Performance Award granted, the
amount of any payment or transfer to be made pursuant to any Performance Award and any other terms and conditions of any
Performance Award shall be determined by the Committee.

 
(e )         Dividend Equivalents.  The Committee is hereby authorized to grant Dividend Equivalents to Eligible Persons under

which the Participant shall be entitled to receive payments (in cash, Shares, other securities, other Awards or other property as
determined in the discretion of the Committee) equivalent to the amount of cash dividends paid by the Company to holders of Shares
with respect to a number of Shares determined by the Committee.  Subject to the terms of the Plan, such Dividend Equivalents may
have such terms and conditions as the Committee shall determine.

 
( f )          Other Stock Grants.  The Committee is hereby authorized, subject to the terms of the Plan, to grant to Eligible

Persons Shares without restrictions thereon as are deemed by the Committee to be consistent with the purpose of the Plan.
 
(g)         Other Stock-Based Awards.  The Committee is hereby authorized to grant to Eligible Persons, subject to the terms of

the Plan, such other Awards that are denominated or payable in, valued in whole or in part by reference to, or otherwise based on or
related to, Shares (including, without limitation, securities convertible into Shares), as are deemed by the Committee to be consistent
with the purpose of the Plan.  Shares or other securities delivered pursuant to a purchase right granted under this Section 6(g) shall
be purchased for such consideration, which may be paid by such method or methods and in such form or forms (including, without
limitation, cash, Shares, promissory notes, other securities, other Awards or other property or any combination thereof), as the
Committee shall determine, the value of which consideration, as established by the Committee, shall not be less than 100% of the
Fair Market Value of such Shares or other securities as of the date such purchase right is granted.
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(h)        General.
 

( i )           Consideration for Awards. Awards may be granted for no cash consideration or for any cash or other
consideration as determined by the Committee and required by applicable law.

 
(ii)           Awards May Be Granted Separately or Together. Awards may, in the discretion of the Committee, be granted

either alone or in addition to, in tandem with or in substitution for any other Award or any award granted under any plan of the
Company or any Affiliate. Awards granted in addition to or in tandem with other Awards or in addition to or in tandem with awards
granted under any such other plan of the Company or any Affiliate may be granted either at the same time as or at a different time
from the grant of such other Awards or awards.

 
( i i i )          Forms of Payment under Awards. Subject to the terms of the Plan, payments or transfers to be made by the

Company or an Affiliate upon the grant, exercise or payment of an Award may be made in such form or forms as the Committee shall
determine (including, without limitation, cash, Shares, promissory notes, other securities, other Awards or other property or any
combination thereof), and may be made in a single payment or transfer, in installments or on a deferred basis, in each case in
accordance with rules and procedures established by the Committee. Such rules and procedures may include, without limitation,
provisions for the payment or crediting of reasonable interest on installment or deferred payments or the grant or crediting of Dividend
Equivalents with respect to installment or deferred payments.
 

( i v )         Limits on Transfer of Awards. No Award (other than Other Stock Grants) and no right under any such Award
shall be transferable by a Participant otherwise than by will or by the laws of descent and distribution and the Company shall not be
required to recognize any attempted assignment of such rights by any Participant; provided, however, that, if so determined by the
Committee, a Participant may, in the manner established by the Committee, designate a beneficiary or beneficiaries to exercise the
rights of the Participant and receive any property distributable with respect to any Award upon the death of the Participant; provided,
further, that, if so determined by the Committee, a Participant may transfer a Non-Qualified Stock Option to any Family Member at
any time that such Participant holds such Option, provided that the Participant may not receive any consideration for such transfer,
the Family Member may not make any subsequent transfers other than by will or by the laws of descent and distribution and the
Company receives written notice of such transfer, provided, further, that, if so determined by the Committee and except in the case of
an Incentive Stock Option, Awards may be transferable as determined by the Committee. Except as otherwise determined by the
Committee, each Award (other than an Incentive Stock Option) or right under any such Award shall be exercisable during the
Participant's lifetime only by the Participant or, if permissible under applicable law, by the Participant's guardian or legal
representative. Except as otherwise determined by the Committee, no Award (other than an Incentive Stock Option) or right under
any such Award may be pledged, alienated, attached or otherwise encumbered, and any purported pledge, alienation, attachment or
other encumbrance thereof shall be void and unenforceable against the Company or any Affiliate.
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( v )           Term of Awards. Subject to Section 6(a)(iv)(C), the term of each Award shall be for such period as may be

determined by the Committee.
 
(v i )          Restrictions; Securities Exchange Listing. All Shares or other securities delivered under the Plan pursuant to

any Award or the exercise thereof shall be subject to such stop transfer orders and other restrictions as the Committee may deem
advisable under the Plan, applicable federal or state securities laws and regulatory requirements, and the Committee may direct
appropriate stop transfer orders and cause other legends to be placed on the certificates for such Shares or other securities to reflect
such restrictions. If the Shares or other securities are traded on a securities exchange, the Company shall not be required to deliver
any Shares or other securities covered by an Award unless and until such Shares or other securities have been admitted for trading
on such securities exchange.

 
( v i i )         Prohibition on Option Repricing. Except as provided in Section 4(c) hereof, no Option may be amended to

reduce its initial exercise price and no Option shall be canceled and replaced with an Option or Options having a lower exercise
price, without the approval of the shareholders of the Company or unless there would be no material adverse effect on the
Company's financial statements as prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.
 
Section 7.            Amendment and Termination; Adjustments
 

( a )          Amendments to the Plan. The Board may amend, alter, suspend, discontinue or terminate the Plan at any time;
provided, however, that, notwithstanding any other provision of the Plan or any Award Agreement, without the approval of the
shareholders of the Company, no such amendment, alteration, suspension, discontinuation or termination shall be made that, absent
such approval:

 
(i)           causes the Company to be unable, under the Code, to grant Incentive Stock Options under the Plan;
 
(ii)           increases the number of shares authorized under the Plan as specified in Section 4(a);
 

( b )          Amendments to Awards. The Committee may waive any conditions of or rights of the Company under any
outstanding Award, prospectively or retroactively. Except as otherwise provided herein or in an Award Agreement, the Committee
may not amend, alter, suspend, discontinue or terminate any outstanding Award, prospectively or retroactively, if such action would
adversely affect the rights of the holder of such Award, without the consent of the Participant or holder or beneficiary thereof.

 
(c)          Correction of Defects, Omissions and Inconsistencies.  The Committee may correct any defect, supply any omission

or reconcile any inconsistency in the Plan or any Award in the manner and to the extent it shall deem desirable to carry the Plan into
effect.
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Section 8.            Income Tax Withholding
 

In order to comply with all applicable federal, state or local income tax laws or regulations, the Company may take such action
as it deems appropriate to ensure that all applicable federal, state or local payroll, withholding, income or other taxes, which are the
sole and absolute responsibility of a Participant, are withheld or collected from such Participant.  In order to assist a Participant in
paying all or a portion of the federal, state and local taxes to be withheld or collected upon exercise or receipt of (or the lapse of
restrictions relating to) an Award, the Committee, in its discretion and subject to such additional terms and conditions as it may adopt,
may permit the Participant to satisfy such tax obligation by (i) electing to have the Company withhold a portion of the Shares
otherwise to be delivered upon exercise or receipt of (or the lapse of restrictions relating to) such Award with a Fair Market Value
equal to the amount of such taxes or (ii) delivering to the Company Shares other than Shares issuable upon exercise or receipt of (or
the lapse of restrictions relating to) such Award with a Fair Market Value equal to the amount of such taxes.  The election, if any, must
be made on or before the date that the amount of tax to be withheld is determined.
 
Section 9.            General Provisions
 

( a )          No Rights to Awards.  No Eligible Person or other Person shall have any claim to be granted any Award under the
Plan, and there is no obligation for uniformity of treatment of Eligible Persons or holders or beneficiaries of Awards under the
Plan.  The terms and conditions of Awards need not be the same with respect to any Participant or with respect to different
Participants.

 
( b )         Award Agreements.  No Participant will have rights under an Award granted to such Participant unless and until an

Award Agreement shall have been duly executed on behalf of the Company and, if requested by the Company, signed by the
Participant.

 
( c )          Plan Provisions Control.  In the event that any provision of an Award Agreement conflicts with or is inconsistent in

any respect with the terms of the Plan as set forth herein or subsequently amended, the terms of the Plan shall control.
 
(d )          No Rights of Shareholders.  Except with respect to Shares of Restricted Stock as to which the Participant has been

granted the right to vote, neither a Participant nor the Participant's legal representative shall be, or have any of the rights and
privileges of, a shareholder of the Company with respect to any Shares issuable to such Participant upon the exercise or payment of
any Award, in whole or in part, unless and until such Shares have been issued in the name of such Participant or such Participant's
legal representative without restrictions thereto.

 
( e )          No Limit on Other Compensation Arrangements.  Nothing contained in the Plan shall prevent the Company or any

Affiliate from adopting or continuing in effect other or additional compensation  arrangements, and such arrangements may be either
generally applicable or applicable only in specific cases.
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( f )           No Right to Employment.  The grant of an Award shall not be construed as giving a Participant the right to be

retained in the employ, or us giving a director of the Company or an Affiliate the right to continue as a director or an Affiliate of the
Company or any Affiliate, nor will it affect in any way the right of the Company or an Affiliate to terminate such employment at any
time, with or without cause.  In Addition, the Company or an Affiliate may at any time dismiss a Participant from employment, or
terminate the term of a director of the Company or an Affiliate, free from any liability or any claim under the Plan or any Award, unless
otherwise expressly provided in the Plan or in any Award Agreement.  Nothing in this Plan shall confer on any person any legal or
equitable right against the Company or any Affiliate, directly or indirectly, or give rise to any cause of action at law or in equity against
the Company or an Affiliate.  The Awards granted hereunder shall not form any part of the wages or salary of any Eligible Person for
purposes of severance pay or termination indemnities, irrespective of the reason for termination of employment.  Under no
circumstances shall any person ceasing to be an employee of the Company or any Affiliate be entitled to any compensation for any
loss of any right or benefit under the Plan which such employee might otherwise have enjoyed but for termination of employment,
whether such compensation is claimed by way of damages for wrongful or unfair dismissal, breach of contract or otherwise.  By
participating in the Plan, each Participant shall be deemed to have accepted all the conditions of the Plan and the terms and
conditions of any rules and regulations adopted by the Committee and shall be fully bound thereby.

 
(g)         Governing Law.  The validity, construction and effect of the Plan or any Award, and any rules and regulations relating

to the Plan or any Award, shall be determined in accordance with the internal laws, and not the law of conflicts, of the State of
Montana.

 
( h )         Severability.  If any provision of the Plan or any Award is or becomes or is deemed to be invalid, illegal or

unenforceable in any jurisdiction or would disqualify the Plan or any Award under any law deemed applicable by the Committee, such
provision shall be construed or deemed amended to conform to applicable laws, or if it cannot be so construed or deemed amended
without, in the determination of the Committee, materially altering the purpose or intent of the Plan or the Award, such provision shall
be stricken as to such jurisdiction or Award, and the remainder of the Plan or any such Award shall remain in full force and effect.

 
(i)           No Trust or Fund Created.  Neither the Plan nor any Award shall create or be construed to create a trust or separate

fund of any kind or a fiduciary relationship between the Company or any Affiliate and an Eligible Person or any other Person.  To the
extent that any Person acquires a right to receive payments from the Company or any Affiliate pursuant to an Award, such right shall
be no greater than the right of any unsecured general creditor of the Company or any Affiliate.

 
(j)           Other Benefits.  No compensation or benefit awarded to or realized by any Participant under the Plan shall be

included for the purpose of computing such Participant's compensation under any compensation-based retirement, disability, or
similar plan of the Company unless required by law or otherwise provided by such other plan.

(k)          No Fractional Shares.  No fractional Shares shall be issued or delivered pursuant to the Plan or any Award, and the
Committee shall determine whether cash shall be paid in lieu of any fractional Shares or whether such fractional Shares or any rights
thereto shall be canceled, terminated or otherwise eliminated.
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( 1 )          Headings.  Headings are given to the Sections and subsections  of the Plan solely as a convenience to facilitate

reference.  Such headings shall not be deemed in any way material or relevant to the construction  or interpretation of the Plan or any
provision thereof.

 
(m)         Conditions Precedent to Issuance of Shares.  Shares shall not be issued pursuant to the exercise or payment of the

purchase price relating to an Award unless such exercise or payment and the issuance and delivery of such Shares pursuant thereto
shall comply with all relevant provisions of law, including, without limitation, the Securities Act, the Exchange Act, the rules and
regulations promulgated thereunder, the Montana Business Corporation  Act.  As a condition to the exercise or payment of the
purchase price relating to such Award, the Company may require that the person exercising or paying the purchase price represent
and warrant that the Shares are being purchased only for investment and without any present intention to sell or distribute such
Shares if, in the opinion of counsel for the Company, such a representation  and warranty is required by law.
 
Section 10.         Effective Date of the Plan
 

The Plan shall be effective upon its adoption by the Board, provided, however, that in the event the Plan is not approved by
the shareholders of the Company within one year thereafter, the Plan will be terminated and all Awards granted under the Plan will be
terminated and deemed null and void, provided, however, that with respect to any Shares (including Shares of Restricted Stock)
issued under the Plan prior to such termination, the Plan shall be deemed to be effective.
 
Section 11.          Term of the Plan
 

No Award shall be granted under the Plan after ten years from earlier of date of adoption of Plan by Board or date of
shareholder approval or any earlier date of discontinuation or termination established pursuant to Section 7(a) of the Plan.  However,
unless otherwise expressly provided in the Plan or in an applicable Award Agreement, any Award theretofore granted may extend
beyond such date, and the authority of the Committee provided for hereunder with respect to the Plan and any Awards, and the
authority of the Board to amend the Plan, shall extend beyond the termination of the Plan.
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EXHIBIT 10.32
 

ZYMETIS, INC.
INCENTIVE STOCK OPTION AGREEMENT

 
This INCENTIVE STOCK OPTION AGREEMENT (the "Agreement") is made this ___ day of _________, ______, by and between
Zymetis, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the "Company") and _____________ ("Employee").
 
1.      Grant of Option.  The Company hereby grants Employee the option (the "Option") to purchase all or any part of an aggregate of
______ shares (the "Shares") of Common Stock of the Company at the exercise price of $_____ per share according to the terms and
conditions set forth in this Agreement and in the Zymetis, Inc. 2006 Stock Incentive Plan (the "Plan").  The Option will be treated as
an incentive stock option within the meaning of Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code").  The
Option is issued under the Plan and is subject to its terms and conditions.  A copy of the Plan will be furnished upon request of
Employee.  The Option shall terminate at the close of business five years from the date hereof.
 
2.      Vesting/Transfer of Option Rights.
 

(a)    The Option may be exercised by Employee at any time after the date hereof and until five years from the date hereof.
 
(b)    During the lifetime of Employee, the Option shall be exercisable only by Employee and shall not be assignable or

transferable by Employee, other than by will or the laws of descent and distribution.
 
(c)    Employee understands that to the extent that the aggregate fair market value (determined at the time the option was

granted) of the shares of Common Stock of the Company with respect to which all options that are incentive stock options within the
meaning of Section 422 of the Code are exercisable for the first time by Employee during any calendar year exceed $______, in
accordance with Section 422(d) of the Code, such options shall be treated as options that do not qualify as incentive stock options.
 
3 .      Exercise of Option after Death or Termination of Employment.  The Option shall terminate and may no longer be exercised if
Employee ceases to be employed by the Company or its affiliates, except that:
 

(a)    If Employee's employment shall be terminated for any reason, voluntary or involuntary, other than for "Cause" (as
defined in Section 3(e)) or Employee’s death or disability (within the meaning of Section 22(e)(3) of the Code), Employee may at any
time within a period of 3 months after such termination exercise the Option to the extent the Option was exercisable by Employee on
the date of the termination of Employee's employment.

 
(b)    If Employee's  employment is terminated for Cause, the Option shall be terminated as of the date of the act giving rise to

such termination.
 
(c)    If Employee shall die while the Option is still exercisable according to its terms or if employment is terminated because

Employee has become disabled (within the meaning of Section 22(e)(3) of the Code) while in the employ of the Company and
Employee shall not have fully exercised the Option, such Option may be exercised at any time within 12 months after
Employee's  death or date of termination of employment for disability by Employee, personal representatives or administrators or
guardians of Employee, as applicable or by any person or persons to whom the Option is transferred by will or the applicable laws of
descent and distribution, to the extent of the full number of Shares Employee was entitled to purchase under the Option on (i) the
earlier of the date of death or termination of employment or (ii) the date of termination for such disability, as applicable.
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(d)    Notwithstanding the above, in no case may the Option be exercised to any extent by anyone after the termination date

of the Option.
 
(e)    "Cause" shall mean the willful engaging by Employee in misconduct which causes substantial injury to the Company or

its affiliates, its other employees or the employees of its affiliates or its clients or the clients of its affiliates, whether monetarily or
otherwise.  For purposes of this paragraph, no action or failure to act on Employee's part shall be considered "willful" unless done or
omitted to be done, by Employee in bad faith and without reasonable belief that his or her action or omission was in the best interests
of the Company.
 
4 .      Method of Exercise of Option.  Subject to the foregoing, the Option may be exercised in whole or in part from time to time by
serving written notice of exercise on the Company at its principal office within the Option period.  The notice shall state the number of
Shares as to which the Option is being exercised and shall be accompanied by payment of the exercise price.  Payment of the
exercise price shall be made in cash (including bank check, personal check or money order payable to the Company).
 
5.      Miscellaneous.
 

(a)    Plan Provisions Control.  In the event that any provision of the Agreement conflicts with or is inconsistent in any respect
with the terms of the Plan, the terms of the Plan shall control, except that there shall be no adjustment in the number of shares
subject to this Option, nor the exercise price per share, resulting from the Stock Split.

 
( b )    No Rights of Stockholders.  Neither Employee, Employee's legal representative nor a permissible assignee of this

Option shall have any of the rights and privileges of a stockholder of the Company with respect to the Shares, unless and until such
Shares have been issued in the name of Employee, Employee's  legal representative or permissible assignee, as applicable.

 
(c)     No Right to Employment.  The grant of the Option shall not be construed as giving Employee the right to be retained in

the employ of, or as giving a director of the Company or an Affiliate (as defined in the Plan) the right to continue as a director of the
Company or an Affiliate with, the Company or an Affiliate, nor will it affect in any way the right of the Company or an Affiliate to
terminate such employment or position at any time, with or without cause.  In addition, the Company or an Affiliate may at any time
dismiss Employee from employment, or terminate the term of a director of the Company or an Affiliate, free from any liability or any
claim under the Plan or the Agreement.  Nothing in the Agreement shall confer on any person any legal or equitable right against the
Company or any Affiliate, directly or indirectly, or give rise to any cause of action at law or in equity against the Company or an
Affiliate.  The Option granted hereunder shall not form any part of the wages or salary of Employee for purposes of severance pay or
termination indemnities, irrespective of the reason for termination of employment.  Under no circumstances shall any person ceasing
to be an employee of the Company or any Affiliate be entitled to any compensation for any loss of any right or benefit under the
Agreement or Plan which such employee might otherwise have enjoyed but for termination of employment, whether such
compensation is claimed by way of damages for wrongful or unfair dismissal, breach of contract or otherwise.  By participating in the
Plan, Employee shall be deemed to have accepted all the conditions of the Plan and the Agreement and the terms and conditions of
any rules and regulations adopted by the Committee and shall be fully bound thereby.

 
( d )    Governing Law.  The validity, construction and effect of the Plan and the Agreement, and any rules and regulations

relating to the Plan and the Agreement, shall be determined in accordance with the internal laws, and not the law of conflicts, of the
State of Delaware.

 
(e)    Severability.  If any provision of the Agreement is or becomes or is deemed to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any

jurisdiction or would disqualify the Agreement under any law deemed applicable by the Committee (as defined in the Plan), such
provision shall be construed or deemed amended to conform to applicable laws, or if it cannot be so construed or deemed amended
without, in the determination of the Committee, materially altering the purpose or intent of the Plan or the Agreement, such provision
shall be stricken as to such jurisdiction or the Agreement, and the remainder of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.
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(f)     No Trust or Fund Created.  Neither the Plan nor the Agreement shall create or be construed to create a trust or separate

fund of any kind or a fiduciary relationship between the Company or any Affiliate and Employee or any other person.
 
(g)    Headings.  Headings are given to the Sections and subsections of the Agreement solely as a convenience to facilitate

reference.  Such headings shall not be deemed in any way material or relevant to the construction or interpretation of the Agreement
or any provision thereof.

 
(h)    Conditions Precedent to Issuance of Shares.  Shares shall not be issued pursuant to the exercise of the Option unless

such exercise and the issuance and delivery of the applicable Shares pursuant thereto shall comply with all relevant provisions of law,
including, without limitation, the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, the Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the rules and
regulations promulgated thereunder, the requirements of any applicable Stock Exchange or the Nasdaq National  Market and the
Delaware  General  Corporation Law.  As a condition  to the exercise of the purchase  price relating to the Option, the Company  may
require that the person exercising or paying the purchase price represent  and warrant  that the Shares are being purchased  only for
investment and without any present intention  to sell or distribute  such Shares if, in the opinion  of counsel  for the Company,  such a
representation and warranty  is required by law.

 
( i )     Withholding. If Employee shall dispose of any of the shares of Common Stock acquired  upon exercise  of the Option

within two (2) years from the date the Option was granted or within one (1) year after the date of exercise of the Option, then, in order
to provide the Company  with the opportunity to claim the benefit of any income tax deduction, Employee shall promptly  notify the
Company of the dates of acquisition and disposition of such shares, the number of shares so disposed  of, and the consideration, if
any, received  for such shares.  In order to comply with all applicable federal or state income tax laws or regulations, the
Company  may take such action as it deems appropriate to assure (i) notice to the Company of any disposition of the shares of the
Company  within the time periods described  above, and (ii) that, if necessary,  all applicable  federal or state payroll, withholding,
income or other taxes are withheld  or collected from Employee.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company and Employee have executed this Agreement on the date set forth in the first
paragraph.
 

ZYMETIS, INC.
 

By:  _____________________________________
 

Name:____________________________________ 
 
 

Title: _____________________________________
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EXHIBIT 10.33
 

ZYMETIS, INC.
 

NON-INCENTIVE STOCK OPTION AGREEMENT
 
This NON-INCENTIVE STOCK OPTION AGREEMENT (the "Agreement") is made this ____ day of ______, _____ by and between
Zymetis, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the "Company") and _____________ ("Employee").
 
1.      Grant of Option.  The Company hereby grants Employee the option (the "Option") to purchase all or any part of an aggregate of
_____ shares (the "Shares") of Common Stock of the Company at the exercise price of $_____ per share according to the terms and
conditions set forth in this Agreement and in the Zymetis, Inc. 2006 Stock Incentive Plan (the "Plan").  The Option will not be treated
as an incentive stock option within the meaning of Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code").  The
Option is issued under the Plan and is subject to its terms and conditions.  A copy of the Plan will be furnished upon request of
Employee.  The Option shall terminate at the close of business five years from the date hereof.
 
2.      Vesting/Transfer of Option Rights.
 

(a)  The Option may be exercised by Employee at any time after the date hereof and until five years after the date hereof.
 
(b)  During the lifetime of Employee, the Option shall be exercisable only by Employee and shall not be assignable or
transferable by Employee, other than by will or the laws of descent and distribution.

 
3 .      Exercise of Option after Death or Breach.  The Option shall terminate and may no longer be exercised if Employee willfully
engages in misconduct which causes substantial injury to the Company or its affiliates, its employees or the employees of its affiliates
or its clients or the clients of its affiliates, whether monetarily or otherwise.  For purposes of this paragraph, no action or failure to act
on Employee's part shall be considered "willful" unless done or omitted to be done, by Employee in bad faith and without reasonable
belief that his or her action or omission was in the best interests of the Company.  The Option may be exercised at any time within 12
months after Employee's death by the personal representatives or administrators of Employee, as applicable or by any person or
persons to whom the Option is transferred by will or the applicable laws of descent and distribution, and shall expire on the first
anniversary of Employee's death.
 
4 .      Method of Exercise of Option.  Subject to the foregoing, the Option may be exercised in whole or in part from time to time by
serving written notice of exercise on the Company at its principal office within the Option period.  The notice shall state the number of
Shares as to which the Option is being exercised and shall be accompanied by payment of the exercise price.  Payment of the
exercise price shall be made in cash (including bank check, personal check or money order payable to the Company).
 
5.      Miscellaneous.
 

(a)  Plan Provisions Control.  In the event that any provision of the Agreement conflicts with or is inconsistent in any respect
with the terms of the Plan, the terms of the Plan shall control.

 
(b)  No Rights of Stockholders.  Neither Employee, Employee's  legal representative nor a permissible assignee of this Option

shall have any of the rights and privileges of a stockholder of the Company with respect to the Shares, unless and until such Shares
have been issued in the name of Employee, Employee's legal representative or permissible assignee, as applicable.

 
(c) No Right to Employment/Consulting.  The grant of the Option shall not be construed as giving Employee the right to be

retained in the employ of, to continue serving as an Employee to, or as giving a director of the Company or an Affiliate (as defined in
the Plan) the right to continue as a director of the Company or an Affiliate with, the Company or an Affiliate, nor will it affect in any
way the right of the Company or an Affiliate to terminate such employment or position at any time, with or without cause.  In addition,
the Company or an Affiliate may at any time dismiss Employee, or terminate the term of a director of the Company or an Affiliate, free
from any liability or any claim under the Plan or the Agreement.  Nothing in the Agreement shall confer on any person any legal or
equitable right against the Company or any Affiliate, directly or indirectly, or give rise to any cause of action at law or in equity against
the Company or an Affiliate.  By participating in the Plan, Employee shall be deemed to have accepted all the conditions of the Plan
and the Agreement and the terms and conditions of any rules and regulations adopted by the Committee and shall be fully bound
thereby.
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(d)  Adjustments.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Option Agreement, if there shall be any change in the common

stock subject to the Option through merger, consolidation, reorganization, recapitalization, dividend or other distribution, stock split or
other similar corporate transaction or event of the Company, or the Company shall enter into a written agreement to undergo such a
transaction or event, the Company, in its absolute discretion, may either:  (i) make appropriate adjustment in the number of shares
and the price per share of the shares subject to the Option in order to prevent dilution or enlargement of the Option rights granted
hereunder (provided that the number of shares subject to the Option shall always be a whole number) or (ii) cancel any or all of this
Option and pay to Employee in cash the value of such cancelled Option or portion thereof based on the price per share received, or
to be received, by a shareholder of the Company in such transaction event.

 
(e )  Governing Law.  The validity, construction and effect of the Plan and the Agreement, and any rules and regulations

relating to the Plan and the Agreement, shall be determined in accordance with the internal laws, and not the law of conflicts, of the
State of Delaware.

 
(f)  Severability.  If any provision of the Agreement is or becomes or is deemed to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any

jurisdiction or would disqualify the Agreement under any law deemed applicable by the Committee (as defined in the Plan), such
provision shall be construed or deemed amended to conform to applicable laws, or if it cannot be so construed or deemed amended
without, in the determination of the Committee, materially altering the purpose or intent of the Plan or the Agreement, such provision
shall be stricken as to such jurisdiction or the Agreement, and the remainder of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.

 
(g)  No Trust or Fund Created.  Neither the Plan nor the Agreement shall create or be construed to create a trust or separate

fund of any kind or a fiduciary relationship between the Company or any Affiliate and Employee or any other person.
 
(h)  Headings.  Headings are given to the Sections and subsections of the Agreement solely as a convenience to facilitate

reference.  Such headings shall not be deemed in any way material or relevant to the construction or interpretation of the Agreement
or any provision thereof.

 
( i)  Conditions Precedent to Issuance of Shares.  Shares shall not be issued pursuant to the exercise of the Option unless

such exercise and the issuance and delivery of the applicable Shares pursuant thereto shall comply with all relevant provisions of law,
including, without limitation, the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, the Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the rules and
regulations promulgated thereunder, the requirements of any applicable Stock Exchange or the Nasdaq National Market and the
Delaware General Corporation Law.  As a condition to the exercise of the purchase price relating to the Option, the Company may
require that the person exercising or paying the purchase price represent and warrant that the Shares are being purchased only for
investment and without any present intention to sell or distribute such Shares if, in the opinion of counsel for the Company, such a
representation and warranty is required by law.

 
(j)  Withholding.  In order to provide the Company with the opportunity to claim the benefit of any income tax deduction which

may be available to it upon the exercise of the Option and in order to comply with all applicable federal or state income tax laws or
regulations, the Company may take such action as it deems appropriate to insure that, if necessary, all applicable federal or state
payroll, withholding, income or other taxes are withheld or collected from Employee.
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company and Employee have executed this Agreement on the date set forth in the first paragraph.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company and Employee have executed this Agreement on the date set forth in the first
paragraph.
 

ZYMETIS, INC.
 

Name:____________________________________ 
 

Title: _____________________________________
 
Employee: __________________________________
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EXHIBIT 10.64

Certain information in this document has been omitted and filed separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
Confidential treatment has been requested with respect to the omitted portions.

 
AE KEYES CORN PROCUREMENT AND WORKING CAPITAL AGREEMENT

THIS CORN PROCUREMENT AND WORKING CAPITAL AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made on this 9th day of March,
2011 by and between J.D. Heiskell Holdings, LLC, a California limited liability company doing business as J.D. Heiskell & Co
(“HEISKELL”), and AE Advanced Fuels Keyes, Inc., a Delaware corporation ("AE KEYES").

W I T N E S S E T H:

WHEREAS, AE KEYES currently leases approximately 10 acres, more or less, of real property in Keyes, California (the “Ethanol
Property”) on which is situated a 55 million gallon per year ethanol production facility (the “Ethanol  Plant”) which AE KEYES intends
to operate in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Lease for the Ethanol Property and Ethanol Plant with Cilion, Inc., the
Lessor (the “Lease”).

WHEREAS, to produce ethanol, AE KEYES will need to purchase corn for delivery by rail to the Ethanol Plant.  HEISKELL and AE
KEYES will enter into an agreement with A.L Gilbert Company, a California Corporation (“Gilbert”) whereby AE KEYES and
HEISKELL (collectively referred to therein as the "Producer") will be allowed to receive shuttle train loads of corn which will be off
loaded by Gilbert into a dedicated [***] storage tank (the "Gilbert Facility") in accordance with UPRR shuttle train program standards
(the “Keyes Corn Handling Agreement”).

WHEREAS, the parties desire to enter into the following agreements to set forth agreed upon terms and conditions: (a) this
Agreement, including any Sales Contract (as defined below) entered into pursuant to this Agreement, (b) a Security Agreement, (the
“Security Agreement”), pursuant to which, among other things, AE KEYES will grant a lien [***] in favor of HEISKELL; (c) Heiskell
Purchasing Agreement (the “Heiskell Purchasing Agreement”) pursuant to which HEISKELL will agree to buy Ethanol, WDGS, and
Syrup (as defined in the Purchasing Agreement) produced by AE KEYES (d) [***]; (e) Keyes Corn Handling Agreement (the "Handling
Agreement") with Gilbert concerning the unloading and storage of corn at the Gilbert facility specified therein (the "Gilbert Facility");
and (f) Lender Consent and Agreement, dated as of the date hereof (the “Lender Consent”), among HEISKELL, AE KEYES, and the
AE KEYES' Lenders under the respective AE KEYES credit facilities (the "Lenders") (the documents listed in clauses (a) through (f)
above, as amended, restated and/or extended from time to time,  the “Related Agreements”).
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NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and agreements set forth herein, the parties
agree as follows:

ARTICLE I
PURCHASE AND SALE TERMS AND PROCEDURES

1 . 1           Corn Supply and Procurement.   Subject to the exceptions set forth in this Agreement, HEISKELL agrees to supply AE
KEYES and AE KEYES agrees to procure from HEISKELL all of AE KEYES’S requirements for whole yellow corn (“Corn”) for the
Ethanol Plant, as further described in Section 1.10 below.  In no event will the aggregate amount of Corn required to be delivered to
AE KEYES within any four (4) consecutive day period exceed [***].  AE KEYES agrees that all of its purchases are intended for use at
its Ethanol Plant, and any Corn that becomes excess due to changes in operating conditions will be offered first to HEISKELL [***]

1 . 2           HEISKELL Offers.  HEISKELL agrees that each day the Chicago Board of Trade (CBOT) is in operation HEISKELL will
have offers for sale of Corn [***] to be delivered to AE KEYES and that HEISKELL may make offers outside of the hours of operation
of the CBOT. AE KEYES may accept offers as and when it determines in its sole discretion.  In accordance with National Grain and
Feed Association Rules, an oral offer and acceptance will be converted to a written order and delivered to AE KEYES as agreed upon
between HEISKELL and AE KEYES after AE KEYES’S oral acceptance of each offer. The offer price of Corn to AE KEYES will be
based on the appropriate CBOT futures contract price, appropriate [***].

1 . 3           Alternate Sources.  The parties agree that AE KEYES may source Corn from other suppliers subject to the following
conditions:

 A. Direct Sourced Rail Corn. AE KEYES, acting individually or as part of a strategic alliance, may source Corn directly
from Corn growers or associations of Corn growers (“Direct Sourced Rail Corn”) from Union Pacific Railroad
approved 100 car shuttle loading facilities.  If AE KEYES procures Direct Sourced Corn, AE KEYES shall notify
HEISKELL of the volume of Direct Sourced Corn, which volume shall be reduced from the volume of Corn to be
sourced by HEISKELL under this Agreement.  [***].  Heiskell will supply the railroad cars and the logistics needed to
get the Direct Sourced Corn to the Gilbert Feed Mill Storage.

 B. Direct Sourced Truck Corn. AE KEYES, acting individually or as part of a strategic alliance, may source Corn directly
from Corn growers or associations of Corn growers (“Direct Sourced Truck Corn”) from any local producer or seller of
corn in California.   If  AE  KEYES  procures  Direct  Sourced  Truck  Corn,   AE

[***] Certain information in this document has been omitted and filed separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
Confidential treatment has been requested with respect to the omitted portions.
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KEYES shall notify HEISKELL of the volume of Direct Sourced Truck Corn, which volume shall be reduced from the
volume of Corn to be sourced by HEISKELL under this Agreement.  [***].  Further, the delivery, off loading and
storage of such Corn shall be subject to mutual coordination of AE KEYES, HEISKELL and Gilbert and shall be
handled in such a way as to not delay or interrupt operations at the Gilbert Facility.

 C. HEISKELL to Match Prices.   If AE KEYES is aware of Corn offered by a reliable supplier or at a FOB truck or rail
point served by the UPRR and FOB price that equates to a lower delivered price to AE KEYES for the same amount
of Corn and the same shipment period as otherwise offered by HEISKELL, then AE KEYES will advise HEISKELL of
such offers.  [***]  Notwithstanding the foregoing and without regard to price, HEISKELL is not required to purchase
any Corn that, when received by HEISKELL, would overburden the receiving, storage or other logistical capacity of
the Gilbert Facility and/or the industry track serving its facility.

1.4           Ownership and Sales.  The parties agree that HEISKELL will own all inventory in AE KEYES’S Corn Bin and the Corn Day
Tank (as each is defined in the Lease) and will deliver such inventory to AE KEYES on a daily basis on the following conditions:

 A. HEISKELL will [***] to the purchase price of all Corn purchased by AE KEYES on a daily basis for inventory shrinkage
(at the point of origination) (“Shrink”). The amount of Shrink will be reflected on all invoices to AE KEYES.

 B. AE KEYES shall purchase and empty all inventory from the Corn Bin and the Corn Day Tank (each as defined in the
Lease) at the Ethanol Plant at least once per quarter.

 C. HEISKELL and AE KEYES will reconcile the inventory (“True Up”) when the inventory is removed from the tank
quarterly. [***] HEISKELL and AE KEYES agree to renegotiate the Shrink if it is consistently over or under.

 D. The inline corn scale between the Ethanol Plant and Corn Day Tank will be used for the True Up and will govern the
weights used for the True Up.

 E. The purchase price for the Corn to be delivered each day must be established before the time of delivery to the
Ethanol Plant.

 F. AE KEYES is ultimately responsible for all shrink associated with the handling of corn at the Gilbert Feed Mill Storage
and the Corn Day Tank.

 
[***] Certain information in this document has been omitted and filed separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
Confidential treatment has been requested with respect to the omitted portions.
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1.5           HEISKELL Sale Contracts.  Oral agreements of sale will be recorded by HEISKELL and HEISKELL will promptly thereafter
generate and deliver to AE KEYES a written agreement evidencing each individual sale of Corn to AE KEYES (“Sale Contract”).  The
Sale Contract will govern the particulars of the sale [***] and shall constitute a binding obligation between HEISKELL and AE
KEYES.  AE KEYES will sign and return each Sale Contract or immediately notify HEISKELL of any discrepancy between the Sale
Contract and the terms of the sale to which AE KEYES orally agreed.  If AE KEYES fails to notify HEISKELL of such discrepancies
[***], then such Sale Contract will be deemed final and binding notwithstanding AE KEYES’S failure or refusal to return the signed
Sale Contract to HEISKELL. Amendments to Sale Contracts will be confirmed in writing in the same manner as herein provided for
the initial sale transaction. Any disputes related to a Sale Contract will be resolved by reference to National Grain and Feed
Association (“NGFA”) Trade Rules as then in effect. AE KEYES or HEISKELL may install telephone recording equipment to record all
conversations as an additional measure to ensure accuracy. Sales Contracts shall be applied against usage on a FIFO basis for each
specified delivery period, unless otherwise mutually agreed between AE KEYES and HEISKELL. A Sales Contract may be amended
by mutual agreement of the parties. Further, if both parties mutually agree that a Sales Contract should be cancelled, then such Sales
Contract shall be canceled at a mutually agreed price and the profit or loss resulting there from shall be applied to the next regular
billing. AE KEYES shall not unreasonably delay or withhold agreement to a commercially reasonable cancellation price as proposed
by HEISKELL.

1 .6           Settlement Weights.  The in-line scale in the Ethanol Plant (located after the Corn Day Tank) will be used to determine the
weights for the Corn purchased daily by AE KEYES and, pursuant to Section 1.4(D), will be used in conjunction with the origin rail
weights to establish the final governing weight for the True Up to calculate Shrink.

1 .7           Freight Adjustments.  If fuel surcharges are added to freight rate by the UPRR, then such charges shall be for the account
of AE KEYES and the price shall be adjusted upward to reflect the actual freight rate applicable to the shipment.

1 . 8           NGFA Trade and Arbitration Rules.  All Sale Contracts will be deemed to incorporate by reference the Trade Rules of the
NGFA as then in effect, whether or not such incorporation is expressly stated in the Sale Contract itself.  Disputes arising under Sale
Contracts will be resolved by binding arbitration in accordance with the Arbitration Rules of the NGFA as then in effect, whether or
not an arbitration agreement is expressly set forth in the disputed Sale Contracts.  The Trade Rules and Arbitration Rules will govern
as herein provided whether or not either or both of the parties are active members of the NGFA.

1 . 9           Limitations of Sale Obligation.  Subject to the rights of the Lenders under the Lender Consent, nothing contained in this
Agreement will be construed to require HEISKELL to offer or sell Corn to AE KEYES if i) such offer or sale is for delivery dates more
than [***] after the date
 
[***] Certain information in this document has been omitted and filed separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
Confidential treatment has been requested with respect to the omitted portions
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of the offer or contract; ii) AE KEYES is in material violation of this Agreement; iii) AE KEYES is insolvent; iv) AE KEYES is unable to
receive Corn at the Ethanol Plant and has not specified an alternative delivery location; v) AE KEYES would exceed its Credit Limit
(as defined below).  For purposes of ii) above, “material violation of this Agreement” shall mean any monetary breach by AE KEYES
and any other breach which has a material adverse effect on (a) the rights and obligations of HEISKELL under this Agreement or any
Related Agreement, or (b) the ability of AE KEYES to perform its obligations hereunder and under the Related Agreements, including
without limitation if the Lenders cause any of the AE KEYES credit facilities to be accelerated prior to such agreement’s stated
maturity date or foreclose upon the Collateral (as defined in the Security Agreement).

1.10          Corn Quality.  Nothing contained in this Agreement will be construed to require HEISKELL to purchase, for its own account
or for immediate resale to AE KEYES, Corn that is of inferior quality [***] except when such Corn can be received directly by AE
KEYES at the Ethanol Plant. Corn purchased by HEISKELL for AE KEYES will be Number 2 as defined by the current industry
standards for shuttle corn traded on the UPRR. All Corn supplied by HEISKELL pursuant to this Agreement shall be of a quality to
permit the reasonable and efficient operation of the Ethanol Plant.  Direct Sourced Corn by AE KEYES must meet the quality standard
of US Number 2 yellow corn.

1 . 1 1           Service Failures.  The parties specifically acknowledge that the price of Corn sold by HEISKELL to AE KEYES is based
upon rail shipment by the UPRR under programs promulgated by the UPRR; however it is not the intention of this Agreement to make
either party a guarantor of the performance or service of the UPRR.  Accordingly, if the UPRR for any reason fails in any material
respect to provide rail service consistent with the expectations of the parties as represented by Sale Contracts, then both parties will
make good faith efforts to replace the supply of Corn or to re-price the Corn so that each is restored as nearly as possible to the
position the parties would have been in but for the UPRR service failure. [***].

1.12          Title To and Risk of Loss.  Title to and risk of loss of Corn shall remain with HEISKELL until such Corn is purchased by AE
KEYES and delivered out of the Gilbert Facility and the Corn Day Bin (as each such term is defined in the Lease) into the Ethanol
Plant through the inline scale. The inline scale between the ethanol plant and the Corn Day Tank will be the official point of ownership
transfer.  AE KEYES may specify an alternative delivery point or offsite storage locations to facilitate Ethanol Plant maintenance,
mitigate anticipated corn market disruptions, or for other commercially reasonable reasons which AE KEYES will report to HEISKELL.
For deliveries to any other location than described above, AE KEYES agrees to pay the additional handling costs incurred by
HEISKELL.

[***] Certain information in this document has been omitted and filed separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
Confidential treatment has been requested with respect to the omitted portions.
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1.13          Forward Contracts.  HEISKELL is hereby authorized, upon receipt of written direction by AE KEYES, to enter into forward
contracts (“Forward Contracts”) regarding the Corn to be supplied hereunder.  AE KEYES shall be liable to HEISKELL for losses
incurred in connection with such Forward Contracts as a result of early termination of this Agreement caused by AE KEYES’s default
under this Agreement or the Related Agreements.

ARTICLE II
PURCHASE PRICE OF CORN AND HANDLING FEE

2 . 1           Purchase Price of Corn.  The purchase price of Corn shall include the agreed to price for Corn, including freight and
transportation costs to the Ethanol Plant (“Purchase Price”).

2.2           Service Fee.  AE KEYES agrees to pay a Service fee for the procurement of Corn (“Service Fee”) by HEISKELL, which fee
shall include all services related to delivering Corn to the Ethanol Plant, including but not limited to sourcing, logistics, scheduling,
accounting, and transferring Corn from the Gilbert Facility, then to the Corn Day Tank, and then to the Ethanol Plant.   [***] per bushel
and any additional amount due Gilbert above [***] Corn Handling Fee as defined in the Keyes Corn Handling Agreement. In no event
shall the Service Fee be reduced due to a change in the gilbert Handling Fee. HEISKELL shall notify AE KEYES of each such
increase by delivery of a written statement setting forth the Gilbert Handling Fee increase, if any, and the new Service
Fee.  HEISKELL’s notice will be given on or before the effective date of the increase.

2.3           URPR Incentives.  AE KEYES shall earn an unload incentive (the “Unload Incentive”) equal to any unload incentive paid by
the UPR to HEISKELL for the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.  This Unload Incentive will be credited weekly by
HEISKELL to AE KEYES as it is earned. Both HEISKELL and AE KEYES agree and understand that Gilbert is responsible for the
majority of the actions that could result in the Unload Incentive being paid or not paid by the UPRR.

[***]

The trip incentive as paid by the UPRR (the "Trip Incentive") for agreeing to operate a UPRR shuttle train will be negotiated
independently as part of the cost of corn.  Heiskell and AE KEYES will negotiate in good faith a sharing with, or transfer to, AE
KEYES that of the Trip Incentive concurrent with the pricing of the corn.

2 . 4           Separate Costs.  Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, HEISKELL and AE KEYES agree to be
responsible for the cost of their own operations.
 
[***] Certain information in this document has been omitted and filed separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
Confidential treatment has been requested with respect to the omitted portions.
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2.6           The parties hereto intend to enter into an agreement with  Gilbert to unload and handle Corn for the parties.  Subject to
receipt of payment from AE KEYES for the Service Fee and any express provisions to the contrary in this Agreement, [***] assumes
the obligation to pay Gilbert the handling fee specified pursuant to the Corn Handling Agreement.
 
 

ARTICLE III
PAYMENT AND CREDIT TERMS

Section 3.1   Payment Terms for Corn.  AE KEYES agrees that the Purchase Price and Service Fee will be due [***]  Notwithstanding
this general rule, in consideration of AE KEYES' entering into the Security Agreement, HEISKELL agrees that so long as its security
interest in the Collateral (as defined in the Security Agreement) remains a valid First Priority Security Interest, HEISKELL shall permit
payment of the Purchase Price and Service Fee to be payable and settled [***]following the applicable delivery.  This credit limit[***],
plus the applicable Handling Fee (the “Credit Limit”) shall cease immediately if (a) the liens in favor of HEISKELL under the Security
Agreement shall at any time cease to constitute First Priority Security Interest in the Collateral described therein, (b) the enforceability
of the Security Agreement or the Lender Consent shall be repudiated in writing by AE KEYES or the Lenders or (c) any Event of
Default (as defined below), or any event or condition which with the lapse of time, the giving of notice, or both, could constitute an
Event of Default, shall occur hereunder, whereupon the Credit Limit shall, at HEISKELL's sole discretion and without notice, become
[***].
  
Section 3.2    Credit Exposure Exceeding Credit Limit.  Notwithstanding anything contained in this Agreement, HEISKELL may but is
not required to [***] by entering into additional or new Sale Contracts that would result in [***] to AE KEYES that is greater than
[***].  The amount of any letter of credit which is reasonably acceptable to HEISKELL, and which is provided to HEISKELL for credit
support will commensurately increase the AE KEYES Credit Limit.  The Credit Limit may be reviewed at any time after the initial start-
up[***]  Upon receipt of [***], AE KEYES shall have the right to immediately terminate this Agreement upon written notice to
HEISKELL and payment of all amounts due hereunder.  If credit exposure exceeds the Credit Limit, such fact will not operate as or be
deemed to be either an increase in the Credit Limit or a waiver of HEISKELL’s rights hereunder.

Section 3.3   Financial Statements.  AE KEYES agrees to provide its annual audited financial statements to HEISKELL with [***] after
the same are completed and distributed to AE KEYES’S lenders. In addition, AE KEYES may provide such other or more frequent
financial information as it may desire in support of application for an increase in the Credit Limit or different payment terms.
 
[***] Certain information in this document has been omitted and filed separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
Confidential treatment has been requested with respect to the omitted portions.
 
 

7

EDGAR Stream is a copyright of Issuer Direct Corporation, all rights reserved.



 
 

ARTICLE IV
INITIAL TERM, RENEWALS, AND TERMINATION

 
4.1 Term.  The initial term of this Agreement shall commence on the date that corn procured by HEISKELL is delivered to the Gilbert
Facility and shall end on the next December 31st (“Initial term”). Each contract year shall begin on January 1st and end on the next
succeeding December 31st. This agreement shall continue for the Initial Contract Year and for one (1) full contract year thereafter (the
“renewal term”). [***]
 
 A. Termination for Convenience by AE KEYES.  AE KEYES has the right to terminate this Agreement for convenience at

any time by providing [***] written notice to HEISKELL by registered mail.
 
 B. Termination By HEISKELL at the End of the Initial Term.  HEISKELL may terminate this Agreement at the end of the

Initial Term and thereafter by giving written notice by registered mail to AE KEYES of such termination as follows:
 
 (1) Notice of termination to be effective at the conclusion of the Initial Term shall be given [***] to the expiration of

the Initial Term;
 
 (2) Notice of termination to be effective at the conclusion of a Renewal Term shall be given [***] to the expiration

of a Renewal Term.
 
 C. Termination as a Result of Default.   In addition to the termination provisions provided above in this Section 4.1, this

Agreement may be terminated, without payment of any penalty, upon the occurrence of any of the following (each, an
“Event of Default”) as follows:

 
 (1) If a party defaults in the payment of any amount when due under this Agreement or any Related Agreement

and such default continues for a period of [***] after written notice of such default has been given to the
defaulting party by the other party; or

 (2) By either party, immediately without notice to the other party, if such other party shall have become bankrupt
or insolvent, or entered into a composition with its creditors, or had a receiver appointed for its assets, or
become the subject of any winding up of its business or any judicial proceeding relating to or arising out of its
financial condition; or

 
 (3) By either party, immediately upon notice to the other party, if such other party commits an act of fraud or theft

with regarding to the performance of its obligations under this Agreement; or
 
 [***] Certain information in this document has been omitted and filed separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
Confidential treatment has been requested with respect to the omitted portions.
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 (4) By either party if the other party shall be in material breach of any of its other obligations under this

Agreement or any Related Agreement and shall have failed to cure such breach within [***] after receiving
written notice from the other party of the existence of such breach.

 
 D. Effect of Termination on Related Agreements.  With the exception of the Lease, the Lender Consent, and the

Security Agreement, which shall terminate in accordance with the terms respectively provided therein, all other
Related Agreements shall automatically terminate upon any termination of this Agreement by HEISKELL under
Section 4.1(C) and payment of all amounts due thereunder.

 
 

ARTICLE V
TRANSFER OF TITLE AND DETERMINATION OF FEES

 
5.1           Payment and Determination of Corn Cost and Handling Fee.  The amount of bushels transferred and invoiced to AE KEYES
shall be based on the reading from the in line scale installed on the Ethanol Property. Title to the Corn shall pass to AE KEYES at the
point of the in-line scale. AE KEYES shall maintain a properly certified scale to accurately weigh incoming Corn from the dedicated
Corn tanks. The scale shall be tested and calibrated quarterly by AE KEYES at AE KEYES's cost [***]. If the scale is turned off or
nonoperational for any reason, then the hourly Corn usage shall be calculated at the maximum [***] usage rate that was recorded
during the previous [***] period unless both parties mutually agree to a different method of calculation.

 HEISKELL will obtain electronic readings of the corn crossing the in line scale on a daily basis  (or as determined above if the scale
is turned off or nonoperational for any reason) and will provide AE KEYES each business day an invoice for delivered Corn on the
previous day, including any unbilled period, such as weekends or holidays.

5 . 2            Payment and Determination of Ethanol.  The amount of Ethanol transferred from AE KEYES to HEISKELL shall be based
on the reading from the in line meter [***] on the Ethanol Property. Title to the Ethanol shall pass to HEIKSELL at the point of the in-
line meter. AE KEYES shall maintain a properly certified meter to accurately account for outgoing ethanol from the Ethanol Plant.  The
meter shall be tested and calibrated quarterly by AE KEYES at AE KEYES's cost [***]. If the meter is turned off or nonoperational for
any reason, then the hourly Ethanol delivery shall be calculated at the minimum hourly delivery rate that was recorded during the
previous [***] period unless both parties mutually agree to a different method of calculation.
 
5.3           Payment and Determination of WDGS and Syrup.   The amount of WDGS and Syrup transferred and invoiced to HEIKSELL
shall be based on the reading from the Truck Scale installed on the Ethanol Property. Title to the WDGS and Syrup shall pass to
HEISKELL [***]. AE KEYES shall maintain a properly certified Truck Scale to accurately weigh outgoing WDGS and Syrup from the
Ethanol Plant.  The scale shall be tested and calibrated quarterly by AE KEYES at AE KEYES's [***]. If the scale is turned off or
nonoperational for any reason, then the daily WDGS and Syrup delivery shall be calculated at the minimum daily shipment rate that
was recorded during the previous [***] period unless both parties mutually agree to a different method of calculation.
5.4            Net Settlement Procedures.  HEISKELL and AE KEYES each will have obligations to the other resulting from (i) the sale of
Corn by HEISKELL to AE KEYES and the handling services of Heiskell and other obligations of AE KEYES under this Agreement,
and (ii) payment obligations under the Purchasing Agreement, including without limitation obligations related to the purchase of
Ethanol, WDGS and Syrup, handling and marketing services, performance guarantees from customers and the provision of
consulting services.  The parties agree that, subject to the Credit Limit set forth in Section 3.1 below, all such amounts shall be
subject to daily net settlement procedures whereby all amounts owing under such contracts from one party to the other will be
calculated and the party with a negative balance based on such settlement calculation will pay the net settlement amount due to the
other party in immediately available funds on the next business day, provided such net settlement amount is [***].  Amounts [***] will
be retained as a payable for calculating the net settlement amount on the next business day.  [***] shall be responsible for calculating
the net settlement amount for each business day and forwarding a copy of the net settlement statement to [***] electronically at the
AE KEYES notice address shown in this Agreement.  If AE KEYES does not object to the net settlement statement [***], such net
settlement statement will be deemed conclusive between the parties absent manifest error.
 
[***] Certain information in this document has been omitted and filed separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
Confidential treatment has been requested with respect to the omitted portions.
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ARTICLE VI
INSURANCE

6.1 Insurance.  Throughout the Term, HEISKELL and AE KEYES each agree:

 A. To procure and maintain for the benefit of themselves and the other party property and casualty insurance of the
Ethanol Plant;

 
 B. To procure and maintain for the benefit of themselves and the other party comprehensive commercial general liability

insurance on an “occurrence basis” and contractual liability coverage with limits of [***] per occurrence, including,
products liability coverage for products manufactured by HEISKELL and AE KEYES.

 C. To procure and maintain for the benefit of themselves and the other party vehicle liability insurance on an “occurrence
basis” with limits of [***] per occurrence; and

 D. To procure and maintain, for the benefit of themselves, workers compensation coverage that complies with all
applicable requirements of California laws and regulations.

 E. Any liability insurance and workers compensation insurance maintained pursuant hereto will contain a blanket waiver
of subrogation with respect to third parties.  In the event such blanket waiver of subrogation is eliminated from any
insurance coverage, the responsible party agrees to use its best efforts to procure a waiver of subrogation with
respect to claims against the other party arising out of the relationship between HEISKELL and AE KEYES created
pursuant to this Agreement.

 F. Each party agrees to provide to the other party certificates of insurance evidencing the required coverage, fully paid
in full force and effect.  Each party agrees to name the other party as an additional insured on all insurance required
by this Agreement, except Workers Compensation.  The certificates of insurance to be provided by each party will
provide that the insurance cannot be terminated without [***] days prior written notice to the other party.

 G. All insurance required by this Agreement will be effected under valid and enforceable policies, in such forms and
amounts as may from time to time be issued by insurers which are authorized to transact business in the State of
California and that are reasonably acceptable to the parties.  Upon the execution of this Agreement and thereafter not
less than fifteen days prior to the expiration date of each policy furnished pursuant to this Agreement, each party will
deliver to the other party the original of each policy required to be furnished pursuant to this Agreement (or, with the
consent of the other party, in the case of comprehensive general liability insurance, a certificate of the insurer
reasonably satisfactory to such other party) bearing a notation evidencing the payment of the premium or
accompanied by other evidence of payment reasonably satisfactory to the other party.

 
 H. Each such policy or certificate therefore issued by the insurer will contain an agreement by the insurer that such

policy will not be canceled [***] prior written notice by registered mail to all named insureds.

 I. Each party will observe and comply with the requirements of all policies of public liability, fire and other policies of
insurance insuring their respective facilities.

 
[***] Certain information in this document has been omitted and filed separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
Confidential treatment has been requested with respect to the omitted portions.
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ARTICLE VII
INDEMNIFICATION

7.1           Indemnification By HEISKELL.  HEISKELL agrees to defend, hold harmless and indemnify AE KEYES from any and all loss
or damage, costs and expenses, including reasonable legal fees, incurred by AE KEYES from any claim or action asserted against,
made or filed against AE KEYES claiming loss or injury of any nature whatsoever, resulting from HEISKELL's gross negligence or
willful misconduct in HEISKELL's performance, or from HEISKELL's breach, of its obligations under this Agreement or the Related
Agreements, subject to the provisions of Section 9 below.  The foregoing indemnification obligation shall survive any termination of
this Agreement.

7.2           AE KEYES agrees to defend, hold harmless and indemnify HEISKELL from any and all loss or damage, costs and
expenses, including reasonable legal fees, incurred by HEISKELL from any claim or action asserted against, made or filed against
HEISKELL claiming loss or injury of any nature whatsoever, resulting from AE KEYES'  negligence or willful misconduct in AE
KEYES' performance, or from AE KEYES' breach, of its obligations under, this Agreement or the Related Agreements, subject to the
provisions of Section 9 below.  The foregoing indemnification obligation shall survive any termination of this Agreement.

ARTICLE VIII
NOTICES

8 . 1           Notices.  All notices required or permitted hereunder (with the exception of normal operational communications which will
occur in any commercially reasonable manner) will be in writing and addressed to the recipient at the address set forth at the end of
this Agreement.  Either party may change such address by providing the other with notice of such change in accordance with this
Section.  All notices will be deemed given when delivered in person, transmitted by facsimile with confirmation of receipt, or delivered
by a recognized national, overnight courier service with signed acknowledgement of receipt.

ARTICLE IX
MISCELLANEOUS

9.1           Representations and Warranties.  Each party represents and warrants to the other party that i) it is duly formed and in good
standing in its state of formation; ii) it is qualified to do business in the State of California; iii) it has full power and authority to enter
into, and to perform, this Agreement; iv) all necessary corporate action has been taken by the representing party to authorize the
execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement; and v) the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement by such
representing party do not violate, or constitute a breach of any governmental requirement or any material indenture, contract or other
instrument to which to representing party is a party or by which the representing party or its assets are bound or to which its business
is subject.  Upon execution and delivery, this Agreement will constitute the legal and binding agreement of the representing party
enforceable against such representing party in accordance with its terms.
 
[***] Certain information in this document has been omitted and filed separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
Confidential treatment has been requested with respect to the omitted portions.
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9.2           Successors and Assigns.  This Agreement shall be binding upon and will inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their
respective legal representatives, successors and permitted assigns, and wherever a reference in this Agreement is made to either of
the parties hereto such reference will be deemed to include, if applicable, also a reference to the legal representatives, successors
and permitted assigns of such party, as if in every case so expressed.

9 . 3           Attorneys’ Fees.  Should either party hereto institute any action or proceeding in court to enforce any provisions hereof or
for damages by reason of any alleged breach of any provision of this Agreement, the prevailing party will be entitled to receive from
the losing party such amount as the court may adjudge to be reasonable attorneys’ fees for the services rendered to the prevailing
party in such action or proceeding.

9.4           Independent Contractors.  This Agreement is not intended to be, nor will it be construed, by implication or otherwise, as an
agreement to establish a partnership, a corporation, a joint venture or any other business organization.  Neither party will act or
present itself, directly or indirectly, as an agent of the other party or in any manner assume or create any obligation on behalf of, or in
the name of, such other party.

9 . 5           No Waiver.  The failure of a party to seek redress for violation of, or to insist upon the strict performance of, any covenant
or condition of this Agreement will not be deemed a waiver by such party of its rights to such redress for a prior, concurrent or
subsequent violation of the same or any other covenant or condition of this Agreement.  Any waiver of any right or remedy must be in
writing and signed by the party against which enforcement is sought.

9 . 6           Headings.  The headings used in this Agreement i) are for convenience only, ii) are not to affect the construction hereof,
and iii) are not to be taken into consideration in the interpretation hereof.

9.7           Governing Law.  This Agreement will be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of California.

9 .8           Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in two, each of which will be deemed an original but all of which together
will constitute one and the same agreement.

9 . 9           Force Majeure.  Neither party shall be liable to the other for its failure to perform its obligations hereunder (other than a
monetary obligation) when such failure shall be due to the failure of processing equipment, fires, floods, storms, weather conditions,
strikes, lock outs, other industrial disturbance, riots, legal interference, governmental action or regulation, acts of terrorism, acts of
God or public enemy, or limitation by enumeration, any other cause beyond such party's reasonable control; provided such party
shall promptly and diligently take such action as may be necessary and practicable under the then existing circumstances to remove
the cause of failure and resume performance of such obligations.  The party seeking to invoke this provision shall provide notice
within 48 hours or such other time as is reasonable under the circumstances.  The party shall further notify the other party as to the
time when the force majeure condition is no longer in effect.

ARTICLE XI
RELEASE REGARDING INVENTORY

10.1 AE KEYES will cause the Lenders to execute and deliver the Lender Consent, in form and substance acceptable to
HEISKELL.  HEISKELL shall have no obligation under this Agreement or the Related Agreements (a) until the Lender Consent has
been executed, delivered to HEISKELL and is in effect, or (b) at any time that the Lender Consent is not in full force and effect.
 
[***] Certain information in this document has been omitted and filed separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
Confidential treatment has been requested with respect to the omitted portions.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed as of the date first above written.
 

AE ADVANCED FUELS KEYES, INC.   J.D. HEISKELL HOLDINGS, LLC  
     
By: /s/ Eric A. McAfee   By: /s/ Robert Hodgen  
Name: Eric A. McAfee   Name:  Robert Hodgen  
Title: CEO   Title: VP – California Business Group  
 
NOTICE ADDRESSES:   NOTICES ADDRESSES:
   
20400 Stevens Creek Blvd., Suite 700  116 W. Cedar Avenue
Cupertino, CA   95014  Tulare, CA  93274
Phone:  Phone:
Facsimile:  Facsimile:
Email:  Email: tregan@heiskell.com
Attention:  Attention: Chief Financial Officer
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HEISKELL PURCHASING AGREEMENT
 
This Heiskell Purchasing Agreement is made and entered into this 9th  day of March 2011 (this "Agreement") by and between
AE Advanced Fuels Keyes, Inc. (a Delaware Company) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of AE Biofuels, Inc. (a Nevada Company).
("AEAF KEYES"), and J. D. Heiskell Holdings, LLC, a California limited liability company doing business as J.D. Heiskell & Co
("HEISKELL").
 

WI T N E S S E T H:
 
WHEREAS, AEAF KEYES would like to utilize the services of HEISKELL to purchase and then resell the Wet Distiller's Grains with
Solubles (hereinafter referred to as "WDGS"), Syrup (the concentrated liquid solubles remaining after production of WDGS) ("Syrup"),
and Denatured Ethanol (hereinafter referred to as "Ethanol") from its ethanol plant located near Keyes, California (the "Plant"); and
 
WHEREAS, HEISKELL is in the business of marketing animal feed, including WDGS, Ethanol and Syrup in the United States; and
 
WHEREAS, the parties desire to enter into and execute this Agreement for the purpose of setting forth agreed upon terms and
conditions for the marketing of WDGS, Syrup and Ethanol from the Plant.
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and agreements set forth herein, the parties agree
as follows:
 
I .              First Purchasing Rights. AEAF KEYES gives HEISKELL exclusive rights to purchase WDGS, Syrup, and Ethanol produced
from the Plant.
 
2.             Services Provided. HEISKELL will provide to AEAF KEYES the following services:
 

A .       WDGS and Syrup. AEAF KEYES shall establish the price for WDGS and Syrup to be Purchased by HEISKELL [***]
from the Plant. HEISKELL will purchase WDGS and Syrup from AEAF KEYES [***] and then sell WDGS and Syrup at a price
determined by AEAF Keyes and agreeable by Heiskell to customers that meet its credit and delivery requirements. AEAF
KEYES shall notify HEISKELL of the approximate volume available for purchase by HEISKELL.
 
B.        Ethanol. HEISKELL will sell all Ethanol produced by AEAF KEYES to Kinergy or other ethanol purchasers designated
by AEAF KEYES (as to each, an "Ethanol Purchaser") on [***] credit terms provided the Ethanol Purchaser meets
HEISKELL'S credit and delivery requirements; it being agreed that Kinergy meets such requirements as of the date hereof.
HEISKELL will purchase all Ethanol produced by AEAF KEYES [***]. HEISKELL will pay to AEAF KEYES [***]. All such sales
to Kinergy as an Ethanol Purchaser will be on a [***]payment basis (i.e. payment will be due to Heiskell for all Ethanol sold to
Kinergy as the Ethanol Purchaser [***] after shipment).
 
C.       Marketing of WDGS and Syrup. HEISKELL shall use its best efforts to market and sell all WDGS and Syrup production
from the Plant in an economical manner and so as to allow AEAF KEYES to clear WDGS and Syrup storage. All sales made
by HEISKELL shall be on HEISKELL contracts, with HEISKELL responsible for invoicing, credit management, and logistics.
HEISKELL agrees that A.L. Gilbert ("GILBERT") will be the primary customer and exclusive marketer for the WDGS. AEAF
Keyes may direct HEISKELL to sell all of the WDGS to GILBERT. As to any WDGS and Syrup not directed to GILBERT by
AEAF KEYES, HEISKELL may also sell WDGS and Syrup to any customer that meets HEISKELL's credit and delivery
requirements.
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D .       Scheduling and Distribution. HEISKELL will be responsible for scheduling shipments of all of AEAF KEYES'S WDGS,
Syrup and Ethanol marketed by HEISKELL. At the discretion of HEISKELL and the consent of AEAF KEYES, HEISKELL may
allow customers or other marketers to utilize their own trucks to pick up WDGS, Syrup and Ethanol FOB the Plant. AEAF
KEYES shall be responsible for loading and weighing all WDGS, Syrup and Ethanol placed into trucks provided by
HEISKELL.
 
E .        Freight. Except when an approved customer or other marketer provides its own trucks, HEISKELL will arrange
transportation for all Ethanol, WDGS and Syrup. HEISKELL will buy and sell Ethanol, [***].
 
F .        Customer Creditworthiness. HEISKELL will consult with AEAF KEYES before making forward contracts of WDGS,
Syrup, or Ethanol sales for delivery terms [***].
  
G.       Title To and Risk of Loss. Title to and risk of loss of WDGS, Syrup, and Ethanol shall pass from AEAF KEYES to
HEISKELL (I) upon loading of the truck in the case of WDGS and Syrup, and (ii) upon transfer into the Denatured Ethanol
Storage Tank at AEAF KEYES's Plant (as defined in the Lease dated as of the date hereof between HEISKELL and AEAF
KEYES) in the case of Ethanol
 
H.       Forward Contracts. HEISKELL is hereby authorized to enter into forward contracts ("Forward Contracts") regarding
delivery of the WDGS, Syrup and Ethanol to be acquired hereunder. AEAF KEYES shall be liable to HEISKELL for losses
incurred in connection with early termination of such Forward Contracts as a result of AEAF KEYES's default under this
Agreement or the Related Agreements.

 
3 .            Handling Fee and Marketing Incentive. [***].  HEISKELL AND AEAF KEYES will mutually establish a price for WDGS and
Syrup. All such prices will be [***]. HEISKELL is responsible for invoicing, credit management, and logistics as outlined in Section
2.C. above. HEISKELL will establish a sales price to each customer that includes a maximum markup [***] to cover the costs and risks
associated with transacting the WDG and Syrup sales to that specific customer..-GILBERT and Harris Feeding will have a handling
fee [***]provided they pay for their respective purchases from Heiskell [***]. HEISKELL will agree to disclose to AEAF KEYES the
delivered sales price for each load of WDGS and Syrup that it is allowed to market directly to Producers and other marketers. In the
event AEAF KEYES determines in good faith that such markup is consistently higher than the market reflects, AEAF KEYES may
give notice to HEISKELL that HEISKELL shall thereafter sell WDGS and Syrup to Producers and other marketers selected by and at
a price determined by AEAF KEYES; provided, however, that (i) such Producers and other marketers meet HEISKELL's credit and
delivery requirements and (ii) HEISKELL receives a fee, as agreed between AEAF KEYES and HEISKELL, sufficient to compensate
HEISKELL for the costs of providing such services to AEAF KEYES and effecting such sales.
 
4 .             Payment. HEISKELL shall make payment to AEAF KEYES for all WDGS and Syrup produced by the AEAF KEYES plant,
and for all ethanol delivered into the denatured ethanol tank at AEAF KEYES pursuant to this Agreement [***]. HEISKELL and AEAF
KEYES each will have obligations to the other resulting from (i) the sale of corn by HEISKELL to AEAF KEYES and the handling
services of HEISKELL and other obligations of AEAF KEYES under the Corn Procurement and Working Capital Agreement, dated as
of the date hereof (the "Corn Procurement Agreement"), between AEAF KEYES and HEISKELL, and (ii) payment obligations under
this Agreement, including without limitation obligations related to the purchase of Ethanol, WDGS and Syrup (as defined herein),
handling and marketing services, performance guarantees from customers and the provision of consulting services. The parties agree
that, subject to the Credit Limit set forth in Section 3.1 of the Corn Procurement Agreement, all such amounts shall be subject to [***]
net settlement procedures whereby all amounts owing under such contracts from one party to the other will be calculated and the
party with a negative balance based on such settlement calculation will pay the net settlement amount due to the other party in
immediately available funds [***], provided such net settlement amount is greater than [***]. Amounts less than [***] will be retained
as a payable for calculating the net settlement amount [***]. HEISKELL shall be responsible for calculating the net settlement amount
[***]and forwarding a copy of the net settlement statement to AEAF KEYES electronically at the AEAF KEYES notice address shown
in this Agreement. If AEAF KEYES does not object to the net settlement statement [***], such net settlement statement will be
deemed conclusive between the parties absent manifest error.
 
[***] Certain information in this document has been omitted and filed separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
Confidential treatment has been requested with respect to the omitted portions.
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5 .             Payment Offsets: Pursuant to Section 5, HEISKELL shall be entitled to offset the amount due HEISKELL for Corn (as
defined in the Corn Procurement Agreement) against any amount due AEAF KEYES for Ethanol, WDGS, or Syrup acquired by
HEISKELL.
 
6.             Insurance. Throughout the Term, HEISKELL and AEAF KEYES each agree:
 

A.      To procure and maintain for the benefit of themselves and the other party property and casualty insurance on an
"occurrence" basis covering at least the cash value of the HEISKELL's facility and AEAF KEYES'S Plant.
 
B.       To procure and maintain for the benefit of themselves and the other party comprehensive commercial general liability
insurance on an "occurrence basis" and contractual liability coverage [***] per occurrence, including, products liability
coverage for products manufactured by HEISKELL and AEAF KEYES.
 
C.       To procure and maintain for the benefit of themselves and the other party vehicle liability insurance on an
"occurrence basis" with limits [***] per occurrence.
 
D.      To procure and maintain for the benefit of themselves workers' compensation coverage that complies with all applicable
requirements of California laws and regulations.
 
E.       Any liability insurance and workers compensation insurance maintained pursuant hereto will contain a blanket waiver of
subrogation with respect to third parties. In the event such blanket waiver of subrogation is eliminated from any insurance
coverage, the responsible party agrees to use its best efforts to procure a waiver of subrogation with respect to claims
against the other party arising out of the relationship between HEISKELL and AEAF KEYES created pursuant to this
Agreement.
 
F.       Each patty agrees to provide to the other party certificates of insurance evidencing the required coverage, fully paid in
full force and effect. Each party agrees to name the other party as an additional insured on all insurance required by this
Agreement, with the exception of worker's compensation insurance. The certificates of insurance to be provided by each
party will provide that the insurance cannot be terminated without at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to the other
party.
 
G.      All insurance required by this Agreement will be effected under valid and enforceable policies, in such forms and
amounts as may from time to time be issued by insurers of recognized responsibility which are authorized to transact
business in the State of California and that are reasonably acceptable to the parties. Upon the execution of this Agreement
and thereafter not less than fifteen days prior to the expiration date of each policy furnished pursuant to this Agreement, each
party will deliver to the other party the original of each policy required to be furnished pursuant to this Agreement (or, with the
consent of the other party, in the case of comprehensive general liability insurance, a certificate of the insurer reasonably
satisfactory to such other party) bearing a notation evidencing the payment of the premium or accompanied by other
evidence of payment reasonably satisfactory to the other party.
 
H.      Each such policy or certificate therefore issued by the insurer will contain an agreement by the insurer that such policy
will not be canceled without at least thirty (30) days prior written notice by registered mail to all named insureds.
 
I.        Each party will observe and comply with the requirements of all policies of public liability, fire and other
policies of insurance insuring their respective facilities.

 
[***] Certain information in this document has been omitted and filed separately with the Securities and Exchange
Commission. Confidential treatment has been requested with respect to the omitted portions.
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7.             Independent Contractor. HEISKELL shall act as an independent contractor of AEAF KEYES and not act as agent or partner
of, or joint venturer with, AEAF KEYES. Neither HEISKELL nor its employees shall be considered employees of AEAF KEYES, and
neither party shall in any event be held liable or accountable for any obligations incurred by the other party other than as specified
herein, it being specifically understood that the respective businesses of each of the parties shall be operated separate and apart from
each other.
 
8 .             Confidentiality/Employees. HEISKELL and AEAF KEYES shall cause their respective officers, directors, employees, and
agents to maintain as confidential any trade secrets, technology, processes or proprietary business information which may be
disclosed or acquired by either party in connection with this Agreement. The foregoing obligations shall survive any termination of this
Agreement.
 
9.             Initial Term, Renewals, and Termination.
 

A .      Term. The initial term of this Agreement shall commence on the date that corn procured by Heiskell is delivered to the
Gilbert Facility and shall end on the next December 31" ("Initial Term"). Each contract year shall begin on January I stand
end on the next succeeding December 31''. This Agreement shall continue for the Initial Contract Year and for one (I) full
contract year thereafter (the "Renewal Term"). This Agreement shall continue annually thereafter unless either party gives
notice of termination as outlined in Section 9 B-E herein.
 
B .      Termination for Convenience by AEAF KEYES. In addition to its right of termination of HEISKELL's services as
marketer for the WDGS and Syrup under Section 3 hereof, AEAF KEYES has the right to terminate this Agreement for
convenience at any time by providing 180 days written notice to HEISKELL by registered mail.
 
C.      Termination at the end of the Initial Term. Either party has the right to tern1inate this Agreement for convenience at the
end of the Initial Term and any Renewal Term by giving written notice by registered mail to tl1e other party of such
termination as follows:

 
(I)       Notice of termination to be effective at the conclusion of the Initial Term shall be given 90 days prior to the

expiration of the Initial Term;
 
(2)       Notice of termination to be effective at the conclusion of a Renewal Term shall be given 90 days prior to the

expiration of a Renewal Term.
 

D.      Termination as a Result of Default. In addition to the termination provisions provided above in this Section 11, this
Agreement may be terminated, without payment of any penalty, as follows:

 
(1)       if a party defaults in the payment of any amount when due under this Agreement or any Related Agreement

(as defined in the Corn Procurement Agreement), and such default continues for a period [***] after written notice of such
default has been given to the defaulting party by the other party; or

 
(2)      by either party, immediately without notice to the other party, if such other party shall have become

bankrupt or insolvent, or entered into a composition with its creditors, or had a receiver appointed for its assets, or
become the subject of any winding up of its business or any judicial proceeding relating to or arising out of its
financial condition; or

 
 
[***] Certain information in this document has been omitted and filed separately with the Securities and Exchange
Commission. Confidential treatment has been requested with respect to the omitted portions.
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(3)      by either party, immediately upon notice to the other party, if such other party commits an act of fraud or theft

with respect to the performance of its obligations under this Agreement; or
 
(4)      except as set forth in sub-section(!) above, by either party if the other party shall be in material breach of any of

its obligations under this Agreement or ru1y Related Agreement and shall have failed to cure such breach within sixty (60)
days after receiving written notice from the other party of the existence of such breach.

 
E .      Automatic Termination. Notwithstanding anything contained herein, this Agreement shall terminate automatically,
without payment of any penalty, upon (i) the termination of the Com Procurement Agreement and (ii) the payment of ru1y
amounts due hereunder.

 
10.          Arbitration. Any dispute arising out of or in com1ection with this Agreement, including a claim of breach of the tem1s hereof,
shall be submitted to arbitration conducted by the National Grain and Feed Association of Washington D.C., U.S.A. ("NGFA"), in
accordance with its Arbitration Rules then in existence. The parties hereby agree that the arbitration procedure provided for herein
shall be the sole and exclusive method, other than informal discussions or negotiations, for resolving any and all questions, disputes,
claims, and other matters arising out of or in com1ection with this Agreement. In the event any such dispute is not subject to
arbitration under NGFA Rules, the parties agree to submit to non-binding mediation of the dispute before a mutually acceptable
mediator prior to bringing suit. Costs of the mediator shall be split between the parties.
 
11.           Indemnification.
 

A.      HEISKELL agrees to defend, hold harmless and indemnify AEAF KEYES from any and all loss or damage, costs and
expenses, including reasonable legal fees, incurred by AEAF KEYES from any claim or action asserted against, made or filed
against AEAF KEYES claiming loss or injury of any nature whatsoever, resulting from HEISKELL's gross negligence or willful
misconduct in HEISKELL's performance, or from HEISKELL's breach, of its obligations under this Agreement or the Related
Agreements, subject to the provisions of Section 14 below. The foregoing indemnification obligation shall survive any
termination of this Agreement.

 
B.       AEAF KEYES agrees to defend, hold harmless and indemnify HEISKELL from any and all loss or damage, costs and
expenses, including reasonable legal fees, incurred by HEISKELL from any claim or action asserted against, made or filed
against HEISKELL claiming loss or injury of any nature whatsoever, resulting from AEAF KEYES' negligence or willful
misconduct in AEAF KEYES' performance, or from AEAF KEYES breach, of its obligations under, this Agreement or the
Related Agreements subject to the provisions of Section 14 below. The foregoing indemnification obligation shall survive any
termination of this Agreement.

 
1 2 .           Applicable Law. The laws of the State of California shall govern the application and interpretation of this Agreement,
excluding its conflict of laws rules.
 
1 3 .           Prior Agreements/Amendments. This Agreement cancels and supersedes any and all prior agreements, oral or written,
made between the parties hereto relating to the marketing of WDGS. It can only be modified by an agreement in writing signed by all
applicable parties.
 
1 4 .           Force Majeure. HEISKELL shall not be liable to AEAF KEYES for its failure to deliver services hereunder, and AEAF
KEYES shall not be liable to HEISKELL for its failure to produce WDGS, Ethanol or Syrup when such failure shall be due to the
failure of processing equipment, fires, floods, storms, weather conditions, strikes, lock outs, other industrial disturbance, riots, legal
interference, governmental action or regulation, acts of terrorism, acts of God or public enemy, or, without limitation by enumeration,
any other cause beyond HEISKELL's or AEAF KEYES's reasonable control; provided HEISKELL or AEAF KEYES shall promptly and
diligently take such action as may be necessary and practicable under the then existing circumstances to remove the cause of failure
and resume delivery of services or WDGS. The party seeking to invoke this provision shall provide notice within 48 hours or such
other time as is reasonable under the circumstances. The party shall further notify the other party as to the time when the force
majeure condition is no longer in effect.
 
[***] Certain information in this document has been omitted and filed separately with the Securities and Exchange
Commission. Confidential treatment has been requested with respect to the omitted portions.
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15 .           Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which will be deemed an original but
all of which together will constitute one and the same agreement.
 
16.           No Waiver. The failure of a party to seek redress for violation of, or to insist upon the strict performance of, any covenant or
condition of this Agreement will not be deemed a waiver by such party of its rights to such redress for a prior, concurrent or
subsequent violation of the same or any other covenant or condition of this Agreement. Any waiver of any right or remedy must be in
writing and signed by the party against which enforcement is sought.
 
17.           Notices. All notices required or permitted hereunder (with the exception of normal operational communications which will
occur in any commercially reasonable manner) will be in writing and addressed to the recipient at the address set f01th at the end of
this Agreement. Either party may change such address by providing the other with notice of such change in accordance with this
section. All notices will be deemed given when delivered in person, transmitted by facsimile with confirmation of receipt or delivered
by a recognized national, overnight courier service with signed acknowledgement of receipt.
 
18.           Successors and Assigns. Subject to the provision hereof, this Agreement will be binding upon and will inure to the benefit of
the parties hereto and their respective legal representatives, successors and permitted assigns, and wherever a reference in this
Agreement is made to either of the parties hereto such reference will be deemed to include, if applicable, also a reference to the legal
representatives, successors and permitted assigns of such party, as if in every case so expressed. Except as a general collateral
assignment of contract rights (as part of general intangibles) to its lenders, neither party will be permitted to assign its rights or
obligations under this Agreement, in whole or in part, without the prior written consent of the other party (which such consent may not
be unreasonably withheld or delayed).
 
19.           Representations and Warranties. Each party represents and warrants to the other party that i) it is duly-formed and in good
standing in its state of formation; ii) it is qualified to do business in the State of California; iii) it has full power and authority to enter
into, and to perfom1, this Agreement and the Related Agreements; iv) all necessary corporate action has been taken by the
representing party to authorize the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement and the Related Agreements; and v) the
execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement and the Related Agreements by such representing party do not violate, or
constitute a breach of any governmental requirement or any material indenture, contract or other instrument to which the representing
party is a patty or by which the representing party or its assets are bound or to which its business is subject. Upon execution and
delivery, this Agreement and the Related Agreements will constitute the legal and binding agreement of the representing party
enforceable against such representing party in accordance with its terms.
 
[***] Certain information in this document has been omitted and filed separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
Confidential treatment has been requested with respect to the omitted portions.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the date and year first above written.
 
AE ADVANCED FUELS KEYES, INC.   J.D. HEISKELL HOLDINGS, LLC  
     
By: /s/ Eric A. McAfee   By: /s/ Robert Hodgen  
Name: Eric A. McAfee   Name:  Robert Hodgen  
Title:  Chief Executive Officer   Title: VP – California Business Group  
 
NOTICE ADDRESSES:   NOTICES ADDRESSES:
   
20400 Stevens Creek Blvd., Suite 700  116 W. Cedar Avenue
Cupertino, CA   95014  Tulare, CA  93274
Phone:  Phone:
Facsimile:  Facsimile:
Email:  Email: tregan@heiskell.com
Attention:  Attention: 
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EXHIBIT 10.66
 

WDG PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT

This WDG PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is dated as of March 23, 2011 for reference purposes and is
entered into by and among A. L. GILBERT COMPANY, a California corporation (“Gilbert”), and AE ADVANCED FUELS KEYES, INC.
(“AEAF Keyes”), a Delaware Corporation, based on the following:

R E C I T A L S
 

A.           AEAF Keyes has entered into a lease with Cilion, Inc. to lease ten (10) acres, more or less, of real property located
contiguous to Gilbert’s feed mill in Keyes, California for the purpose of operating an approximately 55 million gallon per year ethanol
plant (“Ethanol Plant”).

B.           The Ethanol Plant will produce wet distiller’s grain, a byproduct from the production of ethanol (“WDG”) which is used for
animal feed in the dairy industry.

C.           Gilbert is in the business of manufacturing and marketing animal feed in California, and currently markets wet byproducts.

D.           The parties now desire to enter into this Agreement as it pertains to the purchase and sale of WDG produced by the Ethanol
Plant on the terms and conditions as hereinafter set forth.

A G R E E M E N T
NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows:
 

1. Purchase of WDG.  Gilbert shall manage and market, on an exclusive basis, all of the WDG produced by AEAF
Keyes at the Ethanol Plant.  AEAF Keyes may designate an intermediary 3rd party to purchase the WDG from AEAF Keyes and then
sell the WDG to Gilbert.  Gilbert shall pay the 3rd party on the terms and under the conditions set forth herein.  Except as otherwise
set forth herein, Gilbert shall market and sell the WDG at the prevailing FOB Keyes market price as mutually agreed between Gilbert
and AEAF Keyes, from which Gilbert will receive a marketing and handling fee of Four Dollars ($4.00) per ton (“Marketing Fee”) and
the balance of the WDG sales proceeds shall be paid to AEAF Keyes.

AEAF Keyes will pay an incentive marketing fee to Gilbert to the extent that the sales price of WDG per ton exceeds
85% of the cost of corn per ton used to produce the respective WDG.  The incentive marketing fee shall be equal to $0.10 per ton for
every 1% that the price of WDG exceeds 85% of the related cost of corn per ton, not to exceed $0.50 per ton in the aggregate (90% of
the cost of corn).
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AEAF Keyes will be responsible for loading Gilbert’s Trucks at the Ethanol Plant.  Gilbert will use its reasonable best
efforts to maximize the price in all WDG marketing.  The Marketing Fee shall be subject to annual adjustment (by the method
described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto) with the first adjustment to be effective January 1, 2014, and thereafter each January 1st

during the term of this Agreement, which adjustment shall assure Gilbert the same or similar margin during each subsequent Contract
Year (as that term is defined below). 

 
 2.         Payment of the Purchase Price. Gilbert will pay AEAF Keyes for WDG every Wednesday for the prior week billing period
ending each Saturday at midnight.  Gilbert shall submit a statement to AEAF Keyes reflecting the amount due AEAF Keyes by Gilbert
which statement  shall reflect a written itemization of the proceeds sufficient to identify the volume of WDGs, the sales price, the sale
date and other relevant sale information.   AEAF Keyes shall have the right to review and inspect all relevant books and accounting
records supporting Gilbert’s invoice.  Gilbert shall deduct the Marketing Fee and incentive commission, if any, as provided
herein.  Any late payment (received more than 3 business days after it is due) shall accrue interest at 12% percent per annum unless
the unpaid amount is subject to a good faith dispute between the parties.

3 .         Quality of WDG.  The parties acknowledge and agree that the prevailing FOB market price will fluctuate with the quality,
consistency and condition of the WDG produced by AEAF Keyes.  AEAF Keyes will use its reasonable best efforts to meet generally
accepted industry standards and specifications such that the WDG will be fit for dairy animal consumption.  OTHER THAN AS SET
FORTH HEREIN, AEAF KEYES MAKES NO WARRANTY, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, AND SPECIFICALLY MAKES NO WARRANTY
OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE WITH RESPECT TO THE WDG.  AEAF Keyes shall
indemnify, defend and hold harmless Gilbert from and against any and all claims, liabilities, actions, losses, damages, fines,
penalties, costs and expenses, (including reasonable attorneys fees) incurred by Gilbert and arising out of or resulting from the failure
of  the WDG to be fit for animal consumption, including claims based on injuries or death to animals.  AEAF Keyes shall name Gilbert
as an additional insured on its policies covering products liability attributable to WDG.
 
The parties acknowledge that it is in their mutual best interests that the WDG be sold for animal consumption or for similar byproduct
uses and not disposed of for a disposal fee.  In the event that the quality and consistency of the WDG is such that its value is less
than the Marketing Fee plus the cost that Gilbert reasonably anticipates it will incur to sell the WDG, Gilbert will sell the WDG, with
AEAF Keyes’ approval, and AEAF Keyes will reimburse Gilbert for the difference between the sum of the Marketing Fee and Gilbert’s
reasonable and necessary costs incurred to sell the WDG, less the actual net proceeds received.  Gilbert will dispose of the WDG for
a disposal fee which will be reimbursed by AEAF Keyes with AEAF Keyes’ approval only if there is no reasonable market for the
WDG or the cost of the disposal is less than Gilbert’s Marketing Fee and reasonable and necessary costs incurred to sell the WDG.

                                4.           Term.  The initial term of this Agreement shall commence on the date WDG is first available for
marketing from the Ethanol Plant and shall end on the next December 31st (“Initial Contract Year”).  Each contract year thereafter
shall begin January 1st and end on the next succeeding December 31st.  This Agreement shall continue for the Initial Contract Year
and for five (5) full contract years thereafter.  This Agreement shall continue annually thereafter unless either party gives the other
notice of termination prior to June 30th of the year in which the next Contract Year would end, in which case this Agreement will
terminate effective the next December 31st.  Either party may cancel this Agreement immediately upon notice to the other party, if
such other party shall have become bankrupt or insolvent, or entered into an assignment for the benefit of its creditors, or had a
receiver appointed for its assets, or become the subject of any winding up of its business or any judicial proceeding relating to or
arising out of its financial condition.  Subject to the notice and right to cure provisions as set forth in paragraph 9, the non-defaulting
party may cancel this Agreement upon any default by the other party.  Finally, in the event of a default under this Agreement, the
nondefaulting party shall have the immediate right to offset its payable against the outstanding receivable of the defaulting party in
addition to any other remedies allowed by law.
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5 .           Marketing.  Gilbert will use its reasonable best efforts to market all WDG produced by AEAF Keyes in an economically and
commercially reasonable manner.  All sales shall be made by Gilbert in accordance with Gilbert’s normal terms and
conditions.  Gilbert shall be responsible for collection and credit risk.  Gilbert will arrange for removal of WDG in accordance with
AEAF Keyes’ storage capacity limitations.

6 .           Title to and Risk of Loss.  Title to and risk of loss of WDG shall pass from  AEAF Keyes to Gilbert following loading by AEAF
Keyes onto Gilbert’s trucks or otherwise leaving the Ethanol Plant under Gilbert’s supervision and direction.  All regulatory compliance
related to the WDG VOC emissions from the production and storage of the WDG while at the Ethanol Plant shall be AEAF Keyes’
responsibility.  Regulatory compliance for hauling and disposal activities pertaining to the WDG shall be the responsibility of Gilbert.
 

7 .           Credit.  Gilbert shall be responsible for invoicing, customer credit limits, credit risk, accounts receivable and
logistics for all sales made by Gilbert.  Gilbert shall have the authority to negotiate contracts with customers and shall transmit copies
of completed contracts and/or invoices to AEAF Keyes at AEAF Keyes’ request.

 
8 .           Independent Contractors.  This Agreement does not constitute and shall in no way be construed to

constitute or give rise to a partnership, joint venture or similar relationship between the parties hereto.  Each party shall perform its
obligations under this Agreement as an independent contractor and not as an agent for the other.  Neither party shall have the right to
obligate or bind the other party in any manner whatsoever except as specifically provided herein.

9 .           Events of Default and Remedies.  If either party defaults in respect of its obligations under this Agreement, the other party
may give notice of default.  If such default is not cured within fifteen (15) days of such notice, the nondefaulting party shall be entitled
to such remedies as are available at law, including but not limited to cancellation of this Agreement.
 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, in no event shall either party be liable to the other for any indirect, consequential,
punitive or special damages, loss of business expectation or business interruptions, arising in any way out of this Agreement or any
breach of this Agreement except to the extent expressly provided for herein.
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10.           General Provisions:

(a)           Time of the Essence.  Time is of the essence with respect to each
and every provision of this Agreement and the performance, occurrence and satisfaction of each and every term and condition of this
Agreement.

( b )           Cooperation of Parties.  The parties shall cooperate with each other in carrying out the terms of this Agreement and shall
execute any additional instruments, documents, instructions, authorizations or other items that are reasonably necessary to comply
with the terms of this Agreement.

( c )           Complete Agreement.  This Agreement, and the other Agreements referenced herein, set forth the entire agreement
between the parties with respect to the subject matter of the Agreement, and any and all prior agreements, whether oral or written, are
hereby superseded.  No modification of this Agreement shall become binding unless the same is in writing and signed by both parties
hereto.

( d )           Notices.  Unless another form of notice or other manner of giving notice is expressly authorized by other provisions of this
Agreement, any notices required or permitted under this Agreement must be in writing and shall be personally delivered or sent by
certified or registered mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, or sent by facsimile, to each party to whom the notice is to be
given at the address set forth below.  An attempt to give purported notice not in compliance with these requirements shall be invalid
and ineffective.  Notice shall be deemed to have been received upon the earlier of (a) if personally delivered, the date of delivery to
the address of the person to receive such notice, (b) if mailed, three (3) business days after the date of posting by the United States
post office, (c) if delivered by Federal Express or other overnight courier, the next business day, or (d) if given by facsimile, when sent
with confirmation of receipt.  Notices are to be personally delivered or mailed as follows:
 

To AEAF Keyes:

 

AE Advanced Fuels Keyes, Inc.
Attn:  Eric McAfee
20400 Stevens Creek Blvd.,
Suite 700
Cupertino, CA 95014
Phone:  (408) 390-3275
Fax:  (408) 255-8044

   
To Gilbert:

 

A. L. Gilbert Company
Attn:  David Gilbert
304 N. Yosemite
Oakdale, California 95361
Phone:  (209) 847-1721
Fax:  (209) 847-3542

 
 

4

EDGAR Stream is a copyright of Issuer Direct Corporation, all rights reserved.



 

 
( e )           Attorney’s Fees.  In the event of any dispute between the parties arising out of or in connection with this Agreement, the
subject matter hereof, or the rights or duties of the parties in relation thereto, the prevailing party shall be entitled to a reasonable sum
as and for attorney's fees and costs as shall be determined by the parties or by the court should litigation be brought to resolve the
dispute.

( f )           Assignment.  Neither this Agreement nor any of the rights and obligations hereunder may be assigned or otherwise
transferred by either party to this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other party, except AEAF Keyes may assign its
rights and obligations to J.D. Heiskell.  Any attempt to assign or transfer this Agreement or any rights hereunder without such consent
shall be null and void and of no force and effect.

( g )           Inurement.  This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon, the assigns, successors in interest,
personal representatives, estates, heirs and legatees of each of the parties hereto.
 

(h)           Force Majeure.

(1)           Neither party shall be liable for failure to perform, in whole or in part, any of the duties or requirements hereunder if such
failure is caused by a catastrophe, riot, war, strike, fire, accident, act of God, or similar happening beyond the control of the party
failing to so perform, including, but not limited to, failure of processing equipment or change in local, state and federal law preventing
either party from reasonably fulfilling its obligations hereunder.   Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, any event of Force
Majeure shall excuse both parties’ performance hereunder, including performance which is prevented due to any event of force
majeure affecting any commercially reasonable agreement entered into by Cilion for the sale of ethanol.

(2)           In the event either party reasonably believes that its ability to perform may be delayed, impaired or prevented by any cause
described above, that party shall immediately notify the other party of such cause, and provide a copy of any contract, agreement or
document which prevents such performance,   and shall promptly and diligently take such actions as may be necessary and practical
under the circumstances to resume performance under this Agreement.

(i)           Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts and each such counterpart shall be deemed
to be an original document.

(j)           Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of California.
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This WDG Purchase and Sale Agreement is executed as of the date first above written at Keyes, California.
 

 

Gilbert:

A. L. GILBERT COMPANY,
A California Corporation

By:  A. L. Gilbert
Its: President & CEO

AEAF Keyes:

AE Advanced Fuels Keyes, Inc.
A Delaware Corporation

By: /s/ Eric A. McAfee
Its: Chief Executive Officer
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EXHIBIT 10.67
 

Certain information in this document has been omitted and filed separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
Confidential treatment has been requested with respect to the omitted portions.

 
 

KEYES CORN HANDLING AGREEMENT
 

This KEYES CORN HANDLING AGREEMENT("Agreement") is dated as of March 23, 2011, for reference purposes and is
entered into by and between A. L. GILBERT COMPANY, a California corporation ("Gilbert"), on one hand, and AE ADVANCED
FUELS KEYES, INC., a Delaware Corporation ("AEAF Keyes") and J.D. HEISKELL HOLDINGS, LLC, a California Limited Liability
Company ("Heiskell").  For purposes of this Agreement,  AEAF Keyes and Heiskell will collectively be referred to as the "Producer".

 
RECITALS

 
A.           AEAF Keyes and Heiskell have entered into a Corn Procurement and Working Capital Agreement of even date

herewith whereby Heiskell has agreed to supply AEAF Keyes all of its requirements for whole yellow corn to be used by AEAF Keyes
to produce ethanol at an ethanol plant located in Keyes, California that AEAF Keyes currently leases from Cilion, Inc. (the “Ethanol
Plant”).
 

B.           The Ethanol Plant is located on property that is contiguous to Gilbert’s feed mill (the “Gilbert Facility”).
 
C.           To produce ethanol, AEAF Keyes will purchase corn for delivery by rail to the Ethanol Plant via a railroad spur

owned by Gilbert which is located on the Gilbert Facility, and AEAF Keyes has entered into an Agreement with Heiskell to purchase
the corn and provide logistic rail delivery services for this purpose.

 
D.            In conjunction therewith, Producer and Gilbert desire to enter into an agreement whereby Producer will be allowed

to receive shuttle train loads of corn (estimated at 4 to 5 trains per month containing approximately 100 cars per shuttle train) which
will be offloaded by Gilbert in accordance with Union Pacific Railroad (“UPRR”) shuttle train program standards and the terms and
conditions of this Agreement.
 

AGREEMENT
NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows:
 
           1.            Corn Supply. Following the Ethanol Plant repair and commissioning, Gilbert agrees to allow Producer to receive
shuttle trainloads of corn (estimated at 4 to 5 trains per month containing approximately 100 cars per shuttle train), which will be
offloaded by Gilbert in accordance with UPRR shuttle train program standards. Heiskell will pay Gilbert a [***] per ton handling fee for
offloading services, including use of Gilbert's equipment and storage facilities, (the “Handling Fee”). Offloaded corn will be stored in
Gilbert's dedicated approximately 14,000-ton corn silo on Gilbert's Facility (the "North Silo"). AEAF Keyes will be responsible for
operating the conveying equipment from the North Silo to the Ethanol Plant.  Heiskell will be responsible to procure all of its own corn,
control logistics of trains into Gilbert's Facility, as well as collect all UPRR incentive rebates. Producer agrees that all corn to be
processed at the Ethanol Plant will be offloaded by Gilbert. Heiskell shall purchase number two (2) yellow dent corn which shall be of
merchantable quality and suitable for animal feed purposes and with aflatoxen levels safe and acceptable for lactating cows (less
than 20 ppb).  Gilbert's Handling Fee shall be based on the documented weight of corn at the point of origination and AEAF
Keyes  shall be responsible for inventory shrink, if any. Heiskell will pay Gilbert the Handling Fee within [***]days of unloading the
corn for the Producer. Heiskell will provide Gilbert with all records documenting the weight of corn at the point of origination relating to
corn offloaded by Gilbert pursuant to this Agreement, at Gilbert’s request.  The Handling Fee shall be subject to adjustment beginning
in 2014 as described below. The formula for adjustment of the Handling Fee is set forth in Exhibit "A" attached hereto.
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Gilbert shall dedicate the North Silo on Gilbert’s Facility for use by Producer in storing corn for the production of

ethanol.  Gilbert acknowledges that the corn stored in the North Silo is owned by Heiskell and Gilbert shall permit Heiskell,
its employees and representatives to enter Gilbert's premises on 24 hours advance notice during the term of this
Agreement and for a period of two weeks following the termination of this Agreement for the purpose of accessing the
Heiskell corn stored in the North Silo, provided that Heiskell shall be responsible for any damage to Gilbert's premises
caused by Heiskell, its employees or representatives as a result of such access.
 
In addition to the Handling Fee, “AEAF Keyes” shall pay Gilbert [***] for the offloading services contemplated by this Agreement (the
“Unload Incentive”).  AEAF Keyes hereby assigns to Gilbert the earned Unload Incentive proceeds due to AEAF Keyes from Heiskell
under Section 2.3 of the Corn Procurement and Working Capital Agreement dated March 9, 2011 between Heiskell and AEAF
Keyes.  “AEAF Keyes” will pay Gilbert the Unload Incentive within [***] of Heiskell’s receipt of unload incentives received from UPRR
for rail cars offloaded by Gilbert.  Heiskell will provide “AEAF Keyes” and Gilbert with copies of all records relating to unload
incentives paid by UPRR for rail cars offloaded by Gilbert, at Gilbert’s request.  To receive [***] Unload Incentive, Gilbert shall be
solely responsible for the timely transfer and storage of corn received on each shuttle train ordered by the Producer.  Any delay in
offloading corn from said shuttles which may result in a reduction of the Unload Incentive shall be the sole responsiblitiy of Gilbert,
and the Incentive payment will reflect the reduced amount.  Neither Heiskell nor AEAF Keyes will be responsible for compensating
Gilbert for any such reduced amount.
 
           2.             Term. The initial term of this Agreement shall commence on the date that corn procured by Heiskell is delivered to
the Gilbert Facility and shall end on the next December 31st  ("Initial Contract Year"). Each contract year shal1 begin on January 1st

and end on the next succeeding December 31st. This Agreement shall continue for the Initial Contract Year and for one (1) full
contract year thereafter. This Agreement shall continue annually thereafter unless either party gives notice of termination prior to June
30th of the year in which the next Contract Year would end, in which case this Agreement will terminate effective the next December
31st. Either party may cancel this Agreement immediately upon notice to the other party, if such other party shal1 have become
bankrupt or insolvent or entered into an assignment for the benefit of creditors or had a receiver appointed for its assets or become
the subject of any winding up of its business or any judicial proceeding relating to or arising out of its financial condition. Subject to
the notice and right to cure provisions as set forth in paragraph 5, the non-defaulting party may cancel this Agreement upon any
default by the other party.
 
           3.            Logistics. Heiskell will establish, manage, monitor and communicate logistics to insure that corn is received in a
timely and efficient manner, including all inbound rail and/or truck logistics to limit demurrage and to insure an uninterrupted supply of
corn for the operations of Gilbert and Producer.  Producer will be responsible for all freight charges and other charges imposed by
UPRR, including, but not limited to, demurrage in connection with the delivery and return of rail cars in a timely and efficient manner.
Producer shall use its reasonable best efforts to provide Gilbert with a monthly forecast of the planned delivery of corn for use in
AEAF Keye’s operation.
 
           4.           Independent Contractors. This Agreement does not constitute and shall in no way be construed to constitute or give
rise to a partnership, joint venture or similar relationship between the parties hereto. Each party shall perform its obligations under
this Agreement as an independent contractor and not as an agent for the other. No party shall have the right to obligate or bind the
other party in any manner whatsoever except as specifically provided herein.
 
           5.           Events of Default and Remedies. If either party defaults in respect of its obligations under this Agreement, the other
party may give notice of default. If such default is not cured within fifteen (15) days of such notice, the non-defaulting party shall be
entitled to such remedies as are available at law, including, but not limited, cancellation of this Agreement.   Notwithstanding the
foregoing, in no event shall any party be liable to any other party for any indirect, consequential, punitive or special damages, loss of
business expectation or business interruptions, arising in any way out of this Agreement or any breach of this Agreement except to
the extent expressly provided for herein.
 
[***] Certain information in this document has been omitted and filed separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
Confidential treatment has been requested with respect to the omitted portions.
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           6.           General Provisions.
 
                                 (a)           Time of the Essence. Time is of the essence with respect to each and every provision of this
Agreement and the performance, occurrence and satisfaction of each and every term and condition of this Agreement.
 
                                 (b)           Cooperation of Parties. The parties shall cooperate with each other in carrying out the terms of this
Agreement and shall execute any additional instruments, documents, instructions, authorizations or other items that are reasonably
necessary to comply with the terms of this Agreement.
 
                                 (c)           Complete Agreement. This Agreement, and the other Agreements referenced herein, set forth the
entire agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter of the Agreement, and any and all prior agreements, whether
oral or written, are hereby superseded. No modification of this Agreement shall become binding unless the same is in writing and
signed by both parties hereto.
 
                                 (d)           Notices. Unless another form of notice or other manner of giving notice is expressly authorized by other
provisions of this Agreement, any notices required or permitted under this Agreement must be in writing, and shall be personally
delivered or sent by certified or registered mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, or sent by facsimile, to each party to whom
the notice is to be given at the address set forth below. An attempt to give purported notice not in compliance with these requirements
shall be invalid and ineffective. Notice shall be deemed to have been received upon the earlier of (a) if personally delivered, the date
of delivery to the address of the person to receive such notice (b) if mailed, three (3) business days after the date of posting by the
United States post office, (c) if delivered by Federal Express or other overnight courier, the next business day, or (d) if given by
facsimile, when sent with confirmation of receipt. Notices are to be personally delivered or mailed as follows:
 

To Gilbert:
 

A.L. Gilbert Company
Attn: David Gilbert
304 N. Yosemite
Oakdale, CA 95361
Phone: (209) 847-1721
Fax: (209) 847-3542
 
To AEAF Keyes:

 
AEAF Keyes, Inc.
Attn: Eric McAfee
20400 Stevens Creek Blvd, Suite 700
Cupertino, California 95014
Phone: (408) 213-0928
Fax:  (408) 252-8044
 
To Heiskell:

 
J.D. Heiskell Holdings, LLC
Attn: Tim Regan
116 West Cedar Ave
Tulare, California  93274
Phone: (559) 685-6100
 Fax: (559) 686-8697
 

[***] Certain information in this document has been omitted and filed separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
Confidential treatment has been requested with respect to the omitted portions.
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                                (e)           Attorney's Fees. In the event of any dispute between the parties arising out of or in connection with this
Agreement, the subject matter hereof, or the rights or duties of the parties in relation thereto, the prevailing party shall be entitled to a
reasonable sum as and for attorneys' fees and costs as shall be determined by the parties or by the court should litigation be brought
to resolve the dispute.
 
                                (f)           Assignment. Neither this Agreement nor any of the rights and obligations hereunder may be assigned or
otherwise transferred by a party to this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other parties. Any attempt to assign or
transfer this Agreement or any rights hereunder without such consent shall be null and void and of no force and effect.
 

( g )           Inurement. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon, the permitted assigns,
and successors in interest, of each of the parties hereto.
 

(h )           Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts and each such counterpart
shall be deemed to be an original document.
 
                                (i)           Force Majeure. No party shall be liable for failure to perform, in whole or in part, any of the duties or
requirements hereunder if such failure is caused by a catastrophe, riot, war, strike, fire, accident, act of God or similar happening
beyond the control of the party failing to so perform, including, but not limited to, failure of processing equipment or change in local,
state and federal law preventing either party from reasonably fulfilling its obligations hereunder. In the event a party reasonably
believes that its ability to perform may be delayed, impaired or prevented by any cause described above, that party shall immediately
notify the other party of such cause, and provide a copy of any contract, agreement or document which prevents such performance,
and shall promptly and diligently take such actions as may be necessary and practical under the circumstances to resume
performance under this Agreement.
 

( j )           Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the
State of California.
 

----- Signatures on Next Page -----
 

[***] Certain information in this document has been omitted and filed separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
Confidential treatment has been requested with respect to the omitted portions.
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This Keyes Corn Handling Agreement is executed as of the date first above written at Keyes, California.

 

 

 
A.L. Gilbert Company, a California Corporation
 
By: A.L. Gilbert
Its: President & CEO
 
AEAF Keyes, Inc., a Delaware Corporation
 
By: Eric A. McAfee
Its: Chief Executive Officer
 
J.D. Heiskell Holdings, LLC, a California Limited Liability Company
 
By: Robert Hogden
Its:   VP – California Business Group
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EXHIBIT 31.1
 

CERTIFICATIONS
 
I, Eric A. McAfee, certify that:
 
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Aemetis, Inc.;
 
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact

necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report;

 
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all

material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods
presented in this report;

 
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and

procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

 
(a)   Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed

under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries,
is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

 
(b)   Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be

designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

 
(c)   Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our

conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this
report based on such evaluation; and

 
(d)   Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the

registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

 
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over

financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

 
(a)   All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting

which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
information; and

 
(b)   Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the

registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.
 
 
Date: October 31, 2012
 
/s/ Eric A. McAfee     
Eric A. McAfee     
Chief Executive Officer     
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EXHIBIT 31.2
 

CERTIFICATIONS
 
I, Todd Waltz, certify that:
 
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Aemetis, Inc.;
 
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact

necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report;

 
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all

material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods
presented in this report;

 
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and

procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

 
(a)   Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed

under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries,
is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

 
(b)   Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be

designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

 
(c)   Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our

conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this
report based on such evaluation; and

 
(d)   Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the

registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

 
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over

financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

 
(a)   All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting

which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
information; and

 
(b)   Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the

registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.
 
 
Date: October 31, 2012
 
/s/ Todd Waltz     
Todd Waltz     
Chief Financial Officer     
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EXHIBIT 32.1
 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE

SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
 
In connection with the Annual Report of Aemetis, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the year ending December 31, 2011, as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report “), I, Eric A. McAfee, Chief Executive Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
 

(1)     The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934;
and
 
(2)     The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.
 
 

/s/ Eric A. McAfee     
Eric A. McAfee     
Chief Executive Officer     
 
Date: October 31, 2012
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EXHIBIT 32.2
 

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE

SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
 
In connection with the Annual Report of Aemetis, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the year ending December 31, 2011, as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report“), I, Todd Waltz, Chief Financial Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
 

(1)     The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934;
and
 
(2)     The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.
 
 

/s/ Todd Waltz     
Todd Waltz     
Chief Financial Officer     
 
Date: October 31, 2012
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